
	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	

   	

  

        

  

     
   

        
        

   
        
     
     

    
   
    

   
         

   
      
          
   

   

    

      
       

 

   
   
   
   
   
   

  

      
        

       

  
 

  

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 

Proposed School Name Sofara International Charter School (SICS) 

Application History 

SICS applied to NYSED during both Rounds in 2015, 
and withdrew each time. 
SICS applied once in 2016 to SUNY, and withdrew. 
SICS’ LOI was approved in 2017 Round 1 to 
NYSED; application was not submitted. 

Proposed Board Chair Name Mr. Kevin Wells, Esq. 
Proposed Board Chair Email Address 
Proposed Board Chair Telephone Number 
Public Contact Name Robert McCullough 
Public Contact E-mail Address 
Public Contact Telephone Number 

District of Location 
New York City CSD 4 or 5 or the Hamilton Heights 
Section of CSD 6 

Opening Date August 2018 for students 
Proposed Charter Term 5 Years; August 2018 thru June 2023 
Proposed Management Company, 
organizations Not Applicable 

Replication School(s): Not Applicable 

Projected Grade Span and Enrollment and 
for Each Year of the Proposed Charter 
Term 

Year Grades Enrollment 
1 K-2 150 
2 K-3 200 
3 K-4 250 
4 K-5 300 
5 K-6 350 

Mission Statement 

Sofara International Charter School prepares children 
from diverse backgrounds in grades K through 6 to 
succeed in a challenging globalized world by 
providing rigorous dual language, inquiry-led 
learning in an academically accountable environment 
that is fully committed to their intellectual, social and 
emotional growth. 
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August 15, 2017 

Dear Mr. David Frank, 

Sofara International is delighted to submit our application for a Charter, pursuant to the acceptance 
of our Letter of Intent to submit in Round 2 of the NYSED Charter School Application Process. 

Sofara International Charter School (SICS) and the community supporting us, seek to create an 
educational opportunity for our children that will shape them into high functioning, career-oriented 
citizens who are self-aware, community-oriented and globally conscious. SICS is designed for 
diversity - so that all enrolled children build the strong literacy, math, and science foundation 
needed to succeed in a variety of environments. SICS’ design reflects input from the hundreds of 
parents we spoke with during our outreach efforts. We recognize that learning can take many 
routes – what is important is how the acquired knowledge is later shared and networked by young 
adults entering the workplace. 
Our goal in applying for a Charter is to create a French-English dual language school, based on the 
time-tested and highly successful education framework of the International Baccalaureate (IB) and 
its principles and practices of discovery-led teaching and learning. The IB framework establishes a 
cohesive learning environment, structured to allow students to seamlessly develop academic, 
intellectual, social and emotional skills. By addressing learning from these four angles, SICS 
develops in students the habits and strategies of successful leaders who can excel in the 
complicated and demanding situations, roles, and environments they will experience throughout 
life. 
As you know, the IB Organization’s Primary Years Program (PYP) establishes an elementary-
level, inquiry-led, trans-disciplinary framework for teaching and adaptive learning that is driven by 
the same critical thinking and performance-based expectations and rigor of the New York State 
Learning Standards. The core learning environment is predicated on the idea that each child will 
achieve to the highest levels of their innate ability. Such student-driven education has proven to be 
especially successful with children who: 

●	 Need to awaken their curiosity of the world and desire for knowledge 
●	 Need to establish and maintain learning through alternative instructional delivery systems 
●	 May not be intrinsically motivated to learn 
●	 Come from multi-cultural, multi-lingual families including ELLs 
●	 Thrive when the teaching pace and educational content are student driven 
●	 Are part of transient families, and need to jump right into curriculum without barriers 

(SIFE, recent immigrants, refugees, etc.) 
●	 Are deemed to have special needs, particularly those with the need to move and explore in 

a structured discovery space 
● Have a need for alternative ways to receive and express learning 

Through our outreach, we have found a very strongly expressed need for a school with the content 
embraced by Sofara International in Harlem and especially within Community School Districts 
(CSD) 4, 5, and 6 (Hamilton Heights). We have obtained and maintained the support of a wide 
array of parents and other community stakeholders who represent many different heritages and all 
walks of life. According to census information, residents in Harlem have immigrated from 28 
countries, and include new gentrifying families, French language dominant households, and 
hundreds of new elementary school age children. All of the 26 language programs (total of 48 
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counting all of CSD 6) currently in our requested districts of location for elementary schools, are 
Spanish/English. There is no French offering, despite a Francophone community that continues to 
expand exponentially. Therefore, SICS would provide a new choice for parents and students. 
Francophones in Harlem currently include families from France, Haiti, Mali, Senegal, and other 
countries – with each group scrambling to maintain language and learning skills for their own 
children. In implementing our proposed plan, we will be able to meet the needs of a critically 
underserved francophone ESL population, while providing a much-desired unifying principle for 
new families. We also anticipate being able to meet the needs of internationally-mindful parents 
who know their children will acquire language skills most naturally during their formative years. 
We believe in and embrace the core charter school values as the most suitable vehicle to achieve 
the expressed communal goals and priorities. These values provide the perfect way to realize the 
necessary educational environment for student achievement. Our intent in Year 1 is to enroll and 
serve approximately 150 students in K-2. By Year 5 we expect to have around 350 children in K-6, 
with two classes per grade. We have identified several suitable private facilities for use, within 
CSD 5, adjacent to 4 and in Hamilton Heights (6), should our application prove successful and 
public space be unavailable. 
In short, SICS will be the first Internationally-focused, French language, inquiry-led school 
established for the requested districts. We will also have the first dual language program designed 
to address the high population of underserved francophone English Language Learners. Our 
inquiry-led approach enables learners at all ability levels to access the curriculum. Our outreach 
efforts, documented in the attached, allows us to remain confident that we are proposing a charter 
school with a curriculum that will rapidly integrate into the fabric of Harlem and meet the desire of 
the community to welcome our proposed rigorous, multilingual school. 
We have created a staffing structure to match our key design elements, including specialized 
positions to ensure student achievement (IB curriculum coordinator - to manage framework of 
inquiry; Special Services Coordinator– to target, track and evaluate services to at-risk students; 
language acquisition specialists – to balance and strengthen learning in both English and French); 
and a Community Outreach Liaison who manages a community outreach plan designed to involve 
prospective parents and keep them engaged as part of the Sofara Community. We were able to 
develop our proposal within a conservative budget that assumes the minimum CSP allocation for 
the start-up period with a remaining yearly reserve. 
Our Leadership team is shaped to be strong, with a Director of Teaching and Learning able to 
focus on curriculum and instruction, and a Director of Operations able to focus on school and 
student life, with the Executive Director providing the bridge needed between the two. Our Board 
reflects Harlem, and was selected to help meet the needs of the school within the community 
beyond the core functions of teaching and learning and day-to-day operations. 
You will find our full proposal attached. The Sofara International team thanks you in advance for 
your consideration. 

Yours truly, 
Voyka Soto 
Executive Director 
Sofara International Charter School 
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CERTIFICATION AND ASSURANCES/INTENT STATEMENT 

Proposed Charter School Name: 

SOFARA INTERNATIONAL CHARTER SCHOOL 

Proposed School Location (District): 

NYC CSD 4 OR 5 OR THE HAMILTON HEIGHTS NEIGHBORHOOD OF CSD 6 

Name of Existing Education Corporation: 

SOFARA INTERNATIONAL CHARTER SCHOOLS 

I hereby certify that the applicant group/prospective Board of Trustees have all read 
Article 56 of the New York State Education Law, and understand the relationship 
between a charter school and the authorized chartering entity as defined in that statute. 
By submitting a charter school application to the Board of Regents, the applicant 
group/prospective Board of Trustees understands that the Board of Regents is the 
authorized chartering entity with the authority to approve our application to establish the 
proposed charter school and enter into a charter agreement setting forth the terms and 
conditions under which the Board of Trustees will operate the charter school. The 
applicant group/prospective Board of Trustees also understands that this charter school 
application serves as the first component of an application for a federal Charter Schools 
Program (CSP) Planning and Implementation Grant. We understand that if the charter 
application is approved and a charter is issued by the Board of Regents, the school is 
qualified to receive a CSP grant, pending available funding and final approval of 
additional materials – including budget materials - by NYSED and by the New York 
State Office of the Comptroller. We agree to complete all required budget information 
and assurances according to forthcoming instructions and a revised timeframe to be 
issued by NYSED. 

I hereby certify that the information submitted in this application is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief; and further I understand that, if awarded a charter, the proposed 
school shall be open to all students on a space available basis, and shall not discriminate 
or limit the admission of any student on any unlawful basis, including on the basis of 
ethnicity, race, creed, national origin or ancestry, gender, sexual orientation, disability, 
intellectual ability, measures of achievement or aptitude, athletic ability, age, religion, 
proficiency in the English language or a foreign language, or academic achievement. I 
understand that the Charter Schools Act allows, to the extent consistent with Federal law, 
“the establishment of a single-sex charter school or a charter school designed to provide 
expanded learning opportunities for students at-risk of academic failure or students with 
disabilities and English language learners.” 

The applicant group also makes the following assurances pursuant to Section 7221b of 
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the United States Code (USC), which will be incorporated into, and made a part of, the 
Charter School’s charter, if granted, and be binding on the Charter School itself: 

•	 An assurance that the charter school will annually provide the Secretary of the U.S. 
Department of Education and the State Education Department such information as 
may be required to determine if the charter school is making satisfactory progress 
toward achieving the objectives described in this application; 

•	 An assurance that the charter school will cooperate with the Secretary of the U.S. 
Department of Education and the State Education Department in evaluating the 
program assisted; and 

•	 That the charter school will provide such other information and assurances as the 
Secretary of the U.S. Department of Education and the State Education Department 
may require. 

I, Kevin G. Wells, Esq., hereby certify that the information submitted in this Full 
Application to establish Sofara International Charter School is true to the best of my 
knowledge and belief, realizing that any misrepresentation could result in disqualification 
from the application process or revocation after issuance of the charter. 

_______Kevin G. Wells___________ 
Printed Name 

_______08/06/17________________ 
Date 
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I. MISSION, KEY DESIGN ELEMENTS, ENROLLMENT AND COMMUNITY 
I.A Mission Statement and Objectives 
I.A.1 Mission – Sofara International Charter School prepares children from diverse backgrounds in Grades 
K through 6 to succeed in a challenging globalized world by providing rigorous dual language and inquiry-
led learning in an academically accountable environment that is fully committed to their intellectual, social 
and emotional growth. 
I.A.2 Replication mission: NOT APPLICABLE 
I.A.3 SICS Objectives. Sofara International Charter School (SICS) is an inclusive, dual language, inquiry-
led school in Central Harlem. The key academic and intellectual objectives are to grow an educational 
program to benefit students, particularly those at-risk of academic failure, from the diverse community 
represented in Community School Districts (CSDs) 4, 5 and/or 6’s Hamilton Heights (6HH) neighborhood. 
SICS deploys a modified Gomez Content (GC) model for dual language delivery, draws on the 
International Baccalaureate (IB) Primary Years Program (PYP) framework, and is framed in New York 
State (NYS) Learning Standards (LS), including Common Core (CC) (For ease of reference, NYSCCLS is 
used throughout). 
The school culture encourages social and emotional growth and celebrates diversity across the SICS 
community. SICS aspires to be an integral part of Central Harlem, and a preferred choice for families 
seeking excellence, dual language instruction and new opportunities for their children. SICS uses a flexible 
staffing model, through which the school draws upon a diverse, able, and intuitive cadre of teaching staff. 
The operations and management teams are focused on building competency in all content areas, including 
trans-disciplinary literacy in two languages. English Language Arts (ELA), Mathematics (Math) and other 
content are drawn into the inquiry of science and social studies; no subject is taught in isolation (Section 
II.A, Component 2). SICS deploys the six PYP thematic units of study (Who We Are, How the World 
Works, Where We Are in Place and Time, How We Express Ourselves, Sharing the Planet, and How We 
Organize Ourselves), and activities in all subjects are embedded throughout. 
By grounding the curriculum in the PYP framework and the NYSCCLS, including Bilingual Initiative 
(CCBI), SICS enables inquiry-led teaching and learning through exploration across subjects. A student’s 
curiosity is used to drive instruction and bring content into context and alignment. Each component is 
reinforced through direct instruction in English - subject and content acquired during French immersion 
inquiry classes is the focus of English immersion classes. For example, studying neighborhoods during 
French inquiry extends to reading and writing about them during ELA, and graphing them during Math. 
Students are engaged through performance-based experiences, which lowers barriers often faced by at-risk 
students. SICS students develop linguistic competency in French in tandem with proficiency in science and 
social studies learning standards through inquiry-led learning taught in French. 
Academic & Intellectual Objectives: A SICS-created curriculum underpins the educational program. It 
focuses on student achievement by using dual language teaching and learning to build competency in all 
content areas, including trans-disciplinary literacy in both languages. SICS students become bilingual 
through inquiry-led learning in French, while achieving proficiency in science and social studies learning 
standards. The goal is to become: 
•	 Bilingual/bi-literate in French and English, demonstrating ability to standards in both languages in 


reading, writing, speaking and listening, and competence in their contextual use;
 
•	 Proficient inquirers, able to explore people, places, and situations through scientific, analytical, and 

social perspectives; 
•	 Proficient in the scientific method and applied learning, able to use scientific knowledge and concepts 

to solve problems and enhance understanding across environments; and 
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•	 Knowledgeable about local, United States (U.S.) and world history, including how societies are 
organized, and fully aware of themselves geographically in place and time. 

SICS students develop linguistic competency in English in tandem with proficiency in ELA and Math 
learning standards through direct instruction in English. They develop: 
•	 ELA skills in reading, writing, speaking and listening; and 
•	 Math skills in all areas including operations and algebraic thinking, fluency, problem solving and 

concept modeling. 
Social & Emotional Objectives: Through the school’s culture, which encourages social and emotional 
growth and celebrates diversity through activities embedded within the six PYP thematic units of study, 
SICS students: 
•	 Personify the profile attributes, attitudes and skills of an IB Learner as internationally-minded habits of 

success; 
•	 Become self-aware individuals who know who they are, know their role in their community and know 

their standing as a global citizen; and 
• Embrace racial, ethnic, socio-economic and linguistic diversity. 

Organizational Objectives: Create an environment through which skilled, bilingual and IB educators can 
come together and create a high-performing charter school that promotes student achievement and meets 
the needs of a diverse community. For example, Ms. Soto, the proposed Executive Director has taught in 
bilingual settings, holds certification in teaching and learning with the IB Organization (IBO), and has 
spent her career in the service of high-risk student populations. She is identifying educators with similar 
skillsets to make this a reality. 
I.A.4 SICS materially furthers the following six objectives (Education Law §2850(2)) 
a) SICS improves student learning and achievement by creating individualized learning plans, providing 
small group tutoring and an extended school calendar to minimize content erosion. Including performance-
based applied learning makes content accessible, especially to English Language Learners (ELLs) and 
Students with Disabilities (SWDs), who may have trouble deciphering technical language and abstract 
concepts. Proven and effective foundational curriculum resources, such as Core Knowledge Language Arts 
(CKLA), Reading A–Z Headsprouts, and Wilson Fundations1 are part of the program. Student engagement 
in the curriculum is both student-driven and teacher-structured. Meaningful conversations between students 
and teachers and among students are supported by a data driven, portfolio-based assessment system. It is 
used to track and evaluate performance-based activities, and helps measure achievement against the 
Standards and establishes differentiation in terms of individual student learning goals. 
b) SICS increases learning opportunities for all students, with special emphasis on those at-risk of 
academic failure. SICS responds to a need identified by over 8,000 French speaking households and 
thousands more speakers of other languages in CSDs 4 and 5, and increasingly in 6HH (see Section I.D: 
Community to be Served). Over 90% of elementary-aged students in Central Harlem are designated 
Economically Disadvantaged (ED) and underserved, and include a high population of ELLs and SWDs. 
Abundant research shows how access to a dual language program2 promotes higher achievement levels for 
all students3. SICS provides a strong foundation for second language acquisition through bilingual English 
as a Second Language (ESL) and French as a Foreign Language (FLE) teachers. Direct instruction in 
English balances knowledge acquisition. 

1 http://www.wilsonlanguage.com/programs/fundations/ 
2http://www.coreknowledge.org/ckla-k3 
3Krashen, Stephen. “Remarks on C. Rossell, ‘Does bilingual education work? The case of Texas.’” 
http://www.sdkrashen.com/content/articles/krashen_on_rossell_2009.pdf; Thomas, Wayne and Virginia Collier. “The Multiple Benefits of Bilingual 
Instruction.” Educational Leadership. October 2003. http://www.ascd.org/ASCD/pdf/journals/ed_lead/el200310_thomas.pdf 
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The inquiry-led model of instruction lowers barriers to learning and provides students with multiple entry 
points into curriculum to demonstrate understanding and abilities. This is particularly suited to ELLs and 
SWDs, and effectively addresses gaps in learning exposure, application, and experience. Additional 
specialized staff at SICS who further support education access include a full time Social Worker, Special 
Education teacher (SpET), Special Services Coordinator (SSC), and Academic Intervention Teacher (AIT). 
c) SICS encourages the use of different and innovative teaching methods to materially further and 
promote student growth and achievement. Teaching staff is recruited and trained for flexibility and 
innovation in second language acquisition, and/or inquiry-led teaching, using trans-disciplinary approaches. 
Strategic investment in teacher collaboration and Professional Development (PD) provides targeted support 
for the dual language, inquiry-led education and performance-based applied learning curriculum 
components. SICS’s flexible staffing model also encourages innovation in teaching methods by not 
limiting AITs to being licensed special education teachers, but rather encouraging full use of alternative 
intervention specialists to address barriers to achievement. 
d) SICS creates PD and new opportunities for all school staff. As a school modeling the IB framework, 
every employee contributes to SICS’ globally-focused environment, develops its proven model for success, 
and creates cultural and linguistic richness. SICS sets aside annual stipends for administrators and teachers 
to engage in self-directed PD. More opportunities are provided directly through the IBO, Bank Street 
College, George Mason (GMU) and New York (NYU) Universities. The French-American Cultural 
Exchange (FACE4) in Education and the Arts Foundation is available to assist with developing the 
language and culture of the French diaspora. SICS’ collaboration with Harlem-based STEMKids NYC is 
one among several opportunities to develop teachers in science and performance-based applied learning 
teaching techniques (See Attachment 2B). 
e) SICS provides parents and students with an expanded range of choices in the types of educational 
opportunities offered through its commitment to: 
•	 Encourage cultural, linguistic and socio-economic diversity; 
•	 Offer real world, applied learning opportunities in a student-centered and student-driven environment 

through use of daily Library Lab time; and 
• Present content and experiences with a global perspective. 

f) SICS implements an accountability system to map each student’s performance and progress, and 
monitor multiple points of programmatic and organizational success. It is managed and overseen by the 
Executive Director and Board of Trustees (Board). A portfolio-based assessment, which includes 
performance tasks and use of the Northwest Evaluation Association (NWEA) Measures of Academic 
Progress (MAP) assessment system, provides real time, individualized student data. This supports informed 
and immediate decisions on differentiated teaching actions to take place. All SICS stakeholders have access 
to pertinent data through school-wide use of the ManageBac5, a data collection and storage system. 
I.B Key Design Elements 
I.B.1 Key Design Elements SICS’ mission-driven key design elements focus on instruction, culture and 
school organization. The key design elements meet the needs of and address feedback from the community. 
Instruction: SICS provides a rigorous instructional model within an extended school day and school year. 
This encompasses (key design elements are noted in bold with check marks): 
•	 A learning environment that engages cultural, linguistic, ethnic and socio-economic diversity for the 

student population within the context of achieving and acquiring real world skills. SICS’ Community 
Outreach Plan (COP) accounts for diversity in language and educational capabilities and is deliberate in 

4 http://face-foundation.org/french-dual-language-program/current-schools.html FACE is an endeavor of the French Ministry of Culture of the French 
Embassy that provides funding for French dual language and immersion programs that includes support in recruitment of francophone teachers.
5http://www.ManageBac.com 
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its efforts to include a broad cross-section of the rapidly changing demographics of Central Harlem 

(including gentrification).
 

•	 A Dual Language component designed to increase student achievement by building competency in all 
content areas, including literacy in two languages. SICS designed its dual language approach in direct 
response to needs expressed by parents during outreach efforts in CSDs 4 and 5, and increasingly 6HH. It 
is the first content-based dual language (French/English) school accessible to some 3,000 underserved 
French-speaking households in CSD 4, more than 5,000 in CSD 5 and approximate 2,300 in 6HH6 . 
Students become fully bilingual and bi-literate through an intensive language focus beginning in 
Kindergarten. SICS uses best practices for the acquisition of multiple languages, such as matching highly 
qualified teachers to the most suitable teaching strategies for children with a single or multiple language 
background. Educational research7 has demonstrated that through second language acquisition, students 
heighten their mastery of cognitive skills and abilities, aptitude, and habits of learning. 

•	 Rigorous Inquiry-led teaching and learning is accomplished through exploration in science and social 
studies within the PYP framework. Students benefit from genuine, performance based contextual 
experiences which lower barriers experienced by at-risk students. ELA, Math and all other content is 
drawn into the inquiry of science and social studies; no subject is taught in isolation. Termed “trans-
disciplinary,” such inquiry-led learning creates depth of knowledge when students explore the same 
content from different perspectives, for example, as a writer, scientist, and/or mathematician. Teachers 
present lines of inquiry and students follow their own interests to engage with content on their own 
terms, building strong foundational skills in literacy and Math. Exploration is facilitated through six IB-
specific thematic “Units of Inquiry,” each guided by a central idea. Physical education (PE), the arts, and 
dramatic play/drama also become tools for inquiry, and are highly successful in a dual language setting. 
Specific crafts and concepts enhance understanding and let students construct ideas in the context of 
multiple views and perspectives. Extended Applied Learning is scheduled daily in the SICS Library Lab 
for students to apply and challenge what they have learned, synthesizing knowledge with understanding. 

School Culture 
•	 Internationally-minded habits of success – All content and class exploration is an opportunity to 

extend student thinking and broaden understanding. A comparative approach is used to explore content 
that includes local through global perspectives. SICS implements the PYP Framework in support of 
children’s social emotional learning (SEL) while stimulating academic and intellectual curiosity. The 
multicultural foundation of SICS is reinforced through providing a safe space permeated with an 
international atmosphere. As students develop habits of mind for success (Learner Profile Attributes & 
Attitudes), they are expected to: 
§ Reflect on SELF: Who are they? What is their place in the world? 
§ Reflect on OTHERS and their actions: What is dignity? How does one communicate? 
§ Reflect on COMMUNITY: How to use critical thought to improve the community? 
§ Reflect on the WORLD: How to question and explore? How to protect the environment? 

Students have many entry points from which to address SEL. The building of attributes, attitudes and skills 
is a focusing tenet of the IB framework. Attributes help maintain balance between knowledge and risk; 
attitudes address appreciation and integrity; while skills involve doing research and self-management. 
Learning connections to a combination of skills are embedded in every Unit of Inquiry, and include codes 
of behavior and conflict resolution. Beyond inquiry, the PYP promotes diversity in the school environment 
and in the curriculum, embodies international-mindfulness, and embeds social emotional growth. 

6 http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml& http://statisticalatlas.com/neighborhood/New-York/New-
York/Harlem/Languages
7 http://www.child-encyclopedia.com/second-language/according-experts/second-language-acquisition-and-bilingualism-early-age-and-impact 
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Organizational Key Design Elements 
SICS' flexible staffing model further engages students. Two teachers with specific roles support each 
classroom: one focuses on content delivery (Lead Teacher) and the other (AIT) on intervention and 
differentiation to meet specific needs. While they work in unison, the separation of responsibilities gives 
each teacher focus and time to develop appropriate learning opportunities. Teacher experience and 
licensing are intended to better match student needs: an AIT in a flexible model may be an ESL, Special 
Needs, or Reading Specialist. Student support continues through the SICS staffing plan with the dedicated 
positions of SSC, SpET, ESL and FLE teachers, an IB Coordinator, and Social Worker from Year 1. 
I.B.2 Evidence of Success (Evaluation Criteria 2) While some fear learning a second language causes 
delay in primary language development, there is ample research to show this is a myth. Schools across 
NYS and throughout the U.S. are successfully implementing dual language programs, and content-based 
second language acquisition has helped promote high student achievement, as confirmed through 
performance metrics8. Inquiry-led curriculum also has proven an effective tool for engaging students in 
their learning and helping them achieve proficiency9. Primary schools implementing the PYP model of 
inquiry and associated practices have demonstrated its efficacy with such fidelity that an average 15 
percent per year growth is documented10. An example of a successful school with a similar population to 
SICS based on the same academic key design elements is the Graciela Garcia Elementary School (Garcia) 
in Texas. It is an authorized PYP World School using the GC language immersion model. 
Garcia has a K-5 student population with many of the same risk factors as those present in New York City 
(NYC) CSDs 4, 5 and 6HH. Garcia was recognized by the Texas State Education Agency as one of its high 
performing schools of 2013/2014, 2014/2015 and 2015/2016. Almost 100% of its students participate in 
their Free or Reduced Lunch Program (FRLP), 95% are ED11, over 13% are categorized as transient 
(migrants missing more than six weeks of the school year), and 83% are Limited English Proficient (LEP). 
Despite these known risk factors, students at Garcia “met or exceeded progress” compared to their District 
peers. Garcia’s graduating 5th grade students steadily outperformed their peers on annual state 
assessments12 in both ELA and Math. Overall District reading progress in 2015 was 68% vs. 75% at 
Garcia, while District progress in Math was 79% vs. 86%. A closer analysis showed that 82% of their LEP 
population, 85% of FRLP students and 71% of SWDs met or exceeded state standards13. 
I.B.3 Replication: NOT APPLICABLE 
I.B.4 Rationale, Supporting Research, Evidence of Effectiveness, and Serving Diverse Needs of all 
Students. The design of SICS meets several urgent needs identified during community analysis and 
outreach efforts (See Table 2A: Public Outreach). Of note is the support stemming from multilingual 
families; long term residents with ELL children in their households; and the francophone community, many 
among whom cannot afford private or specialized language programs (See Attachment 2B Francophone 
teacher support letter) (Design Priority 1). The need for dual language was supported as the top priority 
by parent survey results, over 148 intent-to-enroll sign-ups, and support letters. Data shows that next to 
Spanish, French is a dominant home language14 in Harlem. The Spanish population in Harlem’s CSDs 4 
and 5 are well served by 18, and 30 in 6HH, individual dual language and transitional bilingual education 

8 http://www.cal.org/earlylang/benefits/marcos.html Kathleen M. Marcos’s “Second Language Learning: Everyone Can Benefit
 
9 Measuring What Counts: Memorization Versus Understanding A discussion on the benefits of applied learning. Eva Reeder, February 11, 2002.
 
http://www.edutopia.org/measuring-what-counts-memorization-versus-understanding
10 http://www.ibo.org/globalassets/publications/ib-research/pyp/ib-pypoverviewreportwithoutschoolnames3-6-09.pdf 
11 https://www.psjaisd.us/site/handlers/filedownload.ashx?moduleinstanceid=18205&dataid=81542&FileName=2014-2015_School_Report_Card_garcia.pdf 
12 Texas Education Agency annual School Report Card http://www.psjaisd.us/Page/10303 
13 Great Schools http://www.greatschools.org/texas/pharr/9111-Graciela-Garcia-Elementary-School/?tab=test-scores, 
https://www.psjaisd.us/Page/10303
14 http://schools.nyc.gov/NR/rdonlyres/0183D51C-377B-4ED7-BCBE-607AE4669D54/0/201415ELLDemographicReport.pdf 
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programs. The Bilingual Bicultural Mini School15 is a favorite in CSD 4 since opening its doors in 1973. 
Parents and alumni express great satisfaction with the integrated science and social studies curriculum16. 
No such programs exist in CSD 4 or 5 or 6HH for children whose home language is French. 
Additionally, both minority and socio-economic isolation within existing community schools is well 
documented. SICS addresses this by providing a racially, culturally and economically diverse school 
community (students and staff) option, which meets the enrollment target goals required by the Charter 
Schools Act (Design Priority 8). With the unique mix of economic and educational levels of families in 
Harlem, a progressive, performance-based model of inquiry acts as an inclusive education model, which 
encourages each child to excel according to his/her abilities. It provides expanded learning opportunities 
and cognitive benefits17 for multilingual and multicultural ELLs, and children who are SWD and ED18. 
This design is fully supported by the flexible staffing model. 
Analysis of the successful Garcia’s school design and educational program confirms that the SICS’ design 
is well suited to the Central Harlem communities and meets the priorities raised during SICS engagement 
efforts (dual language, science, progressive model of teaching (see Attachment 2A and 2b). SICS knows 
that it is not sufficient to deploy a working model as a guarantee of success. The strategy is to pay 
continuous attention to SICS’ design implementation. Garcia’s example is useful, because its 
comprehensive language immersion program uses the GC Model as SICS does, which aligns well with the 
PYP tenet of connecting content across subjects. Students, through both the GC Model and the 
performance-based inquiry of the PYP are continually exposed to content and designated language in 
authentic, real-world scenarios, with abundant opportunities to communicate in both languages. Additional 
research, using multiple perspectives, was used to evaluate the effectiveness of a dual language model in 
promoting student achievement. Key points are highlighted in Table I.B.4, below. 

Table	 I.B.4: Effectiveness Associated	 with Acquiring a Second Language during the Primary Years 
Premise Source 

* Dual language immersion programs don’t cause delay/interference Howard & Christian, 1997 
* Students in these programs score high in their primary language as 
measured with a variety of assessments 

Christian et al., 2004; Lindholm-Leary, 2001 

* Benefits significant across subgroup categories such as language 
background, ethnicity, socioeconomic status, gender, and SWDs 

Howard, 2003; Lindholm-Leary, 2001, 2005c; 
Christian et al., 2004 

* Students who participate for 5 years in immersion scored as well as, or 
better than, all comparison groups on achievement tests 

Thomas, W. P., V. P. Collier, and M. Abbott. 
1993 

* Participation in early second language shows positive results in areas of 
standardized testing 

Armstrong & Rogers, 1997 

* Children who study a second language show greater cognitive 
development 

Hakuta, 1990 

* Second language study shown to increase listening skills, memory, & 
greater understanding of one's own language 

Lapkin, et al., 1990 

* Children develop a sense of cultural pluralism, openness and appreciation 
of other cultures 

Met, 1995 

* Bilingual workers earn 5% to 20% more than monolingual workers http://www.huffingtonpost.com/2013/12/06/secon 
d-language-infographic_n_4136915.html 

* Professional treatise on the benefits of early second language learning & 
bilingualism is posted on the Center for Applied Linguistics web site: 
Kathleen M. Marcos “Second Language Learning: Everyone Can Benefit.” 

http://www.cal.org.earlylang/benefits/marcos.html 

15 https://insideschools.org/school/04M182 
16 http://insideschools.org/component/schools/school/179 
17 http://tcf.org/content/report/how-racially-diverse-schools-and-classrooms-can-benefit-all-students/ 
18 http://www.tolerance.org/sites/default/files/general/Diversity Responsive Schools_TT white paper Hawley.pdf 
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Significant research is available to support incorporating inquiry-led applied learning in school 
curriculums, and to support using the PYP model. The opportunity to apply knowledge is embedded in the 
PYP and is directly tied to SICS being able to reach and surpass its achievement goals in a dual language 
setting. Spires, et al (2012) found that “knowledge representation is critical to knowledge construction and 
meaning making.” By allowing students to tap into the linguistic, visual, audio, gestural, and spatial modes 
of learning, SICS can better reach ELL and SWD students who benefit from multimodal input. At Garcia, 
inquiry-led learning clearly helps form depth of knowledge, foster a desire to explore a wider range of 
issues and problems, and give students an authentic way to present their knowledge by effective 
implementation of the PYP (Grant, M. & Branch, R.M. 2005). Performance-based applied inquiry is 
associated with effective teaching and learning and enhanced social skills. It builds intrinsic motivation, 
and incorporates social and global elements that further increase problem solving ability, and improves 
communications, research and organizational skills (Kucharski, et al 2005). 
I.C. Enrollment Preference 
Any child qualified under NYS laws for admission to a public school is qualified for admission to SICS 
(Education law §2854(2)). Eligible applications are received between February 1st and April 1st annually. 
Enrollment preferences “shall be provided to pupils returning to the charter school in the second or any 
subsequent year of operation and pupils residing in the school district in which the charter school is 
located, and siblings of pupils already enrolled in the charter school19.” (See Attachment 1: Admissions 
Policy and Procedures, including Backfill Policy.) 
I.C.1 Projected Enrollment. SICS projects enrollment of about 150 students in Year 1 for Grades K-2 
(See Table 1.C.1). From Year 2, approximately 50 Kindergarten students are added annually; and by Year 
5, 350 students in Grades K-6 are anticipated. To account for attrition, SICS may enroll students at up to 
7% above projected enrollment (see backfill and targeted retention below). 
I.C.2 Projected Enrollment Plan 
Rationale for Enrollment Size: In CSDs 4, 5, and 6HH 
students enter elementary school with multiple at-risk 
factors20. To mitigate these factors and maintain a focus 
on achievement, the SICS enrollment plan supports slow, 
controlled growth in an optimal school environment 
focused on academic achievement. By careful 
consideration of class size and the number of classes in 
each grade, SICS is positioned to meet achievement 
goals, benchmarks and expectations, because all 
stakeholders obtain a clear understanding of progress and 
share a realistic measure of achievement. In turn, SICS 
can access and offer the “right” support to stakeholders 

Table 1.C.1: Projected 5 year Target 
Enrollment Plan 

Grade Ages 2018-
2019 

2019-
2020 

2020-
2021 

2021-
2022 

2022-
2023 

K 4-6 50 50 50 50 50 
1 5-7 50 50 50 50 50 
2 6 – 8 50 50 50 50 50 
3 7 – 9 50 50 50 50 
4 8 – 10 50 50 50 
5 9 – 11 50 50 
6 10 – 12 50 

Total 150 200 250 300 350 
for dual language and inquiry-led learning coursework. 
Growth is predicated on succeeding in SICS’ mission. 
Across its grade span, SICS expects to see attrition because of social movement, parents who rely on 
school choice to advocate for their children and other normal reasons. There is a high likelihood of an 
average 5-7% attrition based on consultation with charter school administrators of schools with bilingual 
components. School leaders have observed that parents tend to prefer a stable bilingual school 

19 in accordance to Education law §2854(2)(b) 
20 http://www.cb11m.org/wp-content/uploads/2016/01/CB11-Statement-of-District-Needs-FY17.pdf 
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environment, especially when achievement comes with consistent language development. Attachment 1 and 
Section I.C.4 address backfill policy. 
Optimal School Environment Recent studies demonstrate how large school models do not efficiently 
promote student achievement21. This is especially true when a school reflects a diverse population with 
numerous at-risk factors. SICS is establishing small class sizes and an average 12:1 student teacher ratio to 
give students consistent opportunity for genuine interactions, reflection, and conferencing time with 
teachers and mentors. 
Optimal Academic Achievement The enrollment plan supports a culture based on Individual Learning 
Plans (ILPs) for each child, with differentiated learning and individualized attention from teachers. 
Additionally, as an applied learning model of inquiry-led education, SICS is positioned to form small 
groups for instruction as well as release students to independent exploration. Each student’s personally 
derived explorations and wonderings are the basic tenet of an IB school. 
Growth Pattern. SICS seeks to meet the academic needs from Year 1 of as many at-risk students as 
possible, particularly francophone ELLs. The focus is on planned steady enrollment to create a school 
culture that engages in continuous improvement with adequate time to map and analyze progress in student, 
staff and school-wide goals. Maintaining best 
practices for a dual language program is a priority. 
The complexity of the dual language and PYP 
components are more easily implemented when 
each component factor is steady and controlled. A 
Grade K-6 span serves, within PYP and SICS 
design, to align with known stages of child growth 
and development, an essential component in 
delivering optimal, appropriate instruction. 
Alignment with grade configurations of other 
local schools. The SICS K-6 grade configuration is 

Table	 1.C.2: Current	 CSDs Grade Span 
Configurations 

Grade 
Span 

#	 of 
Schools 

Grade 
Span 

#	 of 
Schools 

Grade 
Span 

#	 of 
Schools 

K-6 2 K-5 28 K-8 16 
K-2 2 K-3 2 K-4 1 
K-7 1 K-9 2 K-12 5 
3-8 1 5-12 1 6-7 2 
6-8 6 6-10 1 6-11 1 

6-12 5 8-12 2 9-12 5 

common across NYC. Within CSD 4 and 5 two other schools currently serve students in a K-6 model, one 
is East Harlem Scholars Academy Charter School. The remaining schools, including those in 6HH, cover a 
wide spectrum of grade configurations as shown in Table 1.C.2. 
Growth after the first charter term. SICS’ long-term strategic plan includes the eventual request for 
authorization to grow to 8th grade for a K-8 span, with a Middle School option. SICS seeks to provide a 
continuum of education and address parent concern regarding a decline in school quality in higher grades 
(see Table 2a). Once SICS has demonstrated that it has a stable school environment, with strong enrollment 
and clear evidence of student achievement, a request for expansion can be submitted. 
I.C.3 Admissions, Enrollment Process and Public Lottery 
Application and Admissions (see Attachment 1) information is available from or about January 15th, and 
complete applications are accepted beginning February 1st until midnight on or about April 1st for the 
coming school year. If applications do not exceed the available places, each applicant who is 5 years old by 
December 31st of that year is admitted. If there are insufficient applicants by April 1st, the enrollment 
period is continued, as allowable by law, to August 1st. SICS increases active recruitment efforts through 
collaboration with community organizations and Directors of Early Childhood Centers and, by expanding 

21 Cotton, K. (2001, December). New small learning communities: Findings from recent research. Portland, OR: Northwest Regional Education 
Laboratory; Gettys, J. M. (2003). The effect of school size on school climate variables in middle schools of South Carolina. Unpublished doctoral 
dissertation, University of South Carolina, Columbia; White, S. M. T. (2005). The relationship of school size and school climate in public elementary 
schools in South Carolina. Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, University of South Carolina, Columbia. 

NYSED 2017 Round 2: Full Application Narrative 8 



			 	
	

     	

   	

   
         

              
 

           
 

  
     

     
     

 
    

 
           

 
 

  
  

  
              

                  
          

    
          

 
          
           

  

  
    

 
    

          
 

 
   

    
     

   
         

   
																																																													

                      
  

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 

beyond the district of location to neighboring CSDs 4 or 5 or 6, where parents have shown interest. If these 
efforts are not effective, SICS will consider extending the pre-opening period by one year. If there are more 
applicants than seats, a lottery is held (see below). The dual language mission of SICS allows for backfill 
up to Grade 2 (see Attachment 1). 
SICS provides access to the New York City Common Online Charter School Application, currently 
available in nine (9) languages, through SICS’ website, at collaborating organizations, and for walk-ins. 
Downloaded paper versions are provided at all community events as possible, and SICS staff accepts phone 
calls and other requests for printed applications to be mailed through the U.S. Postal Service. These are in 
the dominant languages of Central Harlem (English, French and Spanish). French and Spanish-speaking 
staff, if available, help non-English speaking families complete applications as feasible. 
Enrollment Process. Within three weeks of admission, the student’s family is mailed an enrollment packet 
(see Table III.L Pre-opening Plan), and notified by phone about school-based enrollment sessions, held at 
multiple times on multiple days. Enrollment sessions include school orientation, review of packet material, 
assistance with filling out forms and collection of supporting documents to be held by SICS. Once all 
forms are completed, a student is officially enrolled. If all documents are not provided, or all forms cannot 
be completed on or before June 7th, the seat is released to the next student on the waiting list. The 
Executive Director and Board closely monitor the enrollment process, notably for diversity targets and 
priorities. SICS COP identifies stakeholders, community leaders and collaborating organizations, and has 
an enhanced focus during the application period. 
Public Lottery. If the number of applicants exceeds the available seats, SICS will conduct a lottery 
between April 2nd and April 15th of each year. Public notice of the date, time and place will be posted, as 
provided for by Public Officers Law Section 104. The lottery is open to the public; observed by an 
independent party for fidelity purposes; and documented to show the process used, how it matches the 
Charter’s procedures, and implemented with consistency. All records are provided to the Authorizer. 
I.C.4 Backfilling Vacancies. The American Council of Teachers of Foreign Languages (ACTFL)
 
recommends that students in a dual language setting not enter after 2nd grade. This standard is recognized 

for the best direct impact on students achieving fluency and proficiency in a second language. Throughout
 
the charter term, and barring any regulation to the contrary, SICS backfills vacated seats by enrolling 

students into Grades K, 1 and 2 only. This maintains fidelity in learning for each student. Vacant seats in 

these grades during the school year are filled from the waitlist until October 31st. Vacancies after this date 

are filled the next school year. All seats filled from the waitlist are from the most recent lottery (Attachment 

1 presents backfill considerations). Retention in Grades 3 to 6 is a focal point for outreach to limit 

emergence of a pyramid enrollment schema.
 
I.C.5 Student Recruitment and Retention Plan.
 
Student Recruitment: SICS is committed to recruiting from all Central Harlem, with the priority of
 
achieving and maintaining a socio-economic and cultural diversity balance. Data22 confirms the significant 

correlation between the socio-economic diversity of a student body and individual academic achievement. 

SICS uses a wide array of general approaches to recruit from a diverse pool of Harlem families. These 

include a well-developed plan with input from Board member Tom Amico, a Marketing expert, as well as:
 
•	 Placing flyers in well-trafficked CSD common areas including libraries, shopping districts, community 

bulletin boards, parks, and family-fun places of business. 
•	 Placing advertisements on radio and in newspapers, including Radio Africa, the France USA Magazine, 

El Diario newspaper, and similar outlets servicing multilingual families. 

22 Hoagland, J. P. (1995). The effect of high school size on student achievement as measured by the California Assessment Program. Unpublished 
doctoral dissertation, University of LaVerne, Claremont. 
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•	 Promoting application, enrollment and a year-round marketing campaign to the 3000+ members of 
Harlem4Kids and Directors of Pre-schools (Attachment 2b). 

•	 Implementing information sessions, school tours, sponsored community events, and collaborative 
events with enrichment partners through SICS’ COP. 

•	 Rolling out social media initiatives based around the SICS Facebook and LinkedIn pages, website 
(www.sofarainternational.org), Twitter account, and other delivery options that evolve. 

SICS aims for cultural and socio-economic diversity by marketing in the public NYC Housing Authority 
(NYCHA), middle income Mitchel Llama housing complexes, and the many newly constructed co-op and 
condominium complexes in Harlem. In support of recruiting, SICS has developed and is maintaining 
collaborative relationships with NYCHA Resident Associations (see Attachment 2b), community day care 
facilities and service-oriented community-based organizations (CBOs) including the St. Nicolas Houses, 
Shugah Baybees Developmental Center, and The Boys Club of New York (BCNY) - East Harlem. Strong 
ties are maintained with cultural organizations representing francophone families such as FACE, the 
Senegalese Association of New York and the Guinean, Malian and Togolese cultural centers in Harlem. 
Targeted recruitment takes place through information sessions at facilities where families can be met 
where they live. SICS has identified and will update recruiting zones surrounding schools known to have 
above average percentages of at-risk students. The French Consulate, the FACE Foundation, Manhattan 
Mandarin, STEMKids NYC and others are ready to participate in recruitment activities (see Section III.I.5 
and Attachment 2B) planned for post-authorization. Broader awareness of the school, application material 
and enrollment opportunities is encouraged through relationships developed with elected officials, locally-
based international organizations, educators, and organizations serving SWDs and immigrant families. 
Current outreach has yielded 148 + intent-to-enroll signatures for Year 1, representing the Harlem diaspora. 
To maintain projected enrollment, SICS’ outreach, marketing, and recruitment efforts are continuous and 
coordinated through the dedicated staff position of Community Outreach Liaison (COL). The COL is 
charged with maintaining continuous engagement with parents, the community and other stakeholders on 
multiple levels, as directed through a multi-tiered Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP), which includes the 
COP and covers recruitment and marketing. It is developed, maintained and updated by the Board and the 
Executive Director with the goal of maintaining a balance between developmental considerations and 
recruitment collaboration, and a school environment with a strong sense of community. 
Retention plan. The COL is charged with maintaining a comprehensive family engagement strategy as 
part of the COP, based on direct, clear two-way communication, opportunities for direct engagement with 
administrators and teachers, and opportunities for community-oriented events. The COP, approved by the 
Executive Director, is part of the SEP. Finalized by February each year for the following school year, it 
underpins Stakeholder Engagement for Sofara and is Board-approved. SICS aims to retain students by 
creating an academically rich, socio-emotionally responsive environment and culture that families and 
students want to be part of. Ascertaining and understanding the current and actual needs of students and 
their families is central to the school culture. School culture is kept relevant to the community through a 
continuous assessing and improving of systems, processes, procedures, and policies. 
These promote and introduce innovative teaching and learning techniques that inspire and grow each 
student. Tools available in support of SICS’ desired environment and culture include student and parent 
access to the SICS ManageBac data storage and analysis system, monthly teacher stipends for family 
engagement (see Section III.I.3 and Attachment 9 Line 126), incentives for exploration and travel (available 
for intersessions, finances permitting), and the use of BLOOMZ23, a non-fee based application for 
communication, coordination and community building through text and email. School leaders and teachers 

23 www.bloomz.net 
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use BLOOMZ to send classroom snapshots, coordinate events, create sign-ups and more. Further 
information on family engagement is found in Section III.I, 1-6. 
Inquiry-led learning in the educational environment is considered a critical retention driver by SICS 
leaders. Inquiry is presented in dynamic ways to encourage students to want to know and do more in an 
environment that encourages and validates free-thinking. This is a unique draw, as is student-driven action 
on personal areas of passion. The ability to take learning into authentic settings as part of an elementary 
school curriculum builds a sense of achievement by opening intellectual opportunities for each student. 
Additional student retention is promoted by supporting each student with intervention. The School 
Advisory Team (SAT) supports social, emotional and behavioral growth and a School Based Support Team 
(SBST), which includes a Social Worker and experienced Services & ESL specialists, supports utilizing the 
SICS Response to Intervention (RTI) protocol (see also Section II.G.4/III.I. and Attachment 9). 
Social emotional support is embedded in the curriculum and provided through mentoring and coaching 
students during scheduled whole-school Choose Act Reflect (CAR) time. SICS collaborates with CBOs 
who use research-based support programs to provide a sense of community-based enrichment. SICS 
already enjoys the support of MAN UP24, Each One Teach One, The Leadership Project, and the BCNY. 
Families of ELLs, SWDs, students who are eligible applicants for the FRPLP, and students whose families 
may be less informed about available options all have multiple modes of engagement. These include SICS’ 
Family School Association (FSA), home visits, enrollment sessions, curriculum workshops, interest 
workshops, and a parent handbook. SICS hosts school community events, encourages on-going parental 
feedback, sends email blasts, and maintains an up-to-date school website. To ensure clear communications, 
information and material is provided in English, French, Spanish and other dominant language(s) 
identified; when needed, translators are provided (See Section I.C.5 and III.I.3). 
Students with Disabilities: SICS plans to meet with, or otherwise inform, both the Committee on Special 
Education (CSE) and the NYC Early Intervention Program about SICS’ mission, at least annually. SICS 
provides enrollment material and dates for SICS recruitment events. The COL identifies and targets 
preschools that specifically service special needs children, and will identify students with an Individual 
Education Plan (IEP) who may be bilingual. Material provided to these groups and parents includes clear 
information on the correlated benefits of learning disabilities and inquiry-led applied learning. 
On a continuing basis, SICS continues to cultivate relationships with SSCs of pre-K and early childhood 
developmental programs and will hold recruitment presentations, school tours, and targeted workshops. 
SICS seeks to collaborate with supporting organizations and any other educational CBOs that provide 
services to students with IEPs to conduct recruitment sessions. Each year, SICS plans at least two pre-
enrollment community information sessions for parents of SWDs. 
Retention of SWDs is encouraged through providing support mechanisms that promote personal and 
academic growth and achievement. IEPs are closely monitored to ensure that authentic annual progress 
goals are set for each student with their teachers, and if necessary, through the school-wide transitional 
inclusion plan (TIP), (see Section II.B.1). Parents are invited as partners in goal setting within teaching and 
learning. SICS uses workshops and other FSA events to inform and educate parents on successful habits, 
strategies, and practices for raising and teaching a child with special needs. Workshop topics are curated for 
the specific needs of the active student population. The classrooms are infused by an inclusive support 
structure that encourages students to take risks while learning, specifically as they are guided in a co-
teaching setting on core content in Math, English Literacy, and French immersion. AITs differentiate 

24 http://manupcampaign.org 
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lessons and identify learning modes that are both traditional and innovative. This includes lessons co-
planned with teaching specialists. 
English Language Learners: The COL, supported by the Executive Director and the Board, markets 
directly within the community, focusing on geographic pockets of francophone families. This includes 
placing informational material (including on enrollment) in or near establishments or services attracting 
French-speakers, and holding collaborative recruitment presentations, such as: 
•	 French language childcare centers in Harlem, including the Harlem Children's Zone Head Start (French 

language), Citizens Care DCC 1, Petits Poussins, and Arc-en-ciel. 
•	 Cultural organizations including the 2500+ member Senegalese Association of New York, the Malian 

Association, the Morija French Speaking Church, Little Africa, HANAC Community Services Center -
Immigration Programs (Harlem Office). 

In addition, on an ongoing basis, SICS: 
•	 Advertises in local and foreign language media, such as Radio Africa, France-Amerique, Al-Hoda, and 

El Diario La Prensa. 
•	 Continues outreach with the Citywide Council on ELL to share ideas, resources, applications, and 

enrollment materials. 
Retention of ELL students and their families involves maintaining clear lines of communication. School 
notices and announcements are available in languages selected using the student Home Language Survey 
that is administered at the beginning of each school year or identified during parent-teacher conferences. 
Classroom community teacher blasts created through BLOOMZ are sent out in the preferred languages of 
parents, by using the built-in language translation feature. 
Teaching in French in a dual language setting is instrumental in retaining ELL students as it directly 
addresses community stakeholder requests (see Attachment 2a). As part of the school-wide PD plan, all 
teachers receive training in ESL Sheltered Instruction Observation Protocol (SIOP) strategies. Additional 
language support is provided through direct ESL and FLE teachers who have regularly scheduled classes. 
FRLP-eligible students: SICS continually promotes awareness of the school and shares enrollment 
information through close collaboration with local CBOs who work with low-income families. Outreach 
also engages with local public assistance providers, community churches, food banks, and local food 
markets to identify families who should receive applications and/or attend presentations. This includes 
providing Tenant Associations and public housing associations with marketing material and extended 
tenant outreach, posting flyers and hand distributing material at public parks, free community events and 
other social events such as holiday toy drives. 
Retention for students and their families living at or below the poverty line is driven by making holistic 
educational support accessible. SICS, using the principles and practices of the PYP, addresses each 
student’s needs academically, intellectually, socially, and emotionally (see Section II.G). This incorporates 
an in-house Social Worker in Year 1 and a Guidance Counselor (GC) beginning in Year 4. SICS’ holistic 
model supports the family with the inclusion of workshops, extended educational opportunities, and 
resource location for parents such as career and job openings. Students and their families have the benefit 
of support and resources of the COL and consistent continuous teacher-school-parent communication. 
Families who may be less informed: Grassroots recruitment efforts are integrated throughout the SICS 
COP to reach a broad and diverse spectrum of the community. SICS has identified areas in CSD 4, 5, and 
6HH that have families outside normally high-trafficked areas or removed from subway lines, and has 
conducted outreach to them, notably along the East and Hudson Rivers. 
Retention of such families and students requires clear communication and support. SICS shall offer 
parents multiple modes of accessing information about the school, classroom, student life, and special 
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events. Direct outreach is to include home visits, notes sent home in student backpacks, and access to 
computers for ManageBac. 
I.C.6 Ensuring Adequate Enrollment And Full Accessibility Of The School For All Students. 
Enrollment outreach is ongoing. SICS’ Executive Director, Board, and COL collaborate on maintaining the 
COP so that preauthorization phase outreach is strengthened post-authorization. The preopening phase is 
used to update information packages and bolster schedules for recruitment activities, enrollment and update 
workshops, and/or sessions with SICS’ community support organizations. Relationships established with 
Directors of Early Childhood Centers and NYCHA Resident Associations will be accessed to ensure 
adequate enrollment. The school is intended to be accessible to all at-risk sub-groups of eligible students. A 
focus on ILPs allows SICS to adjust aspects of programming to meet each student’s need holistically. 
Every effort will be made to identify and work with students needing physical accommodations. This 
includes furniture arrangements within classrooms and building access (see Section III.F.4). If established 
recruitment and marketing proves insufficient, SICS may request approval to conduct a Weighted Lottery 
Generator preference in accordance with applicable laws and NYS Education Department (NYSED) 
regulations. Table I.C.6 represents the enrollment and retention targets for the full charter term within 
CSDs 4 and 5 and 6HH. 

Table	 I.C.6: Enrollment and	 Retention	 Targets for Districts 4,	5 	and 6 	(rounded) 

Students CSD 

Year 1 
K – 2 

Year 2 
K – 3 

Year 3 
K – 4 

Year 4 
K - 5 

Year 5 
K - 6 

*E 
target 

*R 
target E target R target E target R target E target R target E target R target 

Total Years1-5 All 150 150 200 200 250 250 300 300 350 350 

SWDs 
5 27 24 38 34 50 44 62 55 73 65 
4 34 32 47 45 61 58 75 70 88 83 
6 21 19 29 27 37 35 46 43 54 51 

ELLs 
5 22 20 30 27 37 33 45 40 50 45 
4 27 25 34 32 42 39 49 46 54 51 
6 57 53 74 70 92 86 110 103 127 120 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

5 139 123 187 166 233 207 280 248 324 290 
4 133 123 177 165 221 207 266 249 311 292 
6 133 124 178 167 224 208 269 251 315 295 

*E = enrollment; R = retention 

CSD 5 numbers in Table I.C.6 show that in Year 1 (150 seats), SICS will enroll 22 (14%) ELLs, 27 
(17.5%) SWDs and 138 (91%) ED students. By Year 5, SICS expects the same student sub-group 
enrollment to increase to 50 (14%), 73 (21%) and 324 (92%) respectively. SICS also expects in Year 5 to 
retain 45 (90%) of ELL, 65 (90%) of SWD and 290 (89%) of ED students. 
CSD 4 enrollment and retention targets are unique, although similar to CSD 5. In Year 1, per Table 1.C.6, 
SICS will enroll 27 (17.5%) ELLs, 27 (22%) SWDs and 133 (87%) ED students. By Year 5, SICS expects 
the same student sub-groups enrollment to increase to 54 (15%), 88 (25%) and 311 (88%) respectively. 
SICS also expects in Year 5 to retain 51 (94%) of ELL, 83 (95%) of SWD and 292 (94%) of ED students. 
CSD 6HH enrollment and retention targets are similar to CSD 4 and 5, except for the ELL targets. In Year 
1, per Table 1.C.6, SICS would enroll 57 (37.3%) ELLs, 21 (13.6%) SWDs and 133 (87%) ED students. 
By Year 5, SICS expects the same student sub-groups enrollment to increase to 110 (36%), 54 (15.3%) and 
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315 (89.3%) respectively. SICS also expects in Year 5 to retain 120 (94%) of ELLs, 51 (94.4%) of SWDs
 
and 295 (93.7%) of ED students.
 
SICS has compiled and will maintain data from individual schools within CSDs 4, 5 and 6HH on at-risk 

subgroups throughout the charter term. This data serves to guide SICS with real-time enrollment trends 

useful in academic planning and outreach. For example, current data (2015/16) from CSD 5 schools P.S.
 
154 and P.S. 194 show enrollment of SWDs well above the SICS target enrollment. P.S. 154 has an
 
enrollment of 26% SWDs while P.S. 194 has a 34% enrollment rate of SWDs.
 
In addition to the above, as a dual language school offering two of the Top 5 dominant languages within the 

community, SICS anticipates meeting, if not exceeding, enrollment targets of ELLs who require additional 

instructional support. As described in Section 1.D.4, SICS employs specialized staff qualified in second 

language acquisition, which is a draw for families seeking those services, enabling SICS to meet its target
 
enrollment of ELL children. With a combined 18 Spanish/English, and zero French/English, bilingual
 
programs in CSD 4 and 5, the large French language-dominant population has no close-to-home expanded 

choices. The remaining population lacks opportunity to become career-ready with the acquisition of
 
additional languages. CSD 6 has an additional 30 dual language/bilingual schools that provide instruction 

in Spanish/English only. Many of the individual schools in Central Harlem, particularly in CSD 5, serve
 
ELL populations at an actual average of 17% against the enrollment projection of 14%. To alleviate the 

strain on district schools, and to work to meet enrollment targets, SICS proposes to recruit from areas
 
surrounding schools that have above average at-risk populations.
 
Additionally, data for neighboring CSD 3, where there are two elementary and one Middle School French
 
/English dual language programs, suggest that SICS may expect a larger proportion of ELL student
 
enrollment compared to the district-wide average. The K – 5 NY French American Charter School has
 
double the ELL population average of CSD 325 while P.S. 84/The Lillian Weber Elementary School26 has 

an ELL population 45% above their district’s average.
 
I.D. Community to be Served. 
The characteristics and demographics of 
CSD 4, 5 and 6HH were mapped using 
multiple sources to confirm stakeholder 
feedback and actual demographic 
breakdown. Subsequent outreach 
confirmed the strong interest in 
supporting a school that provides a 
critical unifying principle for the growing 
Harlem francophone community (with 
origins in France, Haiti, Mali, Senegal, and other countries). It also demonstrated a strong interest in an 
international French/English dual language school from non-francophone residents, including those within 
the Spanish- speaking community. While most CSD 6 households are Spanish language dominant, there is 
a large portion that is not. Table 1.D.1 demonstrates this in the Hamilton Heights neighborhood. 
I.D.1.Description of the community to be served by SICS The Office of NYC Planning shows Harlem’s 
immensely diverse population as including a high percentage of LEP residents. In the document “Top 5 
ELL Home Language by District” (2015) – French ranks among the top three languages in CSD 5 and 6, 
and the top five in CSD 4. Table I.D.I breaks down the percentage of underserved families by Harlem 

Table	 1.D.1: Limite
Neighborhood27 

d	 English	 Proficiency Residents 
Percentage	 of
Total Population 

Percentage	 of French
Speaking Population 

Hamilton Heights CSD5 & 6 48.7% 20.3% 
Morningside Heights CSD5 34.3% 6.5% 
Manhattanville CSD5 49.8% 48.1% 
Central Harlem North CSD5 40.2% 30.3% 
Central Harlem South CSD5 36.4% 39.6% 
East Harlem North CSD4 42.8% 17.8% 
East Harlem South CSD4 37.7% 19.3% 

25 http://schools.nyc.gov/SchoolPortals/03/M483/AboutUs/Statistics/default.htm 
26 http://schools.nyc.gov/SchoolPortals/03/M084/default.htm 
27 https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/planning/html/data-maps/nyc-population/viz.html 

NYSED 2017 Round 2: Full Application Narrative 14 

https://www1.nyc.gov/assets/planning/html/data-maps/nyc-population/viz.html
http://schools.nyc.gov/SchoolPortals/03/M084/default.htm
http://schools.nyc.gov/SchoolPortals/03/M483/AboutUs/Statistics/default.htm


			 	
	

     	

   	

          
 

         
   

       

 
        

       
    

   
    
    

              
 

  

   
                

              
                 

   
               

         
 

             
  

 

 
   

																																																													
  
  
  
  

 

  

	 	

	 	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 

neighborhood for whom a French/English dual language school would be attractive. In analyzing available 
data, Harlem hosts a complex sub-demographic of families. 
SICS broke the standard six racial groups normally presented in 
demographic studies into their sub-groupings, and found that 
the main designation “Black” encompassed ethnic groups from 
a range of ancestral backgrounds, which were dominated by 
American, African and Caribbean ethnic origins. Further 
analysis determined the languages spoken at home, the growth 
or decline of these populations in housing unit estimates, and 
the estimated number of households with elementary school 
aged children. Using the NY statistical atlas mapping system, 
SICS leadership can identify exact concentrations of families by 
home language block by block within a neighborhood. Figure 
1.D.1 maps the density of 6HH’s French population. 

Figure I.D.1 

DISTRICT 5 
CSD 5 is Harlem’s largest school district running from 110th Street to 
155th Street (Figure 1.D.2). Along 125th street and the surrounding 
blocks, the district stretches from the Hudson River on the West side 
to the East River on the East side of the island. CSD 5 encompasses 
Community Boards (CB) 9, 10 and 11, seven zip codes (10027, 10030, 
10031, 10032, 10035, 10039 and 10037), and six distinct 
neighborhoods. Resident median income in the district is an average 
$36,000, compared to $100,000 in adjacent neighborhoods28, with 
some 40% of residents holding a Bachelor degree. The district is home 
to nine colleges, including the Ivy League Columbia University. 
Residents generally comprise 3.2% Asian, 65% Black, 17.3% Hispanic, 11.7 % White and 2.8% other29. 
Over 12,000 new residents made the district their home in the past five years with about 1,000 coming from 
abroad. In total, 29,000 residents are foreign born30 of which approximately 5,450 households31 originated 
in Francophone countries. Of more than 170,000 residents, over 39,000 do not speak English “very well”. 
Subtracting the approximate 17,000 residents of Latin decent, CSD 5 is left with about 22,000 residents 
whose Home Language is neither English nor Spanish, and for whom SICS may present a desirable option. 

Figure I.D.2 

DISTRICT 4 
CSD 4 abuts CSD 5 on its West and North sides and District 2, the 
Upper Eastside, on its southern border. CSD 4 encompasses 
Roosevelt Island and East Harlem from 5th Avenue to the East River 
and 125th Street in the North to 96th Street in the South covering zip 
codes 10029 and 10035 and CB 11 (Figure 1.D.3). Census data 
shows residents are 46% Hispanic, 30% African-American, and 25% 
Other with 32% holding a Bachelor degree. Average area income is 
$31,000 with 49% of residents receiving some form of public 
assistance. There are approximately 12,000 residents of diverse 

28 https://project.wnyc.org/median-income-nabes/
29 http://statisticalatlas.com/neighborhood/New-York/New-York/Harlem/Race-and-Ethnicity 
30 http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/planning/download/pdf/data-maps/nyc-population/acs/puma_socio_10to12_acs.pdf#mn11 
31 http://factfinder2.census.gov/faces/nav/jsf/pages/community_facts.xhtml & http://statisticalatlas.com/neighborhood/New-York/New-

York/Harlem/Languages 

Figure I.D.3 
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Figure I.D.4 

cultures and heritage. This includes an estimated 61,000 non-English speaking residents, of which 
approximately 3,000 come from French speaking countries. In 2015 approximately 12,500 new residents 
moved into the area with 800 arriving from abroad. The District currently has over 49,000 residential units 
with an additional 3,50032 scheduled to be built in the next three years and up to 10,000 more planned, per 
the City planning office, in the next 10 years. 
DISTRICT 6 – Hamilton Heights 
CSD 6 represents three distinct neighborhoods and shares CB 9 with CSD 5. Its most southern 
neighborhood, Hamilton Heights, is part of Central Harlem and shares its students with CSD 5 (Figure 

I.D.3). Above 6HH, CSD 6 is home to Washington Heights and Inwood. In 
all, it runs from 136th Street to 220th Street covering five (5) zip codes, 
CUNY’s campus, and Columbia University’s medical community. Census 
data for Hamilton Heights (6HH) shows residents are 46.2% Hispanic, 
36.1% African-American, 12.8% White, and 2.9% Other with 27.6% 
holding a Bachelor degree or higher. Average area income is $36,000 with 
31% of residents receiving some form of public assistance. There are 
approximately 65,114 residents of diverse culture and heritage with 
approximate 1000 households that are French dominant33 with 43% of 
those representing families that do not speak English “very well”. 
I.D.2. The Value of SICS in CSD 4, 5 and 6HH. CSD 4, 5 and 6HH, and 

Harlem schools in general, are ranked some of the lowest academic performing in the city. Community 
stakeholders have repeatedly expressed a desire to see additional improvement and stated support for SICS’ 
key design elements: particularly use of individual expression through inquiry as a way of engaging at-risk 
students. Many are anxious to collaborate on meeting academic needs within the underserved population. 
6HH families, for example, have consistently inquired about enrollment and given feedback on SICS’ 
programming. Embedded elements of the PYP, such as community service learning, directly impact 
families and residents in meaningful ways as they explore solutions to community problems. SICS-initiated 
community surveys show many parents are actively seeking an internationally-minded school with foreign 
language options beyond the common Spanish/English programs. No French dual language programs are 
available in these CSDs for children whose home language is French, families who are multilingual, or 
families looking for an expanded choice; a gap that SICS fills. In addition, Harlem schools are segregated 
along racial and socio-economic lines34. SICS is a school that actively seeks to represent diversity. 
Outreach efforts are focused on reaching families that are culturally, linguistically, and economically 
diverse (see Section 1.B.4) in accordance with the mission and Design Priority 8. 
I.D.3 SICS’ reason for the selection of these CSDs and its ability to serve this community. Each 
member of the SICS applicant group is invested in the Harlem community as a parent, resident, educator or 
merchant, with the common expressed vested interest to create an educational renaissance for all Harlem’s 
children. The team is clear on the educational issues and concerns in the community, and has experienced 
firsthand the turmoil and struggle in seeking free, quality public education that meets the needs of and 
expands opportunities for their children. The statistical academic and social realities show that traditional 
pedagogical methodology is not suited for CSDs in crisis and schools needing improvement. 
SICS team members reflect the skillsets and networks required to fully support the school by creating a 
thriving community. Skills include understanding of charter school development, charter school teaching 

32 http://citylimits.org/2016/11/11/de-blasio-administration-predicts-east-harlem-plan-will-make-room-for-8400-more-people/
33 http://statisticalatlas.com/neighborhood/New-York/New-York/Hamilton-Heights/Languages 
34 http://www.centernyc.org/segregatedschools/ 
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and learning, management, oversight and leadership; facility management, commercial real estate, business 
management; community engagement diversity, equity and inclusion, international strategic planning; law; 
and marketing. The team is leveraging networks and community ties to create collaborations and support 
systems to underpin a strong school structure, including with elected officials, CBOs and universities. 
I.D.4 The Student Population To Be Served, Student Needs, And Addressing Those Needs. The 
students to be served by SICS represent a broad cross section of cultural, ethnic, and socio economic 
backgrounds. Students derive from both public NYCHA residential units and surrounding middle and 
upper middle-income households. Gentrification is steadily changing the expectations of families, with 
students in these households living well above the poverty line. According to the Center for Educational 
Policy at the New School, public District schools are being abandoned to a point where little, if any, socio-
economic diversity is present in the classroom. Evidence is noted in the disparity among percentages in the 
racial makeup of residents against enrolled populations. For example, African-Americans represent 65 % of 
residents yet only 50% of the student population. This is one phenomenon that SICS seeks to change by 
marketing to a wide spectrum of the community, and by providing an academic environment appealing to 
all families seeking a local school for their children. 
District 5 current student demographics may be 
broken down to 50% Black (includes African 
and Caribbean immigrants), 40% Hispanic, 
4.3% White (includes all European countries), 
3.6% Asian, and 2.1% each of Native American 
and Multiracial35. The CSD 5 graduation rate is 
65%, translating to an approximate 35% dropout rate. Concern begins in elementary school where only 
21% of students scored “proficient” on the 2016 State ELA exam and 17% scored “proficient” on the State 
Math exam. Table I.D.4-1 shows the breakdown of proficiency in district subgroups. Standard 
methodologies to address achievement in the district, particularly for students at risk of failure, are not 
sufficient. By impacting the estimated 4,380 children enrolled in nursery and over 2,300 currently enrolled 
in pre-K and K36, eligible for admission, SICS can disrupt a cycle of under-service and low performance. 

Table	 I.D.4 1: School Proficiency in	 CSD 5 

2016 State 
Exams 

Students 
with 

Disabilities 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

English 
Language 
Learners 

Proficient ELA 5% 19% 1% 
Proficient Math 6% 15% 6% 

District 4 has a different student dynamic37 than 5. There are an estimated 30,000 children in the district, 
with some 7,000 under the age of 5 and over 
3,000 currently in pre-K and K-eligible to enroll 
in SICS. Demographic data shows that 61% of 
students are Hispanic, 25% Black, 7% Asian, 4% 
White and 1% each Native American and 
Multiracial. While overall proficiency rates of 
32% in ELA and 28% in Math are higher than 
CSD 5, at-risk sub-group proficiency rates are not, as seen in Table I.D.4-2. This is coupled with a 40% 
school dropout rate. NYC planning reports and the CB 11 Annual Needs Statement representing CSD 4 
warn there are “not enough school seats to meet the demand of new resident families sure to come through 
the new units being built by the city for affordable housing.” 38 

Table	 I.D.4 2: School Proficiency in	 CSD 4 

2016 State 
Exams 

Students 
with 

Disabilities 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

English 
Language 
Learners 

Proficient ELA 7% 28% 5% 
Proficient Math 8% 24% 7% 

District 6HH has an estimated 6,500 children in its Hamilton Heights neighborhood39, with about 3,400 
under the age of 5 and over 1,400 currently in pre-K and K who are eligible to enroll in SICS. 

35 http://schools.nyc.gov/Accountability/data/default.htm 
36 http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/planning/download/pdf/data-maps/nyc-population/acs/acs_socio_08to12_ntas.pdf - mn11 
37 http://www.cb11m.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/01/FY-2018-Manhattan-Community-Board-11.pdf 
38 http://www1.nyc.gov/assets/planning/download/pdf/data-maps/nyc-population/acs/puma_demo_10to12_acs.pdf - mn11 
39 http://statisticalatlas.com/neighborhood/New-York/New-York/Hamilton-Heights/Age-and-Sex 
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Demographic data shows that 10.5% of students 
are Hispanic, 39% Black, 2.5% Asian, 7 % 
White and 21% are Multiracial. High School 
dropout rates hover around 29% while the 
percentage of students attaining a Bachelors’ 
degree or higher is about 28%. District-wide 
State ELA and Math proficiency rates are not that different from CSD 4 and 5. When data from 6HH 
specifically is analyzed, as delineated in Table I.D.4-3, it is apparent that sub-group at-risk students are 

Table	 I.D.4 3: School Proficiency Average in	 CSD 6HH 

2016 State 
Exams 

Students 
with 

Disabilities 

Economically 
Disadvantaged 

English 
Language 
Learners 

Proficient ELA 2.3% 31% 4.5% 
Proficient Math 3.7% 21% 5.3% 

struggling. Notably SWDs are reaching proficiency at less than half the rate of CSD 4 and 5 and Math 
proficiency is lower across all the groups. 
SICS is a compelling choice - favoring achievement and creating new seats for new families by deploying 
innovative design elements that target learning styles of at-risk students. Specifically, SICS uses a flexible 
staffing model based on a team of teachers highly qualified in their license area (see Section III.C.I and 
Attachment 8a Job Descriptions) which includes bilingual lead and AIT, ESL and FLE teachers, reading 
specialists, and special needs teachers, who benefit from ongoing training through comprehensive PD. This 
matches the curriculum and provides students with an environment that integrates intellectual, social, and 
emotional support and learning directly into academics. 
I.D.5 Expanding Education Options. SICS offers the community enhanced opportunity and expanded 
educational options as the first French/ English dual language school in the requested CSDs. Respecting the 
increasingly available evidence on the benefits of multilingualism on learning, SICS students can become 
bilingual and bi-literate in an academic environment with the support mechanisms needed for achievement, 
including access to second language specialists. SICS is unique in both CSDs for combining second 
language acquisition with an inquiry-led approach that is experience and performance based. This lets SICS 
reduce barriers to accessing academic content by providing multiple points of entry to learning, particularly 
for ELLs, SWDs and known at-risk students. Multiple studies demonstrate the effectiveness of both second 
language acquisition and inquiry-led teaching and learning in raising student achievement in Title 1 
schools, which SICS is likely to be. 
At SICS, children learn from and with each other in an integrated setting from Kindergarten on. Through 
this approach, students attain a high level of proficiency in English and French by the end of elementary 
school. Such student-driven education is especially successful with children who: 
• Need to awaken their curiosity and desire for knowledge 
• Need to establish and maintain learning through alternative instructional delivery systems 
• May not be intrinsically motivated to learn 
• Come from multi-cultural, multi-lingual families 
• Thrive when the teaching pace and educational content are student driven 
•	 Are part of transient families, and need to jump right into curriculum without barriers (Students with 

Interrupted Formal Education (SIFE), recent immigrants, transient, etc.) 
•	 Are deemed to have special needs, particularly those with the need to move and explore in a structured 

discovery space 
• Need alternative ways to receive and express learning 

I.D.6 Assessment of Community Support. The applicant group has conducted extensive research and 
outreach across all of Harlem for the past three years. SICS team members have spoken with hundreds of 
parents, hosted numerous community events to inform the community of the SICS proposal and obtain 
feedback, and have met with elected officials and heads of CBOs. I.C.5 Recruitment and Retention, 
Attachment 2a and 2b and I.E. Public Outreach (evidence) provide details as to family and community 
support for SICS and student enrollment. The highest level of support came from CSDs 5 and 4, but 
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families seeking a more progressive model of instruction in CSD6 HH increasingly give SICS positive 
feedback on inquiry-led learning and choices of languages. Community support and parents providing their 
contact information and requesting enrollment information and updates demonstrates sufficient interest to 
meet enrollment targets. This is reinforced by offers to help with recruitment made by parent groups and 
community stakeholders, parents, parent comments in-person and via digital survey, and feedback and 
enthusiasm during outreach events focused on demonstrating SICS’ proposed curriculum model. 
I.D.7. Partnership with Low Performing Public Schools. SICS is ready to partner with all schools in the 
community to better serve the children. As part of outreach, the Executive Director seeks opportunities for 
collaborative projects and learning experiences among schools. Low performing public schools shall be 
invited for inter-visitations, workshops, networking sessions, ED camps, and opportunities for student 
driven community learning and action collaboratives. Specifically, SICS has arranged to partner with P.S. 
197, the J.B. Russwurm Elementary School, where the 34% special needs students are 92% ED40. This 
partnership, to be fully fleshed out in the pre-opening period, is to include sharing best practices and 
piloting specific inquiry-led teaching methodologies with targeted populations, see Attachment 2B 
Communication. 
I.E. Public Outreach 
• Table 2A provides the past 18 months of outreach. 
• Attachment 2B provides a sample of evidence of outreach. 
I.E.1 Outreach to Inform 
Through a three-tier approach, SICS engaged district parents, CBOs, educational administrators, politicians 
and the community, including neighboring districts, global organizations, and educators. Families have 
been the primary focus of the outreach plan and their voices are a priority in developing the SICS 
educational design. SICS has publicized its intent to apply for a charter in multiple ways, within varied 
settings and on multiple platforms. Outreach communicated SICS’ intention to apply for NYSED 
authorization of a charter for a dual language elementary school serving grades K through 6, based on the 
IB Framework (see Attachment 4c for IB timeline). Each instance/posting included the modes of contact 
through which to reach Sofara. Historic outreach includes: 

PRINT - Interview with the HuffingtonPost; collective interviews in Chalkbeat and DNAInfo. 
Flyers - Since July 2014, SICS has disseminated at least 100 flyers a month. These flyers were 

strategically placed within CSDs 6, 5, 4 and 3, at public libraries, housing complexes, post office, 
social venues, train stations, 116th/125th/145th Streets’ shopping strips, parks, and popular family 
venues. Flyers publicized school design, means for feedback, or SICS-sponsored events. Flyers have 
been disseminated in English, French, and Spanish. 

RADIO - SICS founders and board members participated in two interviews on Harlem411 Talk Radio to 
introduction SICS’ mission and key design elements and update the community about progress toward 
authorization with an additional call for feedback. 

ONLINE - Website (www.sofarainternational.org) – SICS created a website to inform families. The 
content is posted in English and French. Links to both the iPetition and Enrollment & Feedback survey 
are provided on the site. 

Emailed Updates – Every eight to ten weeks SICS disseminates a progress update to the approximate 
550 community members who gave their contact information at events. 

Social Media – SICS uses social media to blog on educational issues relevant to the CSDs as well as a 
platform for keeping families and community stakeholders informed regarding progress toward 
authorization and upcoming events. Photos and commentary are posted on events once they have 

40 http://schools.nyc.gov/SchoolPortals/05/M197/AboutUs/Statistics/default.htm 
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occurred. SICS joined community list-serve groups such as Harlem4Kids (3000+ members) and State 
of the Black Parent (1000+ members). 

PETITIONS - An online petition, linked to SICS website, invites comments at any time. 
I.E.2 Public Meetings. 
IN-PERSON: SICS’ founding group members met with individuals, parents, elected officials, and CBOs 
within and outside its requested CSDs of location. To meet families in their neighborhoods, SICS hosted 
open community events and Town Halls (see Attachment 2b). In 2017 alone these include events held on 
1/14, 2/10, 2/13. 6/16, 6/19, and 8/10, in addition to a parent empowerment workshop series. Members 
attended community events hosted in CSD 4 and 6, CBO meetings and parent gatherings to represent 
Sofara at monthly CB meetings. Members presented at CEC 5, CB 9, 10 and 11 meetings during public 
speakers’ time, and have visited District Department of Education (DOE) offices to share SICS 
promotional material with Superintendents and Parent Coordinators. The Executive Director, along with 
founding team members and in consultation with Founding Board members, took notes at events and 
meetings, discussed feedback on comment cards, and analyzed survey data. 
I.E.3 Soliciting Feedback. SICS has undertaken extensive community outreach and engagement over 
the past 40 months of which a major portion is presented in Table 2a. In this time the public has “had 
adequate opportunity to comment” on SICS’ proposal. Each flyer, for every event held by SICS, 
solicited feedback and provided contact information. At every in-person contact and online or 
digital posting, SICS’ team solicited feedback. SICS periodically circulated digital surveys to Harlem 
residents to inform and solicit or gather data. Parents in CSD 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7 responded. 
I.E.4 Response to Comments. Key design elements, from inception, were formulated through the 
brainstorming and research of community parents. Additional feedback was solicited from an array of 
community stakeholders and integrated into SICS’ school design as detailed in Tables 2A and Attachment 
2B. Enrichment programming, operations issues, and Pre-K were some of the topics of feedback. The most 
frequent community requests were to not co-locate with a district school (See Section III.F.8) and to 
consider providing access to additional languages beyond French (Section II.A.5). SICS researched any 
issues or concerns around feedback and adjusted this proposal when appropriate. 
I.E.5 Ongoing Outreach. SICS’ outreach progresses as the team continues to attend events, post to online 
community boards, and pass out flyers. The SICS website enrollment and feedback link remains active. 
The team continues to meet and engage stakeholders. As SICS moves forward through the application 
phases, outreach will begin to focus on updating the community and hosting informational presentations on 
charter school enrollment. 
I.E.6 Equal Opportunity. Once authorized, notice will be sent to contacts on SICS’ list-serve, to CBO 
supporters, and elected officials that state how students may access enrollment information and application 
materials on an equal opportunity basis. Flyering of the community with the same information will be done 
to ensure we reach as many parents as possible. SICS’ website will be updated to reflect this as well. 
I.E.7. Partnership With Low Performing Public Schools. SICS is ready to partner with all schools in the 
community to better serve the children. See Section I.D.7 for discussion on collaborations. SICS is not a 
restart or turnaround school. 
I.F. Programmatic and Fiscal Impact 
I.F.1 Number and Type of Public and Nonpublic Schools. Several schools in Central Harlem currently 
serve at least one of the grades requested by SICS (Table 1.C.2). Ten Charter schools in CSD 5 serve 
elementary-school children and five serve Middle/High School. CSD 4 has 12 Charter Schools with ten 
serving K-6 students in various grade spans. In addition, Harlem is home to six parochial and five private, 
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tuition-base schools. In Hamilton Heights, each school offers Spanish language including in bilingual and 
DL settings. Two charter schools officially serve the students as well as one NYCDOE PROSE and one 
parochial school. Table I.F.1 shows 60 NYCDOE schools in the area. 
I.F.2 Programmatic Impact. Research has shown 
that when charter schools open, their neighboring 
schools get better and SWDs do as well or better41. 
SICS inquiry-led programming, while unique, may 
impact enrollment of schools such as Success 
Academy that offer similar project-based learning 
or Democracy Prep that offers foreign language 
study. Overall, SICS would relieve waitlist numbers 
of families seeking a charter school choice; it is also 
likely to have a significant positive impact on existing and new families in Harlem, with a flexible program 
design that meets student needs from readiness to enrichment. The underlying benefit of this design is 
demonstrated with the success of PYP schools in districts with diverse student bodies. High expectations 
and standards of academic excellence inherent in both SICS’ dual language component and PYP inquiry 
framework helps recruit and retain local students and attracts others. Similar impacts are seen in Brooklyn 
at Boerum Hill Middle School42 and Brooklyn Prospect Charter School. Both have IB programs with this 
type of impact, and are succeeding with student achievement and diversity (Section I.B.2). 

Table I.F.1: NYCDOE Schools 

Public 
CSD 

Total 
schools 

Total 
Enrollment 

K-5 
(all 

spans) 
K-8 

Middle or High 
School serving 6th 

grade 

4 27 12,961 11 9 7 

5 24 11,276 12 4 8 

6 HH 9 10,667 5 2 2 

The Central Harlem community is seeking more choice in quality schools (see Table 2a) and more seats 
available to meet the needs of new residents. SICS is working with Harlem-based pre-schools to test the 
market for school choices available in the district, draw in families and design a positive programmatic 
impact. For example, SICS has developed and is maintaining a relationship with P.S. 197 in CSD 5 to share 
best practices and create opportunities for action research to better meet stated needs. The aim is to seek out 
additional collaboration opportunities in each CSD and create a cohort for professional exchange. These 
include engaging with the 18 Spanish/English bilingual programs in Harlem and individual schools with 
high ELL and SWD populations. 
SICS does not anticipate having significant programmatic or financial impact on non-public, independent 
and parochial schools, of which some have recently closed. The SICS student is likely to come from a low-
income family without the means to pay for tuition-based private schools, and as a non-parochial school, 
SICS is not likely to attract parents choosing religious education. 
I.F.3 Projected Assessment of the Fiscal Impact. The financial impact of SICS on the NYCDOE public 
school budget is negligible. For purpose of this analysis, it is anticipated DOE will transfer $15,30743 in 
Year 1 per child enrolled during the 2018-2019 school year (See Table I.F.2). If the DOE budget remains 
flat, Year 1 enrollment of 150 students has a financial impact of 0.00009% of the total $23.1 billion budget. 
This holds true in subsequent years, and by Year 5, when DOE would transfer $16,901 per pupil so that 
$5,631,850 would be transferred, this represents just 0.00024% of DOE’s overall budget. 

41 https://drive.google.com/file/d/0BxrKdaoARx08Y19ZdEF5emhxbTQ/view 
42 http://www.ny1.com/nyc/all-boroughs/news/2017/01/11/in-the-nation-s-most-segregated-school-system--boreum-hill-middle-school-learns-how-to-

diversify-its-student-body.html 
43 This figure, along with the “District Budget” (inclusive of DOE programmatic expenditures & exclusive of pension or debt service costs), is based 

on assumptions provided in guidance from the DOE as of the 2016-17 school year. 
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Table	 I.F.2: Projected	 Fiscal Impact on	 NYCDOE	 School Budget 
Operational 

Year 
(A) 

Student 
Enrollment 
Figures (B) 

Per Pupil 
Allocation 

(C) 

Projected Per Pupil 
Charter Cost 
(B x C = D) 

Total Budget for 
District (E)1 

Projected Impact (i.e. % of 
District’s Overall Funding) 

(D/E = F) 
2018 -2019 150 $15,307 $2,296,050 .00009% 
2019-2020 200 $3,218,200 .00013% 
2020-2021 250 $16,091 $4,022,750 $23,100,000,000 .00017% 
2021-2022 300 $4,827,300 .00020% 
2022-2023 350 $5,631,850 .00024% 

II. EDUCATIONAL PLAN 
SICS’ education plan addresses the achievement gap experienced by students in most Harlem schools. Data 
and research44 show no single underlying or pervasive cause, but suggests that a host of circumstances have 
combined to keep children from gaining the exposure and experiences needed to become proficient learners 
and high achievers. While there has been progress in education offerings, the most common issues remain 
social, economic, racial and minority isolation, further exacerbated by the sub-factors of poverty and 
transience. The philosophy behind SICS’ mission and strategic design drives the educational plan as it 
addresses and mitigates these risk factors holistically. SEL is addressed alongside academic and intellectual 
teaching. SICS approaches teaching and learning from the perspective of real world experiences and 
provides flexible, developmentally-based exposure. Students have multiple options and opportunities to 
demonstrate learning while teachers differentiate instruction to meet individual levels of progress and 
reduce barriers to achievement. 
II.A. Curriculum and Instruction 
II.A.1 Education Philosophy. SICS’ curriculum Program of Inquiry (POI) (see Section II.A.4) includes a 
scope and sequence with a vertical and horizontal alignment of IB thematic units, and is created by school 
leaders and IB Coordinator when hired in the pre-opening phase. Unit of Inquiry outlines are created then, 
and further developed by teachers throughout Year 1- the process of making connections with foundational 
resources is solidified as transdisciplinary. As a school opening in IB Candidate45 status (see Section III.K), 
instructional staff has access to IB curriculum connection specialists and diverse tools to accomplish this46. 
SICS’ POI is a living document. It continuously benefits students by allowing emergent curriculum to be 
incorporated into each unit, each year. Curriculum provides structure and is used by SICS to prepare 
students to acquire and develop specific SEL habits of mind and success, which remain with them as they 
progress through secondary and post-secondary education. The approach has tested, successful, tools that 
encourage individual growth and student progress, and establish accountability when measuring of 
cognitive impact and how students achieve academic proficiency using self-reliant critical thinking. 
II.A.2 Clear and Coherent Framework. SICS’ curriculum framework rests on a strategic combination of 
dual language, inquiry-led teaching practices, and NYSLS including CCLS and the CCBI, which together 
form the foundational underpinning for the Charter and SICS’ framework. These three interwoven 
components provide students with a high quality educational experience and the skills and knowledge to 
reach proficiency and excel within the NYS Testing Program (NYSTP). Each staff member is trained and 
provided PD on their responsibilities and roles in delivering curriculum, including on the use, scope, 
significance, and monitoring of CCLS/CCBI in a dual language, performance-based, inquiry-led school. 

44 http://www.nea.org/home/17413.htm 
45 http://www.ibo.org/globalassets/publications/ib-research/pyp/ib-pypoverviewreportwithoutschoolnames3-6-09.pdf 
46 http://www.ibo.org/become-an-ib-school/fees-and-services/ 
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COMPONENT 1: Content-based Dual-Language (French/English) learning is in the core mission. An 
approach that relies on content ensures that SICS’ curriculum is aligned with evaluation standards. 
Curriculum content and instructional delivery through performance-based inquiry learning, remains the 
same regardless of language of instruction for all students during all classes. Project work, performance 
tasks and activities, and a holistic approach to second language acquisition is not viewed as an option but as 
a critical tool in accelerating progress in literacy by building each child’s cognitive capacity47 and engaging 
underserved ELLs. SICS’ approach is validated by a Louisiana public school study of 13,200 third and fifth 
graders in which, regardless of race, gender, or academic level, children taking foreign language classes did 
better on the English section of the Louisiana State skills exam than those who did not48. Other studies 
demonstrate that persistent study of a second language in a bilingual setting is positively correlated to 
increased academic achievement across content areas49. For example, multilingual students consistently 
score higher than monolingual peers on Standard Achievement Tests50. To better support monolingual, 
bilingual, and multilingual students, SICS established school-wide protocols for assessment, including 
built-in data analysis days that include instructional reflection and targeted PD, while deploying language 
acquisition teaching strategies as part of general instruction. 
COMPONENT 2: Inquiry-led Instruction and Learning is intertwined with Component 1. SICS uses 
the IB PYP’s highly effective performance-based principles and practices of inquiry to shape the trans-
disciplinary educational program, making it viable as a tool to promote individual student achievement. At 
SICS, it is not acceptable that a child must construct a box and live in it. Instead, children are taught to 
constantly expand their critical thinking skills and creative mindsets through facilitated inquiry, experience, 
exploration and discovery. The facilitation occurs through science and social studies while the trans-
disciplinary approach pulls in all other content areas, particularly ELA and Math, as skills needed for 
successful inquiry. Inquiry-led instruction from the moment of enrollment allows SICS to build students’ 
capacity from four perspectives: academic, intellectual, social and emotional. Curiosity and engagement are 
pivotal in reaching all students and pushing them to proficiency, especially the many at-risk students SICS 
anticipates enrolling. 
COMPONENT 3: The third basis for SICS’ education framework rests firmly on NYS Standards. SICS’ 
approach follows the principles and practices of the PYP framework that naturally align with the CCLS. 
Both incorporate specific principles and practices that share high expectations as well as scope and depth of 
knowledge. The CCLS, and the accompanying Bilingual Initiative, represent the cornerstones against 
which all SICS curricular development is grounded; they provide the comprehensive roadmap of 
comparable, measurable achievements against which the comprehensive instructional program is evaluated; 
and they encapsulate SICS’ Standards Referenced Grading Portfolio (SRGP) assessment system against 
which students’ achievement and work is measured. The CCBI, utilizing the New Language Arts 
Progressions (NLAP) and Home Language Arts Progressions (HLAP) correlated to each CCLS gives SICS 
instructional staff a clear framework to ensure emerging bilingual students are progressing to proficiency. 
With the alignment of curriculum to the CC and other applicable Standards, SICS can clearly measure its 
progress toward meeting and exceeding the NYSTP. 
SICS administers the NYSTP and protects the integrity and security of all assessments. The NYS ELA and 
the Math Assessments are implemented from Year 2, and continue through the Charter term for Grades 3 to 
6. Starting Year 3, SICS administers the 4th Grade NYS Science Assessment. Achievement on the NYS 

47 http://www.internationaledwa.org/involved/issue_info/FLAchievementGapStrategy.pdf 
48 http://www.sde.ct.gov/sde/lib/sde/pdf/curriculum/curriculum_root_web_folder/benefitsofsecondlanguage.pdf 
49 Krashen, Stephen. “Remarks on C. Rossell, ‘Does bilingual education work? The case of Texas.’” 
http://www.sdkrashen.com/content/articles/krashen_on_rossell_2009.pdf; Thomas, Wayne and Virginia Collier. “The Multiple Benefits of Bilingual 
Instruction.” Educational Leadership. October 2003. http://www.ascd.org/ASCD/pdf/journals/ed_lead/el200310_thomas.pdf 
50 https://www.actfl.org/advocacy/what-the-research-shows/studies-supporting 
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Assessments at or above accountability goals helps confirm SICS is meeting its objectives and fulfilling its 
mission. SICS’ Executive Director and Board Education Committee track emerging or changing 
assessment requirements associated with the NYSTP, add relevant information and reporting dates to the 
school compliance calendar, and provide training for staff on all relevant points. 
II.A.3 Instructional Rigor and Engagement. SICS instructional framework is designed to fully engage 
students in critical thinking and performance and demonstration of knowledge by utilizing the principles 
and practices of two well-established models of instruction. The PYP approach to inquiry-led instruction, 
as part of the IB Continuum of Programs, was the international standard from which the CCLS were 
derived. The result is a rigorous, well-developed series of measures and high expectations. Deliberately 
incorporating these standards into the development and continuous review and improvement of SICS’ 
curricular POI sets a culture of rigor into place. Teachers and staff are given collaborative and continuous 
time, coaching, feedback opportunities and PD to establish a clear and unified understanding on how to 
align individual Units of Inquiry with the Standards. The IBO provides added guidance, mapping, 
curriculum tools, PD, research studies, and engagement with suitable experts that follow CCLS that SICS 
will access to further ensure instructional staff are creating engaging and rigorous instruction. 
II.A 4 Furthering SICS’ Mission. SICS’ curriculum framework, foundational resources and instructional 
practices combine to further the mission and key design elements of this charter. Each individual 
curriculum component: a) aligns and supports inquiry-led learning; b) promotes instructional delivery from 
the perspective of real-world, culturally diverse context; c) incorporates hands-on applied learning 
opportunities; and d) embeds stopping points for social emotional learning. For example, half of SICS core 
instruction is delivered through social studies (and half science) which includes an international perspective 
while CKLA makes use of globalized texts in unit studies. 
SICS uses continuous monitoring and has scheduled three whole-school data analysis days each year to 
reflect on curriculum implications across the grades. Coordinators and School Leaders conduct another 
layer of curriculum review for effectiveness through informal and formal classroom observations that 
evaluate individual teacher use and delivery of curriculum. The Executive Director and the DOTL meet 
monthly to create a school-wide assessment progress report with short- and long-term adjusted goals as 
needed. This snapshot is presented to the Board Education Committee at their designated monthly meeting, 
and as a roll-up to the full Board at the end of each trimester (See Table II.C-3). 
SICS has a school developed curriculum Program of Inquiry that lays out what to teach and when. Guided 
by the Director of Teaching and Learning (DOTL) and IB Coordinator in Year 1, teachers have the 
responsibility of aligning resources to enable a robust curriculum., Teachers link Unit cycles and 
accompanying lessons through ManageBac where the units and standards that bind the three Components 
are housed. Reflective feedback generated at the end of each Unit is stored in ManageBac, and is viewable 
by all instructional staff. Reflections are collaborative reviews of Curriculum, student learning, and 
assessment data through the lenses of Standards. This may result in recommendations for adjustment. 
Section II.A.5 below delineates curriculum resources. 
II.A.5 and 7 Curriculum, Instructional Strategies and Related Resources. SICS uses trans-disciplinary 
Lines of Inquiry as a basis for its teaching and learning framework. Students learn using a central idea to 
explore concepts in every content area from a single starting point using different perspectives. A science-
based central idea is as easily explored, for example, through the lens of Math as it is through writing as 
demonstrated in Table II.A.1. 
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Table	 II.A.1. Sample Transdisciplinary	 Unit Framework for Kindergarten 
Transdisciplinary Theme Sharing the Planet 
Central Idea People and plants share the planet. 
Lines of Inquiry 1) Characteristics of plants 2) Caring for plants 3) Uses of plants 
Concepts • Connection – How can we use plants? 

• Form – What are the parts of a plant? How do plants grow? 
• Responsibility – How can we take care of plants in our community? 

Transdisciplinary Content Subject Focus Language Arts, Math, Science, Art and PSPE (Personal, Social, & P.E.) 
Real world experiences GrowNYC's Governors Island Teaching Garden; Certified Laboratories; Food 

Entrepreneurs; Museum of Food and Drink (MOFAD), Local 
pharmacy/Healthfood store 
*Service learning – volunteer at Harlem Grown (urban farm). 

Central ideas and lines of inquiry represent key conceptual questions that are at the heart of the curriculum. 
They are used flexibly, presented to students and explored in depth. Teachers use central ideas when 
planning units to shape inquiry and give it direction and purpose. This initiates learning and leads students 
toward creating their own lines of inquiry, encouraging students to extend learning in a deeper and more 
meaningful way. The flow of inquiry instruction (See Section II.F.1: A day in the life) can be expressed as: 

1. A provocation is presented to initiate learning and pique curiosity on a theme or topic. 
2. Two to three teacher-initiated lines of inquiry (key wonderings/questions) are presented in succession 

over several lessons to guide learning and develop skills. 
3. Lessons and instruction are presented in one or two 5 to10-minute mini-lessons within a class period. 
4. Students are aided in using their curiosity and critical thinking ability to self-direct learning by 


creating their own lines of inquiry, that they can explore.
 
5. Students have time for guided and independent research and exploration (developmentally 


appropriate).
 
6. Students perform a task or activity, or present their new learning in a manner they prefer. 

Students are involved in a range of learning activities planned in response to lines of inquiry. They acquire 
new knowledge by building on prior knowledge in the context of meaningful research starting in 
Kindergarten. Context comes to life with real world experiences embedded in each unit. 
Methodology: In the classroom, the teacher encourages students to become seekers rather than followers 
by presenting carefully crafted, open-ended questions and by encouraging students to question each other 
and the teacher. The teachers themselves model and value inquiry by modeling their own lines of 
inquiry/exploration. The methodology does not change based on the language of instruction, whether 
French or English. SICS teaches through the language, about the language and in the language using the 
inquiry-led, trans-disciplinary approach. 
Instruction is facilitated through age-appropriate discovery centers, projects, performance tasks, real world 
expeditions, Socratic seminars and direct skills instruction. Kindergarten begins with structured play and 
discovery. Students are gradually released to full independent, self-directed lines of inquiry, based on 
content. Teachers expect high achievement and challenge students just beyond their comfort zones to reach 
their individual goals. Reading, writing, listening and speaking are not distinct subjects to be learned in 
isolation, but as tools used to acquire and express and communicate knowledge - as laid out in the CCLS. 
The foundational resources, such as Core Knowledge, discussed below, all align with the child-centered 
inquiry-led approach to instructional practices that provide students with a rich and coherent academic 
experience. See Attachment 4a: Sample Weekly Student Schedule. 
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English Language Arts 
Teaching and Learning: ELA is embedded in the curriculum in two ways. First is through transdisciplinary 
inquiry-led instruction that incorporates Language Arts in French (See Foreign Language Instructional 
Practices, below). Second is direct instruction in English for skills transferable as a general component of 
language development and presented in daily one-hour blocks. Both are trans-disciplinary allowing 
students to use multiple lenses to explore topics in depth and transfer knowledge across subjects/content. 
Inquiry-led instruction requires students to use reading, writing, listening, and speaking in natural contexts 
as part of discovery and learning. SICS’ Units of Inquiry focus on increasing text complexity, student 
exposure to expository and informational texts, and expanding students’ academic vocabulary. This occurs 
as students’ research and study the Unit topic, use books as resources and report on what they have learned 
to peers and teachers through varying forms of expression. 
Direct instruction in transferable skills is delivered using CKLA, developed to help students exceed 
Standard requirements. CKLA aligns with the SICS mission and educational framework, and blends well 
with trans-disciplinary learning. It uses the element of play through centers of learning, creates a cross-
content web of knowledge, and focuses on critical foundational skills, such as the strand that teaches 
reading and writing in tandem. For example, blended sounds learned in reading are immediately applied in 
practice to spelling in writing. It promotes a rich vocabulary and includes important historical and scientific 
events, ideas and people in its material. For Grades K-3 there are two components to foundational skills. 
One is foundational skills and the other listening and learning in which oral language, vocabulary, and 
background knowledge is sufficient to understand what is decoded.51 This exploratory, interconnected 
methodology is backed by sound research.52 By 4th grade, CKLA and the PYP reinforce one another as 
both use reflection and critical thinking about learning as a central tool. CKLA encourages students to use 
these same steps as they move flexibly back and forth between components of the writing process, 
mimicking mature, experienced writers. Direct instruction is provided through French as a second language 
(FLE) classes three times per week to enhance grammar, mechanics, and fluency. 
Literacy in French inquiry is drawn from the same skillset used for English literacy; through knowledge 
transfer introduced during French circle time; mono and bilingual learning centers; and vocabulary review 
time. SICS ensures strong literacy skills are instilled by intentionally aligning content in a trans-
disciplinary approach across all classes. 
Instructional Practices: Classroom teachers, coached by the DOTL and the IB Coordinator, modify CKLA 
as needed to align direct instruction with inquiry-led content and pacing. Instructional practices embed 
Language Arts during inquiry into the natural flow of learning. The emphasis is on using non-fiction texts 
and writing to conduct in-depth study of Unit topics. Fictional texts and writing are used to complement the 
content within the unit. The teacher focuses on developing students' abilities to identify details and key 
ideas as they use discovery and exploration as research tools. Through questioning and the modeling of 
exploration and speculation, the teacher encourages students to develop literacy skills. Whether in 
Kindergarten or 6th grade, the expectation is established that a student increasingly builds on his/her ability 
to identify assumptions; learns to cross-check cues, re-read and listen attentively; and checks for meaning. 
This allows students to take and defend findings and positions issuing from their explorations. Guided 
groups and mini 5-10 minute lessons on skills needed to accomplish tasks drive learning, replacing lengthy 
lecture-style instruction. During FLE instruction teachers give students the opportunity to practice the 
language. Bilingual Center Time; French vocabulary games, conversation topics, writing and art activities; 

51 http://www.coreknowledge.org/ckla-k3 
52 http://www.coreknowledge.org/research 
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and other activities aligned with inquiry are utilized to encourage authentic practice. SIOP strategies are 
central and underpin each activity. 
Foreign Language 
Teaching and Learning: Foreign language acquisition and academic content are hand-in hand. Students 
begin French language in a dual-language content immersion model, as presented by Gomez & Gomez, in 
Kindergarten. The Gomez dual language model, used in over 650 schools across 11 states, has proven 
effective53 in improving academic and linguistic achievement for students dominant in both languages in an 
inquiry-led environment, and in closing the academic achievement gap. Working in grade level 
instructional teams of four, teachers jointly plan weekly instruction and share and implement teaching 
concepts delivered in both French and English. Inquiry, including applied learning in Library Lab, is taught 
in French; ELA and Math taught in English; and all other periods are taught in an alternating “language of 
the day”. Instruction is divided by content area and by time, which is especially well-suited for ELLs. 
Instructional Practices in the French language are those described below during science and social studies 
and through student inquiry time. Gomez Language supports are a natural part of the learning flow. 
Embedded in every lesson, teachers deploy differentiation such as bilingual center time and other SIOP 
practices as needed to acquire the second language. Although SIOP, in single and two-way models, is 
designed for language learners, it supports all learners in meeting high expectations, particularly at-risk 
sub-groups. Teachers focus subject-area instruction in one language at a time to build student use of 
vocabulary. Inquiry-time lets teachers increase vocabulary use in real world contexts, and reflective 
vocabulary review strengthens literacy. This supports coherent conceptual development of a subject. 
Science and Social Studies   
Teaching and Learning: SICS’ Program of Inquiry and Units of Inquiry deliver instruction through science 
and social studies. They underpin all inquiry-led applied learning and allow students to explore the world 
and cultures, conduct experiments, draw inspiration, and involve themselves in the community. Science 
and social studies are the critical content catalysts that accelerate learning, including reading 
comprehension. Students draw upon numerous resources for first-hand knowledge using non-fiction texts, 
interviews, and life experiences rather than textbooks. Discovery and hands-on applied learning are 
launched and driven by teacher and student lines of inquiry. 
Instructional Practices: Thematic Units of Inquiry begin with a central idea and an accompanying 
provocation to jump-start thinking and curiosity, and drive exploration and discovery. Mini-lessons 
presented in short periods provide cues and let teachers maintain their role as facilitators of discovery. 
Every Central Idea and resulting line of inquiry builds in global perspectives: How do countries share 
water? How do children in communities across the world go to school? 
Instructional methods are matched to inquiry and developmental appropriateness, and depend on a Unit’s 
central idea. At-risk, including gifted students, build a strong set of foundational skills through exposure to 
multiple instructional strategies. The IBO and Bank Street College (see Section III.I.E) provide teachers 
with PD to master these strategies. The focus is on preparing teachers to facilitate students experiencing the 
richness of content. Increasingly challenging learning options include: 

Ø Problem-based learning: starts with an ill-structured problem or case-study (i.e. Unit-Sharing the 
Planet: How do people access clean drinking water?). 

Ø Performance-based learning: lets students create a project or presentation to demonstrate their 
understanding (i.e. Unit-How We Express Ourselves: How people of different cultures 
communicate through art). 

53 http://dlti.us/doc/REMEDIAL_TO_ENRICHMENT_2008.pdf 
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Ø Design-based learning (extremely challenging): uses design thinking and design process to work 
through solutions to a problem. It draws in Science, Technology, Engineering, Arts and Math 
(STEAM) and requires students to design, invent and learn. This may mean computer graphics, 
Lego/robotics, 3-D printer design, or other engineering solutions (i.e. Unit - How the World 
Works: Water can be harnessed for energy). 

Mathematics 
Teaching & Learning: SICS’ core Math program fosters rigorous college readiness skills including forming 
conjectures and drawing real-world links to content. Using Singapore Primary Mathematics Common Core 
(PMCC), teachers create hands-on manipulative-based lessons for students to develop understanding and 
think critically. As with ELA, Math at SICS is presented in two ways: First are the Math -related 
transdisciplinary skills embedded throughout inquiry; and Second is 60-minutes of stand-alone, direct 
instruction each day. During Inquiry and direct instruction, there is an emphasis on the ability to 
communicate mathematical thinking verbally and in writing, so that it is a factual part of the learning 
environment in all subjects. Students are asked to think about and draw upon their prior Math knowledge in 
practical ways. This type of learning environment breaks down54 most barriers to accessing and 
understanding mathematical precepts, a key tool for reaching and engaging at-risk students. 
Inquiry-led Math instruction is infused into inquiry to add different perspectives and values, emphasize 
problem-solving in authentic settings, and instill the benefit of Math as a tool in everyday life. Instructional 
practices during inquiry embed Math along with all other content areas into the natural learning flow. 
Teachers use Math to enhance understanding and perspective, for example, using graphing to track 
population growth as students learn about their community. Teachers introduce Math skills as a planned 
component within a Unit of Inquiry as appropriate, and 5 -10-minute mini-lessons and/or modeled 
solutions facilitate their practical use. 
Direct Instructional Practices: During the dedicated, stand-alone Math time, teachers extend the inquiry-
led learning by continuing to explore. Each PMCC lesson follows a three-step model that has students work 
through the concrete, pictorial, and abstract Math problems. Drawing pictures illustrating mathematical 
concepts follows concrete elements such as hands-on experience using actual objects like chips or dice. 
Numbers and symbols are used to solve Math problems in the abstract, and teachers use Math partners, 
guided groups and student presentations to maximize conceptualization. Teachers can teach about money, 
using currencies from around the world in PMCC lessons to explore monetary units and relative values. 
Library Lab 
Teaching and Learning: Performance-based applied learning extends inquiry by giving students the space 
and time to create, extend research, tinker and build, and experiment to create their own depth of 
knowledge. Students see how the world lives, shares ideas, and cooperates globally. At SICS, instead of the 
library being a quiet place to read, it is an interactive inquiry and research space. Library lab offers daily 
dedicated class time for hands-on learning. Teachers, as guides, extend learning by introducing new 
concepts and theories. Students, able to access a wealth of primary resources, select research topics and 
experiment with their understanding, while digging deeper into their own lines of inquiry. As expressed in 
Section II.B.I, performance-based applied learning brings immense benefits for gifted, ELL, SWD and 
those students otherwise at risk. Engineering is Elementary, designed by the Museum of Science, Boston, 
is a comprehensive foundational resource used to align curriculum to the Next Generation Science 
Standards (NGSS) with teaching and learning supports for teachers and students alike55. 

54 Reaching All Students: A resource for Teaching in Science, Technology, Engineering & Mathematics. Second Edition 2007. Center for the 
Integration of Research, Technology, and Learning, Madison, Wisconsin.
55 http://discovermagazine.com/2013/dec/15-e-is-for-engineering - .UwZzZvldXh4 DECEMBER 2013 ISSUE Discovery Magazine: Teaching Kids 
to Think Like Engineers, By Breanna Draxler, Tuesday, November 05, 2013 
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Instructional Practice: As a Unit of Inquiry begins, structure is provided through 15 - 20-minute mini-
lessons for direct instruction and as the Unit unfolds these give way to independent student inquiry and 
increased discovery. Mini-lessons lead to learning activities tied to the classroom curriculum, and provide 
students with research tools that let them become adept at investigating their own interests. Kindergarteners 
begin with discovery play moving on to constructive work-time and technology exposure. As their 
academic skills increase, students access more and more resources within the Library Lab and work on 
increasingly complex science/STEAM projects until they work independently on self-directed inquiries. 
Art Teaching and Learning: SICS sets time aside each week for students to use and explore art to further 
express and experiment with their own knowledge and understanding. In the inquiry-led arts-integrated 
practice, art is infused throughout the curriculum, with many content-area projects. In addition, students 
receive exposure and instruction on visual (crafts, painting, photography, etc.) and performance arts 
through a dedicated teacher on staff. After Year 1, additional art offerings are considered. 
Physical Education (P.E.) Teaching and Learning: P.E. and activity are part of SICS' student’s holistic 
well-being, including health and an active body. Students learn to play sports, teamwork, and how to keep 
their bodies healthy. A combination of physical activity and health and nutrition lessons are taught. The 
P.E. teacher is tasked with developing alignment across content topics with thematic units of inquiry. 
Instructional Practices: With common planning time pre-scheduled and the school-wide use of ManageBac 
to share Units of Inquiry, the Art and P.E. teachers align specific exploration projects with each grades’ 
Unit of Inquiry to deliver trans-disciplinary instruction. Art takes on the role of adding perspective to 
content and enhancing a student’s global perspective of diversity though culture, customs, belief systems, 
and forms of expression while P.E. practices focus on drawing in the natural world, human biology and 
physiology, and kinesthetics. Reading about related topics and using Math, such as to graph activity or 
timelines, are incorporated into both Art and P.E. Instruction is creative, and exploratory. In all classes, the
 
curriculum connections are prominently displayed on concept maps.
 
After School Programming – To complement SICS’ education framework, and meet community demand,
 
two after school options will be offered in Year 1. STEMKids NYC will offer STEAM instruction and 
Manhattan Mandarin language classes using their staff and SICS facilities. The funding scheme is to be 
finalized in the pre-opening phase. Additional programs will be considered for Years 2 and beyond to 
include service learning, the arts and athletics. 
II.A.6 Specific instructional practices are further discussed in Section II.B, that address the needs of 
special populations other than those discussed above. SICS curriculum is flexible and maintains a child-
centered approach. Multiple differentiated modes of delivery are used to reach the wide array of learning 
styles. Students have opportunities to explore their own questions and ultimately, through SICS’ 
curriculum strategies, are asked to do, show, and perform. 
II.A.7 Instructional Strategies. Section I.B.2 Responsive Classroom describes specific research associated 
with the success of SICS’ model. Section II.A.5 above and II.B below describe instructional strategies, 
including those for special student populations. Bringing on an IB Coordinator in Year 1 is key to 
successful implementation of curriculum. S/he provides the daily coaching needed to align teacher practice 
with the PYP inquiry model, and prevents teachers from slipping into similar discovery learning 
approaches such as project–based learning. Providing ample chances to experience learning in-person or 
“live” in the real world is a primary strategy for successful implementation of curriculum for the student. 
II.A.8 Benchmark 1. Sections II.C Achievement Goals and II.D Assessment System discuss how SICS 
meets Benchmark 1 of the Charter School Performance Framework. 
II.B Special Student Populations and Related Services 
SICS is committed to recruiting, enrolling and retaining special student populations and all at-risk sub-
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groups, including ELL, SWD, SIFE, FRLP/ED, and academically or intellectually advanced students. Key 
design elements, school culture, the flexible staffing model, and support processes and protocols each 
support SICS’ commitment to, and instructional staff’s work toward, student achievement. SICS celebrates 
diversity through its core mission, in which individual differences are not problems but opportunities for 
enriched learning and promotion of multiple perspectives. Diversity of all kinds is a fundamental and 
positive resource when learning what it means to be internationally-minded and inter-culturally aware.56 

II.B.1 The Inquiry-led practices and SICS’ curriculum foundational resources tackle the student 
readiness, enrichment and accessibility needs of special student populations. Access to curriculum and 
learning is elastic rather than static. Teaching strategies chosen are dependent upon demonstrated student 
need with an approach that is broad and inclusive, in the spirit of inquiry, and with a clear sense of purpose. 
Students move from group work to individual work in response to their needs and those of the inquiries to 
which they have committed.57 Both a student reading below grade level and an accelerated learner fully 
participate in learning. Students explore, question, tinker, access same literacy content through material 
such as Reading A to Z same text multilevel books available in multiple languages, access technology, and 
use a mode most suited to their strength to best demonstrate their end unit knowledge. They are taught, 
coached on, practice, and use new or developing skills during unit lessons by both teachers and peers. 
Research has shown that inquiry-led learning helps form depth of knowledge, fosters a desire to explore a 
wider range of issues, promotes problem and solution thinking, and gives students an authentic way to 
present their knowledge (Grant, M. & Branch, R.M. 2005). Knowledge application is embedded throughout 
SICS’ education framework and is directly tied to achievement goals. Spires, et al (2012) found that 
“knowledge representation is critical to knowledge construction and meaning making” and that students 
tap into the linguistic, visual, audio, gestural, and spatial modes of learning to accomplish this. CKLA and 
Singapore PMCC are aligned with this approach to teaching and learning, and all are tied to the strategies 
of Sheltered Instruction. This includes SIOP, TWIOP (Two Way Instruction Observation Protocol), 
Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English (SDAIE), and strategies for ELLs and SWDs. SICS 
does not limit their use to special populations but, rather, uses them as a normed practice to enhance 
multimodal input for all students. 
Special student populations are included in all aspects of school culture. Student data drives both natural 
and intentional differentiation strategies used in curriculum and assessment. It is a standard practice at 
SICS to adapt and modify the environment and curriculum to student needs that are addressed through: 

1.	 Differentiation that incorporates use of a TIP when needed, embedded into goals of a student’s ILP. 
TIPs allow flexible student programming across classes and grades when students need more 
support, or more independence to continue academic progress. 

2.	 Cultural and academic responsiveness, naturally part of SICS’ internationally focused mission, 
three tutorial sessions per week, and an extended instructional calendar are part of the mechanisms 
available to every student. 

3.	 Communication among teachers and support staff occurs daily. Extensive collaborative planning 
time provided for classroom co-teachers, bilingual and monolingual grade level peers, out of 
classroom specialists, and coordinators is scheduled daily, separate from preparation periods, as a 
normed school practice that avails faculty notes and anecdotal records to all other instructional staff 
via ManageBac. 

4.	 Early release Fridays’ PD incorporates additional collaborative planning inclusive of ELL, SWD 
and special population-related topics. Team meetings and specialist reports from student 
monitoring are regularly scheduled. 

56 Special educational needs within the IB programs and the K-6 NYSCCLS 
57 Making the PYP happen: A curriculum framework for international primary education 
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SICS is mindful of the need to provide access to all in selecting school spaces (see Section III.F.4). 
Accessibility requirements are considered when identifying student extra-curricular activities. Access is 
tailored to the actual needs of students enrolled in the school at any given time, and is flexible to meet 
changing needs. No student is barred from any day or afterschool activities. Access is aligned with SICS’ 
mission of inclusion. All experiences and exposure obtained by students add value to their learning and to 
their drive to build overall capacity and therefore achievement. The Executive Director and DOTL 
collaborate closely with outside program providers on inclusivity and diversity. After school and other 
extra-curricular program notices are sent home in multiple languages for parents, blasted via classroom 
community dashboard BLOOMZ, and shared by the FSA and at school-wide assemblies. 
II.B.2 Responsiveness. An active, performance-based, responsive classroom environment and 
instructional approach engages each student directly, regardless of ability. Inquiry-led principles and 
practices are blended with dedicated direct instruction time. Each program under the curriculum framework 
and each foundational resource complements the next under the umbrella of an inquiry-led, language-rich 
academic experience that is connected, cohesive and structured for focused instructional support that feels 
natural for students. Intuitively, students explore and make sense of concepts in different ways without 
being held back or penalized. 
In the SICS classroom differences and diversity are accepted, celebrated, discussed, and reflected upon in 
a nurturing space. This applies to all children, particularly SWDs. Steeped in a performance-based 
curriculum, at-risk children thrive when flexibility in performance tasks and activities allows them to 
acquire and demonstrate knowledge in their own way. Teachers use multi-sensory approaches to 
demonstrate information including visual cues, images, and movement. Every Unit of Inquiry asks students 
to express themselves without reservation to modality. This encourages focused instructional support and is 
a consistent, natural way for students to benefit from a multi-sensory learning environment. For example, 
essays, poetry, model building, and performance art are all ways for students to demonstrate understanding. 
For clarity, each curriculum subject area develops conceptual and linguistic connections in a specific 
language, either French or English but not both. Delivering instruction in one language at a time maintains 
cultural and linguistic responsiveness while creating a stable platform for special student populations. SICS 
provides both a responsive French and a responsive English language classroom environment where core 
content classroom teachers are experienced, combine credentials and endorsements, and either their target 
language is their mother tongue or they are fully fluent. 
II.B.3. SICS’ universal screening and identification of students begins at recruitment (see Attachment 1: 
Admissions Policies and Procedures), during information and presentation sessions held directly with 
parents, and through contact with pre-school directors. The objective is to identify special student 
populations both at-risk or in need of special support services. The process continues through enrollment 
and admissions with the use of a Home Language survey, asking for voluntary disclosures, and requesting 
student school records at enrollment, including for the designated “turning 5” students. Identification 
continues throughout the school year through teacher observations, classroom exams, the NYSTP and other 
methods. Summer Sofari, the first 10 days of class in August, is also used to assess students. Staff use 
summative, formative and diagnostic tools that incorporate observation, home visits, review of existing 
IEPs, and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Section 504) or Behavior Plans to make 
determinations. During Summer Sofari, baseline assessments to determine support services, whether for 
readiness, enrichment, therapeutic, or IEP mandates (see Section II.D.3) are conducted. 
To serve a diverse student population in a least restrictive environment (LRE), several standard points of 
intervention are in place. Intervention staff beyond the classroom includes a full time Social Worker; 
instructional intervention, such as RTI; and the intervention programs, such as tutoring and mentoring (see 
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Attachment 4a: Calendar). Technology, texts and other specialized supplies that aide in keeping students in 
their LRE have been budgeted for (Attachment 9: line 109). 
Non-francophone ELLs (NFE) have automatic TIPs with supporting goals in their ILPs that provide 
flexibility to work on readiness while remaining at grade level. Individual and small group instruction 
through AITs, push-in, and pull-out models are options for English language acquisition. If larger 
populations are present, the half class model, where groups of students up to 10 are pulled from two 
classes to form a full ESL/ESOL class. NFEs are expected to fully participate in French language and FLE 
classes as their peers without additional support since all students are learning French. Francophone ELLs 
may have their FLE class switched for ESL/ESOL. SICS’ weekly and daily schedule allows for this 
flexibility in FLE timeslots. The SSC monitors patterns and cross over assessments for needs other than 
those emanating from language. 
Response to Intervention, a key resource to service at-risk students, uses: 

•	 The SBST (See Section II.D.4 Assessment Collection & Dissemination); 
•	 COL aiding with family-based resources; 
•	 Reading A-Z as part of a curriculum academic intervention and Reading A-Z Headsprouts for 

extended foundational skills in literacy; 
•	 Further differentiated UDL solutions; and 
• Wilson Language Training – Fundations for students not responding to Reading A-Z. 

Students who, despite benefiting from school-wide strategies deployed by SICS, struggle to achieve 
learning standards in ELA, Math or French, receive a multi-tiered, assessment-driven, instructional and/or 
behavioral goals for their ILP. They may provide for indirect supports and interventions in the classroom, 
or direct intensive, small group instruction in a separate location. SICS relies on the NYS RTI protocol, 
which identifies and supports all struggling students including ELLs and SWDs 58. While specific RTI 
strategies are adjusted to meet student need, the overarching tiers are presented in Table II.B.1. 
A SICS student always has full access to curriculum, programs and enrichment activities. Multiple entry 
points allow meaningful participation and progress for each student in every class, in both languages. The 

Table	 II.B.1: RTI Strategic Tiers 
Tier 1 Tier 2* Tier 3 

Classroom based core curriculum 
with interventions and techniques 
that involve both classroom and 
grade level teachers. Interventions 
are need- specific and may include 
modifications to instructional 
delivery, resource allocation, 
differentiated instruction and 
additional universal assessments. 

An adjustment to the frequency of 
exposure or intensity of intervention, small 
group instruction, realigning learning goals 
to develop readiness skills, introducing 
specialty teachers e.g. Reading specialist 
for push-in/pullout services. Reading A-Z 
Headsprouts literacy support or Wilson tier 
1. Collaborating on academics with the 
SBST and/or SAT for strategic behavioral 
support. Recommendation to intersession 

Wilson Fundation tier 2 and/or 3. 
Very small-group or 1:1 
instruction targeted directly to 
student’s areas of deficit. 
4-5 intervention sessions per 
week conducted by trained 
literacy and/or SETSS; 
6-8 weeks in duration and 
repeated as necessary. 

* Tier 2: If deemed necessary, students receive supplemental FLE (content-based FLE/FLES [foreign language in the 
elementary school]) lessons during the regularly scheduled tutoring times. FLES classes meet two to three times per 
week for 30 minutes at a time. This is in addition to regularly scheduled FLE. 

The RTI cycle = Identify, Create a Plan, Implement, Monitor & Support, Analyze & Adjust. 
It is reasonable to expect that a student may need to complete more than one RTI cycle. 

flexible staffing model and structural plans are implemented by the SBST, and used by the SSC to manage 
services for special populations and at-risk students. SICS’ staffing structure (see Section III.C.1) includes 
the qualified, specialized staff needed to make this happen from Year 1. Student’s access to curriculum 

58 http://www.nysrti.org 
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and a student’s individual learning goals are supported and influenced by AITs with differentiated 
certifications, as well as by the COL, SSC, Social Worker, GC (Year 4), SpET, ESL, and FLE specialists. 
Instructional staff, supported by the DOTL and IB Coordinator, participates in need-focused instructional 
coaching and PD (see Section II.G.2, III.E Professional Development and Section III.D Evaluation) to 
strengthen responsiveness to actual student needs. The IB Coordinator and SSC provide training in 
Universal Design for Learning (UDL) that provides a blueprint for creating goals, methods, materials, and 
assessments that work for everyone—bringing differentiated solutions that are flexible and that can be 
customized and adjusted for individual needs59. UDL is incorporated into lesson development, as well as 
SICS’ RTI protocol that includes identifying and assessing struggling students, the pairing of academic 
interventions to need, and progress monitoring. Language specialists (ESL/FLE) provide staff with initial, 
and targeted follow-up, training in SDAIE and SIOP/TWIOP practices and strategies. 
*Students identified as at-risk of academic failure by their teachers or parent, including those who do not 
fall under any specified at-risk subgroup, but are still found to have risk factors that limit their engagement 
in the general classroom, are screened and fully supported before requesting a formal evaluation screening. 
They are referred to the SSC, who coordinates an assessment response for services across stakeholders and 
the student’s environment, and ensures materials and processes are in place and functioning for each 
student. This may include observations, a review of student’s SRGP, and review of analysis reports from 
ManageBac. The SSC monitors and suggests stop points to evaluate students that include the classroom 
intervention specialist, Data Analysis Team (DAT), Coaches, Social Worker, family and the RTI protocols. 
Following implementation of the full RTI plan and thorough internal analysis, SICS will initiate a referral 
for students not responding to interventions or those suspected of having a disability to the CSE. 
*SICS’ English Language Learner universal screening protocols follow Commissioner's Regulation Part 
154 that establishes the legal requirements for the education of ELLs in NYS. The SBST uses the NYS 
Identification Test for ELLs (NYSITELL) to identify children whose first language is not English. This is 
in addition to SICS universal screening protocol. A student who scores below the designated proficiency 
level on NYSITELL is eligible for ELL services/interventions in addition to those provided in SICS’ dual 
language classes. ESL interventions are provided in small groups for those requiring more support through 
a classroom AIT, push-in model, or use of Sheltered English Instruction (SEI) strategies. SEI instruction is 
embedded in general teacher practice but is also utilized in more intensive small group or individual lessons 
by the ESL teacher. A full-time certified ESL Specialist is on staff in Year 1, and a second ESL Specialist 
is planned for Year 4. Staffing of ESL specialists is flexible, including as classroom AITs as part of SICS’ 
flexible staffing model. All teachers are certified and highly qualified. 
An ELL whose home language is neither English nor French have automatic Transitional Inclusion Plans 
with supporting goals in their ILPs that provide flexibility to work on readiness while remaining at grade 
level. Individual and small group instruction through ESL AITs, push-in, and pull-out models are options 
for language acquisition. If larger populations are present, the half class model, where groups of students 
up to 10 are pulled from two classes to form a full ESL/ESOL class. Implementing SEI SDAIE strategies is 
a tool for teachers that gives students access to the core curriculum and ensures instructional materials are 
matched with needs. Both older and more recent studies demonstrate the success of SDAIE in creating 
great gains in language acquisition and academic content (Crawford, A.N., 2005; Edwards, 1984; Lafayette 
& Buscaglia, 1985). SDAIE use for the content areas in a second language adds substantially to the 
knowledge and vocabulary that students need as a base for comprehension as they read and think in any 
language (Krashen, 1985). This applies to ESL and FLE instruction. Examples would be color-coded 
materials/graphic organizers, word banks with picture clues or hands-on activities and demonstrations. 

59 http://www.udlcenter.org/aboutudl/whatisudl 
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Reading A-Z multilingual texts support instruction with books that target decoding, fluency, phonological 
awareness and high frequency words to complement CKLA work. These ELLs are expected to fully 
participate in French language and FLE classes as their peers, without additional support since all students 
are learning French. Francophone ELLs may have their FLE class switched for ESL/ESOL. SICS’ weekly 
and daily schedule allows for this flexibility in FLE timeslots. 
The SSC monitors patterns and cross over assessments to evaluate both student progress and their needs 
other than those emanating from language. NYSESLAT is used to formally track student progress. 
*Advanced or gifted students are identified over time by evidence collected in their SRGP by classroom 
teachers. Parents may also self-identify students and present artifacts as part of the assessment process to 
the SSC for consideration. Students are found to either need enrichment for depth of knowledge or 
acceleration for acquisition of knowledge and comprehension. The SSC, teacher, and IB Coordinator 
(SBST) plan extended learning opportunities that they monitor and use as SRGP assessments. SICS’ 
curriculum framework naturally provides benefits from inquiry-led learning, as it allows students to obtain 
pieces of enrichment based on how far they can independently stretch their critical thinking and project 
work in addition to what their teacher facilitates. The most powerful tool for delivering services to an 
academically advanced student is their ILP. Teachers use ILPs to create points within the curriculum 
continuum where these students receive enrichment in their academic, intellectual, social and emotional 
growth. An ILP in an inquiry setting supports enrichment through engagement in research projects, 
extended hands-on learning, service learning, and additional action performance projects. Additional Gifted 
and Talented support comes via: 
ê The use of small, focused, differentiated teaching groups as part of an RTI protocol; 
ê Individual mentorship time and opportunities for extended CAR time; 
ê The introduction of a Genius hour in upper grades, an independent studies allotment of time; 
ê Transitional Learning Plans that schedule time in upper grades; 
ê Enrichment tutorials; and 
ê Intersession classes.   
Evaluation of students uses evidence gathered from above proficiency scores on State assessments, high 
achievement in reaching SRGP benchmarks, or demonstration of an accelerated ability in a content area. 
II.B.4 Universal screening for identification, as discussed above, begins during enrollment and continues 
during Summer Sofari. This information, data collected during home visits and other observations are used 
to develop a student profile. Any child identified or suspected of being at-risk is referred immediately to the 
SSC, who initiates intervention protocols and coordinates appropriate services. The SBST has five (5) 
school days to review the referral, observe or otherwise assess the student and determine which school-
based interventions are to be provided. The review may be extended to 10 days for cause by school 
leadership or the SBST. SWDs are expected, but not required, to self-identify and provide their IEP or 504 
accommodation to SICS. During the enrollment period, SICS seeks to identify those “turning 5s” through 
parent discussions and outreach efforts at Early Childhood centers. 
SICS complies with its obligations under the Child Find requirements of Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act (IDEA) including 34 CFR §300.750 and provides notification to parents of referral prior to 
providing a child’s name to a CSE for potential evaluation. An annual report in compliance with 8 NYCRR 
§119.3 is submitted to the authorizer detailing the number of SWDs served by SICS, the nature of each 
student’s disability, and each student’s educational placement and setting by the required dates. For reports 
that are the responsibility of the district of residence, the school makes required data available to the district 
in a timely manner. SICS works with the Local Education Agency school districts to ensure all SWDs who 
qualify under IDEA receive a Free Appropriate Public Education (FAPE); are appropriately evaluated; are 
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provided with an IEP; and have access to appropriate procedures and mechanisms, along with their parents, 
to resolve any disagreements related to the school’s or its district’s provision of FAPE. SICS will not 
convene its own CSE, make formal evaluations, create IEPs, reevaluate or revise existing IEPs or conduct 
due process hearings as these responsibilities belong solely to the CSE of the student’s district of residence. 
Teachers are given leave time to attend CSE meetings and conferences. See Manage IEP Record-keeping 
and Evaluating program effectiveness below. 
II.B.5 All SWDs, or those suspected of having a disability are provided RTI as an additional 
identification/screening measure. The SSC analyzes assessment data to confirm whether academic 
difficulties are due to specified disabilities or other causes. All intervention is devised in partnership with 
parents, who may at any point request an evaluation for special education needs. School-based options for 
intervention include RTI protocol, Special Education Teacher Support Service (SETSS) if a student has an 
IEP, and ESL or FLE classes for fluency skills in English and French. If mandated, SICS will provide 
paraprofessional services in alignment with local regulations. These are in addition to specialty support 
staff and teams listed in II.B.3 for meaningful participation in the curriculum. SWDs may access tutoring 
and Intersessions where classroom instruction is in small, supportive, structured and rigorous settings. 
II.B.6 Mandated IEP services are followed within the LRE possible. The RTI protocol is implemented 
before teachers consider a student for evaluation for special education services or a student with an IEP for 
reevaluation. Service options for special education students not responding to RTI include SETSS or self-
contained instruction. Students who require Special Education services for overall academic achievement 
or who require both ESL/FLE and special education support will have a targeted ILP set in parallel to the 
IEP and receive services from both the SpET and ESL/FLE teachers that support individual growth needs. 
Each classroom is set up for collaborative teaching, with a dedicated AIT. School intervention teams, 
coordinated by the SSC, work together to monitor students. The Social Worker and GC provide IEP 
mandated counseling. These students also benefit from CAR time (see Section I.C. Retention Plan). SICS 
outsources related services, such as speech language pathology and audiology; psychological, and physical 
and occupational therapy. If SICS is not able to provide services in accordance with the student’s IEP, it 
relies on the student’s CSE to provide them. SICS is fully conscious of its federal-level regulatory and 
legal obligations, and will abide by Section 504, and Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(ADA). Accurate and up-to-date information about special education students will be securely kept on 
NYC Special Education Student Information System (SESIS) as well as in a secure area on ManageBac. 
II.B.7 Working with Districts of Residence 
Referrals: SICS’ SSC works directly with a student’s home district’s CSE to coordinate all protocol, 
processes and services for students with special needs. The SSC meets the CSE to declassify SWDs. 
Instructional staff is made available to participate in any requested meetings, conferences, or hearings that 
pertain to evaluation or reevaluation of SWDs. The SSC establishes and maintains open communication 
with the CSE, particularly with the finance department. Any related services mandated in the student IEP is 
coordinated, including outsourcing services to ensure fair student funding. The Executive Director, SSC 
and Director of Operations (DoO) meet monthly to review funding, services, and enrollment updates and to 

plan using new data.
 
School-Initiated Referrals: The teacher and SSC use assessment and classroom data to determine need, 

then confer with the DOTL and complete a written request to CSE for an initial evaluation. The request
 
must clearly outline the student’s strengths and weaknesses, describe Tier 1 and 2 interventions undertaken 

and supports provided, and describe the extent of parental involvement prior to the referral request. Upon 

approval from the DOTL, the request is forwarded to the CSE.
 
Parent-Initiated Referrals: The COL and Social Worker/GC provide support to parents who wish to 
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independently refer their child to their CSE. Parents are given a copy of procedural safeguards and a 
sample letter outlining information required in a request for referral and initial evaluation. 
II.B.8 IEP Record-Keeping. The Executive Director has overall responsibility for ensuring that SWDs are 
provided with their recommended programs and services, and that all referrals are completed appropriately 
and in compliance with Federal and State laws and regulations. At SICS, the SSC, under the direction of 
the Executive Director and supervision of the DOTL, is responsible for managing IEP record-keeping, 
ensuring compliance with all IEP requirements and regulations, managing the review and referral process, 
ensuring services are provided as mandated on student IEPs, documenting progress monitoring, and 
submitting all required reports in a timely manner. The SSC may keep paper copies of IEPs in a controlled 
environment, for quick reference, as a backup, and in case electronic access is interrupted. The SSC is 
provided both time and resources to accomplish these duties. 
II.B.9 Coordinate and Communicate. Teachers and service providers who teach SWDs are provided 
access to each student’s IEP at the beginning of the school year, or when it becomes available. Teachers are 
provided sufficient time throughout the year to review IEPs on Wednesdays and pre-scheduled early 
release Fridays. Privacy controls are strictly enforced, and staff are trained on using NYCDOE SESIS 
during their annual Summer Institute session. A credentialed SICS teacher servicing a student has 
unfettered access to electronic IEPs, and may request to view paper copies in a secure school location. 
II.B.10 Opportunities and Ancillary Support Services for students are developed by SICS COL who 
maintains strong ties to families and the community. In Year 1, SICS supplements its student mentoring 
time (CAR) by collaborating with CBO Each One Teach One60 that provides mentors and enrichment 
activities to support students with special needs. This is a free service. In addition, education interns and 
student teachers made possible through collaborations with Bank Street College and GMU will facilitate 
ancillary small group instruction (Commitment letters received). 
II.B.11 The evaluation of program effectiveness is delineated in SICS’ Achievement Goals (Section II.C) 
and include the success of at-risk populations. In addition to the evaluation process, accountability is 
shared with the Board Education Committee, which measures performance indicators against efficacy, and 
can manage incoming data and reports at monthly meetings and through ManageBac. The SSC manages 
the programs used to support special student population services and plans follow up goals based on 
ongoing evaluations. Section III.D discusses all program evaluation protocols. The SSC provides twice 
monthly updates on student progress to the DOTL and a full report in 6-week cycles on the progress of 
each subgroup of at-risk students. Evaluations include the effectiveness of protocols and achievement 
within them for SWDs. Through the SRGP assessment system, the DAT and instructional staff: 

1. Pinpoint student performance and progress toward each learning goal, 
2. Disaggregate data for specific subgroups, and  
3. Adjust and revisit goals accordingly. 

The SBST members report their individual assessment findings to the SSC. For SWDs and special 
populations, this information is used to determine student progress against IEP, ILP and the school’s 
overall accountability goals. Annually updated student, parent and teacher survey data also is evaluated. 
Progress or lack thereof is determined through analysis of student ILP goals, success in phasing out IEP-
mandated modifications, and portfolio artifacts in addition to observations, exams, standardized tests, 
participation in school events, student-led parent/teacher conferences, and other artifacts of the school 
community. If success is not deemed sufficient, SICS may modify the protocols in place with updated 
research-based, needs-centered ones. 

60 http://www.eteamz.com/EOTOINC/ http://amsterdamnews.com/news/2016/jul/21/each-one-teach-one-remains-staple-harlem-youth/ 
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II.C. Achievement Goals 
II.C.1 Incoming Student Population: SICS expects to enroll a student population that reflects the ethnic, 
linguistic and socio-economic diversity of CSD 4, 5 and 6HH as discussed in Section I.D. Community to be 
Served. The districts are majority African-American and Latino with a growing population of White, Asian, 
and multiethnic families. A further breakdown of subgroups shows ethnic and linguistic diversity matching 
data from the NYCDOE Office of ELLs, and indicate French is in the top five and top three home 
languages in CSD 4, 5 and 6HH respectively61. As discussed in Section I.C Enrollment and Retention, there 
is notable variance across individual schools of percentages of enrollment of ELL, SWD and FRLP/ED 
students with some being up to 10% higher than nearby schools. CSD 5 has a higher percentage of 
FRLP/ED (91% vs. 87%) students, while CSD 6HH has a higher percentage of ELLs (38% vs. 17% and 
14%) and CSD 4 a significantly higher percentage of SWDs (22% vs.17% CSD 5 and 14% within 6HH). 
II.C.2 Academic Data from CSD 4, 5 and 6HH, as discussed in Section I.D, demonstrate performance 
rates significantly below the Citywide average. Their populations of at-risk students achieve proficiency far 
below their counterparts in neighboring districts. ELL students in Grades 3 to 6 have an overall ELA 
proficiency level of 1% in CSD 5 and 5% in CSD 4 (see Table I.D.4-1: School Proficiency in CSD 5). CSD 
6HH has a 29% dropout rate that rises to 35% in CSD 5 overall and an even higher 40% in CSD 4. 
Concern begins in elementary school where only 21% of students scored proficient on the 2016 State ELA 
exam in CSD 5. CSD 5 students reaching proficiency or higher in 2013 for Grades 3 to 6 averaged 12%, 
and in 2015 averaged 16%. Fifth grade progress has been steady but is the grade that experienced the 
slowest growth in achievement with 11% of its 2015 students reaching proficiency or higher. The overall 
proficiency rate of CSD 4 is 32% in ELA and 28% in Math. A break down in CSD 4 by grade shows a 
steady decline in achievement as students reach 6th grade. Third grade students at or above proficiency in 
ELA have gone from 21% in 2013 to 28% in 2015 while 6th grade has gone from 16% in 2013 to 20% in 
201562. The annual decline in number of students reaching proficiency as they matriculate is a foundational 
reason for SICS choosing its grade span. Similar results exist for NYS Mathematics assessments. In 2016, 
17% proficient rates are recorded on the CSD 5 exam. At-risk students across both CSD 4 and 5 are 
extremely underperforming. Neither ELLs nor SWDs in either district are documented at above 8% Math 
proficiency. FRLP students fared better at 15% in CSD 5 and 24% in CSD 4. Data from 6HH is harder to 
track given the range of schools within the neighborhood. For example, parents are wait-listing for the 
Hamilton Heights School yet they have a 0% proficiency rate for their SWDs and the ELL Math 
proficiency rate among all schools ranges from 0% to 11%. 
II.C.3 Student Achievement Goals are developed in accordance with Benchmarks presented by NYSED 
in its Charter School Performance Framework. It is understood that SICS is evaluated against these 
specified benchmarks. Informal evaluative steps are set in place on a continuous basis through data reports 
in committee, on ManageBac, and at monthly Board meetings. Formal evaluation is conducted annually 
with multiple data points collected over the year (see Table II.C.3). SICS seeks to actively identify issues 
and challenges that could impact the Mission, and plans for continual adjustments with continuous 
improvement exercises. For Benchmark 1, SICS set the student achievement goals listed in Table II.C.1. 

Table II.C.1: SICS Student Achievement Goals 
GOAL 1. Sofara International Charter School is deemed in good standing under the State’s ESEA accountability system: it 
has not met the criteria to be identified as a Focus School or as a local assistance school 
Goal 2: Students will demonstrate proficiency in ELA 
a. 75% of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second-year will perform at proficiency On the New York 

61 http://schools.nyc.gov/NR/rdonlyres/0183D51C-377B-4ED7-BCBE-607AE4669D54/0/201415ELLDemographicReport.pdf 
62 http://schools.nyc.gov/Accountability/data/TestResults/ELAandMathTestResults 
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State English language arts exam for grades 3 to 6 

b. 
The average score on the NYS ELA exam will exceed the average score of SICS’ home district and of the City as a 
whole, for each grade tested 

c. 
For grades 1and 2, each cohort of students will improve its literacy score by 0.03 percentiles per year, as measured by 
internal assessments (F&P/NWEA MAP) among all public schools in NYS 

Goal 3: Students will demonstrate proficiency in Mathematics 

a. 
75% of all tested students who are enrolled in at least their second-year will perform at proficiency On the New York 
State Mathematics exam for grades 3 to 6 

b. 
The average score on the NYS Math exam will exceed the average score of SICS’ home district and of the City as a 
whole, for each grade tested 

c. 
For grades 1and 2, each cohort of students will improve its Math score by 0.03 percentiles per year, as measured by 
internal assessments (NWEA MAP) among all NYS public schools 

Goal 4: Students will demonstrate proficiency in Science 

a. 
75% of all grade 4 students enrolled at SICS for 2 full academic years or more will score at Level 3 or higher on the 
State Science Exam 

Goal 5: SICS will demonstrate strong annual attendance and enrollment 
a. The average daily attendance rate will meet or exceed 95% each year 
b. SICS’ waiting list will exceed 1.5 applications per available seat 
c. Student annual retention maintains a rate of 90% or more during the term charter 
Goal 6: SICS will demonstrate annual diversity in enrollment 

a. 
SICS will meet and maintain diversity in target population enrollment goals for academic, linguistic, and socio-
economic diversity representative of SICS’ home district by 85% 

Goal 7: SICS will demonstrate fiduciary responsibility in managing public and private resources 

a. 
SICS will use Generally Accepted Accounting Practices (GAAP) independently verified through an annual external 
audit 

b. SICS will demonstrate sound financial standing and fiscal transparency through its financial reports. 
Goal 8: SICS will maintain a safe learning environment with strong parent involvement 

a. 
85% of parents will indicate satisfaction with each of student safety and communication between school and home 
through the NYC Department of Education’s Learning Environment Survey or SICS micro poling. 

Goal 9: Students will demonstrate proficiency in French Oral Skills 

a. 

al
s 

65% of grade K-6 students who are enrolled for at least two consecutive years will achieve proficiency on 
ACTFL benchmarks in speaking as measured by their performance on the ELLOPA/SOPA. (See levels in 
Table II.C.2). 

t g
o

Goal 10: Students will demonstrate social and emotional growth 

a. 

d 
ac

hi
ev

em
en Each year, 75% of 2-6 graders enrolled at SICS for at least two consecutive years perform at or above Level 

3 on a school designed rubric in alignment with IB standards and the CCLS interpersonal and 
intrapersonal domains that assesses students’ social emotional development within the Learner Profile 
Attributes, Attitudes, and Skills of the IB PYP as measured by SEARS (see Table II.D.1). 

b. 

ol
 b

as
e

90% of students in Grades 3-6 perform at or above Level 3 on a school designed IB-based rubric measuring 
autonomy and self-direction in the fulfillment of their ILPs as measured by internal assessments (SEARS). 

sc
ho Goal11: Students will demonstrate learning through performance 

a. SI
C

S Go90% of students in Grades 3-6 perform at or above Level 3 in a school designed IB-based rubric 
measuring critical thinking and problem solving in their end-of Unit products and artifacts in alignment with 
CCLS and other applicable Standards. 

b. 
All students will know how to access information and use technology to learn and communicate as 
evidenced by the successful completion, in Grade 5-6, of an IB-Exhibition project that demonstrates a depth 
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of knowledge and the use of a wide range of skills at level 3 according to an IB PYP-based school-designed 
rubric alignment with NYS Learning Standards. 

ACTFL Proficiency Guidelines63 and the CCBI were used to set school-based achievement goals for 
foreign language development (See Table II.C.2). Goals are aligned with the academic 5-point scale of 
novice, intermediate, advanced, superior, and distinguished and are developmentally appropriate. 
Advanced” (Commanding in the CCBI), is considered proficient. Students have foreign language support 
to achieve these goals through ESL, ESOL if needed, and FLE classes in addition to reinforcement in the 
English direct instruction classes. Further information regarding assessment tools is in Section II.D.2. 

Table II.C.2: Minimum Delineated Grade Goals for Second Language Acquisition (Sample) 
Period Students Enrolled 

on BEDS day 
Summative 
Assessment Goal for students 

End of 
Grade K 

One year 
 

ELLOPA  65% Novice-mid level oral skills: intermediate-low. Listening 
Letter recognition 75% recognition all French letters in print 

   

End of 
Grade 1 

ELLOPA 75% Novice-mid level oral skills: intermediate-low. Listening 
Letter recognition 85% recognition all French letters in print 

   

End of 
Grade 2 

ELLOPA 75% Novice-high level oral skills: intermediate-low. Listening 
Letter-vowel blending 95% decode letter-vowel combinations in print 
Reading 85% Novice-high level 
Letter formation 95% Write all letters of alphabet 

   

End of 
Grade 3 2 consecutive years 

SOPA 90% Intermediate-high level oral skills: intermediate-low. Listening 
Letter-vowel blending 95% decode letter-vowel combinations in print 
Reading 90% Intermediate-mid level 
Letter formation 100% Write all letters of alphabet 

II.C.4 SICS uses continuous multi-tiered progress monitoring to facilitate direct tracking of student 
achievement64. It provides a multi-perspective view of SICS’ progress toward meeting the achievement 
goals and growth measures set in the Accountability Plan, and the Charter School Office Performance 
Framework Benchmarks, addressed through four different levels:  

1) Student level with the teacher using individual, aggregate and disaggregated assessment data to inform 
instruction;  

2) Classroom level by administrators using individual, aggregate and disaggregated data to evaluate the 
effectiveness of the curriculum and instruction;  

3) School-wide level by School Leadership and the Board using aggregate and disaggregated data to 
make programmatic and resource allocation decisions; and  

4) By the Charter Authorizer.  
As discussed in Sections II.D Assessment System and III.D Evaluation, time and resources are allocated for 
monitoring progress. In addition to this, stop points are scheduled into the calendar and performance and 
analysis teams are put in place. SRG benchmarking is a main component of the progress monitoring that 
occurs deliberately throughout the academic year at each of the school-based levels. Using resulting 
analysis reports stored in ManageBac, the DAT meets twice a month to assess school-wide trends, 
concerns, and progress toward meeting goals. The Team reviews/sets goals and next steps as well as 
delineates member roles, responsibilities and timelines at each meeting. Feedback opportunities are 
presented in Table II.C.3. 

 

																																																													
63 http://www.actfl.org/publications/guidelines-and-manuals/actfl-proficiency-guidelines-2012 
64 https://www.progressmonitoring.org/pdf/cbmmod1.pdf 
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Table II.C.3: Feedback Opportunities 

Purpose Feedback Method Author Location Collection 
Cycle 

Students’ Aggregate and 
Disaggregated Performance 

Data 

Curriculum 
Reflections 
(French and 

English) 

Unit Planner and at 
the Completion of 

Each Unit of Inquiry 

Instructional 
Staff ManageBac 4-6 Weeks 

Students’ Aggregate and 
Disaggregated Performance 
Data, Curriculum Evaluation 

Curriculum 
Reflections 

Student Reflections 
at The Completion 

of Each Unit of 
Inquiry 

Students Classroom 
Binder 4-6 Weeks 

Individual Student Progress, 
Program Effectiveness, SWD 

Referrals 

Response to 
Intervention 

Program 
Report 

SSC with 
Coordinators, 

ESL, FLE 
and 

Specialists 

ManageBac 6-8 Weeks 

Tracking Trends, Progress 
Toward Goals 

School-Wide 
Programming 

Anecdotal notes and 
Reports 

DAT, 
Coordinators, 

Coaches,  
ManageBac Twice a 

month 

Students’ Aggregate and 
Disaggregated Performance 

Data, Curriculum Evaluation, 
Resource Allocation 

School-Wide 
Student and 

Programming 
Snapshot 

Reports 

Executive 
Director, 

DOTL and 
DoO  

ManageBac Monthly 

Review Funding, Services, 
Diversity and Enrollment 

Updates and To Plan According 
to New Data 

School-Wide 
processes, 

procedures and 
Programming  

Reports, Artifacts 
Executive 

Director, SSC 
and DoO 

ManageBac Monthly 

Improve and Maintain the 
Quality Decision-making by 
Analysis of Aggregate and 

Disaggregated Data, 
Curriculum Evaluation, and  

Resource Allocation,  

School-Wide 
Programming 

Committee Meeting 
Reports  

(oral/written) and 
Generated Reports 

Board 
Education 
Committee 

Committee 
Binder, 

ManageBac 

Monthly  
& 

Each 
Trimester 

Compliance with Charter and 
Achievement Goals School-Wide 

Committee Meeting 
Reports  

(oral/written) and 
Generated Reports 

Board 
Compliance 
Committee 

Committee 
Binder, 

ManageBac 
Trimester 

Programmatic Feedback, 
Satisfaction School-Wide Survey 

Teachers, 
Students, 
Parents 

ManageBac 
(Paper to 
Digital) 

Annually 

II.C.5 Multi-tiered progress monitoring is a research-based strategy that has proven successful65 and is 
considered valuable by current charter school leaders and professionals in social work and special 
education. The concept is sustained by the understanding that building a 360-degree view from multiple 
perspectives produces significantly better insight into challenges, growth and progress of students and 
programs. SICS gathers such multifaceted data and actionable analysis reports. 
II.C.6 School Leadership can communicate goal-specific evaluation data with teachers, support staff, 
students, parents, and the community to create school-wide processes and practices and a norming of 
assessment. Leadership conveys accurate information regarding the mastery of learning goals of individual 

																																																													
65 http://www.rtinetwork.org/essential/assessment/progress/mutlilevelprevention 
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students, class sections, and the school very clearly using the real-time views and analysis of data through 
ManageBac. The Data Analysis days in the yearly calendar provide time to discuss assessment tools and 
analyze student assessments.  
Assessment tools across the classes and grades are reviewed for reliability and validity. During analysis, 
multiple sources are used. SICS tracks student trends and examines disaggregated data to conduct a 
comparative analysis for validity and reliability. Reliability in the classroom is seen in how teachers 
administer a variety of assessments and allows students to demonstrate their learning in a variety of ways 
(i.e. performance tasks, student choice). 
II.C.7 Progress Monitoring The Executive Director, DOTL and DoO meet monthly to create the school-
wide assessment progress report and create short- and long-term adjusted goals driven by the data. This 
monthly snapshot is presented to the Board Education Committee at their monthly meeting. The Board uses 
the information to improve and maintain its decision-making quality (see Section III.D.3 Evaluation). The 
Board has ManageBac Dashboard access, receive verbal reports at monthly meetings by School Leaders, 
and are presented with a school-wide snapshot each trimester with contents as shown in Table II.C.4.  

Table	II.C.4:	Snapshot	Data	Points	
Daily	 Attendance, current student assessment data, student discipline data, and student enrollment data. 	

Weekly	
Current assessment data, student SRGP samples (grade specific), program highlights for CAR 
mentoring time, second language acquisition highlights, trans-disciplinary content highlights 
(art, PE, ELA & Math), curriculum and program updates, and relevant personnel-related data.	

Monthly 	
(or when 

administered)	

Benchmark assessment data: Content area, SEL, and second language acquisition. RTI report, 
Promotion/retention rates, School-wide IB-compliance report, SSC report, ESL/FLE report, 
financial and budgetary considerations. Includes data points collected annually, when available.	

II.D Assessment System	
II.D.1 Progress Toward Achieving Goals. SICS’ assessment protocols focus on what a learner can do at 
the time of assessment. Protocols gauge authentic learning, give value to diversity, and support and inform 
change. SICS’ SRGP assessment system, driven by goal setting and the evidentiary data, clearly 
demonstrates where each student is in meeting grade level benchmarks and standards. Data on categories 
such as attendance and completion of assignments are tracked through ManageBac and used in support of 
conversations assessing academic achievement, personal growth, and habits of success. This data 
contributes to a student’s portfolio assessment, so that a portfolio is more than just a work folder. As 
discussed in III.D: Evaluation, assessment of students is directly tied to evaluation of teachers by using the 
Marzano Framework that measures teacher effectiveness in relation to SRG use. Table II.D.1 lists the 
assessment tools and purposes to meet SICS’ mission and goals. 
II.D.2 Reliable and Valid Assessment. Teachers choose specific data that connects to a standard to include 
in a portfolio such as a students’ end of unit summative performance task and scoring rubric. Students reflect 
and choose specific unit tasks that demonstrated a skill being addressed in their individual, standards driven, 
learning plan for their portfolio (Table II.D.1).  
	 	 Table	II.D.1:	Reliable	and	Valid	Assessment	

TEST PURPOSE 

Home Language Survey Identify students in need of language support services including ESL and ENL 
(English as a New Language) 

NYSITELL &  
NYSESLAT 

Standard Diagnostic:  
Determine proficiency in the English language and eligibility ESL, ENL, and 
FLE services 

ELLOPA (K-2) and  
SOPA (2nd-8th) 
French Language 

Diagnostic 
The process is hands-on and interactive, setting the stage for natural observation 
of language development. Determine student competency in second language 
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II.D.3 Administration, Collection and Dissemination of assessment data, as centralized through 
ManageBac, is accessible by all school community stakeholders. Baseline data is collected from direct 
observation, home visits, IEPs, diagnostic testing, and any prior school documentation compiled for each 
child during enrollment and Summer Sofari. Teachers also administer the F&P benchmark assessment, core 
content baseline assessments, and the ELLOPA/SOPA for French language competency during Summer 
Sofari. The reading and Math assessments of NWEA are administered the first week of September 
programming. Teachers use resulting data to devise initial ILPs with student input through conferencing. 
Assessment is continuous and ongoing in the classroom as students are taught self-reflection, self-
monitoring, and self-advocacy. Throughout the school year assessment is adjusted where Kindergarten is 
given developmental consideration and Grades 3-6 tracking of benchmark achievement. SICS maintains a 
school-wide assessment calendar schedule. A sample Year 1 calendar is presented in Table II.D.2. 

Table II.D.2: Year 1 Sample School-Wide Assessment Calendar Schedule 
TEST Enrll’ Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Home Lang Survey All            
NYSITELL/NYSESLAT All            
ELLOPA/SOPA - French  All   All    All   All 
F & P Running Records  All   1-6  K 1-6   1-6 K 

NWEA MAP (ELA/Math)   1-6  K  1-6   K-6    
Unit Performance Tasks    All   All  All   All   All   All 

SEARS (Unit based SEL)    All      All   A  All 
Core Subject As Determined by Teachers - Classroom assessments – CKLA, PMCC, other areas 
State Science           4  

State ELA/Math          3 -6   

acquisition in alignment with ACTFL. Student progress throughout the school 
year is tracked and teachers have data points for developing tailored instruction  

Fountas & Pinnell 

Formative / Diagnostic 
Assess K-2 in student benchmark progress toward achieving strong literacy 
foundational skills and provide teachers with diagnostic information that 
informs and adjusts teaching techniques, student learning plans, grouping 
strategies, targets lesson development and need for RTI protocols. Independent 
and instructional levels are accessible. 

NWEA MAP (ELA & Math) 

Formative / Predictive 
Determine student benchmark and competency in meeting CCLS in ELA and 
Math. Informs instructional delivery and need for RTI protocols. Monitoring 
current individual student progress and year to year growth. 

Portfolio Artifacts 
End of unit performance  
tasks and project work  
(French and English) 

Formative/Summative 
Student driven, teacher facilitated. To determine student progress toward 
meeting individual goals, benchmarks and CCLS. Performance assessment is 
easily aligned to the standards in a real-world context.  

Core subject Foundational 
Resources (CKLA, Singapore Math) 

Classroom based assessment to gauge learning or skills and content from 
individual lessons on concept study 

Social Emotional Assets and 
Resilience Scale (SEARS) aligned 
with IB standards and CCLS 

Classroom based assessment to gauge SEL-related habits of success skills 
within interpersonal (i.e. teamwork, collaboration, and leadership) and 
intrapersonal (i.e. intellectual openness, work ethic/conscientiousness, and 
positive self-evaluation) domains. 

 NYS Assessments  
• * ELA   *Math *Grade 4 Science  
• * Alternate Assessment  
• * Data-folio (Eligible Special 

Education students)	

Summative Assessment  
Determine a student’s level of proficiency in meeting grade level standards 
Ability to see patterns and make informed decisions.  
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The instructional team has specific roles and responsibilities when it comes to collecting and acting upon 
assessment data, as shown in Figure II.D-1, below.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
  

The Executive Director, in the capacity of Director of Assessment and ManageBac Administrator, is 
responsible for the development, implementation, collection, analysis, storage, and dissemination of 
school-wide assessment data. The Executive Director sets processes, procedures, and protocols to be used 
by the Assessment Coordinator (DOTL) and sub-teams. Student growth and achievement are the final 
objective of data collection and is the measure by which progress toward achievement goals is determined. 
The Director of Teaching and Learning as Assessment Coordinator supervises the school-wide 
assessment system and coordinates and implements the school calendar schedule for administration of 
Diagnostic, Interim, and State assessments. The DOTL utilizes the SBST and DAT to collect, manage, and 
support the analysis of assessment data. The DOTL manages the work of the DAT and use of ManageBac 
(see below) by all stakeholders. Using the insight gained from the teams working directly with teachers, the 
DOTL may adjust, select, and further develop school-wide assessment tools in consultation with the 
Executive Director.  
II.D.4 Acting on Assessment Data, the Data Analysis Team consists of the Executive Director, DOTL, 
SSC, IB Coordinator, ESL teacher and at least two AITs. The DAT meets twice a month to coordinate 
school-wide assessment administration, collection, analysis and dissemination of resulting data. The DAT 
includes in their analysis student portfolios to assess interventions and inform key decisions aimed at 
improving academic outcomes for underperforming students. The DAT also analyzes all other student data 
(i.e. benchmark assessments and attendance rates), in addition to data compiled through classroom AITs, 
RTI, and the SBST. Data analysis is used to identify trends, support decisions to adjust instructional 
intervention strategies, determine targeted PD and coaching needs for teachers (use of tools and areas of 
instruction), determine staff certifications needed, and identify needed resources among other assessment-
related responsibilities. Team members have pre-determined class targets to work with or disseminate 
information to, that may include informal lesson observations, coaching of teachers as a learning 
community, and collaborating on modifications of instruction or strategies for student engagement and 
achievement.  

 

	

Executive Director 
Director of  Assessment, ManageBac  

Storage & Analysis system 
Administrator 

	
Data	Analysis	Team	

(DAT) 	 		
Manage School-wide 

Assessment Collection, 
Analysis, Monitoring, 

Dissemination 

School	Based	Support	
Team	(SBST)	

Support Teachers in Student 
Assessment, Data Analysis, 

Using Data to Create Plans for 
at-risk students 

Academic	Interven;on	
Teachers	(AITs)	

Classroom Assessment 
Collection and Analysis / 

Portfolio Manager 

Director of  
Teaching & Learning 

Assessment Coordinator               
Data Analysis Supervisor             
Leads Data Analysis Team 	

Special Services 
Coordinator (SSC) 
Sits on DAT and Leads SBST to: 

Analyze data & Coordinate Services 
for all At-risk Students  

Figure	II.D-1:	
Assessment	
System	
Structure	
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The School Based Support Team supports teachers in assessing students and creating plans and 
interventions based on data analysis when students are not meeting benchmarks and standards. The team 
targets the collection, analysis and dissemination of assessment data for special student populations and 
related services. The data is collected from the AITs, ILPs, RTI protocol, TIPs, portfolios and school-wide 
assessments listed in Table II.D.1. The SBST disseminates the data to, and collaborates with, the DAT for 
school-wide assessment work and with the SSC specifically for coordination of student services. 
The Academic Intervention Teachers are responsible for assessment collection and analysis in the 
classroom. Together, all teachers collaborate during common planning time to use assessment data in a 
variety of ways to group students as well as to: 

• Revise pacing 
• Differentiate lessons 
• Remediate skills or content 
• Manage and aide students in the management of portfolios 
• Select students for interventions  
• Assess professional growth and progress, and  
• Communicate with students, parents, and families 

Assessment is pre-planned. Each Unit of Inquiry is embedded with standardized PYP inquiry-led skills 
required to achieve learning through its deployment. Teachers and students therefore have a clear 
alignment (across content areas) between learning and meeting standards. Teachers plan a twice monthly 
student-teacher conference schedule for dedicated 1:1 portfolio conference time, in addition to assessing 
students through whole class and small group progress. Throughout the year SRGP assessment includes 
collecting artifacts from diagnostic tools, evolving learning plans through RTI and IEP’s, and annual state 
exams. AITs take the lead in: 

• Disseminating on teacher teams  
• Organizing student portfolios  
• Preparing a twice-monthly student/teacher conference schedule (portfolios & ILP goals)  
• Making differentiation recommendations  
• Initiating interventions and collaborating with the SBST and other support personnel, and  
• Entering class-based assessment data into ManageBac.  

SICS’ Classroom teachers select Unit of Inquiry assessment instruments through deliberate grade level 
common planning with colleagues, IB Coordinator and the DOTL to obtain data aligned to goals and the 
Standards. Training for teachers on both SRG and portfolio development and maintenance is part of pre-
opening IB PD and continues in the school year, supported by the IB Coordinator and DOTL. Training 
includes specific issues and dynamics in assessment of ELLs, SWDs and special/at-risk populations. 
All instructional staff can input, interact with and analyze student data through ManageBac to collaborate 
on student achievement. The Board accesses ManageBac through its leadership dashboard. The Executive 
Director and DOTL meet monthly with the Board Education Committee to discuss analysis results. If 
warranted, the Committee may call for additional information or meetings. Key decisions on school 
policies, strategic planning and budgeting, adjusting school progress toward student achievement goals are 
made together driven by data. All SICS’ decisions are data driven both in and out of the classrooms, 
whether by teachers or administrators. 
In addition to ManageBac, parents can discuss data with teachers by phone, email, or in person. They 
receive full teacher reports thrice a year and for students in RTI or Transitional Inclusion, additional 
progress reports are produced every 6-8 weeks. Through the FSA, the school holds workshops two times 
per year on how to use ManageBac and understand holistic assessments, SRG, achievement interpretations, 
and support systems at home. This is in addition to the home visits and parent teacher conferences.  
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ManageBac stores, manages, and examines trends in performance in aggregate and disaggregated data 
groups. It allows SICS to compile a cross-reference of information from multiple data points for each 
student, managing both PYP-specific requirements and standard school items. ManageBac is used to 
analyze how categories such as behavior or attendance affect achievement in particular classes and 
subjects, either individually or within cohorts. This is designed to aide with curriculum planning, 
assessment and reporting, attendance and behavior, and parent engagement. 
Instructional staff easily access assessment data for collaborative unit planning. Academic planning is not 
just among teachers; it crosses the entire school. Specialists add comments on extension activities and 
differentiation needs, collaborate on lesson development, and add reflective observations. Data inform 
rubrics that quantify and chart student progress toward meeting goals, benchmarks, and standards. In turn, 
the Executive Director, Board and DOTL use staff reflections to make informed decisions affecting 
achievement based on curriculum analysis. The DAT tracks and creates comparative reports for everything 
from attendance to diagnostic grades.  
In addition to data storage, ManageBac is a tool to manage student SRG portfolios digitally. Students, 
teachers, administrators, parents, and the Board can all access uploaded portfolio artifacts and assessment 
data via ManageBac’s Dashboard portal. This overall portfolio assessment is part of a truly authentic 
assessment analysis system where clear evidence of student achievement is linked to learning goals, 
benchmarks and standards. Students use ManageBac to see relative reports and as a tool for self-
management, and can see portfolio assessment rubrics and teacher feedback and can upload artifacts, be 
linked to their learning goals, benchmarks and standards. All students learn how to access the student 
portal, and, increasing with each grade, find and read their personal assessment data.  
II.D.5 Understanding and Commitment: As a school that is in a constant state of reflection toward 
meeting its goals and fulfilling its mission, everyone in the school community leads the use of data within 
their domain: 

• The Board has the lead in the use of data to monitor the progress of strategic plans and oversight of 
policies in closing the achievement gap.  

• The Executive Director has the lead in the use/cross-collaboration/cross-dissemination of data to all 
stakeholders to ensure school-wide processes, procedures, programs, plans, and support mechanisms 
benefit students and meet the school mission. The Executive Director and DOTL are responsible for 
ensuring all assessments are aligned with CCLS, NYS Law, applicable policies of the Board of 
Regents (Regents), and the NYSTP.  

• The DOTL leads the use of data to drive both teacher and student support, including curriculum 
scope, design and implementation; tracking various cohorts; and evaluating teachers and the efficacy 
of PD and methodologies. The DOTL ensures all staff has access to, and the ability to navigate, 
assessment data. The DOTL facilitates teacher collaboration in interpreting and acting on data as 
leader of the DAT (See Sections III.D.2 and III.E.5)  

• AITs take the lead in the use of data to drive instruction and student achievement holistically within 
their classroom. 

• Students use the data through their ILPs and portfolios to drive their achievement.  
II.D.6 Measuring and Reporting. The Board Education Committee utilizes data at monthly meetings with 
the Executive Director and DOTL to monitor and plan key decisions related to assessment and achievement 
of students. School leadership and the Board Education Committee have a year-end review of assessment 
data as part of their evaluation of performance indicators in the accountability plan. Throughout the school 
year, the staff have ample opportunity to reflect on multiple data points covering areas directly affecting 
student performance. The Executive Director or designee is responsible for reporting information in the 
NYS Student Information Repository System.  
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SICS administers NYS ELA and Math Exams from Year 2 to Grade 3 and the NYS Science Exam in Year 
3 with the first cohort of Grade 4 students. Attainment of proficient or higher on the exams by a student is a 
marker of reaching student achievement goals and the mission. SICS maintains updated information on the 
school-wide calendar NYSTP and Regent requirements, including on ensuring the integrity and security of 
the exams. SICS will participate in the NYC Charter Center Test Scoring Consortium to coordinate the 
scoring of ELA and Math exams for Grades 3-6. Final annual school wide Exam results are disseminated to 
the school community via ManageBac and to community stakeholders via the website. 
II.E Performance, Promotion, and Graduation Standards 
SICS meets the same performance standards and assessment requirements established by the Regents for 
students in public schools (Attachment 3 provides additional detail on promotion and exit standards).  
II.E.1 An SRGP assessment system is implemented through which growth and progress are measured 
against the mastery level students achieve within the Standards. The SRGP system aligns with SICS’ 
mission of accountability, as it gives clear direction to a diverse student body to progress in academic, 
intellectual, social and emotional goals (see Section II.D.6). SICS SRGP system in Year 1 uses NYS 
Learning Standards/CCLS (BI), NGSS, ACTFL and IB standards, which address critical thinking, 
performance learning, scientific inquiry, language development and progress in SEL. ManageBac houses 
all standards in the teacher unit-planning portal to easily facilitate alignment.  
II.E.2 Promotions. The standards described in Component 3 of SICS’ education program (see Section 
II.A.2) provide the foundational underpinning that SICS students work toward mastering. The Units of 
Inquiry template requires instructional staff to address and align standards during planning. Activities, 
skills, and tasks have clearly defined achievement levels for teachers and students. Clear expectations for 
achievement are transmitted to students through, without being limited to, rubrics, portfolio and ILP goals. 
Grade level promotion is based on students reaching an overall benchmarked level 3 on the 5-point scale, 
as explained in II.D., where they would be deemed “Advanced” (grade level proficiency).  
All assessment tools implemented at SICS have the same goal: to ascertain and support a student’s progress 
toward mastering the benchmarks and achieving or excelling proficiency of the Standards. As soon as it is 
clear that a student is not meeting the Standards, s/he is provided extensive intervention and supports. The 
exceptions include modified criteria officially set with the presentation of a Section 504 or IEP. An 
“Advanced” determination would come from the multiple measures of achievement found in students’ 
SRGPs. State test scores are a factor in the SRG-aligned multiple measures of achievement, as are RTI 
progress reports and other intervention data used in considering promotions for students for whom 
promotion is in doubt (PID).  
II.E.3 Plan for Promotion-In-Doubt Students. Students not meeting a 95% attendance rate are PID with 
the Executive Director reserving the right to make a final determination based on academic proficiency. 
The DOTL, SSC and classroom teachers conduct the review and consult with specialist teachers when 
relevant. The reviewers make a recommendation to the Executive Director, who makes the final 
determination. The Executive Director may defer a final decision conditional upon achievement in Summer 
Academy Intersession or participation in flexible programming with a TIP. ‘At risk of retention’ notices are 
disseminated to parents no later than February. Students who must attend Summer Academy have a final 
promotion evaluation conference with parents no later than August 15th. Students not meeting grade level 
standards and who do not have modified promotional criteria or supplemental plans will not be promoted. 
II.E.4 Final Exit Standards for promotion are evidence-based and derived from CCLS. Promotional 
standards (see Attachment 3 sample) for each grade are provided in the parent handbook and ongoing 
information and evidence is accessible to stakeholders on ManageBac. Student portfolios show how 
aligned benchmarks are established for each student, and evidence is provided on how they meet the 
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benchmarks and the standards. This makes it clear whether students are meeting or exceeding the standards 
of their grade level, or whether they may need additional intervention support (see Section II.B.3), such as 
RTI protocol. Any student PID has an ILP that demonstrates all possible appropriate resources have been 
utilized, including a formal evaluation for modified promotional criteria. For students with IEPs, the 
modified promotional criteria are followed. Progress reports, report cards, Wednesday parent engagement, 
and parent teacher conferences all serve as opportunities to address concerns and inform parents. If a 
student is referred to Summer Academy Intersession, the Executive Director makes a final determination of 
promotion. If SICS must retain a student, then the classroom teacher, DOTL and family meet to discuss 
how the upcoming year will offer the student different and planned supports to ensure success. 
II.E.5 H.S. graduation – N/A 
II.F. School Schedule and Calendar II.F.1 Typical Students School Day: The typical transdisciplinary 
day for a student at SICS, described in Sections I.A.3 Objectives, II.A (teaching and learning framework), 
Table II.A.1, and II.B is illustrated from their perspective in Table II.F-1. 

Table	II.F.1:	A	day	in	the	life	of	a	SICS	First	Grade	student	
7:30 BREAKFAST - I am greeted by school staff. I enjoy a nutritious breakfast and join group activities at a table. 
My teacher greets us with our special class code words and takes us upstairs. 
8:00 INQUIRY (always in French) - While we unpack we sing French songs. Then we speak to three people in the 
room about our morning, the calendar, the weather in French. Inquiry time is always in French. 
Each table is asked to hunt for new French vocabulary words hidden around the room. (On some days we play 20 
questions, or we all answer questions asked by the teacher). Circle time is when we are challenged to think big. 
Today, most of the words are about water. We match them to definitions and drawings on our Unit Word Wall, and 
then share out what we found.  
Then, our teacher gets out her discovery box of the day, pulls out each item, and labels them with the new words. She 
shows us how water has different states, and how each one reacts in its own way to different kinds of objects. 
Then, together, we put pins on places on the world map that have different states of water all year long. I wonder if 
children in Iceland and Alaska wear ice skates to go to school. How do they dress? 
Next, we are reminded by our teachers about our current line of inquiry. We get instructions and they let us figure out 
how water reacts with the supplies in my groups’ discovery box. Each group usually has a different box, which makes 
it fun. This time ours has things to put in water, like cheerios and foil paper. The next table has ice cubes, salt and wax 
paper and more. I’m working in a group of 4 today without the teacher. The teachers are working with other groups of 
5 and 6 students. We get to work alone, testing everything and deciding how to present what we have seen and done. 
We decide to draw and write about what we did. 
Teacher now tells us to use math skills to show how we saw water and the objects change over time. She reminds us 
how to make the graphs that we learned to create in math class. Our table will soak the objects overnight, so we make 
predictions on what we will find tomorrow. We decide to graph each object, using our drawings. Like this we can 
show we worked together when we talk about our findings, and it lets me find pictures and information to add for 
tomorrow when we present. The teacher asks us to be fair and balanced as a working group. 
When the inquiry boxes have been put away, and everything cleaned up, my teacher reads to us. Some of the things I 
was wondering about are answered by the story, but I’m curious about so many more. She reminds us of our new 
words, and their meaning for our language review. Then she plays a rhyming game with us. 
9:30 LIBRARY LAB: Everyone goes to Lab, even my two teachers. All of us work together with the science 
teacher. I am really excited because, after being shown discovery maps about water in our class circle, I was picked to 
share a new vocabulary word and tell what it means. It was added to the map with the other words. Then the teacher 
showed us different materials, and we told the class what we knew about their reaction with water. Next, he showed 
more materials, and told us we would build our own umbrellas this week, to keep dry!  
First, we have to do research. There are baskets of books around the lab. I found books and weather, water, and how 
different material repels and absorbs water (my two new favorite words – the dentist repels me, but I absorb cake!) I 
am writing and drawing facts in my science notebook. After this I have to choose a partner from the Plasma Table 
group to share today’s research and our ideas with as we each build our umbrellas. I am not shy about speaking in 
French – I have so many words I can use. We store our material for next class. Tomorrow will use I-Pads to research 
on National Geographic for kids and to watch videos on umbrella making. Then on Wednesday, we will pick out 



			 	
	

NYSED 2017 Round 2: Full Application Narrative 48	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

supplies, make a design, and test materials. 
10:30 RECESS: (in the language of the day). I have 10 minutes to eat my snack and read the poem on the board. It 
rhymes, using some of our new words. Now we have 90 seconds of music and stretching. The teacher recites the 
poem to the music, then we do. She shows us a folk dance from Quebec where she lived in Canada and we get to 
dance and sing to the music for 5 minutes. The dance was like the electric slide grandma does. 
11:00 MATH: time, in English. The teacher puts a brown bag on our table, and tells us to explore what’s inside. We 
pull out colored chips, blank graphic organizers, and a graph showing how much it rained over the last 6 months. We 
gather on the carpet, and go over that we are doing, how to use the material, and when to graph. I know some and 
some are new. We practice the new ones on our own. When I finish the last independent task, I share what I did with 
one of the teachers, who said I did well – so we set two new goals for me to reach during this unit. 
12:00 LUNCH: It is Bailey’s turn to “set the table” for lunch. I take a baggie full of index cards left by the lunch 
staff. Each card has information in French about the food we are eating today. There are also cards with pictures, 
ideas, topics, questions, and silly stuff to talk about as we eat lunch. I play tag at recess 
12:50 CAR: This is random acts of kindness week for my class. Today Mr. T. a 3rd grade teacher, explains what this 
means, and why we are doing it every day. He asks us to think of four actions to take. We decide to: 1) write fancy get 
well notes for people at Harlem Hospital; 2) bring special snacks for our class; 3) Say something kind each class to 
different classmates; 4) Help clear table after eating at home and write reflections in our journal. 
1:15 ELA: Now it is Circle time. We play with tricky words, find words to rhyme with them, and share them in funny 
sentences. Then the class splits into two groups. My group’s teacher gives each of us a small piece of ice to explore. 
We talk about ice and water. She writes what we say; calling the words details, and asks us to listen for details during 
the read aloud, Sebastian Goes to Iceland, by Jacqueline Ann Gibson. Iceland has so many states of water – we talk 
and write about them. We all use the tricky words and water words learned today in their details. 
2:15 ART: Time for smocks. We are going to paint “water in nature” scenes of Iceland. We learn more tricky words, 
like Thjórsá (a river in Iceland), and special things about paint mixing with water and “mediums”. We can choose 
icebergs in the ocean, steamy hot springs with volcanoes, or a river scene. I join the group painting the Hofsjökull 
glacier: its name is trickiest! 
3:15 FLE: FLE class is the best class to relax and practice French. Today there are three language centers. We rotate 
to a new center when we hear the teacher recite our tricky French words of the day. I begin with my group at the 
listening center. Sam and I listen carefully to Mamadou and Pierre talk to us and ask questions in English about water 
and Iceland while we respond in French. Before class is over we play word bingo. Then we read books in French. 
Closing circle is special. Everyone has to say one thing they learned today superfast while using as many new words 
as possible so that everyone has a turn. We are all laughing as we pack up to leave.  
4:15 DISMISSAL: I pack my bag and check my mailbox as we count. Our teachers count in English and we say the 
number in French. We try to reach a hundred before we’re ready to go. 
4:20 – 4:50 TUTORING: Today is my day for tutoring. I only go one time per week. I arrive and get right to reading 
the book my teacher left for me. When done, we talk about the story and what the features of a sentence are. Then we 
create sentences with those features before our time is up. 

II.F.2 Teachers’ weekly work schedule is provided in Attachment 4b. In general, their schedule is 
organized to maximize collaborative planning and reflection, data analysis, and professional growth in 
alignment with SICS’ mission to establish a supportive, engaging, accountable environment. Planning is 
scheduled with co-teachers, specialists, grade level, and school-wide. Teacher time is highly respected and 
expected to be student-focused therefore they are not scheduled for school bus transfer or cafeteria duty.  
II.F.3 Differences and variations in teacher schedules for French/English language teachers, CAR, 
Library Lab, Intersessions, Summer Academy Intersession (see Section II.E.3), tutoring, parent 
engagement, and PD are described in Attachment 4b. 
II.F.4 – 6 Teachers and students have slightly different lengths to their school days as explained in 
Attachments 4a and 4b narratives. Teachers begin by greeting the students at 7:55 am while students may 
arrive as early as 7:30 am for breakfast and organized socialization. Class begins for everyone at 8 am. In 
general, student dismissal is 4:15 pm with tutoring days ending at 4:50 pm, which also ends the day for 
teachers. Attachment 4c: Proposed First Year Calendar details SICS’ extended school year, which 
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provides 190 days of general instruction beginning in August. Students who take advantage of Intersessions 
have up to 215 days of instruction, ending with the July Summer Academy Intersession.  
II.F.7 The effect of SICS’ extended schedule formula is currently well documented in research and in 
practice as helping to prevent regression of learning66. More importantly, by giving teachers time in their 
schedule to be well prepared to deliver lessons, and do so as a team, is proven to increase achievement if 
implemented properly. It necessitates ample time for reflection and planning, in addition to lesson 
preparation periods, in order to be successful67, which SICS has embedded in its structure.  
II.G. School Culture and Climate 
II.G.1 Student Behavior Management. SICS believes in self-determination through which ALL students 
can achieve. This belief promotes internationally minded habits of success for leadership expected 
among all students. Culture and Climate at SICS are part of curriculum and instruction and therefore 
provide a holistically responsive atmosphere that is stable, accepting, and nurturing and restorative. The 
Student, the Parent, and the Staff handbook each provide easy access to the SICS Discipline Policy. 
II.G.2 SICS’ restorative Discipline Policy is provided as a draft in Attachment 4d, and includes the due 
process policy for SWDs and suspensions in compliance with Dignity for All Students Act (DASA). SICS 
is very clear about how students may be disciplined within the context of the school mission and education 
components underlying school culture. Teachers are responsible for classroom discipline. The framework 
of principles and practices under the PYP set high expectations for teachers as part of their general 
management techniques. The teacher Summer Institute begins PD and norming of school culture and 
discipline. During the school year, teachers can seek support from the SAT. Families are brought in as 
partners in designing home strategies for behavioral change with the help of classroom teachers and SAT.  
For incidents that require a higher level of response, SICS’ discipline code consists of a hierarchy of 
infractions and options for restorative intervention that are research and practice based68. The Executive 
Director or Board may initiate modification. DOTL and the Executive Director maintain incident reports 
on student disciplinary offenses. Using ManageBac, reports are analyzed for patterns and trends so that 
policies and procedures can be adjusted. Before any disciplinary responses are imposed upon a student 
with disabilities, the SAT, in collaboration with the SSC, considers any mandates from his or her IEP. If 
none exists, the SAT first will consider creating a Behavior Intervention or Functional Behavior Plan 
before imposing a disciplinary response. Further details are in Attachment 4d. 
II.G.3 School Culture At SICS, the significance of children’s social and emotional learning, in addition 
to the academic and intellectual, pervades curriculum and daily interactions. Studies have demonstrated the 
benefits of addressing the SEL, including action research studies conducted in IB schools. As a foundation 
for culture, SICS provides an international and diverse atmosphere that is seen and felt in every area of the 
school from curriculum to the physical building. Taught to intrinsically become global citizens, SICS 
students are Ambassadors to the world who, at their essence, are expected to strive for universal awareness 
through reflection. Circle time, in both French and English, is incorporated in and outside the classroom. 
Following the method of Quality Circle Time (QCT), a specially structured session and listening system 
adapted from the Golden Model69, students practice speaking, listening and negotiating skills. In teams, 
they have varied discussions and play games – promoting self-esteem and self-confidence, and focusing on 
the development of the whole child in alignment with SICS’ mission. 
SICS’ whole school approach to building habits of mind of success and SEL is driven through reflective 

																																																													
66	http://www.ascd.org/publications/educational-leadership/dec11/vol69/num04/Slowing-the-Summer-Slide.aspx	
67	http://journals.sagepub.com/doi/abs/10.1177/1053451216659474?journalCode=iscc 
68 http://schottfoundation.org/sites/default/files/restorative-practices-guide.pdf 
69 https://www.circle-time.co.uk/the-golden-model/ 
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activities by creating an environment for students to: 
★ SELF-reflect on who they are, what their place in the world is, and how to ‘walk with integrity’ in 

that world. Students strive to be self-aware, self-motivated, and self-monitoring. 
★ Reflect on OTHERS and their actions, by reflecting on and respecting the right of OTHERS to be 

treated with dignity, and by reflecting on how best to effectively communicate with OTHERS. 
Students strive to be respectful and to see the world through the eyes of others. 

★ Reflect on COMMUNITY and cultivate a level of critical thinking that strives to better the 
community by being solutions oriented problem solvers. Students build empathy, compassion, and 
an appreciation for service to the community. 

★ Reflect on Our WORLD with curiosity and wonderment. Students never stop questioning and 
exploring the world. They seek out ways of protecting the environment, develop innovative 
solutions to better the human condition, and harness their creative ideas to make the world more 
peaceful and improved for future generations. 

Built into every aspect of student life is the opportunity to develop the habits of mind for success that foster 
SEL expressed as Learner Profile Attributes, Attitudes and Skill. These encompass 10 Attributes, 12 
attitudes and 5 overarching skills (see Attachment 4d: Discipline Policy). Attributes include concepts such 
as maintaining balance in what we do, and knowing how and when to be a risk-taker. Attitudes address 
notions such as integrity and appreciation, while skills speak to actions such as how to research and self-
manage. There is considerable reinforcement of successful behaviors and habits as a natural part of the 
learning environment.  
Beginning with enrollment, students and their parents are supported with a secure platform to take risks in 
learning, development and engagement at school. Summer Sofari is the springboard for this secure platform 
at which time the school community starts to experience SICS’ holistic approach in unison. Teachers are 
supported in their efforts to reach their students and engage parents. Summer Sofari includes lessons and 
activities promoting discovery, cultural and linguistic diversity, service to community, and an open-
mindedness toward understanding that ‘the world is bigger than your block’. It is also a time to begin 
instilling dignity for self, others, community and world as an expectation seen, felt, and experienced 
throughout the school. 
Weekly assemblies, daily CAR time, QCT and service learning are dedicated to giving students the time to 
engage in real-world, applied SEL. Within every Unit of Inquiry are embedded learning connections to a 
combination of social, communication, thinking, research, and self-management skills, which include 
resolving conflicts and codes of behavior. These pervade the curriculum as points of perspective from 
which to view content, themselves, and the world.  
II.G.4 Families are encouraged to be involved in supporting student learning through active 
engagement by school staff. Teachers can send out BLOOMZ classroom blasts in multiple languages that 
show what is happening in the classroom, inform parents of tasks and current topics to discuss at home, and 
encourage comments and feedback. Every teacher has their own SICS email account to disseminate to 
families and students as well. Families have access to their child’s data via a parent portal on ManageBac 
where they may leave comments for teacher feedback as well. The FSA is a pivotal tool to reach and 
communicate with parents and to provide learning supports for them that enable them to support their child. 
Alongside creative ways of soliciting feedback and gauging satisfaction, SICS formally gauges 
satisfaction of school climate using the DOE’s Learning Environment Survey (LES) as described in 
Section III.D.6.  
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III. ORGANIZATIONAL PLAN 
III.A Applicant Group Capacity  
III.A.1, 2 Table 1: Applicant Group Information and Attachment 5a have been updated since the Letter of 
Intent was submitted on July 7th, 2017 to reflect the addition of a new Board member. 
III.A.3 Applicant Group. Several parents met in 2014. Dismayed with the limited range in choice among 
District and Charter schools in Central Harlem, they came together to develop a school that would provide 
their children with the toolkit needed to succeed in the real, globalized world. Among them was Ms. Soto, 
the proposed Executive Director of SICS, who drafted the initial concept and an initial application. Her 
international educational background, experience searching for a school for her own boys, passionate 
dedication to school reform, and depth of experience with school programs helped build a workable 
structure for SICS. She led the founding group in understanding the need for a Board that would show a 
deep, local understanding of Harlem today, as well as a truly international perspective. Candidates were 
found to match Board position descriptions, and were vetted for character and openness to progressive 
education, and their professional and academic credentials were verified with their personal references.  
SICS is designed to provide a high-quality education offering intellectual stimulation and developing socio-
emotional content, while capturing the natural inquisitive attention of local children. Parent feedback and 
research identified viable successful models for schooling, the need to address learning and socio-economic 
inclusion, and confirmed the areas of underservice.  
The design outcome is a dual language, French/English focus, based on an IB Primary Years Program, 
infused with Common Core requirements, and providing access to other languages (through Manhattan 
Mandarin’s afterschool program, see Section II.A.5) in a rigorous, discovery-based environment. Ms. Soto’s 
20 years of experience with high needs populations in special education, bilingual and Gifted and Talented 
settings kept the design focused on a diverse student population. She augmented her understanding and 
insight on best practices for SICS by attending several National Charter School Conferences. The founding 
team also worked with the NYC Charter School Center (CSC) benefitting from their full range of expertise.  
III.A.4 Application process. The core applicant group is supported by a consolidated Board. This team 
communicates in person, by email, and over the phone and via an online dashboard (Basecamp). A 
Proposal Core Working Group (CWG) was formed to write the application. The CWG is supported by sub-
groups who were tasked to plan and write subject-specific elements of the proposal. The CWG met 
between two to four times a week over 7 months to develop specific and overarching components of the 
proposal while the sub-groups met at least weekly to work on specific tasks. Content has been measured 
and refined through outreach, against community feedback, further research into educational change, and 
school visits before being been matched to updates in laws and regulations and authorizer feedback. 
III.A.5 The primary authors of this application are Ms. Soto and the proposed Board Vice-Chair, Ms. 
Nermin K. Ahmad. They identified industry professionals, sought their advice and obtained input on 
charter school design, sample documents, agency referrals, and guidance on academic programs and 
support needs without providing compensation. The current proposed fiscal plan was reviewed and refined 
with the support of Mr. Digant Bahl, CEO of Accounting Solutions of New York (ASNY). Each SICS 
Team founding member reviewed the RfP and the application, providing feedback based on their expertise. 
III.B Board of Trustees and Governance 
III.B.1 Administrative Relationship. The Board administers the charter and adheres to a clearly defined 
administrative relationship with the Regents. SICS understands the charter agreement is between its 
Board and the Regents. All decisions the Board makes are guided by the approved charter agreement, and it 
must seek approval from the Regents prior to taking actions or making decisions materially contrary to 
provisions in the charter. To this end, it is anticipated that NYSED staff and external experts as contracted 
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conduct inspections in each year of the first charter term and at specific intervals in subsequent terms. The 
Board and school leadership ensure that all reports and data required by the authorizer are delivered in a 
timely and accurate manner. SICS is obligated to submit an annual report to the Regents detailing academic 
and fiscal performance, including but not limited to: 1) Information related to student academic 
performance; 2) A description of SICS’ progress in achieving its Accountability Plan Goals; 3) A certified 
financial statement and SICS’ most recent independent audit report; and 4) A demonstration of SICS’ 
success in meeting enrollment targets of special populations.  
III.B.2 The governance structure of the school is detailed in Table 1 and Attachment 5a lists the members 
of the proposed initial Board and details their experience and qualifications relevant to their capacity to 
found and sustain a high-quality charter school, manage public funds effectively and responsibly, and 
develop and strengthen ties within Harlem’s diverse community. The Board organization includes 
Members and Officer positions of Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer (Article IV, S4.4 – S4.7). 
SICS’ by-laws state that the Board is composed of no fewer than five and no more than eleven members 
who, from Year 1, serve in staggered terms to maintain continuity of oversight. The By-Laws provide the 
detail requested by the Regents on the Methods of Appointment or Election of Trustees (Article III, S3.8), 
the procedures for conducting board meetings (Article III, S3.9-S3.14), and the procedure for providing 
Public Notice of Meetings to be held at the Charter School (Article III, S3.10). At each meeting of the 
Board, time is set aside specifically for teachers and parents to address it (Article VI, S6.4) and provides a 
mediation process for conflict resolution through the Compliance Committee (Article III, S3.2). Parental 
and staff involvement is extended to join Board Committees and Board sponsored events. 
The full Board is to meet monthly or 12 times a year, following the Open Meeting Laws (Article III, S3.9) 
in the By-Laws. The bulk of Board work is conducted through Committees and their sub-committees or 
task forces (Article III, S15). Initially, the Board has five standing committees (Executive, Finance, 
Education, Compliance and Board Development), each consisting of at least three members, except for the 
Executive Committee, with five. Per the By-Laws, the Board may establish additional or ad hoc 
committees, as needed, such as for Fund Development or Facilities.  
III.B.3 The Board, to whom the Charter is granted, has distinct roles and responsibilities, and holds all 
fiduciary responsibility for SICS. The primary role of the Board is to enable SICS to achieve its mission as 
prescribed and permitted by its Charter and the authorizer. The Board oversight role carries the 
responsibility of governance. It provides external accountability, internal oversight, and leadership. Day-to-
day management of the school is the responsibility of the Executive Director.  
III.B.4, 5 SICS proposed by-laws are provided as Attachment 5b, and the proposed code of ethics is in 5c. 
Specific responsibilities are detailed in the By-Laws (Article III, S3.2) of the Board. They cover School 
Oversight, Policies and Leadership, Fiscal Oversight, Financial audit, Strategic planning, Integrity & 
Compliance, Mediation and Representation, Fundraising and Board Self-Evaluation. 
III.B.6 The Board respects the need to continually engage in Board Development. It must recruit new 
members and though its Board Development Committee (BDC), engages in prospecting, contacting, 
recruiting, orienting, supporting, training, and evaluating prospective Board members. As needs or gaps in 
skills are identified, they are captured in job descriptions. The BDC will search for matches in the Harlem 
community, in their networks, at NY Council of Non-profits, Volunteer Match, Education Leaders of 
Color, the National Charter Collaborative and at non-profit Board recruitment fairs. After vetting 
completion, and voting in by the full Board, potential member’s application material is sent to the 
Authorizer for further vetting. Board terms are staggered for continuity, and the Board votes annually on 
re-electing members who wish to continue service after their term expires. SICS is actively seeking to 
recruit members with charter school, IB, and progressive education expertise. 
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On-going training is provided (Design Priority 7) on general governance as well as dual language, inquiry-
led and IB topics to ensure the Board develops and maintains a unified focus. Board members are to 
undergo extensive training on oversight for charter schools and for the IB framework. In Years 1-5, a 
minimum of $10,000 has been budgeted to this end (see Attachment 9). Each Board member receives a 
binder or digital file containing charter and school policies & procedures, as well as additional guiding 
documents from trainings and workshops. These are intended to keep existing Board members focused and 
orient new members. Contingent on funding, members will attend charter school conferences, IB 
workshops, and host Board training retreats to improve their collaboration and oversight capabilities. 
 
III.C Management and Staffing 
III.C.1 SICS uses the organizational structure laid out in Figure III.C.1, below.  
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III.C.2 The Comprehensive Staffing Plan is laid out in Table III.C.1 on the next page.  
 

  

Table III.C.1 (NYSED Table 3): Proposed Management and Staffing Chart  

STAFF POSITIONS Avg. Starting 
Salary 

FTE 
Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 

ADMINISTRATIVE  8 8 10 11 11 
Executive Director $135,000  1 1 1 1 1 

Director of Teaching & Learning $95,000  1 1 1 1 1 
Special Services Coordinator $77,667  1 1 1 1 1 

IB Coordinator $77,667  1 1 1 1 1 
Instructional Coach $79,097        1 1 

Director of Operations $85,373  1 1 1 1 1 
Business Manager $58,878      1 1 1 

Office Manager $44,158      1 1 1 
Start-up Coordinator $49,065  1 1       

School Aide $31,200  2 2 2.5 3 3 
INSTRUCTIONAL   18 23 28 36 40 

French Bilingual Teachers* $68,121  6 8 10 12 14 
English Monolingual Teachers* $68,121  6      8 10 12 14 

Special Education Teacher $73,972  1 1 2 2 2 
Substitute Teacher $31,350  See section III.C for description 

French Foreign Lang. Teacher/Specialist 
(FLE) $68,121  0.8 1 1 2 2 

ESL Teacher $68,121  1 1 1 2 2 
Applied Learning Teacher (science) $68,121  1 1 1 2 2 

P.E. Teachers $68,121  0.8 1 1 1 1 
Art Teacher $68,121  0.4 0.6 0.6 0.8 1 

Social Worker $68,192  1 1 1 1 1 
Guidance Counselor $76,750        1 1 

SUPPORT SERVICES   2 2 2 2 2 
Nurse $60,000  1         

Building Custodian $45,000   1 1 1 1 
Community Outreach Liaison $42,000  1 1 1 1 1 

Total Number of FTE  28 32.6 40.1 49.8 54 
Possible Year 1 positions       

Paraprofessional $41,245      
Security Guard $50,000      

* Classroom teachers may be mother tongue French, hold a bilingual endorsement, or multiple endorsements 
as ESL, Special Education, or Reading Specialists 
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III.C.3 In its school leadership and management structure, SICS has divided the responsibilities for 
school administration into functional levels that provide stability to the school structure. The Executive 
Director is responsible for day-to-day operations and management of school priorities and the overarching 
implementation of the instructional vision. The DOTL is responsible for day-to-day management of 
academic programs and teacher support, and the DoO is responsible for student life and school 
management. Support for the structure is provided and included in succession planning for each 
administrative position. 
The Executive Director reports to the Board and is responsible for realizing the vision and mission, 
managing the school, implementing goals set through strategic plans and tracking progress, growth of IB 
programs and design of the Program of Inquiry/Curriculum. S/he establishes the structures necessary to 
meet the goals and priorities laid out in the Charter, and the strategic plans laid out by the Board. The 
Executive Director manages the Directors of Teaching & Learning and of Operations, and with the 
guidance of the Board Treasurer and Finance Committee in Years 1 and 2, the outsourced consultant 
ASNY. S/he also recruits, approves evaluations, sets growth goals with, makes employment offers to, 
dismisses and replaces all staff. The Executive Director is the public face of the school and is responsible 
for managing all relationships with the community, parents, authorizer, and for all operations and fund 
development. To this end, s/he manages the COL. The Executive Director is the administrator of 
ManageBac that incorporates the school and Board data dashboards. 
The DOTL reports to the Executive Director and is the day-to-day instructional leader of the school 
ensuring each academic program is fully implemented and students are being serviced. S/he implements the 
Flexible Staffing Plan. The DOTL supervises and evaluates all instructional and program staff including 
teachers, counselors, and coordinators, ensures that the educational program meets the goals of the charter 
and coordinates PD, Program of Inquiry’s Units of Inquiry design and implementation, staff accountability, 
and manages directives for all school-wide instruction-related committees.  
The DoO reports to the Executive Director and ensures the effective management of the non-instructional 
aspects of school life. S/he manages admissions, facilities, student and staff records, the generation of 
required reports, food services and transportation. Operational responsibilities include legal compliance 
with City, State and Federal laws. S/he works with the Executive Director to manage and ensure budgetary 
alignment with school goals and priorities school. The DoO supervises and evaluates non-instructional and 
non-program staff including the Startup Coordinator and Office Manager, in turn responsible for School 
Aides. The DoO manages the Business Manager (BM) starting Year 3, as s/he assumes the responsibilities 
first performed by ASNY. For purposes of clarity, ASNY/BM is used going forward. 
Specific Qualifications for the positions of Executive Director, DOTL and DoO are in Attachment 8a: 
Personnel Policy. School Leadership resumes are available in Attachment 8b: Resumes for Proposed 
School and Instructional Leaders. Attributes and habits of success of SICS Leadership manifest as:  

• Demonstrated commitment to student academic excellence.  
• A strong fit and dedication to the IB philosophy and the mission, vision, goals and culture of SICS. 
• Teaching and leadership experience in an urban setting. 
• Commitment to data-driven instruction.  
• High level of organization, resourcefulness, and flexibility.  
• Exemplary oral and written communication skills.  
• Interpersonal skills, a collaborative mindset, and the ability to motivate. 
• College degree, advanced degrees, and certifications.  
• Manifested respect from colleagues and supervisors. 
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III.C.4 School Leader resumes are found in Attachment 8b. SICS’ proposed Executive Director, Ms. 
Voyka Soto, was selected as the school leader because she has the skills and experience needed to 
successfully provide management and oversight of a start-up dual language inquiry-led curriculum school. 
The job description for the position was vetted against the qualifications of Heads of existing, high 
performing dual language, Charter & IB PYP schools and benefitted from input provided by Heads of IB 
schools and the IBO. A complete reference check was executed with verification of academic achievement 
and professional experience. Her leadership was notable because her family has been in Harlem since the 
1920s, she is a resident of CSD 5, her sons are enrolled in CSD 4, and she served as a charter school board 
member in CSD 3.  
Ms. Soto’s credentials include the IBO Certificate in Teaching and Learning and an M.A. in International 
Curriculum and Instruction through the Foreign Affairs Spouses Teacher Training program sponsored by 
the U.S. Department of State through GMU. As an overseas, multilingual Educator, she worked in the 
Middle East to plan, start and help accredit special needs programs as well as to plan and start new schools, 
from development and planning through implementation and opening activities. Ms. Soto developed 
strategic plans to reorganize and restructure school processes and procedures through systemic reform for 
the Federal Magnet grant, and helped develop accreditation alignment plans for the IBO, Council of 
International Schools (formerly the European Council of International Schools), and the Middle States 
Association of Colleges and Schools.  
In addition to her credentials, Ms. Soto has the support of mentorship from select School Leaders in 
private, progressive, and IB schools as well as from Directors of Operations. She has established 
connections to the NYC Charter School Center and the Northeast Charter Schools Network for support 
needed to establish and run Sofara International Charter School. 
The proposed Director of Teaching and Learning, Ms. Katie Taylor, is an educator with experience as a 
supervisor, administrator, school leader, learning specialist, and program director. In her 14 years of hands-
on experience, Ms. Taylor has served students with disabilities both in the United States and abroad. She 
has strong expertise in implementing and streamlining data driven programs toward student achievement. 
This includes work with academic and socio-emotional curriculum. As an experienced leader, Ms. Taylor 
has demonstrated the ability to inspire and manage a staff in multi-faceted settings. Her resume strongly 
met all requirements identified for the position and her credentials and references were thoroughly verified. 
An ongoing search for a Director of Operations aligned with the qualifications set out in Attachment 8a. 
The Board is confident that Ms. Soto is the skilled founding manager needed at the helm of SICS, to 
implement the school’s mission and vision. Mindful of Charter obligations, the Board has developed and is 
maintaining a Succession Plan that identifies the roles and responsibilities of the Executive Director and 
would help guide the transition. The Succession Plan would be managed by an ad hoc Succession 
Committee to identify potential candidates with the DOTL prepared as interim acting Executive Director. It 
is the responsibility of the Executive Director to ensure skilled instructional and operations leaders are in 
the position of DOTL and DoO, and s/he prepares their Succession Plans.  
III.C.5 As presented in Table III.C.1 (NYSED Table 3) Proposed Management and Staffing Plan, SICS 
has designed a staffing plan that is viable and adequate to effectively implement the school’s educational 
program and fulfill its mission. Academic needs have been considered and balanced against financial 
viability to phase in staff, as shown below, while remaining fiscally stable. Phasing-in was also applied to 
mirror student schedules.  
The flexible staffing model provides for a minimum of eight (7) Bilingual teachers and language specialists 
in Year 1. This number will grow with anticipated enrollment in Years 2 through 5, as they provide support 
to second language learners and create an opportunity for diversity in staffing. ESL and FLE (see Section 
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II.B.3-flexible staffing) specialists provide direct support for SICS’ dual language program, student second 
language acquisition, and teacher practice through PD. They also provide support for all learners including 
francophone and Spanish mother tongue students (see II.B NFE).  
The staffing model is further refined through six AITs, who help SICS meet school accountability goals. 
This allows each classroom to benefit from dedicated, targeted specialized differentiation. In Year 1, AITs 
are anticipated to be: two special education/SWD (in additional to the SpET), two literacy/reading, one 
ESOL, and one early childhood specialist. The range of specialists hired will be adjusted to match student 
enrollment needs in subsequent years. Social emotional support is provided through a fulltime Social 
Worker and joined by the GC when hired. An SSC is responsible for tracking and managing individual 
student services, including all at-risk students as well as those with IEPs and 504 status. 
The IB Coordinator provides coaching and instructional support to teachers from Year 1 to build a sound 
curricular program and bridge SICS’ three components: dual language, PYP inquiry, and NYS standards. 
In Year 4, multiple data points, including student outcomes in literacy and Math, will be available to 
evaluate whether an Instructional Coach needs to work with teachers. The Coach and IB Coordinator 
prepare authentic learning opportunities, informally observe teachers, aid in the creation of units of study, 
support lesson planning, demonstrate lessons, model and co-teach, conduct PD, and hold 1:1 teacher 
conferences. These are active, hands-on classroom support roles immersed in instruction. 
The viability of the educational program is supported by the following key positions. The COL is integral 
to SICS’ grassroots recruitment for enrollment. The COL undertakes niche marketing to promote ethnic 
and socio-economic diversity, retain students and source appropriate community initiatives. S/he is 
responsible for creating and maintaining family engagement opportunities; supporting the FSA; seeking out 
community resources for students, families, and school programs; supporting the school-wide culture; 
supporting school marketing and media endeavors for recruitment; and liaising with CBOs. The COL 
liaises with all stakeholders in the community using the SEP, including supporters, donors, and strategic 
partners. S/he is responsible for fundraising initiatives and events, including grant proposals, and 
relationships with individual donors through a multi-tier approach to engage district parents, CBOs, 
educational administrators, and politicians.  
The COL also assists with fund raising activities to increase funding for students, the school and teachers to 
allow experiential learning, special projects, bonuses and training opportunities. A Start-up Coordinator is 
retained in Years 1 and 2 to ensure a well-coordinated start up period and a smooth opening. This position 
transitions to Office Manager in Year 3. SICS plans to phase in a BM from Year 3, as the school 
demonstrates financial stability and after ASNY has created the required financial management tools. 
III.C.6 As discussed in II.C.5 flexible staffing model, SICS’ budgeting and staffing model intentionally 
meets the needs of ELL and special education students who are the focus of SICS’ mission and school 
design for at risk populations. A high proportion of language and intervention teachers are planned for and 
maintained throughout the charter term. Competitive salaries are in place to attract and retain staff. The 
position responsibilities of SSC are critical to implementing direct, meaningful support for at-risk students. 
In addition to bilingual and AITs in every classroom, two additional second language specialists are on 
staff from Year 1 to support non-English and non-French mother tongue students and the dual language 
component. Special needs assistive materials are allocated for in Year 1(budget line 109) increasing each 
year in proportion to student enrollment, for teacher’s use. SICS has also included funding for a French 
language library and Reading A-Z's French/Spanish multi leveled books that support the growth of 
native and nonnative French and Spanish speakers' reading and language skills.  
III.C.7 The full spectrum of SICS hiring policies and procedures are detailed in Attachment 8a. The 
hiring procedures state that all SICS positions are to be posted publicly and include a job description and 
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minimum requirements. All postings include (updated for compliance): “As an equal opportunity employer, 
Sofara International Charter School hires without consideration to race, religion, creed, color, national 
origin, age, gender, sexual orientation, marital status, veteran status or disability.” Submitted resumes and 
cover letters are reviewed against minimum requirements and experience. Candidates are thoroughly 
vetted, and faculty candidates are required to conduct one or more demonstration lessons (starting Year 2). 
Fingerprint clearances are mandatory for hire, and can be undertaken through a service of NYC CSC if not 
already attained. The Executive Director determines the compensation package to be offered to candidates.  
III.C.8 SICS seeks effective, engaged, impassioned team-building educators. In all Staff Recruitment and 
Retention activities, SICS complies with the reporting requirements of the Teacher-Student Principal Data 
Linkage system in accordance with section 302.3 of the Rules of the Board of Regents. SICS is committed 
to recruiting teachers who add to the flexible staffing plan and can actualize the mission and help students 
thrive. Successful candidates are certified in a combination of skills or certifications to best meet the needs 
of students. These include bilingual (French), IB PYP experience, and the endorsements discussed above. 
SICS promotes diversity as part of its mission, and for its applicant pool advertises positions in targeted 
media, such as those ethnic specific or non-English newspapers used for student recruitment; networking 
with local community organizations that serve culturally diverse populations; and participating in minority 
recruitment events. SICS complies with all federal, state and local laws and requirements regarding the 
hiring of staff as described in Attachment 8a. 
SICS has letters of commitment from Bank Street College and GMU to recruit from their pool of 
graduates, which includes educators versed in bilingual education, inquiry-led learning, internationally 
focused curriculum and the principles and practices of the PYP. Additional bilingual teaching resources 
have been identified in discussion with NYU’s Department of Teaching and Learning and the FACE 
Foundation. Other recruitment resources include: 

• Teach for America      � The ACTFL list service 
• Charter School & IBO job boards     �    Online teacher career sites (e.g.Tieonline.com) 
• Listings in local and international newspapers circulated in NYC 
• Professional associations and alumni and graduate program career service offices 
• Teacher recruitment fairs (e.g. Bank Street College, Charter School Jobs, Search Associates & 

International School Services) 
• Networking by SICS staff and Board members. 

III.C.9 Staffing needs are based on student need. SICS seeks candidates with skill sets and expertise that 
support the mission, key design elements and student achievement. SICS is fully staffed to ensure this 
happens and does not split teacher roles. Budgetary allocations were considered carefully and teachers 
brought on staff only in years needed per student enrollment. To prevent high teacher turnover rates, SICS’ 
culture of support extends from students to staff within an inclusive, empowering work environment 
where they enjoy working together and feel supported through PD as they strive to improve their craft. 
SICS has embedded multiple incentives as noted in III.C.10 below.  
III.C.10 SICS efforts to attract and retain effective staff incorporates several mechanisms. The 
TeachPlus Working Group on Public Charter Schools70, a consortium of teachers from across the country 
researching the issue of teacher retention, has identified the following mechanisms as most effective: 
• Pathways for Career Advancement: SICS is committed to developing leadership from within while 

keeping strong teachers in the classroom. Effective teachers are encouraged to serve as department 
heads, grade leaders, members of the hiring committee, coaches, or curriculum developers and receive 
a stipend of up to $5,000, and may have their teaching load reduced by one or two classes, to fulfill 
their new responsibilities. 

																																																													
70 http://www.teachplus.org/uploads/Documents/1340224253_WhyAreMyTeachersLeaving062012.pdf 
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• Respect for Teacher Time and Planning (Attachment 4b and 4c): SICS’ school day and calendar respect 
and protect teacher planning and professional time. Two non-teaching periods per day, of which one is 
dedicated to planning time, as well as up to two hours per week (Wednesdays and Fridays) for PD and 
co-planning are embedded. A ten-day Summer Institute for staff orientation and planning, another ten 
early release days during Summer Sofari for collaborative work, four PD and three data analysis full 
days at key points in each trimester are scheduled as well.  

• Coaching: SICS believes that teachers who are coached by a peer or more experienced teacher who 
does not have an evaluative role are more open to feedback. SICS’ staffing plan allows for instructional 
coaching for every teacher from peers, coordinators, and specialists. 

• Culture of Mutual Feedback: SICS provides mechanisms for teachers to provide feedback to school 
leaders. At every Board meeting a portion of the Board’s agenda is set aside for teacher input. SICS 
conducts regular anonymous surveys among its teachers to identify areas of satisfaction and areas 
where teachers would like to see change or improvement. 

Through consultation with Charter School Heads on effective practices, SICS offers two competitive PD 
travel fellowships of $3,500 each to teachers, which increases to three in Year 2, four in Year 3, and five 
after Year 4 subject to availability of funding. These are only open to teachers, counselors, and junior level 
staff who apply and present a well-developed request, linked to SICS’ mission. Fellowships are a 
successfully used strategy by Leadership Networks. Once approved by the Executive Director, fellowships 
may be used to pay for air tickets, accommodations, admission to attractions or other costs related to 
professional growth, including travel abroad for language immersion. Every teacher is also helped with 
applying to Fund for Teachers for teacher academic travel grants. 
III.C.11 A key to attracting and keeping good teachers is fair compensation. The average starting teacher 
salary at SICS is $69,419. This is comparable to NYCDOE starting salaries for teachers with 2 years’ 
experience plus an additional 5% at a minimum71. A standard 3% raise each year, for all teachers, is 
included in the budget and reviewed annually for competitiveness. Additional funding streams obtained 
shall be used to increase salaries for highly effective teachers. The SICS 401(k) is available to employees 
after 1 year of service (up to 3% annual match). Faculty who teach during intersessions are eligible for up 
to $1,000 stipends. SICS will seek grants for additional awards.  
III.C.12 SICS anticipates human resource challenges as the school grows to scale and plans to deploy 
additional incentives (referrals) and recruitment strategies (a broader range of universities and recruitment 
fairs). Referrals of $250 to $500 are offered, if financially feasible, payable upon actual hire. Talent is 
cultivated internally through intern and assistant teaching positions, which Bank Street College and GMU 
have committed to fill. Related costs are included in the budget (see Attachment 9 lines 103/121). To meet 
temporary needs, such as a need to provide mid-year staffing where a replacement teacher cannot easily be 
found SICS will use its list of per diem/F-status teachers (retired and working part-time). 
III.C.13 Student assessment data is used to evaluate programs, determine their effectiveness and 
understand how SICS’ staffing decisions can better achieve school wide and student goals. The data also 
drives the flexible staffing model, and informs key decisions as to the type and number of teachers, 
supporting specialists and coaches needed. Staffing needs are reviewed quarterly in the context of the needs 
of student achievement. Poor student academic achievement is one trigger for review of staff PD, personal 
growth plans, recommended professional outside courses and trainings, end of year evaluations, 
compensation, and decisions on contract renewal. Section III.D provides further detail.  
III.D Evaluation 
Education, operation and fiscal evaluations are presented in SICS Annual Report, submitted by the Board 
on August 1 each year to the authorizer and the NYSED. In accordance with Education Law §2857(2), 
																																																													
71 http://schools.nyc.gov/NR/rdonlyres/2712AB02-A1EF-4CE2-B879-33241B7AFFB5/0/TeacherSCHEDULEMAY12015Corrected.pdf 
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including all elements covered by 8 NYCRR 119.3 of the Commissioner of Education, the report includes 
the state-mandated School Report Card and a Progress Report, which evaluates the school’s progress in 
meeting its approved Accountability Plan goals. The school’s report card includes comparative academic 
and fiscal performance, in addition to the school ’s federal and state revenue sources, salary expenditures, 
capital expenses, student services, student suspension, standardized test performance, student enrollment, 
students with LEP data and other pertinent information. The progress report discusses the school’s progress 
toward meeting goals identified in the accountability plan. 
III.D.1 SICS expects to undergo annual programmatic audits regarding all aspects of the school. One 
such critical audit relates to the federal entitlement and competitive public grants it receives, including 
Consolidated Title Funds and Charter School Program (CSP) grants. While the annual report serves as the 
programmatic audit for the school, SICS leadership and teachers constantly assess the effectiveness of 
academic programs. They analyze assessment data, behavior data, parent/student and staff satisfaction, 
among other key performance indicators. If analysis of multiple data points suggest that student needs are 
not being met, SICS Leadership immediately evaluates what is missing or needs adjustment, and creates 
and implements an action plan as part of a continuous improvement cycle. If changes suggest a material 
revision to the charter, the Executive Director and Board must submit a well-documented application to 
NYSED to seek approval. 
III.D.2 Performance Evaluations are predicated on all staff adhering to SICS’ Mission and meeting their 
individual goals. The school culture celebrates inclusiveness and diversity, and SICS recognizes that its 
design requires all stakeholders directly engaged with the school to perform using a clear and measurable 
set of standards. Aspects of Bambrick-Santoyo’s Leverage Leadership72 are used to evaluate staff in 
leadership positions in accordance with Education Law 3012-c and NYS approved measures. 
The Executive Director creates a Professional Growth Plan (PGP) with the Board Chair, with measurable 
and attainable goals. It is reviewed and updated on a regular basis, and forms the basis for the Executive 
Director’s annual evaluation. The evaluation is conducted by the Board, and relies on multiple measures of 
key instructional benchmarks, progress towards achievement goals, operational benchmarks, staff and 
parent satisfaction surveys and other criteria that measure the overall health of the students and the school.  
The Directors each create a PGP with the Executive Director. It is reviewed and updated regularly, and 
forms the basis for their annual review by the Executive Director. Should the goals laid out in any of these 
PGP not be realized, an action plan is established to include mentoring, increased monitoring, provide 
access to leadership consultants, and a timeline for improvement. The Executive Committee of the Board is 
apprised of progress, if any.  
Non-Instructional Staff performance criteria are designed during the school’s start-up period. The 
Executive Director works with the Board and, if necessary, outside consultants to design evaluation 
processes and tools that rely on data-driven measures and clear rubrics to assess performance of non-
instructional staff.  
Instructional Staff are assessed using multiple measures, both to inform teachers of their annual 
effectiveness and to make staffing decisions. While the actual evaluation process tools are developed 
during start-up, SICS subscribes to a general framework for teacher evaluation, The Art and Science of 
Teaching73 (the Framework) and Effective Supervision: Supporting the Art and Science of Teaching74. 
SICS is adopting the Framework, as it is aligned to SICS’ mission, Education Law 3012(c), and is an 
approved rubric for teacher evaluation designed by Robert Marzano, the leading expert on SRG. Through 
																																																													
72 Bambrick-Santoyo, P.(2012).Leverage Leadership: A Practical Guide to Building Excellent Schools. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass 
73 Marzano, R. (2007). The Art and Science of Teaching. Alexandria: Association for Supervision and Curriculum Development. 
74 Marzano, R. (2011). Effective Supervision: Supporting the Art and Science of Teaching. Alexandria: Association for 
  Supervision and Curriculum Development.	
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SICS’ instructional coaching model (see Section III.E.4), teachers receive frequent, consistent, non-
evaluative feedback through weekly informal observations from the IB Coordinator or Instructional Coach, 
and the DOTL as apprenticeship and coaching in Years 1 and transitioning into formal evaluations. This 
formative data is used to guide improvement of teachers’ instructional and planning practices leading up 
formal valuations one to three times per year by the DOTL. Individual student-level and class-level 
assessment data from internal and external sources also are used to evaluate teacher performance.  
The DOTL uses official data to celebrate student performance and encourage sharing of best practices for 
effective teachers and takes swift action to mobilize instructional coaching support for teachers whose data 
indicate lack of sufficient student growth. If student data indicates regression of learning in an individual 
teacher’s class, despite supports provided, the teacher is placed on an improvement plan and warned of 
potential termination. Teachers’ annual contract renewal is based on multiple measures that include 
performance on formal observations, student growth as measured by school-wide IB summative tasks and 
student end-of-year exams or F & P mastery results. 
Coordinators and Coaches create PGPs in collaboration with the DOTL. They are reviewed and updated at 
least every trimester and are used to benchmark the annual review. Instructional Coaches are reviewed by 
the DOTL, using designated metrics of teachers’ progress towards growth goals, as aligned to the 
Framework. The IB Coordinator is evaluated using designated metrics on teachers’ progress towards 
growth goals aligned to the IB program of instruction. The SSC is evaluated using metrics aligned with 
student progress and performance, and compliance and team leadership goals. 
The Board is evaluated collectively and as individual members on at least an annual basis as described in 
the Corporation By-Laws (Article III, S3.2). Board self-evaluation tools ask clear, relevant questions about 
the functioning of the Board and SICS, clarity of roles and responsibilities, contributions, shared mission 
and vision, engagement, openness, personalities, processes, etc. Results are analyzed by the BDC and 
Executive Director annually and inform future Board training and development.  
III.D.3 Monitoring and evaluating school performance, progress and compliance is the responsibility 
of SICS’ Board, who are accountable to the Regents for. The Board is responsible for developing, 
implementing, and monitoring progress under the accountability plan and drives the use of data to better 
target strategic planning and school policies in closing the achievement gap. The Executive Director and 
DOTL are responsible for ensuring all assessments are aligned with NYSCCLS, NYS Law, and applicable 
policies set by the Regents, including the NYSTP. The DOTL has the lead in using data to drive both 
teacher and student support, including curriculum scope, design and implementation; tracking various 
cohorts; and evaluating teachers, the efficacy of support methodologies used and PD. The DOTL facilitates 
teacher collaboration in interpreting and acting on data as leader of the DAT. The DOTL is responsible for 
ensuring all staff can access and navigate assessment data. AITs take the lead in using data to drive 
instruction and student achievement holistically within their classroom, and students lead the use of data 
through their ILPs and portfolios to drive their personal achievement.  
SICS fully uses data to drive achievement and measure student learning and teacher performance. The 
Board Education Committee (See Corporation By-laws, III S3.15) has unfettered access to the ManageBac 
Dashboard and analysis reports used in monthly meetings with the Executive Director and DOTL to 
monitor achievement and make key decisions on future activities. Teachers establish a school-wide 
norming of assessments with reliable measures of achievement, informed through the collaborative co-
planning environment. Teachers vary the types of assessment they administer, using SRGPs and inquiry-
led teaching and learning. Performance tasks, essays, presentations, multiple choice, etc. are used within 
the same unit of study, so achievement is measured in multiple ways. At the end of each unit, teachers 
collaborate by reflecting on the unit progress and achievement, including assessment use and outcomes. 
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The performance and needs of the school, student achievement, and SICS progress in meeting 
accountability plan goals are considered when deciding to contract with a third-party reviewer to audit the 
academic program. Section-wide SRG assessment data is used to evaluate the effectiveness of the 
curriculum and instruction. SRG incorporates ongoing progress monitoring throughout the academic year 
to ensure that SICS is fully on target for its achievement goals. ManageBac provides users with the 
capability to view, analyze and report information regarding the mastery of learning goals for individual 
students, class sections, and the whole school on an ongoing, real time basis, to tailor instruction to student 
needs. SICS' DAT meets twice a month to assess school-wide trends, concerns, and progress toward 
meeting set goals, using analysis reports from ManageBac. The Team reviews/sets goals and next steps, as 
well as delineates member roles, responsibilities and timelines at each meeting.  
III.D.4 The Board is committed to being accountable for the operational and fiscal health and viability 
of the school, which includes implementing sound budgetary practices, and successfully meeting budget 
limitations. The budget development process begins in January of each calendar year, and the budget is 
ready for approval by the Board in May. The Executive Director and DoO draft Annual operating and 
capital budgets, cash flow projections and profit and loss statements, in collaboration with ASNY (Years 1 
and 2) and from Year 3, the on-staff BM, trained by ASNY during a transition period. Conservative 
revenue assumptions are used to ensure all operating expenses are covered and delays in disbursement of 
federal funds are considered. Section III K provides further detail.  
Strict and documented controls are laid out in SICS’ policies and accounting system procedures. ASNY 
performs monthly, quarterly and annual financial reporting to the Executive Director and Board in Years 1 
and 2. This BM continues to do this from Year 3. This encourages fiscal soundness and allows SICS to 
properly govern and maintain financial oversight of day to day operational and long term financial 
expenditure. ASNY provides training on how to prioritize expenditures based on how these support student 
achievement and fiscal and operational efficiency. Draft budgets are reviewed and revised for operational 
effectiveness by the Board Finance Committee under the oversight of the Board Treasurer. 
Once budget totals are adopted, the Executive Director and DoO oversee expenditures, and prepare actual 
budgets and report on expenditures. The ASNY/BM prepares monthly budget presentations, including 
updated annual and monthly budget information, monthly actuals against budget, and projected year-end 
against budgeted year end. The Executive Director and ASNY/BM review these presentations with the 
Board Treasurer prior to each Board meeting. Any material deviations (expected deviation in a budget 
category of more than $5,000 and/or +/- 10% of the total budget) are documented and explained by the 
Executive Director and DOTL. The Finance Committee may bring the deviation to the Board’s attention, 
and discuss its potential impact on SICS’ cash flow and financial position. Section III.J.5 discusses 
independent fiscal audits, integral to verifying SICS’s fiscal soundness. 
III.D.5 As discussed in III.D.2 above, SICS employs multiple measures to evaluate and inform teachers 
of their annual effectiveness and make staffing decisions. While actual evaluation process tools are 
developed during start-up, SICS subscribes to the Framework. The derived formative data is used to guide 
improvement of teachers’ instructional and planning practices leading up formal evaluations by the DOTL, 
who uses official data to celebrate student performance and encourage sharing of best practices among 
effective teachers and take swift action to mobilize instructional coaching support for teachers whose data 
indicates lack of sufficient student growth. If student data indicates regression of learning in an individual 
teacher’s class, despite the above supports, the teacher is placed on an improvement plan and notified that 
next steps may include a recommendation for termination. Ultimately, teachers’ annual renewal is based on 
multiple measures that include performance on formal observations, student growth as measured by school-
wide IB summative tasks and student end-of-year exam, for example, F & P mastery level results.  
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III.D.6 SICS formally gauges parent, teacher, and student satisfaction through the DOE’s LES (or 
similar if unavailable). All parents receive the survey during the third trimester of the school year. The 
results are tabulated and made public in the SICS School Report Card which is made available through the 
website. Additionally, results of the survey are published in the Annual Report. Since the DOE parent 
survey does not disaggregate results by individual classroom teachers, SICS conducts its own surveys of 
teachers and parents through micro-polling to more clearly reflect satisfaction with programs, facility, 
teachers and administration. The data is used to inform changes to the school’s operations, if needed. SICS 
also maintains its enrollment and feedback link on the school’s website. Satisfaction is also gauged on 
student satisfaction through polling, participation in events, and frequent FSA interaction and targeted 
events. During informal settings, such as parent breakfasts with the DOTL, Mad-Scientist Nights or family 
events, SICS staff gathers additional formative data points on family and student satisfaction.  
As with teachers, parents are always welcome to make use of the time set aside on the Board Meeting 
Agenda for parent involvement. Parents and teachers, who do not wish to use the agenda time set aside at 
the meeting of the Board to express themselves, may provide information to school leadership. The 
Executive Director may provide the Board with school satisfaction information at the monthly meetings in 
their oral report. Satisfaction data is input to ManageBac for families to view and for the Board to 
generate analysis reports. In addition, the Executive Director provides the Board with an oral report of 
family and student satisfaction at a full meeting of the Board. 
III.D.7 Preferred relationships are being developed with organizational and management service 
providers. These are likely to be academic (such as after school programs, PD providers, mentoring); 
operational (such as contracted facilities for P.E., music, and art); and financial (ASNY, professional grant 
writers, event spaces). All partnerships are evaluated for performance, effectiveness, value and 
responsiveness. A graphic rating scale, from 1 – 4, developed in conjunction with the provider, is used to 
review the expectations and goals set for the collaboration, or the contract scope. Data collected from staff, 
parent and student surveys also is reviewed. Contingent on the service category, performance evaluations 
are conducted bi-annually by the DOTL, DoO and Executive Director respectively. The Board Treasurer 
reviews the contractor, ASNY, with input from the Executive Director. Any relationship showing sustained 
non-performance (a ranking of 3 or less) will be terminated at the end of the school year, unless there is a 
compelling need to do so sooner. 
III.E Professional Development 
The Executive Director develops the school-wide PD program that is monitored and managed by the 
DOTL. School leadership and teacher quality and effectiveness are the critical levers to achieving high 
student engagement and success, and creating stable programming. Student growth targets drive 
conversations between teachers and leadership about collective and individual teacher PD needs and 
instructional strategies used to engage students to meet or exceed their learning goals. 
III.E.1 SICS is investing in four levels of PD (see Table III-E below):  
1)  Summer Institute - two weeks before students begin in August;  
2)  Ongoing PD – early release and full days embedded throughout the annual calendar;  
3)  Active coaching and critical friends feedback protocol; and 
4)  Outside opportunities – workshops, trainings, and courses chosen for personal growth plans established 

to guide the differentiated needs of instructional staff. 
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School Leaders break teachers into skills groups and add identified deficiencies to the PD calendar on on-
going bases so that PD is differentiated and meaningful. In Year 1 start up, the Gomez Institute, IBO, 
CKLA and Singapore PMCC trainers provide PD to teachers and School Leaders. In addition, the 
Executive Director, DOTL, Coordinators and the ESL/FLE specialists provide on-going and ad hoc 
training for specific topics such as intervention strategies, classroom management, lesson planning, and use 
of ManageBac. In collaboration with Bank Street College, SICS reinforces training of instructional staff 
and school leadership on project-based, inquiry-led learning throughout the year and seeks to establish and 
maintain a school environment that addresses SEL and restorative discipline practices. 
III.E.2 The PD Program is evaluated using multiple data points collected through formative feedback on 
the curriculum, student and teacher reflections, and PD session effectiveness by the DOTL. Evaluation of 
PD program is used to improve the quality of the program and determine its overall effectiveness. 
Systematic analysis of student performance data and teacher data from the Framework is used to inform 
school leaders of areas of weakness in planning and instruction and, therefore, in PD.  
Formative evaluation is used to modify and improve the PD program and takes place throughout the year. 

Table	III.E	Professional	Development	Calendar	2018-2019	
August: 10 Teacher Summer Institute Full-days and 10 Early Release Summer Sofari Days 

Focus Pre-
Op* 

Aug 
SI 

Aug 
SS Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June 

Gomez Dual Language 
Principles and Practices X XX  x    x x    X 

Gomez Classroom 
Observation/Assessment  x   x x   x   x   

IB Training 
Principles and Practices XXX XXX  x x   x    x X 

IB School Culture, SEL, 
Internationally-minded X  x  x    x     

CKLA X X  x  x  x  x    
Singapore Math X X  x x  x  x     

Applied Learning  
 

 x x  x   x    x  
UDL and Unit Planning  X xx x      x  x  

SIOP & SDAIE (ESL/FLE)  X  x x  x     x  

Special Education 
Principles and Practices   x x  x   x     

Assessment SRG/SRGP, 
Benchmarks, RTI X  x   x x    x   

Data Analysis 
Practices and Protocols   x  x    x    X 

Classroom Management SEL, 
Restorative Discipline   x   x  x   x   

Parent Engagement   x  x   x  x    

ManageBac and SESIS x  x   x       X  
Marzano Framework x  x   x    x    

TOTAL Days 9 10 10 4 4 4 3 4 3 5 2 4 3 
TOTAL Sessions 10 10 10 8 8 7 4 5 6 5 2 4 4 

Key: Teacher (full day) Early Release:  
45 OR 90 mins. Leadership Training No. of days X Half-days  

 
*Note that Pre-opening Budget covers Leadership training and anticipated/advanced fees for CKLA, while other training is covered 
in Year 1 Budget (July 2018) in Attachment 9. 
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Teachers take surveys after each PD session to provide information on strengths and areas of growth. 
Through questionnaires, observations, self-assessment instruments and analysis of teacher evaluation 
records, instructional leaders analyze how the PD programs have improved teacher and student practices. 
Teacher proficiency levels within the Framework, matched against their professional growth goals, provide 
information on instructional efficacy. Summative evaluations are used to measure how effective the PD 
process is for student outcomes. Unit and Interim Assessment benchmarks are used to determine whether 
the PD program is closing the achievement gap. When student assessment results improve after focused PD 
sessions, the program is considered effective. Ineffective PD initiatives are improved upon or eliminated. 
III.E.3 Administrators and teachers are prepared to address the needs of all students, and SICS fosters 
a culture that encourages staff to enhance their knowledge and skills, and not teach in isolation. For 
example, the SSC provides training in UDL, RTI protocols, identification and assessment of struggling 
students and progress monitoring. S/he observes in classrooms, models instruction, and provides resources 
for general education teachers. The Social Worker/GC conducts ongoing training on social/emotional 
issues and compliance with DASA. Consistent high quality dual language education underpins SICS 
mission, and is achieved through ESL/FLE specialists providing teacher training in best practices to deliver 
instruction and meet ELL and at-risk students needs via IB-aligned SDAIE and SIOP strategies.  
III.E.4 A professional climate embodying genuine support, based on the Marzano Framework for teacher 
evaluation, is used to encourage support of teachers and promote retention. In addition to student data-
driven conversations, the DOTL meets with each teacher to collaboratively set PGP goals based on 
specific standards and indicators. The DOTL, IB Coordinator, and Instructional Coach, who share a weekly 
rotation schedule, each hone coaching and feedback per their specialty and to target those standards during 
their observations. Informal, non-evaluative feedback is inherent in SICS’ PD model. Discreet real-time 
feedback and debriefing approaches are used to provide actionable data tied to coaching, observation and 
the Framework. These informal observations are not linked to the teacher’s annual evaluation. Coaching 
sessions include examining student artifacts and data, modeling exemplar practices, analyzing videos of 
lessons, and discussing case studies. Once a teacher moves into the Applying and/or Innovating levels of 
their PGP goals within the Framework, the DOTL works with them to select a new goal fostering a culture 
of growth and continuous improvement that provides unique, frequent, individualized support to everyone. 
III.E.5 Cooperative planning time allows all teachers to collaborate and use assessment data in a variety 
of ways (Attachments 4B and 4C):  

a. Revise pacing     b. Manage and assist students with their portfolios  
   c.  Differentiate lessons    d. Select students for interventions and groupings 

    e.  Remediate skills or content   f. Communicate with students, parents, and families and 
   g. Assess professional growth and progress 
SICS’ teachers are guided by the IB Coordinator to implement, through shared practice, a professional 
learning community of Critical Friends Groups in the second trimester of Year 1. By creating a safe 
environment for constructive feedback and critique, Group members work collaboratively to improve 
practice. Meeting with grade- and/or department-peers is scheduled for early release days.  
III.E.6 To build organizational capacity, SICS is discussing partnering with P.S. 197 in Harlem, the 
network of French Bi-lingual schools through the FACE Foundation, the private Dwight IB School and the 
progressive Calhoun School. Colleagues share practices through joint PD workshops and training as well as 
through inter-visitations and Edcamps75. Further individual staff enrichment opportunities are encouraged 
through courses, training and conferences offered by Harvard Graduate School of Education, NYC CSC, 
Center for Educational Innovation-Public Education Association, Building Excellent Schools, Uncommon 

																																																													
75	http://www.edcamp.org	
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Schools network, and the IB-certification affiliated Universities. If financially viable, teachers are provided 
leadership stipends to build scalable skills for curriculum development and lesson delivery, make 
observations and provide constructive feedback, and benefit from coaching and mentoring. Teachers are 
asked to self-identify content-specific PD through organizations such as NCTM, the National Science 
Teachers Association, and Reading Taxonomy training by Uncommon Schools and to turnkey with fellow 
staff. School Leaders have the same opportunities in addition to Board and professional networks guidance.  
III.F Facilities 
III.F.1 Available viable spaces have been identified by SICS Board member Holley Drakeford, a longtime 
Harlem-based commercial real estate broker who sits on Community Board 11’s Land Use Committee and 
has substantial knowledge of the market. These include school-ready buildings and small incubation-ready 
spaces. Three suitable buildings, all former schools, have been identified in East and West Harlem that 
require some cosmetic work (painting, cleaning) but are otherwise structurally appropriate for Sofara’s 
needs. Two of the private facilities currently identified by SICS as potential sites are ADA accessible with 
wheelchair access ramps or lifts 
and elevator access. Local 
elected officials in each CSD 
have recommended additional 
spaces that include new 
construction. The Arch Diocese 
has identified space, and SICS 
is discussing options with the 
Arch Diocese representatives. 
Each of the other three 
identified buildings is currently 
configured as a school with a 
Certificate of Occupancy (C of 
O) as a school.  
Option 1 (preferred): 145 East 
125th Street. This former adult 
technology school is located on 
the eastern edge of CSD 5 (CB 
11) bordering CSD 4. Currently 
used as temporary office and 
storage space for the Salvation 
Army, this building is already 
configured and outfitted as a 
school with offices, 9 
classrooms per floor, large 
common areas that can be used 
as gym/auditorium space, 
conference rooms and lounges, 
handicap access, and school 
grade bathrooms and water 
fountains. Science and 
Kindergarten classrooms 
require the addition of portable 

Table	III.F	Facilities	

Year 
2018-

19 
2019-

20 
2020-

21 
2021-

22 
2022-

23 

Assumptions Room Type  Rooms Needed 

Enrollment 150 200 250 300 350 

General Classrooms 6 8 10 12 14 
Two classes per grade growing one grade per 
year 

Library Lab 1 1 1 1 1 
Large research space with Library & 
experimental hands-on areas 

Lab Room  0 0 0 1 1 
Added Lab space to Library lab with portable 
sinks 

Art Room 0 1 1 1 1 Year one is push-in 

Special Education 
Services 1 1 2 2 2 SETTS or 12:1 classroom environment 

Coordinators & 
Coaches Office 

1 

shared 
1 1 1 1 

Years 1 & 2 IB and SSC, Year 3 includes 
Instructional Coach 

Social Worker / 
Guidance 0 1 1 1 1 One large divisible room or two small rooms 

Service Provider 
Office 

1 
shared 1 1 1 1 Year 1 = ESL, FLE, Social Worker 

Main Office 1 1 1 1 1  

Leadership Office 1  1 2 2 2 Shared in Years 1 & 2 

Operations Office 1 1 2 2 2 Development Assoc. and Business 

Nurse Office 1 1 1 1 1  

Staff Lounge 1 1 1 1 1 Multipurpose work/lunch space 

Gymnasium 1 1 1 1 1 If unavailable, SICS will use BCNY, Parks 
Dept., or community space 

Auditorium / 
Communal  1 1 1 1 1 Open space, can be multi-use 

Cafeteria 1 1 1 1 1 
Communal space with ability to store food 
may substitute for other 

Kitchen 1 1 1 1 1 
In lieu of kitchen service an approved food 
delivery service such as Red Rabbit may be 
utilized 

Storage  2 2 2 3 3 
In Y 1 & 2 a single large classroom space may 
be used as storage closets 

Restrooms – 
Students 2 2 4 4 4 One per gender in Years 1 & 2 

Restrooms – Staff 2 2 3 3 3 May be single stall unisex 

	

Nermin Ahmad� 8/10/2017 5:52 PM
Formatted Table
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sinks. This is a 36,000-sq.ft. building with an Occupancy Group Classification “G”. SICS would request 
13,500 sq. ft. in Year 1 at a rate of $45 per square foot. Option 2: 127 West 127th Street. This former 
NYCDOE School building is owned by NYC. It is presently in use as a non-profit incubator. These small 
organizations rent one or two classrooms on the first, second, and third floors of the four-story building. 
The auditorium is used for community theater and senior citizen events. As per conversations between the 
agent and Mr. Drakeford, there is currently space available on the fourth floor to incubate for the first two 
years of operation. The C of O demonstrates this is a fully operating school facility building. Option 3: 135 
West 138th Street. Located in central Harlem, the bottom two floors of this building are currently 
configured as a school. Formerly occupied by a charter school, this space would serve as a one-year 
incubation site. It has three large classrooms each with a restroom facility and two medium sized 
classrooms without restrooms. The space includes additional common restrooms, a kitchen, dining area, 
and offices. The C of O includes a school facility.  
III.F.2 Facility Needs. SICS is programming space at 90-square feet per student, in a private facility in 
CSD 4 or 5 or 6. As delineated in Table III-F, SICS requires administrative offices and instructional spaces 
that include requirements for the applied learning Library Lab, and inquiry-led classroom spaces designed 
to accommodate all students. Facility requirements are directly calibrated to program, staff, and student 
growth. In Year 1, SICS seeks 13,500 sq. ft. reaching 31,500 sq. Ft. by Year 5. 
III.F.3 Residential Program. Does not apply. 
III.F.4 Access. SICS is committed to ensuring access for all students including those with physical 
disabilities and will arrange for ramps, and move or arrange classrooms to accommodate student access. 
SICS has focused on space that has physical handicap access and will further internally assess a potential 
school site’s accessibility for students and adults with disabilities, in accordance with ADA standards, to 
identify and make proper renovations. SICS will work closely with families to ensure each student is 
accessing all areas available to them, including regulations on gender-neutral bathrooms, and continuously 
evaluate its programs and processes for student accessibility particularly for at-risk students.  
III.F.5 The three contingency options explored above do not need structural renovation to be ready for 
occupancy or to meet Building Code G. Each has a school designation certificate of occupancy. Each 
provides sufficient spaces to accommodate SICS’ educational program. For example, while a large Library 
Lab space is desired from Year 1, SICS may use general classroom sized rooms and build up to capacity. 
The facilities without large P.E. areas are located near NYC park and recreation facilities. Each are 
centrally located with transportation nearby allowing easy entry from multiple points in Harlem. 
III.F.6 If upgrades or renovations become necessary to meet applicable health, safety, and occupancy 
requirements, SICS intends to select the most cost-effective option. For example, a choice would be 
building-owner funded renovations through which additional cost would be added to the price per sq. ft. to 
be spread over an anticipated five-year lease. The added cost to a five-year lease is approximately $5 per 
sq. ft. With an average square footage price of $40, SICS would pay about $45 per sq. ft. 
Alternatively, SICS may investigate funding renovations or construction through tax-exempt bonds, 
foundations, financing organizations such as Charter Schools Development Corporation, real estate 
developers like Civic Builders, and federal & state initiatives. Contingent upon the annual budget surplus 
each year, SICS plans to make capital improvements to facilities every summer.  
III.F.7 Evidence of facilities related budget assumptions come directly from landlord preliminary quotes, 
discussions with local land stakeholders, and the expertise of Mr. Holley Drakeford who provided 
comparable data. Additional related cost estimates are based on a consultation with other Heads of School 
III.F.8 SICS will submit a written request for co-location to the NYCDOE according to the Facilities 
Access Process. The written request will include all information required to be considered in CSD 4, 5 or 6. 
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As per the process, NYCDOE can offer co-located space in a public-school facility, or in a privately owned 
or publicly owned facility at no cost to SICS. If space is not offered or is unsuitable, SICS has established, 
based on area commercial space averages in Central Harlem of $25-$45 per square foot, that it can find 
suitable space priced within the funding limits set as 30% of total student revenue. Averages were compiled 
from local realtors, building owner quotes, SICS Board members, and discussion with local charter school 
heads. Street/sidewalk frontage space is rejected based on the higher $65 per sq. ft. average cost.  
III.F.9 The SICS Board continues to seek additional spaces suited for the growth of the school, and will 
do so while awaiting the NYCDOE decision and as SICS moves through the full Facilities Access Process. 
This includes: ascertaining private facility conditions, scope of renovations, construction estimates, lease 
terms and conditions, and creating a timeline. An ad hoc Board Facilities Committee has oversight. SICS 
anticipates having secured a facility no later than March 2018, with the ability to move in by June 2018. 
III.G Insurance 
SICS carries insurance that includes adequate insurance coverage for liability, property loss and personal 
injury to students. SICS retains sufficient cash reserves to obtain additional insurance if necessary. SICS 
will seek additional quotes during the pre-opening period to obtain the most updated coverage and cost. 
SICS holds Directors and Officers coverage for the Board from the pre- opening period, and has budgeted 
$35,000 for insurance premiums, rising 30% annually.  
SICS plans to use the insurance broker Austin & Co. Coverage includes D & O ($1M), Business Personal 
Property ($250K), Business Income ($750K), General Liability ($3M), Abuse & Molestation ($10M), 
Employee Benefits Liability ($3M), and Personal Injury of Students ($1M). Proposal-specifics are provided 
in the Austin & Co. estimate, available upon request, and are reflected in the budget. 
III.H Health, Food and Transportation Services 
III.H.1 Health Services. SICS complies with all the health services requirements that apply to NYC 
public schools, notably NY Education Law Article 19. The NYC Bureau of School Children and 
Adolescent Health (the “Bureau”) is responsible for providing health services equivalent to those available 
to students enrolled in NYC public schools. For Year 1, SICS has budgeted for a nurse to provide services 
in accordance with laws, regulations and guidelines of NYCDOE and NYS. Once the State approves the 
SICS Charter, a formal request is made to the Bureau, to ensure that the request is reflected in the Bureau’s 
and NYCDOE’s budgetary and staffing plans. The school and the Bureau, as per applicable law and 
practice, receive permanent non-consumable and consumable facilities and supplies. If SICS shares a 
NYCDOE school space, it is expected that both schools collaborate in using the existing school’s nurse.  
SICS ensures that all students have the required Certificate of Immunization that complies with Public 
Health Law 2164. All faculty and staff have access to first aid resources, including appropriate Automated 
External Defibrillators (AEDs), as required by Education Law §917. SICS also proposes to have a 
nebulizer (§919) and an epinephrine auto-injector (§921). The DoO ensures that two or more staff members 
are certified in the operation and use of AED, and that pediatric cabling and attachments are available for 
children weighing less than 60 pounds, or who are younger than 8 years of age. The DoO and Nurse 
coordinate annual vision and as-needed hearing screening with the Department of Health.  
III.H.2, 3 Food Services. SICS plans to participate in the Federal school breakfast and lunch program and 
receive its meals for students through NYCDOE’s Office of School Food. The DoO applies for 
participation in the USDA FRLP breakfast, lunch and snack programs for eligible students. SICS contracts 
with NYCDOE to provide food to eligible students. Based on actual enrollment, SICS will apply to the 
Universal Lunch program, so all students can eat for free. If called for, regardless of origin, all revenue 
from the FRLP is used exclusively to provide services to eligible students as required by the terms of the 
program(s). Students not eligible under FRLP are responsible for their own meal and snack needs. 
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During the charter term, SICS may contract with a food service provider (such as Red Rabbit), if vendors 
are found who can provide healthier menus for students. The service provider would be competitively 
priced and SICS would evaluate the cost and quality of services without kitchen facilities (delivered pre-
made), and with (on-site preparation needed). Students may opt to bring their own lunch and not be part of 
the school lunch program. Every family is offered help with completing the School Meals application as 
part of their enrollment packet. 
III.H.4-6 Transportation Service. SICS’ students are eligible for services per Education Law §2853(4) 
(b) and §3635. It is the responsibility of parents to get ineligible students to school. The NYCDOE provides 
transportation services to SICS’ students, eligible for the same services as other NYC public school 
students. The Office of Pupil Transportation (OPT) determines individual eligibility for yellow school 
busing and half-fare or full-fare Metrocards, and provides access accordingly. SICS provides eligible 
service as confirmed by OPT. SICS will purchase and provide Metrocards to students during the four 
annual intersessions. Funds are allocated for this in budget projections as an annual line item. The amount 
does not include summer diagnostic session transport, since SICS can request Metrocards through OPT to 
cover this. Transportation for special education students is provided in accordance with all applicable State 
and Federal laws. Special education student eligibility is established through a student’s IEP.  
III.I. Family and Community Involvement  
III.I.1 Family and Community involvement are a key component underlying this charter, which is why 
SICS School Leadership has accepted a lower salary base to fund SICS’ COL from pre-opening and into 
the start-up years. The COL, with the Executive Director, promotes the face of SICS, helps document how 
the vision is realized, and is integral to the grassroots recruitment and retention of students and the sourcing 
of community initiatives. S/he creates and maintains family engagement opportunities; supports the FSA, 
seeks out community resources for students, families, and school programs; invests in the school-wide 
culture; supports school marketing and media endeavors for recruitment; and liaises with CBOs.  
III.I.2 SICS was designed by community parents, thus their involvement is integral to fulfilling the 
mission. Parent feedback has informed the Charter Application: SICS discussed school design with parents 
during focus groups, community forums and town halls, and while doing grassroots outreach. Since 2014, 
the parent network expanded as parents communicated with other parents, attended educational forums and 
planning sessions, CB meetings, and community education council meetings. Directors of Early-Childhood 
Centers identified grandparents and non-traditional guardians as critical stakeholders that SICS engages. 
SICS intends to continually engage community organizations through the start-up, opening and operation 
of the school, soliciting feedback, ideas, and their vision for SICS. This work has already begun as 
described in III.I.1 above. The SEP (see Section I.C.5) ensures that parents and the community remain a 
critical part of SICS’ plans to implement its school design, and that SICS continues its political engagement 
and interactions with CBOs.  
III.I.3 Parent engagement ranges from the dedicated agenda time slots for parents at Board meetings, 
through the formation of an FSA. The FSA, Social Worker and COL have the lead in working with 
families. Through the FSA, parents access technology, life skills workshops, community service 
information and more. Workshops are hosted twice a year to cover the use of ManageBac, holistic 
assessments, interpretation of achievement, and support systems at home. Within an open atmosphere and 
access to school leaders, parents have every opportunity to drive the mission and programs of the school 
utilizing the COL and Social Worker, and other periodic interactions, such as parents invited to participate 
in classroom expeditions, volunteer cultural and career expertise and sit on Board committees. 
III.I.4 SICS actively seeks out involvement of CBOs, many of whom have given letters of support for 
SICS’ opening. They have shared flyers and event announcements with their clients, provided opportunities 
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to speak with their membership, and offered to help with recruitment in the pre-opening phase. These 
include: Harlem Pediatric Associates, The American Legion, Math Clinic, Education Clinic, Inc., Harlem 
Junior First Lego League, Abyssinian Head Start, The Reading Team, Senegalese Association of America 
NY, The Malian Association, Shugah Baybees Developmental Daycare, Morija and SDA French Speaking 
Church. In addition to these, SICS is working or plans to work with: 

• The BCNY (Harlem Campus) – to use their athletic and arts facilities to support the school's 
programs 

• Local Libraries - to be used as extended libraries of the school 
• NYCHA public housing – to engage families who may not have access to SICS information and to 

recruit students for enrollment 
• STEMkids NYC (Harlem) - to provide applied learning training and aide with student recruitment 

III.I.5 SICS has done the groundwork with the BCNY Executive Director to establish programming 
support and with NYCHA Resident Associations for direct family engagement. Four outreach events are 
planned as community festivals - two with STEMkids and two with Manhattan Mandarin (SICS’ 
afterschool program providers). SICS will participate in Harlem-based festivals and parades and student 
service learning projects to engage the community for opportunities to give back. Work with P.S. 197 will 
be solidified in the pre-opening phase and SICS’ annual Harlem Hospital holiday toy drive has already 
started. Letters of Support, Letters of Commitment, and Evidence of Support are found in Attachment 2B.  
III.I.6 Successful models of parent engagement strategies described above are generally recognized by 
research. The Executive Director has used several including the home visit scenario and consistent positive 
communication in her practice. Others, such as workshops specifically centered around student learning 
and parent interaction, derive from research cited in Beyond the Bake Sale. In all cases, SICS believes 
meaningful, targeted, and sincere parent engagement increases parent involvement in the school. SICS 
already has a strong base of support through its community collaborations and parent involvement.  
III.J. Financial Management  
III.J.1 Oversight and financial management of the budget are the responsibility of the Board and the 
Board Treasurer works through the Board Finance Committee to fulfill this responsibility. On a day-to-day 
basis, the Executive Director has oversight responsibilities for the financial management within the 
parameters of the operation of the school and thus is responsible for the protection of the school’s financial 
records with direct oversight from the Board Finance Committee. The Executive Director is supported in 
drafting mission aligned budgets, implementing all financial matters, and preparing reports by the Board 
Treasurer and Finance Committee, the DoO, Operations staff, and ASNY. The NYSED Fiscal Oversight 
guidebook76 for charter schools will be used to revise SICS financial management plan. 
III.J.2 Financial viability is the goal of the Board, as it works to develop a budget begins each January, 
through a rigorous budgeting process. The Board is committed to ensuring it holds itself and School 
Leaders accountable for the operational, fiscal health and viability of SICS, including sound budgeting 
practices. The Executive Director and DoO, in collaboration with ASNY/BM prepare annual draft 
operating and capital budgets, cash flow projections, and profit and loss statements after working together 
to identify and prioritize needs. ASNY/BM is responsible for preparing monthly budget presentations, 
including updated annual budget information, monthly budget information, monthly actuals against budget, 
and projected year end against budgeted year end estimates. The Executive Director and ASNY review this 
information with the Board Treasurer prior to each Board meeting. ASNY provides training as needed to 
Leadership to prioritize needs based on how these best support student achievement and fiscal and 

																																																													
76 http://www.p12.nysed.gov/psc/documents/NYSEDFiscalOversightGuidebook_PublicCommentDraft.pdf 
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operational efficiency. The Board adopts the final annual budget in May of each year. For purposes of 
clarity, the remainder of this section references the BM, as s/he becomes permanent from Year 3.  
III.J.3 Fiscal Policies And Procedures. SICS is receiving full support services, including training, from 
ASNY from the pre-opening period and will continue with support services after the BM is in place. 
Together, with oversight from the Executive Director, they prepare financial statements in accordance with 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). These are prepared for each fiscal year and include 
a statement of financial position, a statement of activities, a statement of cash flow, a schedule of functional 
expenses, and notes to the financial statements. SICS is committed to developing and maintaining fiscal 
policies and procedures that ensure sound internal controls, fiscal responsibility and accountability in 
accordance with GAAP, and adhering to the Financial Accounting Standards Board rules and regulations.  
III.J.4 Internal Control System. This is composed of two basic elements:  
The Control Environment reflects the importance SICS places on internal controls as part of its day-to-day 
activities. Factors that influence the control environment include management and Board philosophy, 
organizational structure, ways of assigning authority and responsibility, management methods and control, 
and personnel policies and practices. SICS’ Board reviews fiscal reports as part of its board meetings and 
ensures that the organization’s structure allows for sufficient checks and balances.  
The Control Procedures are set up to strengthen SICS’ internal control structure and thus safeguard the 
school’s assets. They are divided into the following:  

a) Segregation of Duties;  b) Restricted Access;         c) Document Control;  
d) Processing Control;         e) Reconciliation Controls;    f) Fraud Prevention; and 
g) Cash Handling Controls.    

Fiscal policies and procedures are fully developed by the Finance Committee, in consultation ASNY, 
during pre-opening; ratified by the Board and adopted by the school no later than January 2018; and 
reinforced with a periodic review by ASNY. 
III.J.5 The Board is responsible for hiring an independent auditor to perform an annual audit of financial 
statements prepared by School Leaders in accordance with Generally Accepted Auditing Standards. The 
Board Finance Committee has the ultimate responsibility to oversee the audit process and upon completion 
meets with the independent auditor to discuss the report and any findings. A corrective action plan is 
discussed and implemented by the Finance Committee to correct any findings by the independent auditor. 
A copy of the audit report and the auditor’s Management Letter are provided to the full Board and NYS 
Executive Director by the determined deadline.  
III.J.6 SICS expects to contract with ASNY for a full range of services in the pre-opening phase and Years 
1 and 2 and develop capacity to develop and implement accounting processes. They include, without being 
limited to, leadership training, setting up and running payroll, accounting system set up, coordination of 
grant reporting, monthly reconciliation, fiscal reporting, audit preparation, and human resources.  
III.J.7 The DoO, with oversight from the Executive Director, manages student information, is responsible 
for tracking enrollment and attendance, maintains school lunch program records, including student 
eligibility and other data to ensure accurate billing and reimbursements. The DoO works closely with the 
Executive Director, who serves as the School’s Title I Coordinator, to ensure all relevant data are collected 
and maintained for accuracy in program reporting and reimbursement. SICS’ student information system, 
ManageBac, is used by the DoO to store, analyze and produce reports on all relevant student data. The 
DoO is responsible for the protection of student records under the supervision of the Executive Director.  
Regarding the special education program and IEPs, the SSC, supervised by the Executive Director and 
DOTL is responsible for maintaining and securing all records, as well as submitting all required reporting 
on SWD/ED and services provided to the appropriate agencies including necessary reporting for special 
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education reimbursement through the DOE invoicing portal. SICS understands its obligations to comply 
with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act and will follow all appropriate procedures to comply 
fully with the NYS Freedom of Information Law (Article 6 of the NY Public Officers Law).  
III.K Budget Narrative 

Table III.K-1: Summary Budget (in Dollars) 
Budget Preopening Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 
Revenue    $3,770,389   $4,686,540   $5,798,016   $7,021,037   $8,271,496  
Expenses  $165,000 $3,645728  $4,560,869 $5,554,213  $6,919,414  $7,897,393 
Net Income   $124,661 $125,671 $243,804 $101,623 $374,102 

III.K.1 The proposed budget and fiscal plan complies with NY Education Law §2851(2)(e). SICS 
understands the fiscal responsibility associated with expending government and tax dollars and the Board 
and management takes this responsibility seriously. We are presenting a budget that is both sound and 
demonstrates fiscal responsibility to start and maintain a charter school. In order to demonstrate sound 
fiscal discipline SICS has assumed $15,307 for year one for per pupil revenue, and $16,091 for year 2 
(using current per pupil revenue from NYC CSC) and a conservative 1.5% increase for each of years 3-5. 
The CSP assumption used is $550,000, though SICS expects to receive the supplemental amount of 
$250,000 based on meeting the criteria of design priorities 1, 7 and 8. SICS has considered only public 
funding and the base CSP grant in planning for the charter term. 
III.K.2 Budget Priorities. SICS worked through budget allocations with ASNY to align them with the 
School’s application, attrition and backfill policy; incorporate all core costs for the educational, fiscal and 
operational programs; and the costs associated with the dual language and inquiry-led mission. Specific 
mission aligned costs for science and applied learning materials and a French language library are allocated 
for, as are expeditionary, real-world experiences (Line 116). Training and PD for each core education 
component, including from the IBO for the PYP framework and Bank Street College for SEL, is funded 
(Line 120). This covers staff and the Board (Line 107). Certain staff positions (the COL, SSC, IB 
Coordinator, and FLE) are critical to meeting SICS mission and integral to student achievement from Year 
1. Funds are set aside for teacher retention incentives and to enable teachers to engage parents (Line 
118). Included are costs associated with extended learning in intersessions (stipends, salaries and student 
transportation costs) and for IB registration fees (PO Line 127 and Line 126). Line 103 includes a budget 
for interns/assistant teachers from Bank Street College and GMU. Salaries have been calculated at 
NYCDOE rates plus 5%. School building lease is calculated at $45 (includes $5 build out). Utilities are 
averaged at $2.75 per square foot per annum (Lines 132, 136), based on actual quotes received. Outreach 
for enrollment is supported by the COL and Start-up Coordinator (lines 81, 61), multi-lingual graphic 
design (PO Line 104) and through four events planned with STEMKids NYC and Manhattan Mandarin 
(Line 122) to reach a socio-economically diverse student body across Central Harlem. 
III.K.3 Dissolution Fund. The school has allocated a $25,000 escrow per year for the first three years to 
maintain this fund to pay for associated legal and audit expenses. 
III.K.4 Revenue and Expenditure Assumptions. SICS revenue is anticipated primarily from per pupil 
revenue increasing year over year based on increases in student enrollment. Using conservative 
assumptions, SICS has demonstrated the ability to expend less than reserve. For example, if SICS requires 
private space to site the school, local facility lease rates are evidenced to be within the funding limits 
provided through the NYC Facilities Funding process. Assumptions are made as to enrollment, such as 
enrolling up to 7% more students over target to mitigate anticipated attrition, and percentages allocated to 
general education and special education students (aligned to median CSD numbers) for school operating 
costs that benefit all students. SICS’ main expenditures of personnel, inquiry-led materials and supplies, 
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and French materials and supplies, include annual increases in proportion to student enrollment rather than 
a blanket percentage. Year 1 personnel costs, including taxes and benefits, account for 57% of total 
expenditures, with another 3.5% devoted to contracted services. School operations are 9%, and facility 
operations are 20% of annual expenditures. “Other” non-cash expenses represent 1.8% of annual 
expenditures. By Year 5, personnel costs, including taxes and benefits, account for 56% of total 
expenditures. Another 2.2% is devoted to contracted services. 
III.K.5 Funding Challenge Activities. Though SICS expects a positive cash flow in each year of the 
charter term (See Table III.K.1), additional options are available in the event of a funding shortfall or need 
for a funding source. The Executive Director and Board Finance Committee may establish a line of credit 
for temporary needs, host fundraising events, delay staff travel stipends and other monetary incentives, or 
delay capital expenditures such as classroom upgrades. In extreme circumstances, SICS may opt to not give 
the “plus 5%” in salary over NYCDOE scales. Conservative numbers are used for income increases over 
time, such as the increase in funds of 1.5% per pupil per annum. The Board and the Executive Director are 
tasked in the pre-opening phase to seek out private foundations77, public grant and donated funds to provide 
additional sources of revenue for specific programs and initiatives. SICS is only budgeting for $12,000 a 
year for private contributions. Based on discussions with Board members, and the support obtained in the 
community, SICS expects to raise more than $12,000. 
SICS has made inquiries to CSD 4, 5 and 6HH politicians regarding the availability of discretionary 
funding, and has been invited to apply, post-charter authorization. 
III.K.6 Maintaining Financial Viability. The SICS team worked closely with Mr. Bahl of ASNY to 
create a budget that used expected income and expenditures based on current market prices adjusted for 
inflation from the start-up phase through the entire Charter term. This was intentional, without accounting 
for any discounts in costs, donated goods and services, or competitive bidding processes. The resulting 
budget, presented in Attachment 9, is viable within these constraints and includes planning for a 10% 
surplus earmarked for reserves at the end of the first charter term, equivalent to a 2% set aside each year. 
The Board Financial Committee and School Leadership have committed to ongoing review of expenditures 
and income, and checks and balances have been established to ensure that good reason needs to be 
provided for expenditures not included in these calculations.  Likewise, the annually-approved SEP will 
include targets for fund-raising that would be used to cover additional, non-critical but desired expenses. 
III.K.7 SICS’ budget meets all requirements laid out through NYSED, and notably Section 5203 (b)(3) 
ESEA for the CSP grant. If the supplement, beyond the base amount, is received, the budget allocations 
will be realigned to invest in our core instructional student materials, supplies and programs, teacher 
retention, and building additional reserves. 
III.L Pre-Opening Plan 

Table	III.L:	Pre-Opening	Plan	
Activity Start/End Owner(s) Notes 

Oversight 
Abbreviations:	ExD	=	Executive	Director	POI	=	Program	of	Inquiry	SUC	=	Start-Up	Coordinator	Summer	Sofari	=	Summer	school	program 
File for 501(c)(3) status for school 
and state tax exemptions status 

Charter 
Approval  

Board, ExD, 
Legal 

Prepare Application Papers (Dec 2017) 
Obtain pro-bono legal counsel  

Elect Board officers, ratify By-Laws, 
establish committees & Obtain D&O 
insurance 

Charter 
Approval  

Board, ExD First official Board meeting will take place within 
10 days of authorization 
Establish Board recordkeeping 

																																																													
77	The Foundation Center (http://www.foundationcenter.org)	
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Officially hire ExD  Jan 1, 2018 Board Stipend to be paid by CSP funds 
Board training  Ongoing Board, ExD  General and Charter oversight, Academic programs 

including IB and dual language 
Identify areas of need for Board  Ongoing Board, ExD, 

DOTL 
Create job descriptions, recruit members 

Finalize School Policies - Further 
develop, refine, and adopt by Board 
action  

Charter 
Approval -  
 Aug 2018 

Board, ExD, 
DOTL, DoO 

Enrollment and Fiscal policy in place by end of Jan 
2018  
Other School policies by June 2018 
Distribute to stakeholders and school’s website 

Create compliance calendar January 
2018 

Board, ExD ExD will create school-based calendar 

Create ExD evaluation tools and 
succession plan 

Jan 2018 – 
June 2018 

Board Board creates Succession plans, the ExD creates for 
other leadership staff 

Financial Operations 
Research fundraising and apply for 
public & private funding & grants  

Ongoing ExD, Board 
COL, SUC 

Initial focus: CSP, local government i.e. DYCD, 
Science (STEAM grants), Gates Foundation, 
Corporation grants 

Borough President and City Council 
Discretionary funding 

Jan – Feb 
14, 2018 

Board, ExD The deadline for applications is February 14  

Develop and approve final Year 1 
budget 

April -June 
2018  

ExD, Board, 
ASNY 

Make salary/hiring adjustments  

Apply for Consolidated Title I Funds  July-Aug 
2018 

ExD, DoO  

Set up financial/accounting systems 
 

Jan & Jun 
2018 
 

ExD, DoO, 
Board, 
ASNY 

 

Establish banking Charter 
Approval 

ExD/Board 
Treasurer  

Two signatures required 

Develop and finalize employee 
benefit package 

February 
2018 

Board, DoO  

Contract independent CPA to audit  Jan-Feb 
2018 

ExD, Board 
Treasurer 

Financial systems audit Independent Accountants' 
Report completed in February  

Establish all relevant financial 
systems  

Jan-March 
2018 

ExD, ASNY, 
Treasurer  

Payroll, billing, other disbursements as per internal 
controls 

General Operations 
Apply for NYCDOE Facility Process Aug 2017 – 

Jan 2018 
Board, ExD  Provide documentation for available private space 

Secure Facility, Renovation: Identify 
needs, secure contractor, create time 
line 

Charter 
Approval - 
ongoing 

ExD, Board 
DOTL, SUC, 
DoO,  

Work with DOE to identify a facility and prepare 
for PEP if needed, ongoing process 

Officially Hire DOTL and retain COL Mar 1, 2018 ExD Part of ExD and DOTL stipends to cover COL 
Finalize performance goals and 
evaluations 

June 2018 ExD, DOTL  

Student/family outreach and 
marketing 

Approval - 
Ongoing 

ExD, COL, 
DOTL 

COL will step up outreach activities 

Recruit and hire all administrative, 
support, and instructional staff for 
first year of operations 

Dec 2017 -  
June 2018 

ExD, DOTL, 
DoO 

Ensure signed staff hiring letters by 7/1/2018. 
Completed Background & Fingerprinting confirmed 

Contract for ManageBac 
Student Information System 

March 2018 ExD, DOTL  

Procurement - furniture, equipment, 
& technology for operations 

Jan - July 
2018 

ExD, DOTL, 
SUC, DoO 

Acceptance of delivery depending on when SICS 
has access to facility 

Procurement – curriculum material May - July 
2018 

ExD, SUC, 
DOTL, DoO 

Acceptance of delivery depending on when SICS 
has access to facility 

Apply for extended use facility 
permits if needed 

March 2017 ExD, DoO Apply for extended use permits upon securing 
facility 

Conduct lottery April 2018 ExD, DOTL Generate acceptance & waitlist 
Send out acceptance packages with 
forms: registration, emergency 
contact, Home Language Survey, 
FRLP, test data Release, Media 
Release, Medical, & other  

April - Aug 
2018 

ExD, SUC, 
DOTL, 
DoO 
 

Start with completion of lottery and continuing 
through the school year as families decline 
acceptance or withdraw their child from school 

Request and secure student records April - Sept ExD, SUC, This will be ongoing, as students may be accepted 
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from sending schools, including IEPs  2018 DOTL, DoO off the waitlist. 
Arrange utility accounts  June 2018 ExD, SUC Phone, internet (electricity may be sooner) 
Communicate with NYCDOE on 
transportation and food services 

March – 
Aug 2018 

DoO, SUC Annual deadline on or about April 1st. 

Arrange for AED/Cardio Pulmonary 
Response training: staff 

July – Aug 
2018 

DoO, SUC  

Create class rosters Aug 2018 ExD, DoO, 
DOTL  

Disseminate to staff and families 

Instructional 
Apply for IB Candidate status and 
staff PD 

Mar - June 
2018 

ExD / DOTL In consultation with IBO 
To be delivered in August at Summer Institute 

Submit candidacy to IBO Aug 2018 ExD, DOTL In consultation with IBO 
Academic program development of 
assessment protocol, POI /curriculum 

Charter 
Approval - 
Ongoing 

ExD / DOTL As staff is brought on board, the IB coordinator will 
be involved in the process 

Participate in trainings, visit high-
performing schools 

Jan - June 
2018 

SUC, DOTL  IB, Dwight, UNIS 

Develop agendas/plans for Summer 
Institute training and Year 1 PD  

March -July 
2018 

SUC DOTL, 
ExD 

IB, Singapore Math, CKLA 

Conduct Home Visits May - Nov 
2018 

ExD, SUC, 
DOTL, COL 
Teachers 

ELLs home visits completed by first day of 
instruction 

Create/obtain diagnostic assessment 
materials  

June - Aug 
2018 

DOTL, ExD Include preliminary plan for Summer Sofari 
Program 

Finalize Special Education policies 
and procedures  

June - Aug 
2018 

ExD, DOTL, 
SSC  

Include record keeping, pre-referral and referral 
process 

III.M Dissolution Plan  
In the event of closure or dissolution of SICS, the Board shall delegate the responsibility to manage the 
charter dissolution process to the Executive Director and the DOTL in accordance with Education Law 
§2854(2)(t), and Certificate of Assurances of the NYSED. SICS will comply with applicable requirements 
of NYS Education Law §219 and §220. Employees will be notified in a timely manner and encouraged to 
seek Unemployment Insurance benefits.  
III.M.1 SICS has segregated a fund of $75,000 in its budget plan for use in the event of the dissolution of 
the charter. The dissolution process is initiated by a leadership team meeting that includes at least the 
Board Chair, the Board Treasurer, Executive Director, and legal counsel. They will draft and solidify the 
full dissolution plan and timeline. The Chair and the Executive Director will meet with representatives of 
the NYS Executive Director Office of Charter Schools or designated staff to discuss and review the 
proposed dissolution plan and timeline, which when finalized is used to manage the dissolution process. 
This process includes notifying the parents of enrolled children, and if needed helping them find a new 
school. A list of SICS students will be sent to the local district, and student records will be transferred to 
the student’s school district of residence, with timely notification to parents.  
III.M.2 Transfer of Assets. The contracted accountant will maintain an up-to-date inventory of the assets 
of the school, and with support from the Executive Director, is responsible for developing a plan to direct 
the transfer of assets. The plan will meet NYS and NYCDOE Offices of Charter Schools requirements. 
The Board Finance Committee will assist the contracted accountant in paying all of SICS’ outstanding 
debts according to Education Law §§2854(2)(t), §219, and §220. Once all debts are satisfied, the 
distribution of assets process will be initiated, and remaining assets will be transferred to another charter 
school within the school district where SICS is located. The amount transferred is proportional to the 
number of students enrolled in that school. Absent an appropriate charter school, remaining funds are 
versed directly to the NYCDOE. The final plan will detail which assets will be dispersed to which 
school(s), when, how and by whom. It will be reviewed and approved by the Board’s Executive Committee 
prior to implementation.  
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Attachment 1: General Admissions Policy 
 

Sofara International Charter School (SICS) is committed to diversity and will not “discriminate against 
or limit the admission of any student based on any unlawful bias, including on the basis of race, 
ethnicity, national origin, gender, sexual orientation, disability, intellectual disability, measures of 
achievement, aptitude, athletic ability, race, creed, religion, ancestry,” or on any other basis that would be 
unlawful for a public school. This is part of the school’s culture and pervades all actions and activities. 
The Executive Director and Board of Trustees closely monitor the admissions and enrollment process, 
notably in terms of diversity targets and priorities. SICS’ Stakeholder Engagement Plan (SEP), in which 
stakeholders, community leaders and collaborating organizations are identified, is implemented on an 
ongoing basis, with an enhanced focus during the Year 1 pre-opening phase.  
SICS is open to any child eligible under the laws of New York State for admission to a public school.  
New students are admitted each year without regard to prior measures of achievement or aptitude, 
athletic ability, or any above-mentioned basis that would be unlawful for a public school. The Board of 
Trustees and the Executive Director are bound to ensure that the school culture of diversity is supported. 
They ensure compliance with all applicable antidiscrimination laws governing public schools, including 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and §2854(2) of the New York Education Law, governing admission to a 
charter school. SICS acknowledges the law in reference to sibling preference for admissions and for the 
residents of the community school district in which SICS is chartered. Admission, at any time, is in 
accordance with the other provisions of this Policy and subject to space availability.   
To be eligible to apply for Kindergarten, a student must turn 5 by December 31st of the year in which 
they are applying.. Information on space availability is included in SICS application and lottery 
materials, and is provided to the Authorizer. Attrition assumptions have been included in calculations 
supporting admissions, and available seats are accounted for accordingly.  A maximum capacity of 350 
students will be reached by Year 5 of operation in the first charter term, and will be maintained. Should 
the school experience higher attrition than anticipated, SICS may enroll additional students to the extent 
supported by the school’s maximum capacity. 
In Year 1 of operation, SICS anticipates applications for admission in grades K-2 of no less than 150 
students. An additional 7% enrollment may be accepted to mitigate effects of attrition. SICS will grow 
by one grade each year, or about 50 students in Kindergarten, until it reaches 6th grade.  According to 
attrition calculations and backfill policy, students may be accepted into K, 1st and 2nd grades directly to 
fill vacated seats. Because of dual language best practices1, students are not accepted directly into other 
grades. All seats in Grades K-2 will be filled as they become vacant from the waitlist of the most recent 
lottery until October 31st. 
Community Outreach and Information Dissemination 
Each year SICS holds non-mandatory tours and information sessions to inform the families of 
prospective students and community members about the school’s curriculum and overall program. Tours 
in Year 1 begin February prior to the opening, or as soon as facilities are available.  In subsequent years, 
tours and information sessions are to be held beginning on or about November 1st of the year prior to the 
first day of enrollment. These will be held through the Fall, Winter and Spring, at a frequency overseen 
by the Executive Director, and tied to SICS’ target enrollment goals, both in terms of number and 
																																																													
1 GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR DUAL LANGUAGE EDUCATION, Review of Research and Best Practices on Effective Features of Dual 
Language Education Programs, Kathryn J. Lindholm-Leary, Ph.D. San José State University, March 2005 
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diversity. Tours are voluntary - no arbitrary requirements for application are imposed beyond completion 
of the SICS application material. 
Information sessions may be held at the school, at local daycares and developmental centers, at local 
organizations that serve young school-aged children and/or their parents, and in collaboration with 
partner stakeholders. Awareness of SICS is further supported by direct outreach through NYCHA 
Resident Associations, and according to the SEP, approved annually by the Board. 
Outreach sessions for students are publicized using flyers, signage at the school, contact with community 
organizations, and those strategies laid out in the Charter. Families will be encouraged to visit the school, 
talk to instructional, executive and other staff, visit classes and meet currently enrolled students. 
Practices such as requiring parents or guardians to attend an open house, submit to an interview or tour 
the school is not a pre-condition for accepting an application. 
The focus of outreach and information dissemination is in Central Harlem, notably in CSDs 4 and 5, 
primarily. SICS shall increase active recruitment efforts, if necessary conducting outreach in neighboring 
CSDs 3, 6 and 7. If these efforts are not effective, SICS will consider extending the pre-opening period 
by one year. 
Application Procedures 
Application material and admissions information is available to all who request it beginning on or about 
January 15th each year. Complete applications must be returned by midnight on or about April 1st for the 
coming school year. Applications are made available at parent information sessions and for pick up at the 
school and on SICS’ website and may be made available by other means, provided application 
availability is non-discriminatory 
Families interested in enrolling a child at SICS are required to submit an application and asked, but not 
required, to attend an IB information session. There is no fee for completing an application nor is there 
any tuition charged for attending the school beyond such fees as are permitted to be charged by public 
schools. 
SICS’ anticipated multilingual applicants are provided translation services and additional foreign 
language applications if necessary. As a matter of course, SICS provides access to the New York 
Common Online Charter School Application, currently available in nine (9) languages, linked through 
our website, at collaborating organizations, and for walk-ins. Paper application versions, provided by 
SICS at all community events, are available in the dominant languages of Central Harlem (English, 
French and Spanish). Phone calls and other requests for the printed applications are to be mailed first 
class through the US Postal Services. Spanish and French-speaking staff will assist non-English speaking 
families who seek support in completing applications, to the extent feasible. If translation services are 
required and multi-lingual staff is unavailable, SICS will provide translators during the admission period 
through other means.  
If applications do not exceed the available number of seats, each applicant, who reaches the age of 5 by 
December 31st of that year, shall be admitted. If applications exceed the number of seats, a lottery will be 
held (see below). In the event there are insufficient applicants by April 1st, the enrollment period will be 
continued, to the extent allowable by law, to August 1st. 
At-Risk Students 
SICS is committed to serving students that are at risk of academic failure. The school applies the 
following definition to students at risk: those students who reside in the CSD in which the charter school 
is located that are SWD, FRLP/ED, SIFE and ELL. Voluntarily provided past NYSESLAT results may 
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be used to verify ELL status and possession of an IEP or 504 to verify SWD status. Such documentation 
is not automatically required.   
Admission Preference 
Admission preference shall be provided in accordance with Charter School Regulation 119.5 Random 
Selection Process for Charter School Student Applicants to: 

1. Pupils returning to the charter school in the second or any subsequent year of operation.  
2. Siblings of pupils already enrolled in the charter school. “Sibling” is defined as children who are 

related by birth, by means of the same father or mother, or by legal adoption. 
3. Pupils residing in the CSD in which the charter school is located, and who meet at least: 

a. Two (2) criteria for the target population, up to a maximum specified percentage of the 
applicable grade in compliance with Section 2854(2) of the Education Law. 

b. One (1) criterion for the target population, up to a maximum specified percentage of the 
applicable grade in compliance with Section 2854(2) of the Education Law. 

4. Pupils residing outside the school district in which the charter school is located.  
5. Pupils who identify themselves as a student with disabilities, English language learner or 

economically disadvantaged (in the event of a Weighted Lottery). 
6. Preference may also be provided to children of employees of SICS provided that such children 

constitute no more than fifteen percent of the SICS’ total enrollment. 
Public Lottery 
In the event that the number of applicants exceeds the available seats, SICS will conduct a lottery 
between April 2nd and April 15th of each year. In Year 1, grades K, 1 and 2 have eligible seats open for 
new students.  Each of these grades will have its own round of drawings and students not selected 
through the lottery for open seats are placed on a waitlist in the order in which they were drawn.  
Letters announcing the date and location of the lottery will be mailed to all applicant families in English, 
French and Spanish or the home language if it is known. The date of the lottery will also be listed on the 
student application when possible. Public notice of the date, time and place of the lottery will be posted, 
as provided for by Public Officers Law Section 104.  
The lottery is open to the public and will be observed by an independent party for fidelity purposes. SICS 
shall document the lottery process and make its records available to the charter authorizer. Records shall 
include the process used, compare the process used to the lottery procedures outlined in SICS’ charter, 
and confirm the procedures used were consistent with those set forth in the charter.  
Notwithstanding any rules, regulations, or laws to the contrary as relates to the federal CSP grant in 
Years 1-3 of the charter term, seats are reserved for families who qualify for an at-risk preference. SICS 
may request approval to conduct a Weighted Lottery Generator in accordance with applicable laws and 
NYSED regulations in consideration of the need to meet enrollment targets.  
After a name is drawn from the lottery it will be posted immediately to the school’s lottery board.  
Acceptance Procedures 
Following the lottery, letters are mailed to inform parents/guardians of acceptance or of their number on 
the waiting list. This mailing shall also contain an Offer Response postcard and proof of district 
information. Each family will also be notified by phone and email, if possible. 
Parent/guardians of accepted students are asked to return the postcard within 48-hours stating that they 
accept the placement. If an acceptance postcard is not returned, SICS will make at least three additional 
documented contact attempts to verify acceptance before dropping a student from the enrollment list. 
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These may include but are not limited to outreach through a second mailing, phone, email, text message, 
and/or through other contacts provided.  
Waiting List 
A waiting list for each grade is maintained of applications that were not selected from the lottery, for 
available seats, up until October 1st of the school year barring any other legal requirements. The 
applications from the lottery are wait-listed according to the order in which they were drawn.  
Applications received after April 1st, and placed on the waitlist, are registered according to the date and 
time received. Applications received after the lottery are placed after those selected through the lottery 
and those received after April 1st.  
If and when space(s) open(s) up, applications will be pulled from the waitlist in order, and phone calls 
made to parents offering admission. The waiting list is subject to the same admissions preferences as all 
other students selected through the lottery Parents are required to accept placement within 48-hours of 
documented contact or they forfeit the space.  If they accept, they move to the enrollment phase, and 
follow the guidelines provided below. The SICS waiting list is the only official, legal document 
identifying the names of grade-eligible students with applications pending acceptance.  
Enrollment Process 
All students admitted, or waitlisted, as provided above are required to submit complete enrollment forms 
by the date specified in the notice of admission or waitlist to convert admission to enrollment.  
Within three weeks of a student being admitted, the student’s family is mailed an enrollment packet and 
notified by phone about school-based enrollment sessions, to be held on multiple days and at multiple 
times of day. SICS will encourage parents/guardians and students to sit with a school staff member to 
review the required enrollment papers by holding open review sessions.  
Enrollment sessions include a school orientation, review of the packet material, assistance with filling out 
of forms as needed, and collection of supporting documents to be held by SICS. Parents will be provided 
with all possible assistance to complete student enrollment material, and parents whose first language is 
not English may be provided with a translator upon request. 
SICS expects all enrollment packets to be returned to the Director of Operations (DoO) within four 
weeks of notification of admission, on or before June 7th. At least three (3) attempts will be made to 
contact students via a second mailing, phone call, email, text message, or other contact mechanism 
provided.  Families who fail to return completed enrollment packets to the DoO within this timeframe 
and after documented contact attempts have been exhausted, forfeit the place(s) granted. Likewise, if all 
the required documentation cannot be provided, or all the forms cannot be completed on or before June 
7th, the place(s) is considered forfeit. Once forfeited, it is made available to the next student on the 
waiting list. If any student declines his or her spot, SICS will call on the next student listed on the 
waiting list, if one has been developed, and in accordance with appropriate waitlist procedures. 
Once all the forms have been completed, a student is considered officially enrolled.  
Backfill Policy 
The dual language mission of SICS allows for backfill up to Grade 2. 
Due to the intensive nature of SICS’ dual language component and best practices for second language 
acquisition, SICS will backfill any seats vacated by attrition into its K, 1st and 2nd grades only. Each 
year vacant seats in these grades are filled by those students submitting an application by April 1st for the 
coming school year, through a grade-specific random lottery if more applications are received than 
available seats. If there are vacant seats in these grades during the school year, they are filled from the 
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waitlist up until October 31st. Vacancies after this date are filled the following academic school year. All 
seats filled from the waitlist will be from the most recent lottery.  
Student transfer and/or Withdrawal Procedures 
SICS is a public school of choice, both for application and withdrawal. A parent or guardian may wish to 
transfer their child to a different school at any time. A request for student withdrawal form needs to be 
completed and submitted by the parent/guardian. SICS personnel will offer to meet with the family to 
discuss and understand their reasons for withdrawing, to seek solutions to any problems that are 
highlighted through these discussions, and to inform the Executive Director of any reasons that should be 
considered during continual improvement process reviews. Particular attention is paid to parent and 
student satisfaction.  
Upon request from the new school, SICS will ensure the timely transfer of necessary school records.  
Voluntary Withdrawal 
A student who withdraws or is removed from admission or enrollment is not entitled to reinstatement at 
the prior level. Withdrawal or removal does not affect a student’s right to re-apply for a later school year, 
subject to SICS’ Admissions Policy and the procedures hereunder, or to be placed on the waitlist, in the 
same order as any other late application. SICS may request that families confirm the enrollment of 
children enrolled in the school for the upcoming academic year from time to time (whether a new 
enrollment or the enrollment of a student promoted from an earlier grade at SICS) in order to promote 
and ensure contemplated enrollment in each grade at the school.  
Involuntary Withdrawal 
The intentional provision of untruthful information at application, admission or enrollment entitles SICS 
to permanently exclude the student from the school, even if the student was admitted, enrolled, or 
permitted to attend. 
There may be situations in which a student is asked to leave the school, or is expelled. The Student 
Disciplinary Code covers the steps to be taken in such a situation. 
SICS will collect student exit data annually and prepare a report for the New York State Education 
Department, as per their guidelines, regardless of whether the exit was voluntary or involuntary. 



	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 
 

 

NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Table	2A	-		1	

SOFARA	INTERNATIONAL	CHARTER	SCHOOL	
Table	2:	Public	Outreach	Information	

	
	

Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

Scheduled	
FUTURE	outreach	

	
To	begin	

October	2017	
	

Direct	Parent	
outreach	toward	
enrollment.	Giving	
out	pre-application	
information,	solicit	
pre-application	
intent	to	enroll	
parent/student	

contact	information	

Throughout	
Harlem	

Early	childhood	
centers,	family	day	
cares,	Housing	

resident	associations	

TBD	 Create	an	official	list	of	
family	contact	

information	from	those	
who	express/request	
desire	for	additional	

application	
information.	

*Call	and	e-mail	
families	

TBD	

Scheduled	
FUTURE	Outreach	

	
To	begin	

August	31	-	
September	15,	

2017	

Identify	and	Contact	
or	update	Harlem	
based	francophone	
cultural	centers,	
CBOs,	Housing	

associations	toward	
enrollment	

Email,	telephone	
and	in-person	

Francophone	
enclaves	in	Harlem	

TBD	 Create	an	official	list	of	
family	contact	

information	from	those	
who	express/request	
desire	for	additional	

application	
information.	

*Call	and	e-mail	
families	

TBD	

	
August	10,	2017	

SICS	co-hosted	an	
open	education	

booth	for	the	CBO	
Each	One	Teach	One	

to	inform	and	
request	feedback	
and	solicit	contact	
information	for	
enrollment	

Edgecomb	Park	
155th	Street	

General	community	
in	CSD	6HH	and		

CSD	5	

Sports	should	be	
added	to	after	

school	that	are	in	
addition	to	
basketball	

	

*SICS	COL	is	seeking	
out	additional	sports	
opportunities	that	may	

be	added	as	
enrichment	or	

incorporated	into	P.E.	
*Engage	with	families	
who	signed	up	for	
enrollment	notification	

There	was	a	
large	

community	
presence.	

Approximately	
200	flyers	were	
passed	out	by	
COL	and	SICS	

Board	members	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

August	11,	2017	 Follow-up	Discussion	
on	community	needs	
in	CSD	5	and	6HH	

E-mail	 Chairperson	CB	9	
covering	CSD	5	and	6	

Recommendation	
was	made	not	to	
alter	the	SICS’	DL	

program	to	Spanish	
if	sited	in	CSD	6HH	
French	DL	with	
Mandarin	after	

school	is	well	suited	
for	the	community	

Changes	were	not	
made.	CB	9	Chair	

recommendations	were	
in-line	with	majority	of	

parent	feedback	

CB	9	Education	
Committee	

Chair	and	SICS	
Executive	
Director	

July	24,	2017	 Update	to	CB	9	and	
from	CSD	5	and	6	of	
current	trends.	
Additional	

solicitation	for	
feedback		

E-mail	 Chairperson	CB	9	
covering	CSD	5	and	6	

Both	CSD	5	and	6	
parents	are	

receptive	to	charter	
schools	

N/A	 CB	9	Education	
Committee	

Chair	and	SICS	
Executive	
Director	

July	21,	2017	 SICS	to	host	in-
person	follow-up	
conversations	with	
Directors	who	

attended	roundtable	
and	additional	

invitees	to	create	
path	to	family	

engagement	and	
enrollment	

80	East	110th	
Street	

Early	childhood	
service	and	education	

providers	

*Education-based	
Volunteers	from	
SICS	are	welcome	
*	Parents	would	be	

receptive	to	
learning	more	

about	“this	type	of	
school”	

*	Continue	with	
discovery	at	least	
through	2nd	grade	

*SICS	scheduled	time	
to	engage	with	children	

at	the	2	Centers		
*SICS	provided	
information	and	
feedback	forms	to	

distribute	to	families	
*Facts	on	discovery	and	
inquiry	learning	from	K-

6	will	be	added	to	
future	flyers	for	early	
childhood	centers		

5	Directors	
representing	3	
small	daycare	
centers	and	2	
family	daycares	

serving	a	
combined	280	

children	
	

SICS	COL	and	
Executive	
Director	

July	11,	2017	 Distribution	of	flyers	
CSD	4,	5,	and	6HH	

CSD	4	Pleasant	
Avenue	section	
114th-120th	Sts.	

	

General	community	 TBD	 TBD	 270	flyers	were	
distributed	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

June	20,	2017	 Update,	inform,	and	
solicit	feedback	from	
Community	Board	in	

person	for	
	CSD	5	

Community	Board	
(CB)	10	main	

office	
	

CB	10	Education,	
Youth	and	Libraries	

Committee	

The	Committee	
asked	many	

questions	about	
foreign	language	
offering	and	

development	and	
the	timeline	for	
submission	to	
authorization.	

N/A	 Seven	
community	
stakeholders	
Four	CB10	

members	and	
three	

community	
stakeholders,	

June	19,	2017	 SICS	hosted	a	
Directors’	

Roundtable	Brunch	
discussion	to	update	

participants	on	
Sofara	progress,	
solicit	additional	
feedback,	discuss	

current	events	in	the	
industry	and	enlist	
assistance	with	
recruitment	and	
enrollment.	

	

Maysles	Cinema	
343	Lenox	

Avenue/Malcolm	X	
Boulevard	
Harlem	

Directors	of	
community	

organizations,	early	
childhood	centers	
and	community	

enrichment	programs	

*Engagement	
needs	to	be	done	
for	caregivers	other	
than	parents	such	
as	grandparents	
*	School	should	
offer	a	parent	
retreat	to	build	
community	and	
increase	exposure	
to	diversity	and	

cultural	
development	
*Get	and	keep	
parents	involved	

*Workshops	and	
engagement	geared	for	

the	diversity	of	
caregivers	was	

incorporated	into	the	
engagement	through	

the	FSA	
*SICS	incorporated	an	
expected	minimum	
number	parent	

volunteer	opportunities	
to	participate	in	for	
Year	1	to	kick	off	the	
culture	of	parent	
involvement	

*SICS	will	seek	out	a	
grant	to	offer	French	
language	and	English	
language	classes	

(and	other	activities)	
for	free	to	parents	
through	the	FSA		

Five	Directors	
representing	
over	1800	

children	from	
CSDs	4,	5	and	6	

attended.	
	

SICS:	Executive	
Director,	DOTL,	
COL	and	Board	
Vice-Chair	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

June	16,	2017	 SICS	hosted	a	
community	

conversation	with	
Assemblyman	Robert	

Rodriguez	on	
education		

SICS	office	
Harlem	

Harlem	Political	
community	and	

Community	members	
who	have	an	interest	
in	education	reform	

*Dual	language	
French	programs	
are	needed	and	

essential	
*School	should	be	

part	of	the	
community	
*Attendees	

expressed	overall	
need	for	new	

education	choices	

SICS	COL	is	vetting	
additional	

organizations	to	
collaborate	with	on	

curricular	activities	and	
student	and	family	

engagement		

22	attendees	
*Assemblyman	

Robert	
Rodriguez,	
community	
stakeholders	
from	the	West	
African,	Haitian	
and	American	
sub-groups	

June	13,	2017	 Inform	and	solicit	
feedback	from	

Community	Board	in	
person	for	
	CSD	4	

Community	Board	
(CB)	11	main	

office	

CB	11	Youth	and	
Education	Committee	

*Committee	will	
put	SICS	on	agenda	
for	next	meeting	
*Education	is	

important	to	the	
East	Harlem	
Community	

SICS	Board	members	
are	continuing	the	

conversation	with	the	
committee	between	

sessions		

20	attendees	-	
Five	CB	11	
members,15	
community	
stakeholders,	
SICS	Executive	
Director	and	

DOTL	
June	10,	2017	 Flyer	distribution	in	

CSD	5	to	inform	and	
solicit	feedback	

138th	Street	
Subway	Stop		
(3	train)		

General	population	
across	socio	

economic	spectrum	
in	a	highly	trafficked	

area	

N/A	 N/A	 100	flyers	
distributed	
SICS	COL	

June	9,	2017	 Flyer	distribution	in	
CSD	4	to	inform	and	
solicit	feedback	

CSD	4	-	Park	
Avenue	from	
103rd	Street	to	
125th	Street	

A	corridor	of	the	
community	that	is	
mainly	commercial	
and	therefore	hosts	
residence	who	may	
not	otherwise	have	

means	to	be	
informed	

Many	business	
owners	expressed	
enthusiasm	in	SICS	

programming	
elements	

*SICS	COL	will	follow-
up	with	business	
owners	to	arrange	
experiential	and	

expeditionary	learning	
opportunities	

SICS	COL	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

June	5,	2017	 High	performing	
school	visitation	for	
SICS	Board	and	

School	Leadership	to	
gain	information	on	
Leadership,	oversight	
and	programming	
considerations	in	an	
inquiry-led	school	

and	receive	feedback	
on	SICS’	key	design	

elements	

The	Calhoun	
School	

	
Lower	School	
Robert	Beir	
building	

West	74th	Street	

School	Leadership	 *School	Leaders	
had	an	extensive	

discussion	covering	
a	wide	array	of	
topics	including:	

hiring	and	retaining	
quality	teachers;	
and	addressing	
teacher	issues	in	
relation	to	student	

interactions	

SICS	School	Leadership	
will	schedule	into	staff	

PD	intentional	
conversations	on	
subjects	such	as	

teacher	bias	and	the	
“deficit	model”	of	

thinking	about	children	
*SICS	has	begun	to	
outline	a	clearly	

defined	plan	for	rolling	
in	additional	strategies	
for	teacher	as	leader	

rolls	

Calhoun	
Director	of	

Lower	School	
and	Director	of	
Admissions	

SICS	Executive	
Director,	DOTL,		
Board	Vice-

Chair	

June	1,	2017	 Reach	out	to	
Directors	of	
established	
community	

programs	serving	
large	number	of	
families	to	create	

community	network	
and	path	for	
enrollment	

Local	Coffee	shop	 Kids	Passport	to	
Adventure	(KDTA)	

CSD	6HH	

*Outdoor,	family	
focused	activities	

should	be	
incorporated	as	a	
regular	part	of	

student	
life/activities	
*SICS	should	

incorporate	a	camp	

SICS	is	considering	
ways	to	collaborate	

with	KDTA	to	enhance	
student	experiences	
within	curriculum	

Founder,	KDTA	
and		

SICS	Executive	
Director	

May	-	June	2017	 SICS	hosted	a	series	of	
four	(4)	empowerment	

workshops	for	
community	parents	in	
CSDs	4	and	5	while	

sharing	information	on	
“the	SICS	difference”	

The	Raw	Space	
2031	Adam	Clayton	
Powell	Jr.	Blvd.	

and	
El	Faro	Beacon	

Community	Center	
in	JHS	45	

2351	First	Avenue,	
NYC		
CSD4	

Parents	with	children	
in	K	and	first	grade	

who	may	be	looking	to	
enroll	in	a	new	school	

*Several	parents	
volunteered	to	help	get	
SICS	off	the	ground	
*Highlights:	
-International	focus	
-Use	business	trends	to	
make	decisions	on	skills	
to	be	taught	
*Concerns:	Enrollment	
through	lottery	system	

SICS’	COL	has	organized	
parent	volunteer	

activities	to	help	with	
outreach	now	and	

enrollment	in	the	future	
	

A	total	of	43	
parents	attended	
the	four	events.	
SICS	Executive	
Director,	COL	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

May	31,	2017	
May	15,	2017	

Follow-up	
conversations	

regarding	start-up	
resources	for	SICS	

Phone	
Conversation		
and	e-mail	

Gates	Foundation,	
Charter	School	

Division	

*Sound	Board	
develop	is	needed	

(resources	
provided)	

*Leadership	by	
staff	should	be	built	

into	structure	
*Leadership	

structure	should	
not	be	top	down	

*SICS’	framework	
provides	for	
distribution	of	

leadership	across	staff	
including	teachers	who	

take	ownership	of	
curriculum	

*SICS	team	members	
followed-up	on	

resources	provided	by	
the	Foundation	

Gates	
Foundation	
Don	Shalvey,	
Director		

US	Programs,	
Vanessa	
Murrieta,	
Charter	

Investments	
SICS	-	Executive	
Director,	Board	

Vice-Chair	
May	18,	2017	 Flyer	distribution	in	

CSD	4	and	5	to	
inform	and	solicit	

feedback	

128th	Street,	
Lexington	Avenue	
to	Amsterdam	
Avenue	(covers	
both	districts)	

General	population	
with	socio	economic	
and	racial	diversity	

N/A	 N/A	 230	flyers	were	
distributed	at	
buildings	and	to	
families	on	the	

street	
May	11,	2017	 Increase	the	network	

of	partner	schools	
for	SICS	to	

collaborate	with	

Boreum	Hill	
School	for	

International	
Studies	(public)	

French	dual	language	
&	IB	school	

*Include	parents	in	
school	life	

*Students	with	
special	needs	
should	not	be	

underestimated	or	
expected	to	do	less	

Action	was	considered	
for	issues	discussed	as	

well	as	seen	
*Modifications	to	
school	culture	were	

made	
*Considerations	for	
recruitment	and	
retention	of	Staff	-	

including	pathways	for	
parents	

BH-	Principal,	
Parent	

Coordinator,	
FLE	teacher,	

SpEd	teacher,	IB	
Coordinator	

SICS	-	Executive	
Director,	DOTL,	
COL,	Board	
Vice-Chair	

	
May	1,	2017	 Reach	out	to	

Directors	of	
community	

programs	and	
centers	serving	large	
numbers	of	children	
and/or	families	to	
create	community	

network	and	path	for	
enrollment	

The	Boys	Club	
111th	Street,	

Harlem	location	
CSD4	

Directors	of	
community	programs	

*SICS	may	interact	
with	families	and	
use	their	facility	for	

meetings.	
*SICS	should	seek	
connections	with	
Directors	serving	
younger	children	

Changed	outreach	to	
include	Early	Childhood	

Centers	

SICS	outreach	
team	and	Boys	
Club	Director	
and	staff	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

April	26,	2017	 Seek	out	professional	
resources	to	enhance	
the	startup	of	SICS	and	
implementation	of	
programs.	

The	Harvard	Club	
NYC	

Allan	Golston,	
Gates	Foundation	

*Dual	language	
Charter	Schools	are	

needed.	
*Resources	are	

available	to	Charter	
Operators		

Follow-up	call	
scheduled	

Gates	
Foundation	

Allan	Golston,	
President	and	

Chapin	Springer,	
Comunications	

Officer	
SICS-	Executive	
Director,	Board	

Vice-Chair	
April	10-14,	2017	 In-person,	door	to	door	

outreach	in	locations	
where	parents	gather	
-	Serengeti	Teas	&	Spices	
2292	Frederick	Douglass	
Blvd	
-	Jacobs	Restaurant	
2695	Frederick	Douglass	
Blvd	
-	Chez	Alain	Restaurant,	
2046	Seventh	

CSD	5	 ESL	and	francophone	
families	who	may	not	
have	access	to	SICS	
information	

	

*	Open	the	school	in	
“our”	district	(aka	
northern	CSD5)	

*	French	and	Arabic	
are	what	our	children	

need	

SICS	core	working	group	
explored	additional	
facilities	options	and	

reviewed	outreach	data	
for	northern	CSD5	that	
would	demonstrate	a	
greater	demand	in	this	
area	for	locating	the	
school	and	enrolling	
Arabic	was	considered	
over	Mandarin	during	

enrichment	time;	may	be	
a	future	option	

	

April	3-7,	2017	 In-person,	door	to	
door	outreach	in	
locations	where	
parents	gather	

- African Hair 
Braiding 52 East 

125th Street 
- Mandingo 1990 
Third Avenue 

-Touba African 
Market 84 East 116th 

Street 
- Keur Coumbra 
Restaurant  
125 West 116th 

CSD	4	 ESL	and	francophone	
families	who	may	not	
have	access	to	SICS	
information	

	

*	We	definitely	
need	change	in	our	

schools	
	

*	K-8	is	better	than	
K-5.	Our	Middle	
Schools	need	help	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

March	5,	2017	 Distributed	flyers	in	
CSD	5	and	6HH	

at	well	trafficked	areas	

145th	Street	
corridor	

	

Families	that	may	not	
have	accessed	SICS	

information	
General	population	

Specific	feedback	
was	not	received	

N/A	 100	flyers	were	
distributed	

March	4,	2017	 Distributed	flyers	in	
CSD	4	at	well	
trafficked	areas	

3rd	Avenue	
corridor	96th	to	
116th	Streets	

Those	residents	who	
may	not	have	
accessed	SICS	
information	

	
General	population	

	

Specific	feedback	
was	not	obtained.	
Many	residents	
wanted	to	know	
where	SICS	would	
be	located	and	
when	we	would	

open	

N/A	
	

Intent	to	enroll	sheets	
and	comment	forms	
were	left	with	10	store	

owners	

132	flyers	were	
distributed	and	
30	comment	

forms	

	
	

February	21,	2017	

SICS	team	members	
participate	in	panel	

discussions	on	
working	with	at-risk	

children.	
SICS	is	sought	input	
on	supporting	at-risk	
children	from	single	
parent	households	
and	boys	in	special	

education	

Silberman	School	
of	Social	Work	
Hunter	College	
2180	Third	
Avenue,	NYC	

Professors	and	
students	of	social	
work	servicing	
children	in		
CSD	4	and	5	

	

TBD	 TBD	 Approximately	
120	

professionals	in	
the	field	of	

social	work	and	
family	support	

2/13/17	 Town	Hall	in	CSD	5	
	
Hosted	an	open	
meeting	to	update	
community	on	this	
application	process,	
allow	Q	&	A	and	
introduce	new	SICS	
BoT	member		

The	Kennedy	
Center	

34	West	134th	
Street,	NYC	

Interested	
community	members	

through	open	
discussion	forum	

*	Open	the	school	
in	District	5	

*	Two	participants	
were	excited	about	

French	as	the	
second	language	-	
these	were	West	
African	men,	not	

yet	fathers.	

SICS	is	widening	its	
target	demographic	to	

include	future	
parents/relatives	to	
boost	enrollment	as	a	
long	term	strategy.	

SICS	addressed	
6	residents	



	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 
 

 

NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
	 Table	2A	-		9	

Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

2/10/17	 Town	Hall	in	CSD	4	
	
Hosted	an	open	
meeting	to	update	
community	on	this	
application	process,	
allow	Q	&	A	and	
introduce	new	SICS	
BoT	member	

El	Faro	Beacon	
Community	
Center	
in	JHS	45	
2351	First	

Avenue,	NYC		

Interested	
community	members	

through	open	
discussion	forum	

Several	parents	had	
questions	about	the	

timeline	for	
opening	and	signed	
the	SICS	intent	to	

enroll	list.	
Two	West	African	
mother	stated	that	
they	knew	many	

families	that	would	
be	interested	in	

enrolling	

*Parent	contact	
information	was	added	
to	the	SICS	outreach	&	
enrollment	mailing	list.	

	
*SICS’	community	
Outreach	Liaison	
followed	up	the	

interested	mothers	to	
further	extend	

enrollment	outreach	

SICS	addressed	
16	families	

2/10/17	 Part	of	our	on-going,	
in-person	meetings	
with	the	leaders	and	

heads	of	major	
community-based	
organizations	

The	Boys	Club	of	
New	York	

287	East	10th	
Street		

The	Boys	Club	has	
been	catering	to	
economically	
disadvantaged	boys	
for	over	100	years,	
and	has	a	good	
understanding	of	
who	they	are,	what	
they	need	and	what	
they	seek.	
	
The	overall	
management	team	
and	lead	for	Harlem	
are	stakeholders	with	
extensive	experience	
providing	services	to	
young	boys	and	men		

*Keep	your	
promises	to	
families	
*Anticipate	boys	
with	many	risk	
factors	
*Provide	extended	
day	activities	
*Be	genuine	when	
dealing	with	the	
boys	
	
The	Director	
recommended	SICS	
use	March	2017	
meeting	to	explain	
key	differences	in	
our	academic	
program	to	
Directors	and	how	
it	serves	children	

*SICS	keeps	its	
promises	tied	to	its	
mission.		
*The	school	design	
supports	diversity,	
especially	the	many	risk	
factors.		
*extended	day	
activities	are	being	
planned.	*Inquiry-
based	learning	
promotes	a	high	level	
of	genuine	and	
authentic	discussion.	
SICS	has	scheduled	a	
Director’s	Roundtable	
for	March	2017	to	
inform	and	solicit	
feedback	from	
Directors	of	Headstarts	

The	Boys	Club	
of	New	York	
Executive	
Director	

(Stephen	Tosh)	
and	Carlos	
Velasquez,	

Director	of	the	
Harlem	site		
The	Executive	

Director,	
proposed	Vice	
Chairperson	
(BoT)	and	
Community	
Outreach	
Liaison.		
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

1/30/17	 Distributed	flyers	in	
CSD	4	at	housing	
complexes	and	youth	
center	
	

CSD	4	110th	
Street	to	120th	
Street:	
*NYCHA	Housing:			
The	Johnson	
Houses,	1844	
Lexington	Ave	
(btwn	E	112th	&	E	
115th)	
*Madison	Park	
co-op	apartments	
1825	&	1831	
Madison	Avenue	
(btwn	E	119th	&	E	
120th)	
*La	Celia	Co-op	
complex	64	East	
111th	St	(btwn	
Park	and	Madison	
Avenues)	
*Urban	Garden	
Center	116th	
Street	&	Park	Ave.	
*New	Heights	Inc.	
Youth	Center	
50	East	118th	St.	
*East	116th	St.	
Shopping	District	
corridor	
	
	
	

Families	of	students	
with	diverse	socio-

economic	
backgrounds	housed	

in		
low-income	and	

middle-income	(co-
op)	apartment	
complexes	and	

visiting	public	venues	

*Parents	requested	
timetable	for	
rollout.		
*Parents	offered	to	
volunteer	with	
further	outreach	
*	Several	parents	
inquired	about	
after	school	options	
and	the	need	for	
options	that	lasted	
through	5:30	pm	
*	Parents	with	
children	aged	out	
of	SICS	enrollment	
target	expressed	
interest	in	having	
access	to	SICS	
enrichment	
programming	

*Posted	application	
process	deadlines	on	
website.	
*Noted	which	parents	
wanted	to	volunteer.	
*SICS	will	use	a	
community	survey	
during	the	pre-opening	
phase,	to	determine	
level	of	interest	&	
support	for	opening	
one	or	both	of	its	after	
school	programs	to	
children	in	the	general	
community.		
The	results	will	be	
analyzed	by	the	Board	
Education	Committee	
for	feasibility.	

125	people	
received	flyers		
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

1/20/17	 In-person	meeting	
with	French	Gov.	
community	and	
education	
representatives	to	
introduce	Sofara,	
and	understand	
what	the	French	
Community	offers,	
needs,	and	is	
interested	in.	This	
addresses	student	
enrollment,	cultural	
exchange,	teacher	
recruitment,	and	
professional	
development	

French	Consulate	
972	5th	Avenue,	

N.Y.,	N.Y.	

The	Education	
Attache	has	mission	
of	promoting	French	
Culture	and	language	
in	the	US.	French	
community,	French	
speakers	living	in	
Harlem,	and	the	FACE	
Foundation	(French-
American	Cultural	
Exchange	in	
Education).	
Money	available	to	
support	French	
Cultural	exchanges.	

Both	M.	Michelon	
and	M.	Jaumont	
indicated	support	
for	Sofara	with	
facilitating	access	
to	material	and	
with	fund	raising.	
*22,000	French	
families	live	in	NYC;	
only	2-	3,000	have	
access	to	places	in	
DL	schools.	
*Avoid	direct	
competition	for	
students	with	
existing	schools	in	
CSD	3	

*	Relationship	initiated	
with	FACE.	
M.	Jaumont	to	link	SICS	
to	other	DL	schools	and	
administrators.		
*	Agreed	to	
collaborate,	share	
research	and	best	
practices,	evaluate	
other	joint	initiatives.		
*	Analysis	of	CSD	4	
demographics	-	we	are	
not	competing	directly	
with	existing	DL	
schools.	

2	attendees	
from	the	French	
Consulate:	the	
Deputy	Consul	
of	the	French	
Embassy,	
Thomas	
Michelon,	and	
Education	
Attache	Fabrice	
Jaumont	
3	attendees	
from	Sofara:	
Executive	
Director,Ms.	
Soto,	proposed	
board	Vice-
Chair,	Ms.	
Ahmad	and	
Community	
Outreach	
Liaison,	Mr.	
McCullough	

1/14/17	 Hosted	open	
community	“Health	

Fair”	event	to	
demonstrate	hands-
on	inquiry	based	
learning	and	solicit	

feedback.	
Participants	also	had	
the	opportunity	to	
meet	members	of	
the	Sofara	team	

CSD	4	Scan	El	
Faro	Beacon	
Community	

Center	in	JHS	45	
2351	First	

Avenue,	NYC	

CSD	4	general:	
families,	including	
economically	

disadvantaged	in	and	
around	the	NYCHA	
Wagner	Houses	

*Parent	feedback	
was	positive	on	the	
hands-on	learning	
and	connection	
between	science	
and	social	studies.	
*After	the	Yoga	
demonstration	
there	were	many	
questions	about	the	
use	and	benefits	of	
yoga	in	academics	

*SICS	will	expand	the	
number	of	parent	
workshops	and	
offerings	from	12	to	30	
through	the	Family	
School	Association.	
*Emotional	health	and	
mindfulness	were	
added	to	the	list	of	
parent	workshops.	
*SICS	will	continue	to	
look	at	Yoga	and	
learning.		

23	families,	11	
families	with	

children	eligible	
to	enroll	in	year	

one,	two	
families	in	year	
two	and	one	
family	in	year	

three	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

1/5/17	 Distribution	of	“Have	
you	heard”	flyers	
soliciting	feedback	

CSD	4	and	5		
125th	St.	

shopping	corridor	
(2nd	Ave.	to	8th	

Ave.)	

General	residents	in	a	
densely	populated	

area	(approx.	
10,000+)	

Feedback	was	
varied	with	new	
input	being	to:	

	

*locate	near	a	
subway	station	

	

*have	and	do	not	
have	uniforms	were	

requested	

To	build	student	
morale,	SICS	has	added	

additional	ways	in	
which	students	are	
allowed	to	express	
their	individuality	

within	the	school	dress	
code	

200+	people	
received	flyers	
of	which	about	
18	stopped	to	
speak	with	SICS	

team	
	

12/17/16	 Sent	personal	
invitations	to	families	
of	children	with	special	
needs	and	general	

education	students	in	
CSD	5	and	6HH.		

Hosted	a	hands-on	
Inquiry	based	STEM	
class	to	demonstrate	
the	difference	of	the	IB	

inquiry	based	
methodology	and	its	
benefit	for	children	

with	different	learning	
needs		

Columbia	
University	Design	

Studio	
490	Riverside	
Drive,	NYC	

Families	of	students	
interested	in	applied	
learning	as	a	means	
of	differentiation	for	

a	student	with	
disabilities	

Parents	expressed	
pleasure	with	

independence	of	
the	activity	and	
concern	with	the	
varying	levels	of	
task	completion	
amongst	the	
children	

Added	performance	
tasks,	and	applied	

learning	to	workshops	
to	be	provided	to	
through	the	Family	
School	Association	

(FSA)	

21	families	of	
eligible	2018	

first	and	second	
graders.	(Seven	
families	with	
children	with	
disabilities)	

12/06/16	 Meeting	with	
Principal	and	

Assistant	Principal	of	
P.S.	197	(discussing	
how	Sofara	could	
meet	children’s	

needs)	

P.S.	197	
2230	5th	Ave,	

NYC	
CSD	5	

Principal	Spann;	
	A	school	with	a	large	

Multilingual	and	
Special	Needs	
Population	of	
Learners	

*The	school	has	a	
large	population	of	
ELLs	from	West	
Africa	that	is	
underserved	
*	The	district	really	
only	has	one	school	
for	ELLs	
*ELL	services	in	
district	focus	on	
Spanish	speakers	
*	Would	like	to	
share	best	practices	
with	SICS	

*SICS	continues	its	
focus	on	ELL.	
*	School	Leaders	have	
agreed	to	collaborate	
on	student	and	teacher	
needs	in	support	of	
achievement		
*	Schedule	of	planning	
will	be	set	after	SICS	
authorization	

P.S.	197	
Principal	and	
Assistant	

Principal,	Each	
One	Teach	One	
community	

group	
representative,	

and	SICS’	
Executive	

Director	and	
Community	
Outreach	
Liaison	
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Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
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Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

12/02/16	 Continued	
conversation	with	
Assemblyman	

Rodriguez’s	office	
regarding	need	for	a	
French	dual	language	
program	for	children	

living	in	CSD	4	
Letter	of	Support	

Received	

Conference	Call	
with	Rodriguez’s	

office	

NYS	Assemblyman	and	
his	Education	Liaison	as	

representatives	of	
majority	Spanish	

language	dominant	
households	and	the	
growing	French	

speaking	demographic	
in	East	Harlem	

*The	large	number	of	
latin	constituents	in	
his	District	would	
also	like	opportunity	
to	learn	French	as	a	
second	and/or	third	
language	
*	Assemblyman	
suggested	that	
assistance	could	be	
forthcoming	with	
identifying	suitable	
sites	in	E.	Harlem,	
particularly	for	new	
construction	

*	SICS	obtained	a	
Support	Letter	indicating	
the	community	desire	/	
need	for	a	French	dual	
language	program	
	
*	SICS	members	toured	
East	Harlem	sites	
suggested	as	locations	to	
be	sited	

On-going	
conversation	
between	SICS’	
Community	

Outreach	Liaison	
and	Executive	

Director	and	the	
Assemblyman	
and	his	staff	

12/01/16	 Distributed	flyers	to	
families	in	public	

housing	

Jackie	Robinson	
Houses	

112	E	128th,	NYC		
	

Abe	Lincoln	Houses	
2110	Madison	Ave,	

NYC	
	
	

CSD	5	NYCHA	
complexes	in	East	

Harlem	
Those	residents	who	
may	not	have	accessed	

SICS	information	
Economically	

Disadvantaged	families	

Actionable	feedback	
was	not	obtained.	
Parents	commented	
that	they	liked	the	
idea	of	teaching	
children	through	

science	and	
appreciated	SICS’	

focus	on	helping	“all”	
students.	

SICS’	Outreach	Liaison	
will	return	to	this	
outlying	area	of	the	

district	and	incorporate	
other	fringe	areas	in	
future	outreach	

140	people	
received	a	Flyer	

11/30/16	 Culminating	piece	of	
ongoing	discussion	on	
solutions	to	increase	
diversity	in	schools	in	

Harlem	
	

SICS	Executive	
Director	Participated	
on	Panel	for	Education	

policy		

The	New	School:	
		

Center	for	New	
York	City	Affairs		

	

Wider	NYC	audience	of	
educational	advocates	
and	activists	to	bring	
awareness	to	Harlem	

educational	dynamic	and	
the	SICS	proposal	as	a	

solution;	Sought	
guidance	from	Director	of	

Education	policy	at	
Insideschools.org,	Clara	
Hemphil,	based	on	her	
standards	of	quality	

schools	ensuring	diversity	

*	Have	a	parent	
engagement	plan	
that	targets	different	
races,	ethnicities,	
and	income	groups	
	
*	Include	funding	for	
diversity	initiatives		
	
*	Listen	to	parent	
needs	

*	A	variety	of	inclusive	
activities	will	manifest	
through	SICS’	Family	
School	Association	to	
promote	diversity	of	
participants	

	
*	Specific	amount	of	
marketing	funding	was	
allocated	in	the	budget	
for	diversity	

Panelists:	SICS’	
Exec.	Director,	
NYCDOE	Deputy	
Chancellor	of	

Strategy	&	Policy,	
NYC	Council	
member	Brad	
Lander,	CSD	2	
CEC	President,	

and	75+	audience	
members	
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Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
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Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
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11/23/16	 Participation	in	
Legislative	Breakfast	
hosted	by	the	CSD	4	
Superintendent	
to	inform	school	
Leaders	of	SICS	

proposal	

321	E	111th	St	 District	4	
Superintendent,	PTA	

Leaders,	Parent	
Coordinators	&	
Elected	Officials	

*	School	Leaders	
were	concerned	

about	SICS	securing	
space	

SICS	engaged	with	local	
electeds	regarding	new	
developments	being	
built	that	could	house	

the	school	

12	schools	were	
represented	

with	teams	of	3	
or	4		
	

7	elected	
officials		

11/22/16	 In-person	meeting	at	
Dwight	School	with	
Global	Curriculum	
Coordinator	/		

IB	Diploma	Program	
Coordinator	to	solicit	

feedback	on	
application	

The	Dwight	
School	18	West	
89th	Street,	N.Y,	
N.Y.	(CSD3)	

A	leading	school	with	
a	successful	IB	dual	
language	model	in	

place	

Extensive	
discussion:	
Feedback	on	parent	
engagement,	dual	
language,	ELL	and	
SWD	
considerations,	and	
assessment	tools		

*	Increase	parent	
opportunities	to	
experience	IB.	
*	Add	experiential	
parent	engagement	
*	Switch	to	NWEA	MAP	
for	student	assessment	
&	school-wide	growth	

(Three	
participants)	

Sofara	Executive	
Director,	

proposed	Board	
Vice-Chair,	and	

Dwight	
Administrator	

11/9/16	
	
	

Second	in-person	
meeting	with	the	

Community	Board	9	
(CB9)	

Youth	Education	&	
Libraries	Committee	

at	their	official	
monthly	meeting	to	

address	their	
Facilities,	

Enrollment,	
Application,	and	

Academics’	
questions	

	
	

Broadway	
Housing,	583	

Riverside	Dr.	7th	
Floor,	NY,	NY	

Stakeholders	in	
Western	Harlem	

CSD	5	
and	CSD	6HH	

	

CB	9	Committee	
members	had	

extensive	questions	
on	each	section	of	
the	SICS	education	

plan.	
The	end	result	was	
a	Resolution	in	
support	of	SICS	
from	the	CB9	
general	body	

All	questions	were	
answered	via	email	and	

then	in-person	
	
	

Five	Committee	
members	and	
six	community	
members	/	
residents	
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Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
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10/28/16	 Discussion	to	inform	
and	solicit	feedback	
from	School	Leader	

in	the	area	of	
Operations	

Conference	call	 Partnership	NYC,	a	
Catholic	School	
Management	
Network	

*Create	a	clear	path	
for	the	emphasis	of	
benefit	of	skills	in	
Middle	&	High	
School	
*Afterschool	
programming	
should	support	
student	learning	in	
day	school	
*Deliberately	
educate	families	
about	the	school	
model	
*Incorporate	free	or	
low	cost	afterschool	
options	
*Ensure	the	budget	
reflects	the	
minimum	wage	
increases	for	the	
coming	years	

*Marketing	material	
and	ongoing	parent	
engagement	to	include	
more	details	on	benefits	
of	being	a	bilingual	and	
learning	through	inquiry	
*	STEM-based	after	
school	program	added		
*Budget	allocations	
were	adjusted	to	align	
with	new	minimum	
wage	laws	coming	into	
effect	

The	Partnership	
Director	of	

Operations	and	
SICS’	Executive	

Director	

10/15/16	 Open	community	
education	fair	for	
Parents	in	Harlem	

	
SICS	participated	
with	a	table	at	the	

fair		

CSD5	/	CEC5	Main	
site	

425	West	123rd	
Street	

Harlem	parents	and	
caregivers	who	may	
not	have	heard	about	
the	SICS	proposal		

Visitors	to	SICS	
table	were	

interested	in	the	
school	model,	took	
flyers,	and	many	

left	contact	
information	for	
general	and	

enrollment	updates	

Follow-up	emails	were	
sent,	additional	

enrollment	information	
and	link	on	website	

were	sent.		

Approximately	
35	community	
residents	visited	
the	SICS	table	
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7/22/16	 Hispanic	Chamber	of	
Commerce	

SICS	attended	an	
open	event	of	

business	leaders	
seeking	feedback	on	
second	language	
acquisition	for	

business	purposes	in	
the	Latin	community	

CSD6	 Business	leaders	who	
could	speak	to,	and	
give	feedback	on,	the	

usefulness	of	
acquiring	an	

additional	language	
in	doing	business	

*	The	international	
focus	and	skills	of	
the	school	is	on	
track	and	useful	
*	Children	should	
learn	as	many	
languages	as	
possible,	including	
French,	because	it	
helps	to	open	up	
new	markets	in	
business	
*	Mandarin	is	very	
sought	after	

*	SICS	added	language	
instruction	in	the	after	
school	by	partnering	
with	Manhattan	
Mandarin	

Over	50	
business	owners	

were	in	
attendance.	

SICS	staff	spoke	
specifically	with	

9	business	
owners,	6	of	
which	do	

business	in	East	
Harlem	(CSD4)	

7/16/16	 SICS	hosted	a	Garden	
Party	

for	stakeholders	who	
work	in	different	

sectors	of	education	

West	127th	
Street,	Harlem,	

NYC	

Educators	who	work	
outside	the	

classroom	to	support	
student	needs.	These	

include	charter	
operators,	hearing	
officers,	therapists,	
legal	advocates,	

leadership	coaches,	
parents,	elected	
officials,	Parent	

coordinators,	Parent	
activists	

*	Create	multiple	
opportunities	for	

parent	involvement	
in	student	

achievement.	
	
	

*	SICS	added	the	use	of	
BLOOMZ	classroom	

community	app	to	the	
repertoire	of	teacher	
tools	to	keep	parents	

involved	

37	attendees	
from	across	the	
spectrum	of	
educational	

fields	
CSDs	3,	4,	5,	6,	7	
and	New	Jersey	

7/1/16	 	East	Harlem	
Community	Visioning	

Workshop	-		
	

East	Harlem	

Silberman	School	
of	Social	Work,	
Hunter	College	
2180	3rd	Ave,	

NYC	

Stakeholders	in	East	
Harlem	and	CSD4	

*	Families	do	not	
feel	invested	in	
their	children’s	
education.	
	*	Families	do	not	

*	SICS	began	parent	
advocacy	outreach	

through	Power	to	the	
Harlem	Parents	that	
will	continue	after	

150+	
participants	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

Neighborhood	Plan	
	

To	hear	community	
needs	around	
education	and	

inform	participants	
of	SICS’	proposal	

	
One	of	a	series	of	
open	community	
working	groups	to	
discuss	economic	
redevelopment	of	

East	Harlem	

understand	their	
rights		
*	Only	low	
performing	children	
are	being	served	by	
Charter	Schools	
	*	School	curriculum	
needs	to	be	revised	
to	be	more	diverse	
and	less	traditional	
(academic	focusing	
on	Math	and	
English)	by	focusing	
more	on	STEM	and	
including	sex	
education,	arts,	
music,	culture,	local	
history,	special	
education	
programs,	financial	
education	and	
vocational	training	
with	exposure	to	
career	options.		

authorization	to	inform	
parents	of	their	rights	
and	responsibilities	

	
*	SICS	will	maintain	

initial	K-6	grade	span	a	
	

*	SICS	is	partnering	
with	STEMKids	NYC	to	
bring	STEM	education	
to	students	in	the	

afterschool	portion	of	
the	day	

	

1/14/16	 Digital	Community	
Survey	

Provide	the	
community	with	a	
continuously	active	
method	of	leaving	

feedback		
	

Online		
	

Accessed	through	
the	SICS	website	

This	is	a	live	
enrollment	and	

feedback	survey	that	
allows	the	

community	to	leave	
comments	

Many	parents	like	
SICS	for	the	inquiry	

and	
progressiveness	of	

the	model	of	
teaching	and	
learning	

*In	consideration	of	
enrollment,	SICS	has	

highlighted	the	
progressive	aspects	of	
the	education	plan	
during	outreach	

31	responses	
have	been	

received	to	date	
from	parents	in	
CSDs	3,	4,	5,	6,	

and	7	
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

	
	
	
	

(2014-2016)	
Planning	and	
development	

period	

	
	
	
	

Significant	points	of	
feedback	were	

received	in	the	early	
planning	and	

development	period	
from	community	

outreach	
	

	
	
	
	

Various	

	
	
	
	

Parents	who	were	
concerned	about	the	
choices	of	education	
programs	in	local	

schools	

	
A	repeated	parent	
request	has	been	to	
change	or	include	

additional	
languages	of	study	

for	the	dual	
language	program	
or	as	an	enrichment	
language.	Requests	

have	included	
Mandarin,	Spanish,	
Wolof,	Arabic,	and	

Swahili	

1.	After	extensive	
research	on	future	
industry	trends,	
comparing	business	
and	geographic	data,	
analyzing	CSD	5	
demographic	data,	and	
comparing	the	
linguistic	reach	of	the	
requested	languages,	
SICS	decided	to	
maintain	French	as	its	
second	language.		
2.	SICS	will	offer	the	
choice	of	Mandarin	in	
an	afterschool	setting.		

	
	

SICS	team	
members	spoke	
to	over	1,000	
parents,	all	of	
Harlem’s	
political	

representatives		

	
Families	with	children	

eligible	for	
Kindergarten	

enrollment	in	2017	

Several	
respondents	

requested	that	we	
serve	younger	

children	at	the	Pre-
K	level	

The	Sofara	team	would	
like	to	offer	a	Pre-K	
setting.	The	discussion	
is	tabled	until	the	end	
of	Year	1.	This	decision	
was	taken	to	allow	for	
coherent	pre-opening	
and	start-up	of	SICS.	

	

	
Public	school	parents	
whose	children	have	
a	variety	of	academic	

needs	

	
The	parents	of	the	

Community	
Education	Council	

asked	us	to	
consider	creating	a	
Middle	School	

Sofara	International	
would	like	to	grow	into	
the	upper	grades	in	
future	charter	terms.	
For	this	request,	
however,	the	Sofara	
team	is	confident	that	
by	utilizing	the	Primary	
Years	Program	as	
designed	through	6th	
grade,	its	students	will	
enter	Middle	School	
highly	prepared.		
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Dates	of	Outreach	 Description	of	
Outreach	

Location	of	
Outreach	

Target	Stakeholder	
Group	

Feedback	Obtained	 Action	Taken	on	
Feedback	

Number	of	
Attendees	

	 	
School	Leaders	

	
Parent	engagement	

and	teacher	
support	must	be	

strong	components.	

We	implemented	stop	
points	throughout	the	

design	for	parent	
engagement.	This	

includes	a	dedicated	
staffing	position	of	

Community	Outreach	
Organizer,	whose	

responsibilities	include	
developing	and	

maintaining	a	Family	
School	Association,	
teacher	stipends	for	
parent	outreach,	and	
dedicated	parent	time	
at	board	meetings	as	
part	of	a	wider	plan.	

Teacher	supports	were	
revised	to	include	
travel	stipends	that	
have	an	international	
focus	and	additional	
time	for	teacher	team	
planning.	We	also	
chose	the	Marzano	

evaluative	framework	
method	as	opposed	to	
the	Danielson	because	
it	inherently	allows	for	
more	teacher	support.	
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Attachment 2b: Evidence of Public Review Process 

As discussed in Section I.E Public Outreach, SICS has implemented a three-tiered approach to engage 
district parents, CBOs, educational administrators, politicians and the community on efforts to develop a 
sound school structure and education plan. CSD 4 and 5, and the Hamilton Heights section of CSD 6 
were targeted. Neighboring areas and districts, global organizations, cultural institutions, and educators 
were also engaged. 

 
1) In addition to other methods, Sofara International Charter School “has informed the 
community about the proposed charter school, including the intended location, the target student 
population, the grades to be served, and a description of the educational program(s) to be 
offered” in multiple languages through: 

1A) The school’s website www.sofarainternational.org 
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1B) Flyers, in a variety of formats, were distributed. 

 
Post Card Flyer - Posted On Community Bulletin Boards & Housing Complexes 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

SOFARA 
INTERNATIONAL  CHARTER SCHOOL 

 

A proposed K-6 elementary school in HARLEM 
Seeking authorization from the Board of Regents through NYSED 

PREPARING OUR CHILDREN FOR A GLOBAL 
SOCIETY AND ECONOMY 

* INQUIRY-LED  * REAL WORLD SKILLS  * HANDS-ON APPLIED LEARNING  * GLOBAL SKILLS 
* FRENCH DUAL LANGUAGE  * TARGETED INTERVENTION TEACHERS IN EVERY CLASS 

Creating an International Baccalaureate World School 
 

When: The Sofara team is applying in August 2017 to NYSED to open in August of 2018 
Where: Sofara is requesting to serve Harlem communities in either school districts 4 or 5, or 

the Hamilton Heights section of school district 6 

GIVE US YOUR FEEDBACK  
Contact: 
www.sofarainternational.org E-mail : info@sofarainternational.org 646-644-0300 

only at 

 
  

1C) SICS regularly 
distributed unique flyers in each 
requested CSD to inform the 
community. This flyer format 
has become recognizable in the 
community and positively 
associated with SICS’ efforts. 
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1D) Fact Sheets, in different formats, were distributed at community events, information 
tables, and events hosted by SICS. 

 
 

 
 

   
Individual Minds 

      Breaking Boundaries 
	
	

FACT	SHEET	
	
SOFARA	INTERNATIONAL	CHARTER	SCHOOL	is	a	proposed	school	founded	by	members,	
parents,	and	residents	of	Harlem.	The	Sofara	team	is	seeking	authorization	to	be	sited	
in	either	District	4	or	5	or	6	in	Hamilton	Heights	from	the	New	York	State	Board	of	
Regents	through	the	New	York	State	Education	Department.		Sofara	will	submit	a	

proposal	in	the	2017	Request	For	Proposal	round	with	the	intent	to	open	its	doors	for	
the	2018-19	school	year.	

	
ê Sofara	is	offering	the	community	the	choice	of	a dual language model of teaching and 

learning that incorporates content immersion.  
 
ê Children will learn from and with each other in an integrated setting beginning in Kindergarten 

in which 50% of instruction is in French and 50 % in English.  
 
ê Through our approach, students attain a high level of proficiency in English as well as French 

by the end of elementary school.  
 
ê To further boost the learning experience and form a love of learning, Sofara will implement an 

inquiry based curriculum utilizing the International Baccalaureate that takes the real world 
and student’s natural need to discover and explore their world to achieve new academic heights. 

 
ê Such student-driven education has proven to be especially successful with children who:	
	

● Who are multi dimensional and need a variety of academic interactions to excel forward	
● Need to awaken and promote a curiosity and desire to learn (especially true for children who 

may not be intrinsically motivated to learn), and maintain this through alternative 
instructional delivery systems 	

● Come from multi-cultural, multi-lingual families	
● Thrive when the teaching pace and educational content are student driven	
● Are part of transient families, and need to jump right into curriculum without barriers Are 

deemed to have special needs, particularly the need to move and explore in a structured 
discovery space 	

● Seek alternative ways to receive and express learning	
	

We	are	continuously	seeking	your	feedback	on	our	design	and	your	interest	in	
enrolling	your	children	with	us.		

	
Talk	with	one	of	the	Sofara	team	members	in	the	room	or	contact	us	when	convenient.	

Email:	info@sofarainternational.org	 	 Call:	646-644-0300	
See:	www.sofarainternational.org	for	information	and	our	enrollment	and	feedback	links	
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1E) SICS informed the community with flyers and postings in Spanish as demonstrated here, 
and French. 

 
  

 
 

    
Sofara International Charter School propone 
crear una escuela primaria de Bachillerato 

Internacional Mundial (IB) para abrir en 2018 en Harlem, que ofrece un marco 
equilibrado y progresivo para la enseñanza y el aprendizaje. Esto significa social y 
emocional, además de académico e intelectual. Esto significa que nuestros hijos seran 
felices, hábil y listo para el mundo. 
 
Matrícula gratuita, Sofara proporcionará acceso académicos a la par con las escuelas 
progresistas como Avenidas y Calhoun y otros Colegios del BI, incluyendo, Dwight, 
Británico Internacional, Escuela Internacional de Brooklyn, y la Escuela Internacional de 
las Naciones Unidas. 
 
Sofara ofrecerá: 
- Un plan de estudios dirigido por el descubrimiento de información / adecuado 

para satisfacer las necesidades de todos los niños 
- Idiomas extranjeros a través de un programa de lenguaje dual y 

enriquecimiento después de la escuela 
- Un ambiente seguro y acogedor 
- Clases pequeñas 
- Especialistas educativos amplios para satisfacer las necesidades de los 

estudiantes en situación de riesgo 
- Integración de Artes 
- Componente de la Ciencia Fuerte 
- Horario extendido y después de la programación de la escuela 
- Un enfoque internacional 

  
Trabajemos juntos para hacer Sofara International Charter School una realidad! 
Únasen al movimiento! 
 
Más información está disponible en:   www.sofarainternational.org 
 
Danos su opinion: 
Como:		Llamar	/	text	646-644-0300	

	E-mail	info@sofarainternational.org	

	Tweet			@SofaraInt,	

	Por	favor,	deja	un	recado	a	facebook		

	https://www.facebook.com/Sofara-International-Charter-School-

1375404356024672/?fref=ts	

Firmar	nuestra	petición	digitaleson	ou	deja	un	recado	a	:	

http://www.ipetitions.com/petition/sofarrahinternationalschool/	
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Businesses and community organizations in francophone dense neighborhoods received information in French

	
	
School Support 
 

Date:	March	1,	2017	 	 	
Revision:	V	1.2	 	 	 	 	 	 1	

Individual Minds Breaking 
Boundaries

Votre Soutien est Important Pour Nous Tous 
«	Sofara	Charter	International	School	»	a	été	invité	par	l’Etat	à	présenter	sa	proposition	d'école	avec	son	nouveau	concept	innovant	d'éducation.		
L'école,	une	fois	accrédité,	sera	gratuite	pour	la	communauté.	Si	vous	avez	des	enfants	qui	auront	atteint	l'âge	de	5,	6	ou	7	ans	d'ici	décembre	2018,	
veuillez	s'il	vous	plait	signer	cette	pétition.	Si	ensuite	vous	souhaitez	inscrire	votre	ou	vos	enfants,	ils	seront	les	bienvenus	et	admissible	seulement	en	
remplissant	notre	formulaire	d'inscription.	Vous	serez	ensuite,	les	premiers	à	être	avisés	et	invités	à	officialiser	votre	demande	une	fois	que	nous	
serons	assurés	d'être	légalement	officialisé.	

Sofara	International	Charter	School	sera	le	premier	établissement	multilingues	Français/Anglais	à	CSD	4	et	5	-	Central	Harlem.	Notre	programme	
d'éducation	suivra	le	structure	Baccalauréat	International	(IB),	avec	sa	structure	d'enseignement	innovante.	Le	programme	d'éducation	bénéficiera	
d’un	contenu	pédagogique	qui	sera	composé	de	plusieurs	facteurs	:	Social,	Emotionnel	et	Participative,	car	nous	avons	pour	but	d'être	compris	de	
tous	les	enfants	à	partir	de	la	maternelle	jusqu'à	6eme.	

Le	programme	inclus	les	étudiants	ayant	une	déficience,	les	personnes	voulant	parler	et	lire	l'anglais,	mais	le	plus	important	les	enfants	
économiquement	défavorisés	qui	doivent	pouvoir	eux	aussi	avoir	la	chance	d'apprendre	comme	tout	le	monde.	

Les	programmes	de	l'IB	sont	créés	et	conçus,	afin	de	faire	participer	et	apprendre	aux	enfants	d'une	manière	plus	complète,	pédagogique	et	donc	
le	plus	proche	possible	de	leurs	sensibilités	de	structure	familiale.	Si	le	Français	est	votre	langue	maternelle	ou	si	vous	voulez	que	votre	ou	
vos	enfants	soient	tout	aussi	à	l'aise	en	langue	Française	qu’Anglaise,	apprendre	avec	notre	double	approche	linguistique	fera	que	votre	ou	vos	
enfants	pourront	ou	auront	la	possibilité	d'accéder	à	d'autres	perceptives	sociétal	et	professionnel,	qu'ils	ne	peuvent	ni	réaliser	ou	entrevoir	
actuellement.	

Notre	nouveau	concept	d'enseignement	est	la	chance	pour	vos	enfants	de	pouvoir	accéder	à	une	meilleure	vie	intellectuel	et	sociétal.	Il	est	important	
de	donner	le	plus	de	chance	de	réussite	à	vos	enfants	n'est-ce	pas	???	Etes-vous	d'accord	???	Alors	on	vous	attend	impatiemment.	Merci	d'avoir	pris	
le	temps	de	nous	lire.	

Intent	to	enroll	my	child	in	an	Internationally-focused	school	with	a	Dual	(French/English)	language	focus	and	inquiry-led	learning.	

Full	Name	 Contact	Info	
Email/Phone	

Age	of	
child	as	of	
Sept	2017	

Grade	Level	
for	2018	

enrollment	

Yes	–	I	would	
like	to	enroll	my	

child	

Zip	Code	
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2) SICS held open meetings for each requested CSD in different formats. These included hosting both 
Town Hall meetings and family friendly events that showed families what a Sofara student would 
experience. Parents were given the opportunity to comment and give actionable feedback. 
 

2A) In 2017, Town Hall meetings were held February 10th and 13th. Announcements were made 
in English, Spanish, and French as seen in this trifold announcement for the CSD 4 community. 

 
 
 
  Event	Feedback	Form	
A	Francophone	mother	in	Spanish	language	
dominant	CSD	4	expresses	excitement	for	SICS	
French	language	focus.	
	
“I	am	so	excited.	There	are	very	few	schools	who	are	

available	for	my	kids	age	that	speak	our	language.” 
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2B) Community events and meetings drew in families and demonstrated the type of 
trans-disciplinary educational environment they can expect. These have included story 
telling (literacy), puppet shows (SEL), applied learning engineering workshops 
(performance based inquiry & service learning), and a health fair (science & well being).  

At every event, SICS maintained an intent to enroll sign up sheet for parents interested in 
receiving updates on enrollment and applications when available. The sheet provided data on 
neighborhood of residence in addition to interest. Parents attended from all of SICS’ targeted 
zip codes in CSDs 4, 5 and 6 as well as from CSDs 3 and 7. 

i) Hands-on applied learning workshop that incorporated philanthropy: Ode to Joy 
TechFest. Children engineered circuit toys and get-well cards that were then donated to 
children in Harlem Hospital for the holiday season.   
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ii) SICS hosted an open Health Fair to inform and demonstrate trans-disciplinary learning and 
allow the community to give feedback.  Children “got up to move and groove”, make ice cream 
from scratch, experience yoga, and chat it up with a local doctor all while absorbing scientific 
concepts. Families from NYCHA’s Wagner Houses, students with disabilities, and residents from 
CSD4 and 5 attended and gave feedback.  

Event	Feedback	Form	
Parents	were	very	interested	
in	the	ability	of	children	to	
move,	do,	and	experience	as	a	
way	of	learning:	
	
Your	program	seems	very	

interesting.		My	daughter	not	

only	told	me	she	had	so	much	fun	

but	she	said	she	wants	to	start	

eating	healthier	at	home	too!	We	

need	this	in	our	community!	

Hope	you’ll	open	it	on	time!	–	

Jerreh	Badje,	Parent	
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iii) SICS’ “Power to the Harlem Parent” school choice empowerment series gathered 
parents in 2016 and 2017 from CSD 4, 5 and 6 to discuss the state of education in 
Harlem, what parents are seeking in a school environment, and how SICS can incorporate 
their feedback. Manhattan Borough President Gale Brewer stopped by to lend her support 
to parents. 

 

 

 

“I’m	writing	in	support	of	Sofara	
International	Charter	School.	As	a	parent	in	
district	5	this	school	would	offer	everything	
we	are	looking	for	in	a	school,	none	of	which	
currently	exists	in	district	5.	From	my	many	
conversations	with	parents	of	young	children	
in	the	district	such	as	myself	I	am	aware	that	
many	are	looking	for	a	progressive,	rigorous,	
education	for	their	children.	In	addition	
families	in	district	5	are	extremely	diverse.	
My	own	family	represents	a	number	of	
different	nationalities,	languages	and	
religions.	An	International	Baccalaureate	
school	would	be	highly	sought	after	by	
many,	many	parents	in	the	district. - - “ 
Rebecca	Garte,	Phd. 
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3) Feedback, in addition to being solicited at open meetings and on flyers, was requested via 
SICS’ Twitter and Facebook pages as well as additional online platforms such as Harlem parent 
based list-serves. 
 

3A) Twitter – SICS’ Twitter page, @SofaraInt, has been open since 2014 from which            
requests for feedback have been posted from time to time 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
3B) Facebook – SICS has utilized its Facebook page to both directly solicit feedback as 
well as post a request for feedback through a link to the SICS Enrollment & Feedback 
Survey permanently hosted on its website. 
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3c) Sample Listserve Posting response to solicitation of feedback 
 

Manhattan Mamas Meet-Up (1400+ Members) 
Email Solicitation Response 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
4) Response to feedback has been made to the community in-person, via email or e-posting, and 
telephone. Thoughtful reflection and analysis was undertaken in consideration of the impact on 
SICS’ design. When evidence of viability was found, feedback was incorporated. Comments 
received from CSDs 4, 5 
and 6 are overwhelmingly 
in support of the 
educational plan. 

 

4A) Over 30 responses 
were received from 
SICS’ online 
Enrollment & Feedback 
link on its website. The 
choice of language to be 
used in the dual 
language component 
was a major 
consideration for 
parents as shown in the 
“what interests you…” 
question of the survey.  
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i) In response to repeated community feedback overtime, and that of other stakeholders, SICS 
will provide an after school choice of Mandarin studies through a collaboration with Manhattan 
Mandarin. 
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Sofara International Charter School 

Mandarin Program 
            By Manhattan Mandarin  

 
 
Voyka Soto 
Executive Director 
Sofara International Charter School 
New York, New York 
 
Dear Voyka, 
 
It has been a pleasure to brainstorm with you and your team steps we can take to bring a world 
class Mandarin program to Sofara International and Harlem. As the founder of Manhattan 
Mandarin, New York’s leading Mandarin consulting and tutoring company,  I am truly 
appreciative of your innovative spirit and commitment to creating a path for children to become 
proficient in one of the most important languages of the 21st century.  
 
Manhattan Mandarin is ready to support Sofara International with our well developed and highly 
sought after curriculum and look forward to working together to align it with the integrated 
approach of your curriculum.   Manhattan Mandarin has partnered with some of the best minds 
in Mandarin teaching to create an interactive, story-based curriculum that will exceed any 
standards set by ACTFL and other agencies.  
 
To support your efforts to have Mandarin available and open to as many community children as 
possible, Manhattan Mandarin is ready to collaborate on building interest and awareness. 
Community events, direct marketing, and demonstrations are a sample of the ways we are 
ready to participate in community engagement.  As the first school to open their doors to 
Mandarin for the community,  a shared vision of Manhattan Mandarin, I am proud to assist in 
making it a reality. 
 
 
Attached is a sample Letter of Intent to be executed upon authorization of the Sofara 
International Charter School charter by the Board of Regents. Should your authorizer have any 
questions or concerns feel free to share my contact information. Additional information on our 
company and schools that we currently serve may be found on our website at 
www.nycmandarin.com​.  
 
In Collaboration, 
 
Jamie Keyte 
Founder 
ZGT Manhattan Mandarin 

Sofara International Charter School 

Mandarin Program 
            By Manhattan Mandarin  

 

LETTER OF INTENT 
 
This Letter of Intent (LoI) formally identifies and memorializes the parties’ agreement to 

negotiate with promptness, good faith and best efforts, for the purpose of reaching a final 
agreement (the “Agreement”) on certain important terms and conditions of the prospective 
partnership between The Sofara International Charter School and ZGT LLC. If any of the 
terms,conditions, or stipulations of this LoI conflict with any part of the final Agreement, the 
terms, conditions, and stipulations of the Agreement will have full control and precedence. In the 
event that any of the terms, conditions, or stipulations of this LoI are not contained in the final 
Agreement, those portions will continue to have full legal effect, unless otherwise indicated by 
the final Agreement, or in a writing signed by all of the undersigned parties. 
 
General terms of Partnership Agreement between The Sofara Charter School (Sofara) and ZGT 
LLC (ZGT): 
 
1) Duration 
 
a. LoI – This LoI will have full force and effect until the final Agreement is reached, or 
negotiations are terminated through the consent of the undersigned parties. 
 
b. Agreement – The Agreement will be valid for so long as the undersigned representatives of 
Sofara and ZGT continue to execute their Duties and Responsibilities as outlined by the 
Agreement. The Agreement will only be terminable for good cause, including misfeasance, 
nonfeasance, malfeasance, or neglect of the Duties and Responsibilities of either party, as 
outlined in the Agreement. 
 
c. If, at any point, the undersigned representatives of Sofara wish to discontinue their 
involvement with ZGT, they must notify Jamie Keyte immediately, in a manner reasonable under 
the circumstances to provide actual notice. Such notice will terminate this LoI and any 
subsequent Agreement immediately, and Sofara and ZGT will be subject to the confidentiality 
and non-competition clauses outlined below. 
 
d. If, at any point, the undersigned representatives of ZGT wish to discontinue their involvement 
with Sofara, they must notify those representatives immediately, in a manner reasonable under 
the circumstances to provide actual notice. Such notice will terminate this LoI and any 
subsequent Agreement immediately. Such notice will only be made for good cause, as outlined 
above. ZGT and Sofara will be subject to the confidentiality and non-competition clauses 
outlined below. 
 
e. The terms of the Agreement will be re-negotiable only upon a signed agreement by all the 
undersigned parties, with the exception that this Agreement will be renegotiable at any time for 
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a. Marketing – Sofara and ZGT will collaborate on marketing duties to attract students enrolled 
in Sofara as well as students in that neighborhood.  
 
b. Client Management – Sofara and ZGT will mutually collaborate on all client management and 
support services to ensure maximum client satisfaction. 
 
c. Representation - The Parties acknowledge that they are not authorized to conduct any 
business on the behalf of the other Party, nor establish any legally enforceable relationships on 
behalf of the other Party, without the express consent of the other Party. 
 
 
7) Confidentiality: 
 
a. ZGT has developed, compiled or acquired “Protected Information” at great effort and 
expense. Protected Information is comprised of “confidential material” and “customer 
information,” both as defined below, and can take any form or medium including oral, written, 
digital or video. For the duration of this LoI, as well as the subsequent Agreement, and for so 
long thereafter as the pertinent information or documentation remains confidential, Sofara may 
not disclose Protected Information to any third party or use Protected Information for its 
personal gain or for any purpose other than those explicitly permitted or consented to by ZGT, 
unless ZGT provides Sofara with prior written consent.  
 
8) Miscellaneous: This Agreement may not be changed, modified, amended or supplemented, 
except in a writing signed by both Parties. This Agreement constitutes and contains the entire 
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof. To the extent that any 
provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable, it is the intention of the parties 
to this agreement that the subject provision be modified to both be enforceable and retain as 
much of the intent of the unmodified language as possible. To the extent that a provision of this 
Agreement cannot be so modified, its invalidity or unenforceability will not affect any other 
provisions in this Agreement and those remaining provisions will be construed in all respects as 
if the invalid or unenforceable provision was omitted. 
 
AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 
 
_____________________________________  __________________ 
 
Signature of Authorized ZGT, LLC Agent Date 
 
_______________________________________ 
 
(Print Name) 
 
_________________________________  __________________ 
 
Signature of Authorized Sofara Agent Date 
 
_______________________________________ 
(Print Name) 

good cause (as defined above) – including the misfeasance, nonfeasance, malfeasance, or 
neglect of the Duties and Responsibilities of either party, as outlined in the Agreement. 
 
2) Geographic Limitations – This Agreement is valid and enforceable in those areas where both 
Parties currently conduct business. This Agreement does not bind either Party for work or 
business conducted with third parties outside of those areas. 
 
3) Compensation - ZGT will receive payment on a per class basis to be determined in the final 
agreement. Compensation per class will depend on number of students, number of classes, 
grants available etc.  
 
 
a. Payment Distribution – At the end of each month, ZGT will invoice Sofara. Payment will be 
made by the 15th of that month.  
 
4) Prices – Neither party is obligated to maintain the prices of their materials or services at their 
current level. However, both Parties agree that, in the event they increase the prices of their 
materials or services, they will do so in good faith, and only for the purpose of arriving at a more 
equitable distribution of revenue. 
 
 
5) Services -  Both companies have agreed that, upon the signing of this Agreement, ZGT will 
offer services as follows: 
 
a. For the 2018-2019 school year, ZGT will run the after school Mandarin program at Sofara.  

● The program will be offered twice a week on Wednesday and Saturday.  
● Wednesday will only be open to Sofara students 
● Saturday academy will be open to the public 
● Location: Sofara classrooms 
● Cost: TBD 

 
b. For the 2019-2020 school year, ZGT will create and run the in-school and after school 
Mandarin programs at Sofara.  

● Regularly scheduled Mandarin at Sofara (in-school) 
● Offered at least three times per week as a specialty class (TBD).  
● Top tier Mandarin program in line with all ACTFL standards and other success 

measuring tools 
● Mandarin will be offered to all grades and will grow with the school 
● The goal is for students to graduate ahead of their peers in other full time 

Mandarin programs and establish the Sofara Mandarin program as the top in 
NYC and competitive with the best in the US 

● The after school program and Saturday academy will continue to be offered 
● Cost: TBD 

 
 
6) Collaboration Duties and Responsibilities – 
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ii) In further response to language of preference for SICS’ DL, Component 1, parent 
feedback across Harlem was carefully analyzed. SICS found that in Spanish dominant 
districts, Spanish language is important but parents also clearly expressed the desire for 
their children to learn additional languages. Assemblyman Rodriguez from CSD 4, a.k.a. 
Spanish Harlem, gave two letters in support of SICS; One for general support, and one 
specifically in support of SICS’ proposed French DL component in his district. 
 
 

 
   

 
Email Address: rrodriguez@assembly.state.ny.us 

❏ Albany Office: Room 729, Legislative Office Building, Albany, New York 12248, 518-455-4781 
❏ District Office: 55 East 115th Street, New York, New York 10029, 212-828-3953 

 
 

ROBERT J. RODRIGUEZ 
Assemblymember  

68th District 
 

THE ASSEMBLY 
STATE OF NEW YORK 

ALBANY 

CHAIR 
Subcommittee on Infrastructure 

 
COMMITTEES 

Ways and Means 
Housing 

Corporations, Authorities & Commissions 
Labor 
Banks 

Mental Health 
 

Puerto Rican/Hispanic Task Force 
Black, Puerto Rican, Hispanic & Asian Legislative 

Caucus 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

November 23, 2016  
 
David Frank  
Executive Director 

n Department 

Dear Mr. David Frank, 
 
I am writing this letter to offer continued support for multiple language learning in our district 
schools and in particular at the proposed charter school, Sofara International Charter School. 
With the ever changing social and economic climate of today, our youth are faced with 
navigating a diverse pool of cultures, experiences, and forms of communication unlike the 
experiences of past generations. Ensuring success in these times means expanding our own base 
of knowledge and embracing the many cultures of our diverse communities. Language, being 
our base form of communication, is the logical focus of development as it is our first window 
peering into other cultures.   
 
Preparing future generations for further globalization and expanded multicultural experiences is 
the responsibility of our current generation. Our children will not be able to fully utilize the 
resources available to them in the future without proper guidance and experiential learning such 
as diversity training and language mastery. They will not be able to compete in an inflated job 
market, fluctuating economy, and growing diverse population. Let us make sure we are all 
moving in the same direction and allow our children the same opportunity afforded those with 
the means to find these teachings through other methods.   
 
Thank you for your time and consideration on this matter. Please feel free to contact me at my 
district office at 212-828-3953 or email me at rodriguezrj@nyassembly.gov.   
 
 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Robert J. Rodriguez 
New York State Assembly 
District 68  
East Harlem/ El Barrio, Central Harlem, and the Upper East Side 
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iii) SICS also met with members of the Central Harlem Malian community, one of the 
only outlets that offer children French classes. As a limited Saturday program, 
instructional staff conveyed the need for more access and that the “French language is the 
one thing that ties all of the West African immigrant community together.” Their support 
for SICS DL component is expressed in the letter of support:  Community based 
francophone teachers. 
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iv) A direct collaboration with the FACE Foundation for teacher recruitment, and language 
acquisition support for students has been established. SICS and FACE will work within the  
French community for fund development in support of bilingual education.  

Meeting with Deputy Consul General and Education Attache 
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4B) SICS team members participated in the East Harlem Neighborhood Study Steering 
Committee: Educational Visioning Workshop Giving and receiving feedback for CSD 4. 

 
Community and Parent Concerns and Desires. The most significant statement was of the 
perception that Charter Schools are for low performing students only and none exist for children that 
are Proficient. Open spaces, labs and libraries were also a priority, confirming SICS’ existing design. 
Parents also spoke of the need for SEL for students without IEPs 
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4C) Community stakeholders have also shown great interest in SICS’ progressive 
approach to inquiry-led learning as partially evidenced in feedback through its 
Enrollment and Feedback survey. Parents wrote their interest in the “uniqueness” of the 
design in the community, the holistic philosophy, and the use of inquiry. 

 

 
i) In response to the high interest in the inquiry component, SICS has strengthened its ability to 
deliver a quality educational environment by:  

 
1) Ensuring instructional staff are trained by the IBO in Year 1’s Summer Institute. SICS 
has allocated the funding in the budget beginning with the Pre-Opening allocations; and 
 
2) Creating a collaboration with STEMKids NYC to mentor our teachers in applied 
learning and to meet demand by adding their program as an afterschool option. SICS and 
STEMKids NYC have drafted a Memorandum of Understanding for this purpose. 
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ii) SICS has committed to maintaining high quality school-wide support for implementing 
SEL, maintaining a restorative discipline environment, and using thematic teaching practices 
in motivational ways.  SICS is collaborating with Bank Street College, the leader in these 
areas of practice, and George Mason University, the leader in IB principles and practices. 
Each University will also assist with teacher recruitment and provide interns and graduate 
student teachers. 

 

!
!
!
 
November 21, 2016 
 
Dear Ms. Soto: 
 
We at Bank Street College of Education (Bank Street) are very enthusiastic to support the Sofara 
International Charter School (Sofara) educational mission for Harlem and to embark on this initiative 
with you! We are excited that Bank Street was Sofara’s choice for collaboration in developing and 
implementing a plan that includes reinforcing leadership skills, staff professional development, and 
technical assistance. We believe the collaboration will reinforce your objectives to recruit, train and 
shape pedagogical staff and the school environment with integrity.  
 
Bank Street currently has an extensive school leadership program that enables us to provide tested 
strategies for implementation by school heads. These programs focus on the school vision; 
complexities and dynamics of creating strategic, effective change; leadership through collaboration; 
and how to oversea and nurture staff so as to obtain desired results. 
 
Sofara staff will benefit from the mission of our Center for Culturally Responsive Practice, which is 
to build and coordinate the capacity of communities to support children and families through the 
collaborative development of culturally responsive strength- and evidence-based systems, programs, 
and practices.  
 
Bank Street College has a great professional development program that creates the foundation of the 
school atmosphere to include Culturally Responsive Practices within Sofara’s curriculum. In addition, 
we are offering project-based/problem-based learning as an area of professional development for staff 
directly aligned with the Sofara model of teaching and learning. 
 
Further, Bank Street’s Career Services office includes an interactive online job posting board, career 
related events, a recruitment fair, and recruitment visits for the purpose of interviewing candidates. 
Bank street graduates are flexible, creative and well rounded in their knowledge of progressive 
educational methodologies.  These include areas such as discovery learning and project/problem-based 
learning. 
 
Upon confirmation of the charter authorization, the following professional development plan will be 
implemented with administrative leaders of the school to focus on curriculum development, staff 
selection and team building: 

• 5- 1/2 day sessions between May and July; 
• 3- full day staff development sessions August/early September;  
• 2- 1/2 day sessions with leadership to assess needs and support implementation 

October/November 
Bank Street College of Education is able to offer the lower fee for DOE schools of $2,000 per day. So 
the total cost will be $13,000 for the above plan. 
 
With appreciation, 
 
 
Joy Lundeen Ellebbane 
Director, Continuing Professional Studies 
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NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 			Attachment		2b	-	25 of 36	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

5) SICS ongoing approach to outreach, and for future purposes, is to establish a more 
permanent presence with families to both better understand their needs, the learning styles of 
potential incoming students, and to create a path for recruitment and enrollment. SICS is now 
engaging Early Childhood Educators and Centers. 
 

5A) SICS hosts open roundtable discussions with Directors of organizations serving pre-
K or younger children and families: Directors’ International Brunch. In response to 
feedback about including non-traditional parents/guardians in outreach, SICS has 
included them in community outreach efforts as a permanent endeavor. 

										

Follow-up	for	this	event	
includes	establishing	
opportunities	for	SICS	
to	engage	students	by	
volunteering	academic	
activities,	and	engage	
parents	for	future	
enrollment.		

 
 
 

 

SOFARA INTERNATIONAL 
CHARTER SCHOOL 

CORDIALLY INVITES YOU TO AN INTERNTIONAL BRUNCH 

TO BE A PART OF CHANGE IN EDUCATION 

* COME GIVE US YOUR FEEDBACK ON OUR PROPOSED SCHOOL DESIGN * 

JUNE 19, 2017    10a.m. to 12p.m. 
 MAYSLES THEATRE - 343 MALCOLM X BLVD. at 127th Street 

 
Sofara International TEXT RSVP TO:  646.644.0300 

DIRECTORS’ BRUNCH 
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5B) SICS intends to stay in regular contact with the community to keep abreast of trends, concerns, and 
opportunities. SICS members spent several sessions speaking with Community Board 9, who serve CSD 
5 and 6, answering their questions and hearing their concerns and suggestions.  

CB9 Agenda: Section IV (Old Business): Update and Resolution 
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Resolution in favor and support of Sofara International Charter School was obtained 
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i) An ongoing conversation with the CB 9 Education Committee Chairperson allows SICS to 
gather updated information, such as evidenced in the e-mail chain below regarding language of 
preference for SICS’ DL component. 

 

 
 
 
6) Informing the community 
about the equal opportunity to 
apply for admission to SICS 
has been and will remain a 
standard during outreach.  
 
Outreach has represented the 
very diverse demographic of 
Harlem across the districts as 
shown from survey data that 
shows the disbursement of 
respondents across the districts.  
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As seen in the 
feedback, individual 
responses in the 
“No” and “Other” 
category were, for 
the most part, 
chosen based on 
parents having 
children under three 
years of age 
	

Digital survey data 
collected showed 
approximately 52% of 
respondents indicated 
YES to whether they 
would enroll their 
child in SICS.	



	
	

NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 			Attachment		2b	-	30 of 36	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

 

SICS is working directly with families as presented in 5A above, outreaching to Early Childhood 
Centers. Direct outreach is also done with the Resident Associations of NYCHA Housing, such 
as the St. Nicholas Houses RA President, who has offered to support SICS with recruitment.  
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7) Sharing best practices is a tenet of an inquiry, IB, school. SICS is already begun to do this 
with inter-visitations and committing to collaborate with Heads of School in both public and 
private schools. 
 
 7A) Collaborative conversations have begun with the Principal of P.S. 197, CSD 5 
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7B) The sharing of best practices with other IB themed schools in the City has already begun. The 
SICS team visited the Boerum Hill School, which is a French DL, IB school  with an introduction 
from FACE. 

 



	
	

NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 			Attachment		2b	-	33 of 36	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

i) SICS’ Executive Director has an established professional collaboration with the Dwight School 
Administrators. In addition to participating in their EdCampIB to share best practices, SICS’ core 
working group took the opportunity to seek out advise for the current application framework. 

 

ii) Seeking to inform as well as consult with a broader spectrum of stakeholders, SICS 
engaged with school leaders in Harlem on a broad spectrum, such as the Director of 
Operations for Harlem’s Catholic network of schools (Partnership NYC). SICS’ School 
Leaders asked for input and guidance. Operational considerations such as minimum wage 
and aspects of hosting afterschool programming were some areas given feedback on. 
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Many community based organizations have supported SICS over its three years of planning 
and development and have offered assistance in recruitment with the families they serve as 
represented, to work with our students without charge, and to provide access to some of their free 
services.  For example, The Leadership Project has offered to provide free Social Work interns, 
which SICS may phase in in Year 2 of the charter term. 

 

January 3, 2O17

To Whom It May Concern,

This is a le壮er of interest to express and confirm that The Leadership Program and
Pathways to Leadership are willing participants in collaboration with Sofara
Intemational Charter School, a PrOPOSed New York State authorized public school.

This partnership is strictly for the purposes of supporting Sofara Intemational in its
Objectives to provide high quality engaging programming for s血dents, teaChers, and

ParentS. This work will include but not be limited to providing direct social work
Services to s血dents and parents with the utilization of social work intems.

Please reach out wi血any additional questions or concems you may have.

Sincerely,

Preside nt

p2血ye○○rg
212-62与-2339

535 Eighth Ave, 16山Floor
New York, NY 10018
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The Senegalese Association of New York, COSOBOC, and Shugah Baybees Developmental 
Center are long time supporters of SICS, and their communities have networked and outreached 
to parents for our benefit. 
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Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

	
Attachment	2C	–	Evidence	of	District	Support	for	Restart/Turnaround	

	
	
	

This	Attachment	is	not	applicable	to	Sofara	International	Charter	School.	
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Attachment 3: Exit Standards for Students who do not meet promotion and/or         
graduation standards 
 
Sofara International Charter School intentionally considers the developmental needs of 
children within the range of ages at each grade level. When, in the extreme case, there is 
a student who is deemed to be incapable of dealing with the next grade level, demands of 
middle school, or thought to be at-risk of not being able to do so, parents will 
immediately be brought into the process of intervention and support.  
All students who are candidates for retention will have an Individual Learning Plan that 
includes all possible resources, inclusive of a formal evaluation and modified 
promotional criteria. In each case of a student with an IEP, the promotional standards 
outlined within it will be followed. Progress reports, report cards, and parent teacher 
conferences all provide opportunities to address concerns and inform parents. If the 
school must retain a student, then the classroom teacher, DOTL, and family will meet to 
discuss how the upcoming year will offer the student different and planned supports to 
ensure the student’s success. 
SICS’ culture of inclusion encourages parents to be part of the process from the 
beginning, whether through teacher outreach, access to student reports on the parent- 
portal in ManageBac, review of individual learning plan goals and periodic progress 
reports, and meetings with school specialists and leadership. 
SWDs who are required to take Data-folio assessments, but receive a below grade-level 
score have the same opportunity for promotion review as all other students.  
Non-francophone ELLs who have been enrolled in an English Language School less than 
2 years will not be held to promotional standards based on language. Non-acquisition of 
any Second language is not considered in promotion to the next grade. Rather, if 
minimum student achievement goals are not met, interventions, support and 
modifications to instructional delivery will be made during the school year. SICS utilizes 
the NYS Learning Standards (CCLS) with the Bilingual Initiative (CCBI) to measure 
progress and growth in content standards for English Language Arts. CCBI identifies 
“the Main Academic Demand of every Common Core anchor standard as well as the 
Grade Level Academic Demand of the Common Core grade level standard”1 for ELLs. 

CCBI Standards are not separate criteria. Rather, they stand in parallel to CCLS as 
adjusted/modified benchmarked ELA criteria in consideration of a limited command of 
the English language. 
 

 
 

 

																																																								
1	NYS	Bilingual	Common	Core	Initiative:	Teacher’s	Guide	to	Implement	the	Bilingual	Common	Core	Progressions	
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Table 1: Promotion and Exit Standards for School Grades 2 and 5 
Grade Standards 

 
Grade 2 ELA 

aligned 
NYS 

CCLS 

By the end of the year students will be able to: 
• Read with sufficient accuracy and fluency to support comprehension in 

literature, including stories and poetry; and informational text in history 
and the sciences; within grade 2-3 complexity band proficiency, with 
scaffolding as needed at the high end of the range. 

• Write opinion, informative/explanatory, and narrative texts for specified 
purposes that are well elaborated with guidance; utilize the writing cycle; 
use a variety of digital tools to produce published writing; participate in 
shared research and writing projects; and recall or gather information 
from experiences or sources to answer questions. 

• Through listening and speaking, tell a story, create stories with visual 
displays, produce complete sentences to explain and express details; 
recount key ideas; and participate in collaborative conversations with 
diverse partners including seeking to understand and communicate with 
individuals from different cultural backgrounds. 
 
Example CCBI comparative standard Speaking-Centered Activity: 
Use information, independently, to describe the connections between 
themselves, text and the world around them, when speaking in 
partnership, small group and/or whole class settings. 

Grade 2 
Math aligned 

NYS 
CCLS 

By the end of the year students will be able to: 
• Represent and solve problems involving addition and subtraction, add 

and subtract within 20, work with equal groups of objects to gain 
foundations for multiplication, understand place value, use place value 
understanding and properties of operations to add and subtract, measure 
and estimate in standard units, relate addition and subtraction to length, 
work with time and money, represent and interpret data, reason with 
shapes and their attributes.  

Grade 2 
Science 
aligned 
NYS 

CCLS / Next 
Generation 

Science 
Standards 

By the end of the year students will be able to: 
• Plan and conduct an investigation collaboratively to produce data to 

serve as the basis for evidence to answer a question.                  
• Make observations (firsthand or from media) to collect data that can be 

used to make comparisons. 
• Develop a model to represent patterns in the natural world.  
• Make observations from several sources to construct an evidence-based 

account for natural phenomena.  
• Compare multiple solutions to a problem.                       
• Obtain information using various texts, text features (e.g., headings, 

tables of contents, glossaries, electronic menus, icons), and other media 
that will be useful in answering a scientific question.   
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Grade 5 
ELA aligned 

NYS 
CCLS 

By the end of the year students will be able to:  
• Read with sufficient accuracy and fluency to support comprehension. 
• Read and comprehend literature, including stories, dramas, and poetry; 

informational texts, including history/social studies, science and technical 
texts, at the high end of the grades 4-5 text complexity band 
independently and proficiently.  

• Write opinion, informative/explanatory, and narrative pieces on topics or 
texts, supporting a point of view with reasons and information, examine a 
topic and clearly convey ideas and information; and use effective 
technique, descriptive details and clear event sequences. Produce clear 
and coherent writing in which the development and organization are 
appropriate to task, purpose, and audience. Draw evidence from literary 
or informational texts to support analysis, reflection, and research. 

• Through listening and speaking seek to understand and communicate 
with individuals from different perspectives and cultural backgrounds. 
Use their experiences and their knowledge of language and logic, as well 
as culture, to think analytically, address problems creatively, and 
advocate persuasively. Adapt speech to a variety of contexts and tasks, 
using formal standard English when appropriate to task and situation. 

Grade 5 
Math aligned 

NYS 
CCLS 

By the end of the year, students will be able to: 
• Write and interpret numerical expressions, analyze patterns and 

relationships, understand the place value system, perform operations with 
multi-digit whole numbers and with decimals to hundredths, use 
equivalent fractions as a strategy to add and subtract fractions, apply and 
extend previous understandings of multiplication and division to multiply 
and divide fractions, convert like measurement units within a given 
measurement system, represent and interpret data, understand concepts of 
volume and relate volume to multiplication and addition, graph points on 
the coordinate plane to solve real-world and mathematical problems, 
classify two-dimensional figures into categories based on their properties. 

Grade 5 
Science 
aligned 
NYS 

CCLS / Next 
Generation 

Science 
Standards 

By the end of the year, students will be able to: 
• Define a simple design problem that can be solved through the 

development of an object, tool, process, or system and includes several 
criteria for success and constraints on materials, time, or cost.                

• Plan and conduct an investigation collaboratively to produce data to 
serve as the basis for evidence, using fair tests in which variables are 
controlled and the number of trials considered.                     

• Support an argument with evidence, data, or a model.           
• Represent data in graphical displays (bar graphs, pictographs and/or pie 

charts) to reveal patterns that indicate relationships.                  
• Obtain and combine information from books and/or other reliable media 

to explain phenomena or solutions to a design problem.  
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Attachment	4a.	Sample	Student	Weekly	Schedule	

General instructional time at Sofara International Charter School begins at 8:00 am. General 
dismissal for students is at 4:15p.m., followed by tutoring sessions on Mondays, Tuesdays 
and Thursdays from 4:20 to 4:50 p.m. for at-risk students. On Fridays, general dismissal for 
students is at 3:15p.m., giving time for staff professional development. Optional breakfast is 
scheduled for 7:30 to 7:55 a.m. every morning and includes organized community and 
socialization activities.  
The school day is split into eight academic periods, plus a morning recess, lunch with CAR 
mentoring time, and afternoon tutoring sessions. Inquiry periods are in 90-minute blocks of 
time and all other academic periods are 60 minutes. Morning recess is minimally 20 
minutes. Lunch with recess is 50 minutes, followed immediately by an additional 20 minutes 
of CAR. The daily instructional schedule is a total of 8 hours 50 minutes. Weekly 
instruction therefore, is optimal. Table 4a.1 breaks down weekly instructional time by core 
area of instruction. 

Table 4a.1 Core Instructional Schedule: 
 French Inquiry - Science and/or Social Studies  

450 minutes per week 
(90 minutes a day) 

This time slot includes literacy & math instruction if 
it enables depth of knowledge for inquiry to flourish 

Direct engagement for  
Social Emotional Learning  

100 minutes weekly (20 -30 minutes daily)  
Additional French as a Foreign Language 

instruction (FLE) 120 minutes per week minimum 
Applied Learning  

300 minutes per week (60 minutes daily) 
P.E. minimally (includes Recess and Health & 

Nutrition) 225 minutes weekly 
Direct instruction Literacy in English 

300 minutes per week (60 minutes daily) 
Direct instruction Arts  

120 minutes weekly  
 Direct instruction Math in English  

300 minutes per week (60 minutes daily) 
Small Group Tutoring 90 minutes (30 minutes 

three times per week) 
 
ê SICS views every moment as an instructional opportunity. The traditionally non-academic 

times of lunch and recess represent additional teaching moments for social emotional 
learning, and represent 90 minutes of the student day.  

ê Core subjects plus SEL instruction, represent 485 minutes (8.05 hours) of the student day.  
ê Students attending tutoring sessions will receive a total of 515 minutes (8.35 hours) or 30 

minutes a day of additional instruction on Mondays, Tuesdays, and Thursdays.  
ê On Fridays, students will receive 350 minutes (or 5.50 hours) of core academic instruction. 

Therefore: 
ü SICS Standard yearly instruction (all students) = 1,535hours 50minutes   

Ø (average of 396 hours above that of district public schools) 
ü SICS Standard yearly instruction + tutoring = 1,630hours 50minutes   

Tables 4a.2a and 4a.2b represent proposed Year 1 student weekly schedules. Table 4a.2a is a 
typical Grade 1 schedule and Table 4a.2b a typical Grade 5 schedule. Note that English 
language teachers facilitate the morning recess, rhythm and movement time for both classes 
on a grade. Table 4a.3 delineates the work assumptions from one weekday of a First grade 
student. 
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Tables 4a.2a: STUDENT WORK WEEK ASSUMPTIONS  

GRADE 1 (1G1) 
TIME  Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 

7:30-7:55  Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast Breakfast 
8:00-9:30 90mins. Inquiry Inquiry Inquiry Inquiry Inquiry 
9:30-10:30 60mins. Library Lab Library Lab Library Lab Library Lab Library Lab 
10:30-11:00 Switch Morning Student Recess/ Rhythm and Movement 
11:00-12:00 60mins. Math Math Math Math Math 
12:00-12:50  L U N C H 
12:50-1:10  CAR CAR CAR CAR CAR 
1:15-2:15 60mins. ELA ELA ELA ELA ELA 
2:15-3:15  P.E. Art P.E. Art Assembly 

3:15-4:15  FLE P.E. FLE FLE PD Early 
Release 

4:15  Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal PD 
4:20-4:50  Tutoring Tutoring  Tutoring PD 

 

TABLE 4A.2b: SAMPLE GRADE 1 WORKDAY ASSUMPTIONS 
TIME ACTIVITY STUDENT WORK DAY ASSUMPTIONS 

7:30-7:55 BREAKFAST Optional 

8:00-9:30 

 
INQUIRY 
BASED 

LEARNING 
through 

SCIENCE and  
SOCIAL 

STUDIES 
 
 

Inquiry may be 
independent, 

collaborative or 
guided 

90-minute block includes multiple activities in flexible classroom learning spaces. 
Teachers use:  
✪  Whole class French circle time or language centers that prepare students for 

anticipated content instruction (15-20mins.)  
✪  Inquiry provocation or review to trigger student curiosity and discovery for 

current line of inquiry (10-15mins) read-a-louds, demonstrations, etc. 
✪  Inquiry work (50-60mins) mini-lesson; students explore lines of inquiry, 

independently or in small flexible groups with peers or teachers, through 
research (reading, experiments, graphic design, constructing +); debrief or 2nd 

mini lesson (i.e. for useful skills that extend learning); evaluative or formative 
performance tasks; oral, written or documented expression of new 
understandings. 

✪ Content French vocabulary review (5-10mins) 

9:30-10:30 
APPLIED 

LEARNING  
Library lab – daily extended discovery and research through hands-on 
projects and tasks aligned to deepen inquiry work.  

10:30-11:00 
MID 

MORNING 
RECESS 

Using music and rhythm, students do indoor or outdoor movement 
/exercises/games. 

11:00-12:00 MATH Direct instruction through Singapore PMCC aligned to skills needed for 
inquiry. 

12:00-12:50 LUNCH/ 
RECESS 30mins/eat; 20mins/recess. (incorporates Quality Circle Time) 

12:50-1:10 

CHOOSE-
ACT-

REFLECT 
(CAR) 

Mentorship (small groups/1:1), activities, community building lead by 
teachers and EOTO. 

1:15-2:15 ELA Direct instruction through CKLA aligned to deepen inquiry work and 
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general ELA skills. 

2:15-3:15 
SPECIAL 

(ART, P.E., 
ETC.) 

Conducted in the language of the day as possible. 

3:15-4:15 FLE/ESOL  Students have a combination of Quality Center Time (See II.G), Bilingual 
language centers, and second language acquisition direct instruction.  

4:15 DISMISSAL General Dismissal M–Th. / Early release Fridays at 3:05. 

4:20-4:50 TUTORING At-risk students 1-3 days per week. 

 
 
 

Tables 4a.3:  STUDENT WORK WEEK ASSUMPTIONS 
GRADE 5 (5G2) 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 
Breakfast 

7:30 
Breakfast 

7:30 
Breakfast 

7:30 
Breakfast 

7:30 
Breakfast 

7:30 
P.E. 

8:00-9:00 
Inquiry 

8:00-9:30 
Inquiry 

8:00-9:30 
Inquiry 

8:00-9:30 
Inquiry 

8:00-9:30. 
RECESS 
9:00-9:30 Library Lab 

9:30-10:30 
Library Lab 
9:30-10:30 

FLE 
9:30-10:30 

ELA 
9:30-10:30 ELA 

9:30-10:30 

Inquiry  
10:30-12:00 

Recess 
10:30-11:00 

Recess 
10:30-11:00 

Recess 
10:30-11:00 

Recess 
10:30-11:00 

ELA 
11:00-12:00 

ELA 
11:00-12:00 

Math 
11:00-12:00 

Math 
11:00-12:00 

L 
12:00 – 12:50 

U 
12:00 – 12:50 

U 
12:00 – 12:50 

U 
12:00 – 12:50 

H 
12:00 – 12:50 

CAR 
12:50-1:10 

CAR 
12:50-1:10 

CAR 
12:50-1:10 

CAR 
12:50-1:10 

CAR 
12:50-1:10 

Library Lab 
1:15-2:15 

Art 
1:15-2:15 

Art 
1:15-2:15 

Art 
1:15-2:15 

LIBRARY LAB 
1:15-2:15 

Math 
2:15-3:15 

P.E. 
2:15-3:15 

P.E. 
2:15-3:15 

LIBRARY LAB 
2:15-3:15 

ELA 
2:15-3:15 

FLE 
3:15-4:15  

Math 
3:15-4:15 

Math 
3:15-4:15 

ELA 
3:15-4:15 

Assembly 
3:15-4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Early Release 
 

Tutoring 
4:20-4:50 

Tutoring 
4:20-4:50  

Tutoring 
4:20-4:50 
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Attachment 4b. Sample Teacher Weekly Schedule 
 
In coordination with and/or in addition to the school-wide annual calendar activities, SICS 
teachers have clearly defined engagement responsibilities within the school community as an 
integral part of meeting the school’s mission. Their primary responsibility is to the students and 
the instructional environment that centers around them. Table 4b.1 highlights assumptions for 
this engagement. 
 

 
CAR time represents a variety of student on student and teacher on student mentoring and 
character building; to promote natural inquiry and SEL habits of success. Teachers use this time 
for small groups or 1:1 mentoring. They may also use the time to tutor students who need extra 
help with core academic subjects, for quick “check-ins” or to organize reflective or service-
oriented activities. 
Library Lab is not a preparation period for classroom teachers. Rather French language teachers 
assist and co-teach with the science specialist. They provide the language and differentiation 
support. 
Intersession programming may incorporate academic remediation, enrichment, and community 
service opportunities, or academic related fieldtrips. General teachers staff the Intersessions to 
provide small, intimate groups with fun, creative classes allowing higher levels of student 
interest and understanding. Summer Academy Intersession, starting the second week of July, is 
staffed by SICS’ Academic Intervention Teachers. Summer Academy is a 10-day session that 
runs from 9:00a.m. to 2:00p.m. 
Planning and Professional Development is focused and intentional with planned times in a 
teacher’s schedule (see Table 4B.1.). Four full day PDs are built into the calendar, as are three 
data analysis days without students in attendance, which are mandatory attendance for teachers. 
These days begin at 8:00a.m. and end at 4:30p.m. (See Attachment 4C Annual Calendar) 
Tutoring is three days per week for 30 minutes of 1:1 or small group work as presented by the 
DOTL. Teachers who may not be assigned to tutoring have a schedule of student-centered 

Table 4b.1 TEACHER WORK DAY/WEEK ASSUMPTIONS: 
· Teacher school day will be 7:55a.m. - 4:50 p.m. daily  
· Teachers begin teaching at 8:00am 
Teachers have two non-teaching periods 
per day to be used for preparation of 
lessons and planning with peers as seen 
here  

· Preparation periods once daily  
· Co-teacher planning once daily 
· Grade level & Specialist co-planning 

expected twice a week as part of daily 
planning 

· Lunch uninterrupted 50 minutes daily  
· Student mentoring 20 minutes daily Choose-Act-Reflect (CAR) 
· 4:20 –4:50 Small group or 1:1 at-risk tutoring Mondays, Tuesdays, Thursdays 
· 4:20–4:50 Family engagement every Wednesday  
· Staff meeting, PD, or workshop every Friday, 3:15-4:50pm (90 mins) 
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alternative activities that include, for example, lesson development and preparation, student 
portfolio assessment, ManageBac data entry, and parent engagement. 
On Wednesdays, teachers in addition to what they may do through BLOOMZ, are expected to 
actively participate in activities surrounding parent engagement.  These may include family 
phone calls, emails, conferences, hosting classroom events, and updating ManageBac. 
Teacher schedules vary across the grades.  With the dual language content model in place, 
teachers deliver instruction in the same subject area to both classes on their grade level. The 
French language teachers teach the inquiry blocks and the English language teachers teach ELA 
and Math.  The remainder of the day is taught in “the language of the day”. The schedule in 
Table 4B.2 demonstrates the French teachers weekly schedule as they rotate between First Grade 
classes. Teachers are assisted through daily dismissals by administrative staff to facilitate 
teacher’s ability to maximize tutoring and family engagement time. 
Friday early release days are used by teachers for professional development and planning. 
Morning recess on Fridays is facilitated by out of classroom teachers. 

Table 4B.2:  TEACHER WORK WEEK ASSUMPTIONS 
GRADE 1 French TEACHER 

 Monday Tuesday Wed. Thursday Friday 

7:55 Greeting 
Students Greetings Greetings Greetings Greetings 

8:00-9:30 Inquiry - 1G1 Inquiry 1G1 Inquiry - 1G1 Inquiry - 1G1 Inquiry - 
1G1 

9:30-
10:30 

**Library Lab 
G1 Library Lab G1 Library Lab G1 Library Lab G1 Library Lab 

G1 
*RECES

S Switch classes Switch classes Switch classes Switch classes Switch 
classes 

10:30-
12:00 Inquiry - 1G2 Inquiry 1G2 Inquiry 1G2 Inquiry 1G2 Inquiry 1G2 

12:05-
12:55 L U N C H 

12:55-
1:15 CAR Time CAR Time CAR Time CAR Time CAR Time 

1:15-2:15 Library Lab 
1G2 

Library Lab 
1G2 

Library Lab 
1G2 

Library Lab 
1G2 

Library Lab 
1G2 

2:15-3:15 Preparation Preparation Preparation Preparation Assembly 

3:15-4:15 Co-Planning  Grade/Specials 
Planning Co-Planning Grade/Specials 

Planning 
Early 

Release 
PD, Data 
Analysis 

Co-Planning 

4:15 Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal Dismissal 

4:20-4:50 Tutoring Tutoring Parent Engm't Tutoring 

* Note that English language teachers facilitate the morning recess, rhythm and movement time 
for both classes on a grade. 
** French teachers remain with and co-teach with the science teacher during Library Lab. 
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Table 4b.3 represents a typical weekly schedule of a Grade 5 teacher. As with the lower school, 
upper elementary teachers work as grade teams to ensure continuity of curriculum and academic 
timing. Teachers remain in their respective language roles in the content areas. 

 

Table 4b.3: ENGLISH TEACHER WORK WEEK ASSUMPTIONS  
GRADE 5 English Teacher 

Monday Tuesday Wed. Thursday Friday 
Greeting 
Students 

7:55 

Greeting 
Students 

7:55 

Greeting 
Students 

7:55 

Greeting 
Students 

7:55 

Greeting 
Students 

7:55 
PREP 

8:00-9:00 
Math 5G2 
8:00-9:00 

Math 5G2 
8:00-9:00 

Math 5G2 
8:00-9:00 

ELA - 5G1 
8:00-9:00 

Rhythm 5G2 
9-9:30 

ELA 5G2 
9:00 – 10:00 

ELA 5G2 
9:00 – 10:00 

Co-Planning  
9:00 – 10:00 

Math 5G1 
9:00 – 10:00 

ELA 5G2 
9:30-10:30 

Rhythm 5G2 
10:00-10:30 

Rhythm 5G2 
10:00-10:30 

Rhythm5G2 
10:00-10:30 Preparation 

10:00-11:00 Rhythm 5G1 
10:30-11:00 

Rhythm 5G1 
10:30-11:00 

Rhythm 5G1 
10:30-11:00 

Rhythm 5G1 
10:30-11:00 

ELA G1  
11:00-12:00 

ELA 5G1 
11:00-12:00 

ELA 5G1 
11:00-12:00 

Math 5G1 
11:00-12:00 

Math 5G2 
11:00-12:00 

L 
12:00 – 12:50 U U U H 

CAR Time 
12:50-1:10 CAR Time CAR Time CAR Time CAR Time 

MATH 5G1 
1:15-2:15 

Preparation 
1:15-2:15 

Preparation 
1:15-2:15 

Preparation 
1:15-2:15 

ELA 5G2 
1:15-2:15 

MATH 5G2 
2:15-3:15 

Grade/Specials 
Planning 
2:15-3:15 

Grade/Specials 
Planning 
2:15-3:15 

ELA 5G1 
2:15-3:15 

Assembly 
2:15-3:15 

Co-Planning  
3:15-4:15 

Math 5G1 
3:15-4:15 

Math 5G1 
3:15-4:15 

ELA 5G2 
3:15-4:15 PD  

Data Analysis 
Co-Planning 

4:50 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Dismissal 
4:15 

Tutoring 
4:20 – 4:50 

Tutoring 
4:20 – 4:50 

Parent Engm't 
4:20 – 4:50 

Tutoring 
4:20 – 4:50 
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Attachment 4c – Full Year Calendar 
 
SICS’ Year 1 calendar begins with Summer Institute on August 6, 2018 for staff, and 
represents the beginning of the school year. 
Summer Sofari, the first day of class, begins for all students on August 20th. Student attendance 
is mandatory during Summer Sofari with a school day of 8:00 a.m. to 2:05 p.m.  
School ends June 28, 2019 for students and teachers. 
SICS offers three voluntary participatory readiness and enrichment Intersessions during the 
December, February, and April extended breaks.  In Year 1, these include three days in 
December, and five days in both February and April.  In years two to five, Intersessions may run 
for seven days depending on holiday schedules and student participation rates. Summer 
Academy Intersession runs for two weeks in July from 9:00a.m. to 2:05p.m. for students who 
are at-risk, are potential holdovers, or who need to work on readiness skills. Over the course of a 
year, this provides students with 190 days of school, an additional 10 instructional days beyond 
district public schools; 15 days of general intersessions; and 10 days of summer intersession. 
Attending the full calendar year provides a student with 215 calendar days of learning. SICS’ 
extended day schedule provides an average of 2hours 30 minutes of daily instruction over district 
public schools’ 6hour 20minute day. 
On Fridays, students have early dismissal at 3:05 p.m. to allow staff PD until 4:50 p.m. During 
Summer Sofari staff have two hours and 45 minutes of PD and collaborative planning time after 
student dismissal. Four (4) full day PDs and three (3) data analysis days are scheduled as well. 
Three (3) Student-led progress conferences are held over the course of the school year. In Year 
1, two consecutive days have been scheduled for this purpose near the end of each trimester in 
November, March, and June. Students have early release on one conference day. Every 
Wednesday has a 45-minute set-aside for teacher parent engagement. As noted on the calendar, 
student extended breaks will include:  

• 2 days November - Thanksgiving  
• 8 days December - Winter/New Year 
• 5 days February - Mid-winter  

• 5 days April – Spring  
• 4 - 6 weeks Summer

SICS, in collaboration with FACE, STEMKids NYC, and Manhattan Mandarin will host four (4) 
family engagement for enrollment events across the school year. All SICS staff is expected to 
participate in at least two of the events. STEMKids NYC, and Manhattan Mandarin will facilitate 
SICS’ afterschool enrichment in Year 1 from September 19, 2018 to June 19, 2019. 
SICS intends to open as an IB “Candidate” school. By registering with IB, SICS is provided the 
support of IB consultants, IB PD during pre-opening, and access to Curriculum Connection 
services to facilitate a smooth upstart of all key design elements. The timeline for filing 
applications with the IBO span both the pre- and post-opening phases. These deadlines are: 
*April 2018 – apply for Candidate status to begin September (pre-opening budget line 128) 
*June 2018 – apply for Level 1 staff training to be delivered in August 
*December 2019 – first opportunity to apply for IB World School status (Y1 budget line 126) 
  

Proposed 2018 – 2019 Annual Calendar 
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AUGUST      2018          9  days 
M T W T F 

  1 2 3 

6 7 8 9 10 
13 14 15 16 17 
20 21 22 23 24 
27 28 29 30 31 

SEPTEMBER    17 days 2018 OCTOBER     21 days 
M T W T F 2 M T W T F 
       1 2 3 4 5 

3 4 5 6 7   8 9 10 11 12 
10 11 12 13 14   15 16 17 18 19 
17 18 19 20 21 22  22 23 24 25 26 
24 25 26 27 28   29 30 31   
NOVEMBER      19 days 2018 DECEMBER      15 days 
M T W T F  M T W T F 
   1 2   3 4 5 6 7 

5 6 7 8 9   10 11 12 13 14 
12 13 14 15 16   17 18 19 20 21 
19 20 21 22 23   24 25 26 27 28 
26 27 28 29 30   31     
JANUARY      20 days 2019 FEBRUARY     13 days 

M T W T F 
 

M T W T F 
 1 2 3 4 

 
     1 

7 8 9 10 11 
 

 4 5 6 7 8 
14 15 16 17 18 19  11 12 13 14 15 
21 22 23 24 25 

 
 18 19 20 21 22 

28 29 30 31  
 

25 26 27 28  

MARCH     20 days 2019 APRIL      16 days 
M T W T F  M T W T F 

   1   1 2 3 4 5 
4 5 6 7 8  

 
 
 8 9 10 11 12 

11 12 13 14 15   15 16 17 18 19 
18 19 20 21 22   22 23 24 25 26 
25 26 27 28 29 30  29 30    

MAY     21 days   JUNE      19 days 
M T W T F  2019 M T W T F 

  1 2 3        

6 7 8 9 10   3 4 5 6 7 

13 14 15 16 17   10 11 12 13 14 

20 21 22 23 24   17 18 19 20 21 

27 28 29 30 31   24 25 26 27 28 
28 

JULY  2019 
Summer Academy 10 days 

M T W T F 

2 3 4 5 6 
8 9 10 11 12 

15 16 17 18 19 
22 23 24 25 26 
29 30    

HOLIDAY New Semester Begins Enrollment Co-
Events 

TEACHER SUMMER 
INSTITUTE 

INTERSESSIONS 

 STUDENT SUMMER 
SOFARI 

PROFESSIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT 

STUDENT SUMMER 
ACADEMY DATA ANALYSIS 

FAMILY ENGAGEMENT/ 
Student Conference 

FIRST/LAST 
DAY 

STUDENTS 

FIRST/LAST 
DAY AFTER 

SCHOOL 
 
 Aug. 1 

Aug. 3 
Aug. 6  
 
Aug. 20 
Aug. 22 
Sept. 3  
Sept.10 
Sept.11 
Oct. 29 
Oct. 30 
Nov. 12 
 
Nov. 20-21 
Nov. 22-23 
 
Nov. 26 
 
Dec.24-Jan.2  
Dec. 26-28 
Jan. 21 
 
Feb.14 
Feb. 15 
Feb.18-22 
 
Mar. 6-7 
 
Mar. 11 
 
Mar.29 
Apr. 1-5 
 
Apr. 19 
May. 24 
May. 27  
May 29-30 
June. 5 
June. 28  
July 8-19 
 
Sept. 19 –  
June 19  
Sept. 22; Jan 19; 
Mar.30;  
Apr. 1-5 
 

Family Meeting 
Family Meeting  
First Day - Teachers 
 
First Day - Students 
Eid Al-Adha  
Labor Day  
Rosh Hashanah 
STAFF PD 
STAFF PD 
Data Analysis Day 
Veteran’s Day School 
Closed 
Parent Meetings 
Thanksgiving  
 
Second Semester 
Begins 
Winter Recess  
Intersession 
Martin Luther King Jr. 
Holiday 
STAFF PD 
Data Analysis Day 
February Break 
Intersession 
Family Meetings  
 
Third Semester 
Begins 
STAFF PD 
Spring Break 
Intersession 
Good Friday 
Data Analysis Day 
Memorial Day  
Family Meeting  
Eid al-Fitr Holiday 
Last Day of Classes  
Summer Academy 
Intersession 
After school 
enrichment program 
School Make-Up Dates 
for Emergency 
Closing(s)  
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Attachment 4d: School Discipline Policy 

Sofara International Charter School (SICS) is a learning environment that engages cultural, linguistic and 
socio-economic diversity in promoting achievement and imbuing students with real world skills. The 
school environment and culture are infused with internationally minded habits of success 
(attributes/attitudes/skills), by providing a safe space with a global atmosphere reflected in curriculum 
and physical layout. Our students are encouraged to acquire learning habits that provide a strong 
foundation for continued future academic achievement in secondary school and beyond. Our education 
model addresses social and emotional needs together with academic and intellectual requirements. 
Discipline is viewed as restorative, and has the goal of developing self-awareness, empathy, and the 
coping skills required to avoid and/or resolve problems or conflicts. A School Advisory Team (SAT), 
headed by the DOTL, supports the school and students through culture, climate, and discipline. SAT 
members are the Social Worker, Guidance Counselor, Community Outreach Liaison, and IB Coordinator. 

Every moment at SICS is a teachable moment. Weekly community assemblies, Choose Act Reflect (CAR) 
time, and elements of Quality Circle Time (QCT) are used as opportunities to reinforce school culture and 
social and emotional learning. Out of classroom CAR and QCT lessons are devised by the DOTL. The 
culture of SELF, OTHERS, COMMUNITY or WORLD activities (see Charter section II.G) are used to 
ensure students have the opportunity to learn and demonstrate the 10 learner profile attributes, 12 
attitudes and 5 skills:  

 	

PYP STUDENT ATTITUDES 

CREATIVITY 

Be creative and imaginative in your thinking and in your 
approach to problems and dilemmas 

INDEPENDENCE 

Think and act independently, make your own judgements 
based on reasoned argument and be able to defend your 

own judgements. 

EMPATHY 

Imagine yourself in someone else’s situation so you can 
understand their reasons and emotions; be open-minded 

and reflective about the perspectives of others 

APPRECIATION 

Appreciate the wonder and beauty of the world and its 
people 

CO-OPERATION 

Co-operate, collaborate, lead and follow as the situation 
demands 

INTEGRITY 

Be honest and demonstrate a sense of fairness 

COMMITMENT 

Be committed to your own learning; persevere and show 
self-discipline and responsibility. 

CONFIDENCE 

Feel confident in your ability as a learner; have the 
courage to take risks; apply what you have learned and 

make appropriate decisions and choices. 

RESPECT 

Respect yourself, others, and the world around you 

TOLERANCE 

Be sensitive about differences and diversity in the world 
and be responsive to the needs of others. 

CURIOSITY 

Be curious about learning, about the world, is people and 
culture 

ENTHUSIASM 

Enjoy learning and willingly put into your learning 

PYP LEARNER PROFILE ATTRIBUTES	

INQUIRER 

I am curious about the world and I want to learn 
many things. 

 

OPEN-MINDED 

I respect people and ideas that are different from my 
own. 

 

THINKER 

I use my thinking skills to solve problems and help 
others. 

 

PRINCIPLED 

I always try to do what is right and what is fair no 
matter who I am with. 

 

BALANCED 

I know it is important to work hard, learn, play, 
challenge myself, and be healthy. 

 

COMMUNICATOR 

I speak, listen, read, and write in many languages. 

 

RISK-TAKER 

I try new things and see new experiences even, when 
they seem scary. 

 

KNOWLEDGE 

I know and remember many important things. 

CARING 

I think about others’ feelings and try to be helpful and 
considerate. 

REFLECTIVE 

I think about my learning, try to understand myself as 
a learner so that I can do better. 
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SICS is a uniform school and promotes a culture that teaches about the importance of attire in relation to 
context. The dress code is strictly adhered to and reflects the positive relationship between student attire, 
achievement, attitude, and behavior. It serves to build a sense of purpose through school culture, and 
reflect a sense of pride, professionalism, and dignity. Students may express individuality through 
approved accessories (ties/ribbons/sashes/socks/hairstyles) and other items approved by the Executive 
Director. SICS’ Student Handbook delineates the dress code.  

STUDENT DISCIPLINE ACTIONS 
SICS discipline code of conduct and resulting policy consists of a hierarchy of levels of infractions and 
options for intervention, which may be modified from time to time by the Executive Director or Board of 
Trustees. Behavior that is disruptive to the learning process is immediately addressed. Students with 
chronic behavioral issues who have not responded to classroom teacher management techniques, or 
students considered in-crisis, are to be pro-actively engaged by the SAT.  
Definitions (for purposes of this Policy): 

•  "Short-term suspension" refers to the removal of a student from school for disciplinary reasons 
for a period of ten or fewer days; 

•  "Long-term suspension" refers to the removal of a student from school for disciplinary reasons 
for a period of more than ten days; and 

•  "Expulsion" refers to the permanent removal of a student from school for disciplinary reasons. 
Hierarchy levels refer to the following: 
Level 1 – Uncooperative or Non-compliant behavior – includes unexcused absences, tardiness, violating 
dress code, being verbally disrespectful, misusing school or other students’ belongings, leaving class 
without permission, inappropriate physical contact. 
Level 2 – Disruptive behavior – includes minor physical altercations, inappropriate touching, defying 
reasonable requests from school staff, knowingly taking other’s property, aggressive behavior that results 
in minor injuries, bullying in any form, harassment, intimidation. 
Level 3 – Aggressive behavior (threatening or causing harm) – includes activating the fire alarm without 
cause, recklessness which causes injury, creating a situation that creates substantial risk or injury, taking 
property without authorization, involvement in or causing physical altercations, utilizing common objects 
as weapons (i.e. pencils, belts, furniture). 
Level 4 – Violent behavior (dangerous to self or others) – includes threatening to use force to take away 
property, participating in group violence, physical sexual aggression, inflicting injury through extreme 
force, distributing weapons or drugs, possession or use of a firearm. 
Options for intervention refer to the following: 

• Parent outreach    • (Functional) Behavior Plan 
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• Social Worker / Guidance conferencing 
• Counseling (single/group) 
 

• Mentoring (assigned 1:1) 
• Modification of student placement or 

environment
Levels 3 & 4 or Repeated offenses at Levels 1&2 

• Referral to community based support 
organizations 

• ExD/Parent/Student Conference 
• Short term Suspension (1-5 / 6-10 days) 

• Long term Suspension 
• Expulsion

In-School Disciplinary Matters are referred to the SAT who administers the policy. In each case, the 
teachers and/or SAT implement these steps:  

•  The staff member addresses the conduct (including describing the infraction(s) and hearing the 
student’s version of events) and writes up the infraction for the SAT and ExD. 

•  The student is removed from class, only if necessary. 
•  The SAT notifies the parent/guardian of the offense and describes the restorative choice(s) or 

consequence(s) to be administered. 
•  The SAT schedules a meeting with the parent/guardian to discuss the infractions and 

collaborative steps each will engage in toward influencing habits of success. 
•  The teacher or SAT may assign one or more In-School Disciplinary measure for violating the 

Code of Conduct (delineated in the Student Handbook). 
SICS follows due process procedures consistent with all applicable laws as described below.  

Short-Term Suspensions may be imposed by the DOTL or by the ExD, with the ExD having final 
authority. If a student commits an offense that calls for short-term suspension, the following steps are 
taken: 

•  The student is immediately removed from class and/or school (if necessary).  
•  The parent and student are verbally informed of the accusation. 
•  The student is entitled to respond to the accusation. 
•  The parent/guardian is notified of the short-term suspension by SICS in writing. Written notice 

shall be provided by e-mail, personal delivery or express mail delivery to the last known 
address(es) of the parent/guardian as provided by them. Where possible, notification is also be 
provided by telephone. Such notice provides a description of the incident(s) for which suspension 
is proposed and informs the parent/guardian of their right to request an appeal through an 
immediate informal conference with the ExD. Such notice and conference will be in the dominant 
language of communication used by the parent/guardian if known by SICS to be other than 
English.  

•  The school schedules a meeting with a parent/guardian to discuss the infractions and may reduce 
the penalty based upon clarification resulting from the meeting. 

•  The DOTL or ExD’s decision to impose a short-term suspension may be challenged by the 
parent/guardian in accordance with the charter school’s complaint process, pursuant to Education 
Law § 2855(4). 

Long-Term Suspension and Expulsion may only be imposed by the Executive Director. If a student 
commits an offense that calls for long-term suspension or expulsion, the following steps are taken: 

•  The student is immediately removed from class and/or school (if necessary). 
•  The student is informed of the accusations against him or her. 
•  Upon determining that a student's action warrants a possible long-term suspension, the ExD 

informs the student and parent/guardian of the suspension and consideration for long-term 
suspension (or expulsion) and states the reasons. The notification is made by telephone, email, 
and personal delivery or express mail delivery to the student’s last known address. 

•  The notice describes the incident(s) that resulted in the suspension and indicates that a formal 
hearing will be held that may result in a long-term suspension (or expulsion). The notice sets a 
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hearing date and states that at the formal hearing the student has the right to be represented by 
counsel (at the student’s/parent’s own expense), present and question witnesses (if parental 
permission exists), examine witness statements, and present evidence. 

•  The Notice is in the dominant language of the parent/guardian if it is known.  
•  After the DOTL, ExD, the Board or a designated hearing officer hears the evidence, the ExD 

issues a written decision to be sent to the student, parent/guardian, Board, and DOTL. It is also 
included in the student's permanent record. 

• If a parent/guardian or student wishes to appeal the decision, they must do so by notifying the 
Chair of the Board in writing within 5 school days of postmark receipt of the written decision and 
in accordance with the SICS complaint process (provided in the Parent Handbook) pursuant to 
Education Law § 2855(4). 

Providing Services During Suspension: Alternative educational services are provided to a suspended 
student to the extent required by law. The school provides alternative instruction as soon as practicable, in 
general, no later than the day after the suspension is effective. Instruction is at a reasonable location and 
time of the school’s choosing. Alternative instruction may include a blended learning model, is of 
sufficient duration to enable a student to cover all class material, take all tests and quizzes, keep pace with 
other students, and progress to the next grade level. Except for the brief time it would take for a student to 
re-enter another school, SICS (not required) may provide alternative instruction for expelled students. 

DISCIPLINE POLICY FOR STUDENTS WITH DISABILITIES (SWD) 

In addition to the discipline procedures applicable to all students, before any disciplinary responses are 
imposed upon an SWD, the SAT, in collaboration with the Special Services Coordinator, considers any 
mandates from his or her IEP.  If it does not already exist, the SAT first considers creating a Behavior 
Intervention or Functional Behavior Plan before imposing a disciplinary response.  If a behavior plan is 
already in effect, the SAT uses parameters set therein in making disciplinary decisions. 

SICS complies with sections 34 CFR 300.530-300.536 of the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”) and 
the following procedures, unless they are inconsistent with superseding governing federal law and 
regulations. In accordance with 300.534, a student for whom no specific disability has been identified, but 
for which a basis of knowledge exists through a prior school, school district of residence (DoR) or charter 
school, may request to be disciplined in accordance with these provisions.  

Utilizing ManageBac, SICS shall maintain records of all suspensions and expulsions of students with a 
disability, including the name of the student, a description of the behavior engaged in, the disciplinary 
action taken, and the number of days suspended or removed for disciplinary reasons. If a student 
identified as having a disability is suspended during the course of the school year for a total of eight days, 
such student is immediately referred to the CSE of the student’s DoR for reconsideration of the student’s 
educational placement. Such a student shall not be suspended for a total of more than ten days during the 
school year without the specific involvement of the CSE of the student’s DoR prior to the eleventh day of 
suspension, as such suspensions may be viewed as a change in placement. 

In considering the placement of students referred because of disciplinary problems, the CSE of the 
student’s DoR is expected to follow its ordinary policies with respect to guardian notification and 
involvement. The CSE will be notified in the event of:  

1)  The commission of an infraction by a student with a disability who has previously been 
suspended for the maximum allowable number of days.  

2)  The commission of any infraction resulting from the student’s disability. 
3)  The commission of any infraction by a disabled student for which the ExD would seek to impose 

a long term suspension had such infraction been committed by a non-disabled student and 
regardless of whether the student has previous suspensions during the school year if. 

When the suspension or removal of an SWD constitutes a disciplinary change of placement, the CSE is 
immediately notified. This allows the CSE to meet its required obligations under IDEA/IDEIA 2004 
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including making a manifestation determination and FAPE requirements. 

Providing Services During Suspension for SWDs follows the same process as for all other students 
removed for a period of fewer than ten days. Additional delivery options include video lessons, phone 
assistance, computer instruction, and temporary tutoring depending on grade level. 

During any subsequent removal that, combined with previous removals equals ten or more school days 
during the school year, but does not constitute a change in placement, services must be provided to the 
extent determined necessary to enable appropriate progress in the general curriculum and in achieving the 
goals of an existing IEP. In these cases, school personnel, in consultation with the child's special 
education teacher, shall make the service determination. 

During any removal for drug or weapon offenses pursuant to 34 CFR §300.530(g) services are provided 
to the extent necessary to enable appropriate progress in the general curriculum and in achieving IEP 
goals. These service determinations are made by the CSE of the student's DoR. Students are placed in 
interim alternative educational settings as appropriate per 34 CFR §300.520(g). 

During any subsequent removal that does constitute a change in placement, but where the behavior is not 
a manifestation of the disability, the services must be provided to the extent necessary to enable the 
student to appropriately progress in the general curriculum and achieve the goals of his or her IEP. The 
CSE of the student's DoR will make the service determination. 

Due Process: If discipline resulting in a change in placement is contemplated for any student with an IEP, 
the following steps are taken: (1) the guardian is notified by the SAT of the decision and provided the 
procedural safeguards notice no later than the date on which the decision is made to take such action; and 
(2) the CSE of the student’s DoR and other qualified personnel meet to review the relationship between 
the child’s disability and the behavior subject to the disciplinary action (according to CSE's availability). 
If, upon review, it is determined that the behavior was not a manifestation of the disability, then the 
student may be disciplined in the same manner as a student without a disability with consideration of 
services to SWDs during periods of suspension. 

Guardians may request a hearing or appeal to challenge the manifestation determination or the interim 
alternative educational setting. Except as provided herein, students remain in their current educational 
placement pending determination of the hearing/appeal. If disciplinary action relates to weapons or drugs, 
SWDs remain in the interim alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer or 
until the expiration of the time period provided for in the disciplinary action, whichever occurs first, 
unless the guardian and school agree otherwise. 
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Table	1a:	Applicant	Group	Additions	and	Deletions
Created:	08/15/2017	•	Last	updated:	08/17/2017

Have	you	made	any	changes
(additions	or	deletions)	to	the
applicant	group	after	the
submission	of	the	LOI?

Yes

Changes	to	Applicant	Group	Information

Name/Phone/
Email
Address

Current
Employment

Relevant
Experience/S
kills	and	Role
on	Applicant
Group

Proposed
Role	in
School	(e.g.,
trustee,
employee,
none)

Proposed
Position	on
Board
(Officer,
Trustee,
Constituent
Rep)

Change	(Add
or	Remove?)

1

Voyka	Soto	 Executive
Director	for
the	proposed
Sofara
International
Charter
School

Bilingual
education
International
Baccalaureat
e	Certified,
Educational
Leadership
roles,	K-8
Educator,
New	School
design,
Curriculum
Development
,	Charter
School
Committee
and	Board
Exp

Employee Executive
Director Added

2

Katie	Taylor

NYCDOE
Central
Special
Education
Office,
Impartial
Hearing
Representati
on

Administrativ
e	and	school
leadership	in
bilingual
setting,	Data
Analysis,	K-
12	Special
Education
expertise

Employee
Director	of
Teaching	and
Learning
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3

Bob
McCullough,
Jr. Principal

Harlem
Professionals,
Inc.

Youth
outreach,
community
development,
parent
engagement

Employee
Community
Outreach
Liaison

4

Bailey	Rollins
Self-
employed
Educator

Charter
School	and
Private
School
experience,
early
childhood
development

Employee Founding
teacher

5

Kevin	V.G.
Wells,	Esq.
(

Director-
Diversity	&
Inclusion	/
MWBE
Services
NYCDHPD

Compliance,
Contracts,
Diversity,
Education,
Fund
Development

Trustee Chair

6

Nermin	K.
Ahmad Founder

CSRspace;
Principal	The
Kufikia
Project

Multilingual,
International
Affairs,
Infrastructure
Development
and	Start-up,
Fund
Development
,	Business
Leadership

Trustee Vice-Chair

7

Henry	Comas Regional
Disaster
Liaison,	US
Dept.
Housing	&
Urban
Development

CSD	4	Acacia
Network
Board	of
Directors;
Large	scale
policy
development
&
implementati
on,	project
oversight

Trustee Secretary

8

Rashard
Dyess-Lane Director

Henry	Schein
Medical,	Inc.

Large-scale
budget
oversight,
technology,
supply	chain
resource

Trustee Treasurer
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management

9

Holley
Drakeford

Principal	The
Drakeford
Realty	Group

Commercial
realty,
facilities
management

Trustee Member

10

Tom	Amico
Principal	/
Partner	Tom
&	Eric	911

Marketing	&
branding,
and	fund
development

Trustee Member

11

Torian
Richards

Principal
Torianite,	Inc.

International
Education
from
Business
perspective,
operations,
financial
management
,	sourcing
and
forecasting,
recruitment
&	retention
strategies

Trustee Member

12

Robert
Deutch

Retired

Finance,
Compliance,
business
start-up,
Branding,
Marketing,
Music-
enrichment

Trustee Member Added

13

14

15
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New	Applicant	Group	Member	History

Has	the	newly	added	member(s)	of	the	current	applicant	group	ever	applied	to	this	or	another	charter
entity	to	open	this	proposed	school	or	another	charter	school,	either	in	New	York	State	or	outside	of	New
York	State.	Indicate	the	date	on	which	the	application(s)	was/were	submitted	and	to	which	charter	entity;
briefly	describe	the	outcome	of	the	charter	entity’s	decision;	and	provide	a	concise	description	of
significant	modifications	made	in	this	application	(if	applicable).

Not	Applicable
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Sofara	International	Charter	School	("The	Corporation")		
Proposed	By-Laws	

	
	

ARTICLE	I	

THE	CORPORATION	

Section 1.1. Name and Formation 
Sofara International Charter School (SICS) is a non-stock, non-profit corporation organized under 
the laws of the State of New York. 
Section 1.2. Purposes 
The Corporation is organized and is to be operated exclusively to carry out charitable and 
educational purposes within the meaning of Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986 (the “Code”), as now in effect or as may hereafter be amended including, without limitation:  

(a)  To operate a public charter school in the City and State of New York (the "School") 
pursuant to a charter agreement therefore;  

(b)  To exercise all rights and powers conferred by the laws of the State of New York upon 
non-stock corporations, including, but without limitation thereon, to raise funds, to receive 
gifts, devises, bequests and contributions, in any form, and to use, apply, invest, and 
reinvest the principal and/or income therefrom or distribute the same for the above 
purposes; and  

(c)  To engage in any other activity that is connected with or in advancement of the foregoing 
purposes and that is within the definition of charitable and educational for purposes of 
Section 501(c)(3) of the Code; provided, the powers of the Corporation shall never be 
inconsistent with the purposes of the Corporation stated above of the Constitution of the 
United States or the State of New York. 

 
 

ARTICLE I I  

OFFICES	

Section 2.1. Principal Place of Business  
The principal place of business of the Corporation shall be located in the City and State of New 
York. The Corporation may have such other offices, either within or without the State of New 
York, as the Board of Trustees (the Board) may determine or as the affairs of the Corporation may 
require from time to time. 
Section 2.2. Registered Office and Registered Agent 
The Corporation shall have and continuously maintain in the State of New York a registered office 
and a registered agent whose office is the Corporation’s registered office. 
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ARTICLE	III	

BOARD	OF	TRUSTEES	

Section 3.1. Powers 
The business, affairs and property of the Corporation shall be managed and controlled by the 
Board, and all corporate powers shall be vested in and exercised by the Board, except as otherwise 
provided by law, the charter filed to create the Corporation, or these By-Laws. 
Section 3.2. Responsibilities 
The responsibilities of the Board include: 

School Oversight - The Board is responsible for complying with SICS charter and other 
governing documents as described above, including all obligations under the New York State 
Charter Schools Act and other applicable laws. This responsibility includes ensuring adequate 
evaluation and monitoring of school performance so that the school’s accountability goals set 
in the Charter can be achieved.  
Leadership - The Board is responsible for selecting, monitoring, evaluating, guiding and 
replacing the Executive Director of the school and for developing the Executive Director 
Succession Plan. It helps the Executive Director set personal growth goals and provides 
mentoring and resources to achieve them. 
Fiscal Oversight - The Board approves the budget and reviews the school’s financial 
performance and position. It is responsible for financially managing the school, including 
budget development and monitoring, establishing fiscal controls, and conducting audits of the 
school's books and records as required by law and as otherwise prudent.  
Financial audit - The Board hires the school’s auditor, reviews the annual audit, and, if 
necessary, adjusts policies and procedures. 
Strategic planning - The Board, in conjunction with the Executive Director, develops a 
strategic plan for the school, monitors its implementation, and ensures required resources are 
available. 
Integrity and Compliance - The Board ensures that the highest standards of ethical conduct 
are maintained in the school environment and that the school adheres to all rules, regulations, 
and laws that govern it. 
Mediation - The Board is responsible to hear all complaints brought before it as well as 
appeals brought before it by parents on matters of student discipline, including student 
expulsion hearings as required by §2855(4) of the N.Y. Charter Schools Act. 
Representation - The Board members are ambassadors to the community and collectively 
work to enhance the school’s presence and stature in the community and beyond. 
Fundraising - The Board assists the school in fundraising, applying for public grants 
(categorical and discretionary), and private donations from foundations, corporations, and 
individuals. 
School Policies - The Board is responsible for establishing, implementing, and enforcing, or 
delegating the implementation and/or the enforcement of, school policies. 
§ Admissions 
§ Curriculum, teaching and learning 



	
	
Draft Corporation By-Laws 

Date:	_____________________	 	 	Board	Approval:_____________	
NYSED	2017	Round	2	 	 Attachment	5b	-	3 of 10	

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

§ Employment and other personnel matters 
§ Student discipline 
§ Special education 
§ English language education for English language learners 
§ The code of ethics and policies governing self-dealing of trustees, officers and employees 
§ Dress code 
§ Transportation 
§ Student food services 
§ Student health services 
§ Communication with students' families 
§ Communication with governmental and regulatory agencies 
§ Public relations and outreach, and  
§ Hearing complaints as required by §2855(4) of the New York Charter Schools Act (the 

enforcement of which shall not be delegated, notwithstanding the foregoing). 

Board Self-Evaluation – The Board is required to conduct collective and individual 
evaluations on at least an annual basis. Each Board member is to complete three self-evaluation 
forms: 
• One in which the Board member evaluates the performance of the Board as a whole;  
• The second in which the Board member evaluates his or her own personal Board performance and 

involvement; and  
• The third in which Board members are asked to evaluate two fellow members.   

The self-evaluation tools ask relevant and clear questions regarding the functioning of the 
board and the charter school, clarity of roles and responsibilities, shared mission and vision, 
contributions, engagement, openness, personalities, processes, etc. The Board Development 
Committee and ExD analyze this information annually and use it to manage BoT training and 
development, to ensure it has the requisite knowledge and skills to meet its obligations.  

Section 3.3. Performance of Duties 
Each Trustee shall perform all duties of a Trustee, including duties on a Board committee, in good 
faith and with the degree of diligence, care and skill, including reasonable inquiry, an ordinary 
prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. 

Section 3.4. Number 
The number of Trustees constituting the initial Board shall be no fewer than five (5). Thereafter the 
number of Trustees may be changed from time to time by amendment of these By-Laws in 
compliance with applicable laws, but the School’s Board will have a minimum of five members 
and a maximum of eleven members.  

Section 3.5. Terms of Service 
Founding trustees will hold staggered terms as presented in the Charter to the authorizer. Upon 
completion of each staggered term, each Trustee shall hold office for a term of one (1) year or until 
earlier, contingent on resignation, removal or death. Terms are renewable once unless a) there are 
no other applicants or b) the Board votes to extend a Trustee’s term. No person who has a conflict 
of interest prohibited under Sections 801 and 806 of the New York General Municipal Law may 
serve.  No more than 40% of the persons serving as Trustees at any one time may be officers, 
directors or employees of a single organization. 
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Section 3.6. Removal 
Any Trustee may be removed for cause by a simple majority vote of the entire Board, but not less 
than the entire Board, excluding the Trustee who is the subject of the removal action, provided, 
that at least one week’s previous notice of the proposed action has been given to the accused and to 
each Trustee. 

Section 3.7. Resignation 
Any Trustee may resign at any time by delivering written notice of his or her resignation to the 
Corporation. At the election of the Corporation made by Board action, the resignation of a Trustee 
shall be effective upon such notice or upon a later date that is prior to the date of resignation 
specified in the notice, notwithstanding a resigning Trustee’s specification of a different date in his 
or her notice. Acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective. 

Section 3.8. Methods of Appointment or Election of Trustees 
Any newly created Trusteeships and any vacancies on the Board, arising at any time and from any 
cause, may be filled at any meeting of the Board by an absolute majority of the Trustees. In 
accordance with New York General Municipal Law, no vacancies will be filled with a person who 
has an interest in a for-profit contract, unless one or more of the exemptions listed in New York 
General Municipal Law 802 are applicable. Trustees so elected shall serve for the balance of the 
unexpired term in the case of a vacancy created because of the resignation, removal, or death of a 
Trustee, or in the case of any other vacancy for the term. To the extent required by law, any 
Trustee that shall fail to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings without an excuse accepted 
as satisfactory by the Board may be deemed to have resigned, and the vacancy shall be filled at the 
Board's election. 

Section 3.9. Meetings 
Meetings of the Board shall be subject to requirements of the New York State Open Meetings 
Law, as applicable and as amended from time to time. Regular meetings of the Trustees will be 
held at the school facility once the school has taken occupancy of its facility. Until that time, 
meetings may be held at such time and place as shall from time to time be determined by the 
Board, but not fewer than the number of times per year required by applicable laws and 
regulations. The School will hold a meeting of the Board once per calendar month on dates 
determined by the Board. Two or more Trustees together may call special meetings any time. A 
majority of the Trustees present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to 
another time and place. 

Section 3.10. Public Notice of Meetings 
Notice of the time and place of each regular, special or annual meeting of the Board, and, to the 
extent reasonably possible a written agenda stating all matters upon which action is proposed to be 
taken, shall be given to each Trustee by the Board Chairperson by personal delivery, facsimile, 
email, or regular mail, postage prepaid, at least 72 hours before the day on which the meeting is to 
be held; provided however, that notice of a special meeting shall be given by receipted personal or 
overnight delivery no fewer than seven (7) days prior to the special meeting date. Trustees calling 
for a special meeting shall specify in reasonable detail matter(s) to be considered at the special 
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meeting. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Trustee who submits a signed waiver of 
notice before or after the meeting or who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at 
its commencement the lack of notice to him or her. Public notice of meetings shall be given as 
required by Article 7 of the Public Officers Law. Specifically, the School will post notices in the 
following media outlets: The Official School's community mailing list, Facebook Page, and the 
Amsterdam News. The School will also post notices in the main office of the School, as well as on 
the school’s website. Trustees calling for a special meeting shall be responsible for giving all 
required public notices of the special meeting. 

Section 3.11. Executive Session 
Upon a majority vote of the entire Board on a motion which identifies generally the subject to be 
considered, the Board may meet in executive session in compliance with Section 105 of the New 
York State Open Meetings Law, as amended from time to time. Parents and non-Board members 
will be excused from the room during executive session in accordance with applicable laws. 

Section 3.12. Videoconferencing and Telephone Conferencing 
Videoconferencing may be used to conduct a meeting of the Board in compliance with the New 
York State Open Meetings Law, as amended from time to time. Public notice of a meeting at 
which a Trustee intends to participate by videoconference shall identify the videoconference 
locations for the meeting and state that the public has the right to attend the meeting at a 
videoconference location. Beyond a quorum, other Trustees may participate by telephone 
conference. The Corporation shall provide an opportunity for the public to hear and participate in 
the teleconferenced discussion. 

3.13. Quorum and Voting 
A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business or of any 
specified item of business. Except as otherwise provided by these By-Laws, the vote of a majority 
of the Board constituting the quorum thereof shall be an act of the Board, except that a vote of 
three-quarters of the Trustees eligible to vote, if a quorum shall be constituted, shall be required to 
amend these By-Laws. A Trustee who is also an employee of the Corporation shall not be able to 
vote in his or her capacity as a Trustee during the pendency of his or her employment. 

Section 3.14. Minutes 
Minutes taken at all open meetings of the Corporation shall consist of a record or summary of all 
motions, proposals, resolutions, and any other matter formally voted upon and record the vote 
thereon. Minutes taken at executive sessions shall include any action that is taken by formal vote 
and provide a record or summary of the final determination of such action, and the date and vote 
thereon; provided, however, that such summary need not include any matter which is not required 
to be made public by the New York State Freedom of Information Law. The minutes of meetings 
and executive sessions shall be available to the public as required by the New York State Open 
Meetings Law. 

Section 3.15. Committees 
The Board may create committees and designate participation from among its members. 
Committees may include members who have applied for service from the School community, who 
are not members of the Board, but whose service has been approved by the Board Chair or Vice 
Chair.  Committees will be comprised of a number of members as required by applicable law; 
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provided, the Board shall at all times maintain an Executive Committee, a Finance Committee, an 
Education Committee, a Compliance Committee and a Board Development Committee. All 
standing committees will have a minimum of three (3) members, except the Executive Committee 
with a minimum of five (5) members.  
Ø The Executive Committee, chaired by the Board Chair, facilitates effective decision-making by 

the Board. It is responsible for: a) Planning board meeting agendas; b) Making delegated decisions on 
behalf of the full board; and c) Serving as a communication link with other board members. 

Ø The Finance Committee, chaired by the Treasurer, collaborates with the Executive Director and 
contracted accountant, and coordinates financial oversight. It is responsible for developing SICS’ 
annual budget in conjunction with the short- and long-term plans. Additional responsibilities include 
oversight of auditing, facilities and financial management initiatives.  

Ø The Education Committee, Chair to be determined, ensures the school meets its student achievement 
accountability goals, monitors performance data & progress towards doing so, upholds the academic 
quality and credibility of the school as an academic institution and supports the Executive Director in 
maintaining, promoting and improving the academic standards set forth in the charter. The primary 
responsibilities of the Education Committee include: a) Advising the Board on the core values and 
activities of scholarship that define the School’s core activities of teaching and learning; b) 
Recommending to the Board the adoption of academic policies consistent with the School’s vision, 
mission and strategic plan; c) Adopting procedures of Board-approved academic policies; d) Protecting 
and enhancing the quality of the School’s academic programs at all levels; e) Advising the Board on the 
academic aspects of the overall strategic direction of the School; and f) Working in conjunction with the 
Executive Director to monitor and advance the quality of all academic activities. 

Ø The Compliance Committee, Chair to be determined, oversees all academic and programmatic audits 
of the school and assists the Finance committee in their compliance responsibilities. It ensures that 
SICS is prepared for all audits, and that the school is in ongoing compliance with all applicable laws 
and regulations, as well as directives from the authorizer. It supports the Executive Director, the 
Director of Teaching and Learning, and the Director of Operations in ensuring SICS is compliant. The 
Compliance Committee investigates any complaints made against the school and staff and recommends 
appropriate action(s) to the full Board.  

Ø The Board Development Committee, Chair to be determined, collaborates with the Executive 
Director, writes job descriptions for vacant seats, seeks avenues for member recruitment, and vets 
candidates for Board service. It analyzes annual self-evaluations and recommends Board development 
and training content to provide the knowledge and skills required of responsible stewards.  

The Board may designate one or more Trustees as alternate members of any committee, who may 
replace absent or disqualified members at any meeting of the committee. A committee shall 
appoint its chairperson by action of a majority thereof. Any one or more members of a committee 
may participate in a meeting of the committee by means of a conference telephone or similar 
communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear 
each other, provided such meeting and notice thereof comply with applicable requirements of the 
New York State Open Meetings Law. From time to time a committee may empanel one or more 
standing or other subcommittees. Committee members shall maintain minutes of each committee 
meeting and shall file copies of the minutes with the corporate records in compliance with 
applicable laws.  
A committee shall have all the powers delegated by the Board except that no committee shall have 
the power: 

(a)  To change the membership of, or to fill vacancies in, the Board or any committee of the Board,  
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(b)  To fix the compensation of Trustees for serving on the Board or any committee of the Board if 
approved,  

(c)  To amend or repeal these By-Laws or adopt any new By-Laws,  
(d)  To amend or repeal any resolution of the Board which by its terms shall not be so amendable to 

repeal, or  
(e)  To exercise other powers specifically denied the committee by resolution of the Board or by law.  

Each committee and each member of each committee shall serve at the pleasure of the Board. A 
majority of committee members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. Except 
as otherwise provided by these By-Laws, the vote of a majority of a committee constituting the 
quorum thereof shall be an act of the committee. 
Section 3.16. Compensation 
Persons serving as Trustees or members of a committee shall not receive any salary or 
compensation for their services as Trustees or committee members. A Trustee or committee 
member shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred by him or her in 
carrying out his or her duties as such. 

Section 3.17. Right of Inspection 
Subject to restrictions imposed by applicable law on access to or the use or dissemination thereof, 
every Trustee shall have the right to inspect and copy at his or her expense all books, records and 
documents of the Corporation and to inspect the physical properties of the Corporation; provided 
such inspection is conducted at reasonable times upon not less than 10 days’ prior written request 
to the Corporation. 

ARTICLE	IV	
 

OFFICERS	

Section 4.1. Number 
The “Officers” of the Corporation shall be a Chair, Vice Chair, Secretary and Treasurer, and such 
other Officers, if any, as the Board may from time to time elect. The same person may hold any 
two or more offices; provided, no individual may act in more than one capacity where action of 
two or more Officers is required; and further provided the Secretary may not be the same person as 
the Chair. 

Section 4.2. Election and Term 
All Officers shall be elected by the Trustees from among them and shall hold office for the term of 
one year or such shorter term as decided by Board action. Each officer shall continue in office until 
the expiration of his or her term or his or her resignation, removal or death in accordance with 
Section 4.3 of these By-Laws. 

Section 4.3. Resignation or Removal 
Any Officer on the Board may be removed, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the entire 
Board excluding the Officer who is the subject of the removal action. Any Officer may resign at 
any time by delivering written notice of his or her resignation to the Corporation. At the election of 
the Corporation made by Board action, the resignation of an Officer shall be effective upon such 
notice or upon a later date prior to the date of resignation specified in the notice, notwithstanding 
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the specification of a later date in the notice. Acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to 
make it effective. A vacancy in an Office shall be filled for the unexpired term by Board action. 

Section 4.4. Chair 
The Chair shall have the power to sign alone in the name of the Corporation all contracts 
authorized by the Board and to execute and deliver other documents and instruments. The Chair 
also shall be the Chairperson of the Board and shall preside at Board meetings in such capacity. 
The Chair shall also have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board may from 
time to time prescribe. 

Section 4.5. Vice Chair 
The Vice Chair shall, in the absence or disability of the Chair, perform the duties and exercise the 
powers of the Chair. The Vice Chair shall also have such other powers and perform such other 
duties as the Board may from time to time prescribe. 

Section 4.6. Secretary 
The Secretary shall be responsible for the maintenance of an accurate record of all the minutes of 
all meetings of the Board; be responsible to serve or cause to be served all notices of the 
Corporation and be custodian of the Corporation’s records (other than financial records). The 
Secretary shall also have such other powers and perform such other duties as the Board may from 
time to time prescribe. 

Section 4.7. Treasurer 
The Treasurer shall be responsible for the oversight of all financial matters within the Corporation 
and the maintenance of accurate financial records of the Corporation and shall be the custodian of 
the Corporation’s financial records. The Treasurer shall also have such other powers and perform 
such other duties as the Board may from time to time prescribe. 

Section 4.8. Compensation 
Persons serving as Officers shall not receive any salary or compensation for their services as 
Officers. An Officer shall be entitled to reimbursement for reasonable expenses incurred by him or 
her in carrying out his or her duties as such. 

ARTICLE	V	
	

SELF-DEALING	TRANSACTIONS	

Section 5.1. Purpose 
The purpose of the procedures prescribed in this Article V is to protect the Corporation’s best 
interests when entering into a transaction or arrangement that also might benefit the private interest 
of a Trustee, Officer or employee of the Corporation or a blood or marital relation of a Trustee, 
Officer or employee. 

Section 5.2. Board's Authority 
The Board shall not authorize corporate action, and no committee shall recommend corporate 
action, except in accordance with procedures set forth herein. 

Section 5.3. Employees and Other Agents 
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The Board may from time to time hire such employees and appoint such agents on such terms as it 
deems appropriate, in accordance with the Self-dealing requirements laid out in this Section 5. 
Section 5.3. Procedures 

(a)  Duty to Inquire. In its consideration of any action the Board and all committees shall first 
conduct appropriate inquiry to determine whether the action involves a Self-Dealing 
Transaction, including determining the nature, scope and details thereof. "Self-Dealing 
Transaction" means any transaction having the School as one party and one or more of the 
following among the proposed other parties thereto: 
(i)  Trustees, Officers or employees of the School, or blood or marital relations of any of them, 
(ii)  An entity in which a Trustee, Officer or employee of the Corporation, or blood or marital 

relation of any of them, holds an ownership or investment interest,  
(iii)  An entity which employs or otherwise compensates a Trustee, Officer or employee of the 

School, or employs or compensates a blood or marital relation of any of them, and/or  
(iv)  Any entity which has as a member of its board of directors or trustees a Trustee, Officer or 

employee of the School, or a blood or marital relation of any of them. A Trustee involved in 
an actual or potential Self-Dealing Transaction is referred to herein as an "Involved Trustee." 
Involved Trustees, and Officers and employees, related to a possible Self-Dealing 
Transaction being evaluated shall not participate in the inquiry into or the determination of 
whether the transaction is a Self-Dealing Transaction, but may present to the Board regarding 
the nature and extent of his or her relationship to the matter being considered. 

(b)  Determining Whether a Self-Dealing Transaction Exists. After inquiry in accordance with 
subparagraph (a) immediately above, the Board shall take action as to whether the transaction 
is a Self-Dealing Transaction; provided, an Involved Trustee shall not participate in the 
deliberation of or vote the issue of whether a transaction is a Self-Dealing Transaction. 

(c)  Action on a Self-Dealing Transaction. If the Board determines a transaction being considered is 
a Self-Dealing Transaction, the Board will exercise due diligence to determine whether the 
Corporation can arrange an alternative transaction more favorable to the School with 
reasonable effort. An Involved Trustee shall not participate in this determination. As part of its 
due diligence, the Board may involve or engage one or more disinterested people to investigate 
alternative transactions. If the Board decides not to proceed with an alternative transaction, the 
Board shall determine whether it is in the Corporation’s best interests and is fair and reasonable 
to the Corporation to authorize the Self-Dealing Transaction; provided, an Involved Trustee 
shall not participate in the deliberation of or vote upon the authorization of a Self-Dealing 
Transaction. 

(d)  Violations. If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or employee has 
violated the School's Trustee, Officer and Employee Code of Ethics, it shall conduct further 
investigation as the Board deems warranted, shall inform the Trustee, Officer or employee of 
the basis for such belief, and afford him or her an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to 
disclose. If the Board determines that a violation of the Code of Ethics has been committed, the 
Board shall take appropriate disciplinary and/or corrective action. A Trustee who is the subject 
of an investigation or possible disciplinary or corrective action under this subparagraph (d) 
shall not participate in the deliberation of or vote on such determination or disciplinary or 
corrective action.  

(e)  The Procedures prescribed in subparagraphs (a), (b) and (c) immediately above shall apply to 
actions of committees of the Board in the same manner and to the same extent as prescribed for 
Board actions. 
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Section 5.4. Records of Proceedings 
The minutes of the Board and all committees with Board-delegated powers shall contain the names 
of the persons and entities involved in transactions which are or may be Self-Dealing Transactions, 
findings of the Board in respect of the scope and nature of those person's and entities' involvement, 
actions taken in accordance with this Article, the names of the persons present for or who 
participated in discussions thereof and a summary of the content of such discussions, and a record 
of votes taken in connection therewith, including the names of those present for and who 
participated in voting and their respective votes. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS	

ARTICLE	VI	

Section 6.1. Interpretation of Charter 
In the event of a conflict between these By-Laws and the Charter, the provisions of the Charter 
shall control. 

Section 6.2. Effectiveness of Non-Public Notices 
Non-public notices given under these By-Laws shall be deemed effective only upon verified 
receipt or refusal. 

Section 6.3. Directors and Officers Insurance 
The Board shall maintain Directors and Officers Insurance coverage at all times. 

Section 6.4. Parent Participation in Board Meetings 
At each meeting of the Board, time is set aside specifically for parents to address the Board of 
Trustees.   
 

END 
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PROPOSED	CODE	OF	ETHICS	FOR	SOFARA	INTERNATIONAL	CHARTER	SCHOOL	(SICS)		
OFFICERS,	TRUSTEES	AND	EMPLOYEES	

The undersigned Officer, Trustee or employee of SICS shall comply with the Code of Ethics of the 
School (the Code), as set forth below in this document, during the entirety of his/her tenure on the 
Board of Trustees (the Board) or employment with the School: 

Provision 1. Officers, Trustees and employees of the School Corporation will conduct or direct the 
affairs of the School and exercise their powers and responsibilities subject to the limitations of New 
York State Education Law, New York General Municipal Law and Not-For-Profit Corporation Law, 
and the School’s charter and the Bylaws of the School Corporation, as applicable. 

Provision 2. No Officer, Trustee or employee of the School Corporation shall engage in a “Self-
Dealing Transaction,” except as approved by the Board in accordance with procedures set forth in 
Article V of the By-Laws of the School Corporation.   

Provision 3. In respect of any transaction under consideration by the School or to which the School is 
already a party, an Officer, Trustee or employee of the School Corporation shall have the obligation 
to make a “Self-Dealing Disclosure” as defined below, if he or she: 

(i)  is or proposes to be, or has a blood or marital relation who is or proposes to be a party to the 
transaction in conflict of official duties, 

(ii)    holds an ownership or investment interest in, or whose blood or marital relation holds an interest 
in, an entity which is a party to the transaction in conflict of official duties, 

(iii)   is employed by or is otherwise compensated by, or whose blood or marital relation is employed 
or compensated by, an entity which is a party to the transaction in conflict with official duties, 
and/or 

(iv)  is, or whose blood or marital relation is a director, trustee or corporate officer of an entity who 
is a party to the transaction in conflict with official duties.   

A “Self-Dealing Disclosure” is the prompt, full and frank public, written disclosure to his or her 
immediate supervisor (if applicable) and to the Board of his or her interest (or interest of his or her 
blood or marital relation), giving rise to the Self-Dealing Disclosure obligation. It is the obligation of 
every Officer, Trustee and employee to inform him- or herself of matters which may be under 
consideration by the Board by timely review of publicly available information and making 
appropriate inquiry of the Board or Executive Director. Disclosure required under this shall include 
all relevant and material facts known to the Officer, Trustee and/or employee about the contract or 
transaction, and shall be set forth in the minutes of the Board. 

Provision 4. In addition to the above Provisions of this Code of Ethics, Officers, Trustees and 
employees of the School Corporation shall avoid at all times engaging in activities that would appear 
to be unduly influenced by persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration by the 
Board or relating to the School. Specifically, no officer, trustee or employee shall: 

• Directly or indirectly, solicit any gift, or accept or receive any gift having a value of seventy-five 
dollars or more, whether in the form of money, service, loan, travel, entertainment, hospitality, 
thing or promise, or in any other form, under circumstances in which it could reasonably be 
inferred that the gift was intended to influence him or her, or could reasonably be expected to 
influence him or her, in the performance of his or her official duties or was intended as a reward 
for any official action on his or her part; 

• Disclose confidential information acquired by him or her in the course of his or her official duties 
or use such information to further his or her personal interests; 
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• Receive, or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be 
rendered in relation to any matter before the School or the Board of which s/he is an officer, 
member or employee or of any School or Board Committee or entity over which s/he has 
jurisdiction or to which s/he has the power to appoint any member, officer or employee; or 

• Receive, or enter into any agreement, express or implied, for compensation for services to be 
rendered in relation to any matter before any School or Board Committee or entity, whereby his 
or her compensation is to be dependent or contingent upon any action by such agency with 
respect to such matter, provided that this paragraph shall not prohibit the fixing at any time of 
fees based upon the reasonable value of the services rendered. 

Provision 5. An Officer, Trustee or employee cannot have an interest in any for-profit contract with 
the school. Officers, Trustees or employees who have contracts with not-for-profit entities, such as 
charter management organizations, partners, and found organizations must disclose these contracts 
but they are not prohibited. 

Provision 6. As a requirement of section 803 of the General Municipal Law, any Officer, Trustee or 
employee who has, will have, or later acquires an interest in—or whose spouse has, will have, or 
later acquires an interest in—any actual or proposed contract, purchase agreement, lease agreement 
or other agreement, including oral agreements, with the School Corporation of which he or she is an 
officer or employee, shall publicly disclose the nature and extent of such interest in writing to his or 
her immediate supervisor and to the governing body thereof as soon as s/he has knowledge of such 
actual or prospective interest. Such written disclosure shall be made part of and set forth in the 
minutes of such body. 

Provision 7. Officers, Trustees and employees cannot hold investments in conflict with official duties 
with the exception of holdings where when less than five percent of the outstanding stock of the 
corporation is owned or controlled directly or indirectly by such Officer, Trustee or employee. 

Provision 8. Officers, Trustees and employees shall not have private or future employment in conflict 
with official duties as shall be determined by the Board upon disclosure prior to such employment or 
upon hire. This includes part-time or concurrent employment prior to hire, as well as part-time or 
concurrent employment post hire, while engaged upon official duties with the School.  

Provision 9. An Officer, Trustee or employee will not actively engage in assisting employees or 
students find placement with another school or entity without disclosure to and full knowledge of the 
Board and/or Executive Director, as appropriate. 

Provision 10. An Officer, Trustee or employee who violates this Code of Ethics will be subject to 
corrective or disciplinary action including removal in respect thereof. 

Provision 11. Officers, Trustees and employees of Sofara International Charter School will be 
required to sign a statement acknowledging receipt of and agreeing to comply with the Officer, 
Trustee and Employee Code of Ethics. 

 

Signature _________________________________________________________ 

Name of Officer, Trustee or Employee __________________________________________ 

Date signed ________________________________________   	
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Attachment 8a: Personnel Polies and Procedures 
1.0  Staff Organization  

Sofara International Charter School has established an organizational structure that follows the hierarchy and 

reporting requirements laid out in Figure 1 below.  

 

Although the Employee Handbook will be developed, finalized and approved during the start-up period prior to the 

hiring of staff for 2018-19, SICS has developed the following core policies and procedures. They may be 

reformatted, or further detailed during the start-up period. 

2.0 Employment Policy 

Equal Opportunity Employment: It is the policy of SICS to review all qualified applicants without regard to 

race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity and expression, national origin, ethnicity, age, 

disability, marital status, military service status, disability or any other protected classification. This policy applies 

to all aspects of the employment experience, including recruiting, hiring, compensation, promotion, transfer, 

disciplinary action, layoff, return from layoff, SICS-sponsored training, and social and recreational programs. 

Discrimination is not tolerated.  

Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA): This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase. 

SICS complies with this and all applicable state and local laws prohibiting discrimination in employment against 

qualified individuals with disabilities. Upon receiving a request for accommodation, the ExD meets with the 

potential/existing employee to identify the precise limitation(s) resulting from the disability and actions that SICS 

can make. SICS reserves the right to request more medical documentation.  

Table 2.1 SICS American With Disabilities Act Employment Policies 

Qualified individuals with disabilities are treated in a nondiscriminatory manner in the pre-employment process and 
employees with disabilities are treated in a nondiscriminatory manner in all terms, conditions, and privileges of 
employment. 

Medical examinations are administered to employees when justified by business necessity. 

All medical-related information is kept confidential and retained in separate files. 
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Figure 1: Staff Hierarchy and Reporting Requirements 
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Reasonable accommodation is provided to applicants and employees with disabilities, except where it would create an 
undue hardship for SICS. 

Individuals with disabilities are notified that the school provides reasonable accommodation to qualified individuals with 
disabilities by including this policy in the personnel handbook and by posting the Equal Employment Opportunity 
Commission’s poster on discrimination throughout school premises. 

Immigration and Nationality Act: each new employee must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification 
Form I-9 within three business days of starting employment (full policy expands on this). 

Background Criminal Check: Employees of SICS are required to successfully clear a background criminal 
check before their first day of work. Fingerprinting can be undertaken through a service of NYC Charter School 
Center. If an employee is required to begin work before clearance is received, the employee must have an 
Emergency Conditional Appointment approved by the Board of Trustees. In this case, the staff person is 
regularly supervised to ensure the safety of students. Employees who have never been fingerprinted for NYS 
Education Department or NYC Department of Education must go to a facility approved by the New York State 
Division of Criminal Justice Services at the employee’s own expense.  

3.0 Hiring Procedures 

All SICS positions are posted publicly and include a job description and minimum requirements and the 
following wording: “As an equal opportunity employer.” All SICS employees are employed “at-will,” and may 
be terminated with or without cause or notice. No time-based guarantees of employment are made. SICS 
reserves the right to change the school organizational structure and eliminate jobs or job classifications as 
needed. SICS’ hiring process has the following steps (to be fully fleshed out during pre-opening phase): 
Submission of Resume and Cover letter, Interview, Demonstration Lesson (for faculty candidates), Checking 
References, Offering Employment, FBI Clearance and Fingerprinting. 

Teacher and Staff Qualifications (see end of document): Selection is based on suitable certification for a 
specific position, strong academic preparation, professional competence, intellectual rigor, emotional maturity, 
enthusiastic professional attitude, knowledge of instructional practices, and ability to contribute to furthering 
SICS’ educational goals. SICS complies with all applicable laws and regulations regarding teacher certification 
and licensure. For non-certified instructional personnel, the ExD will consider and evaluate the teacher’s 
experience, references, demonstration lesson, interview, and other criteria.   

Uncertified teachers must have at least three years of classroom teaching experience. Teach for America, tenured 
or tenure-track college faculty, or teachers with exceptional expertise must have two years of satisfactory 
experience. Uncertified teachers may not be more than: 30% of the teaching staff or five teachers, whichever is 
less; plus five teachers of mathematics, science, computer science, technology, or career and technical education; 
plus (C) five additional teachers1.  

Recruiting effective teachers and staff that align with SICS’ mission: SICS aims for a diverse team of 
educators, with a wide range of skill-sets, experiences, cultures, and countries of origin, to serve a diverse 
population of students in a charter school setting. SICS will establish a broad applicant pool for all available and 
vacant positions, and diligently seek employees through a variety of means, such as the IB network of educators, 
Board referrals, Bank Street College and George Mason University teacher recruitment fairs, targeted 
advertisements, and staff referrals as per the Charter.  

Diversity is promoted by advertising in targeted media and networking with minority organizations. Job postings 
will be listed on idealist.org, tieonline.com, and ACTFL or similar websites, and SICS will network and 
communicate with the NY Charter School Center and the NY Charter Schools Association.  Successful 
candidates will meet criteria listed in Job Postings, below.  

Staff Qualifications and Licenses: It is the obligation and financial responsibility of each SICS staff  member to 
obtain and maintain certifications, licenses, and other credentials relevant to their position. It is at the sole 
discretion of the ExD to determine whether a candidate is qualified for employment at SICS. 

Occupational Exposure Policy: This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase.  

                                                             
1 N.Y.S. Education Law § 2854(3)(a-1)  
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Employee Termination: This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase. To ensure 
orderly operations and provide the best possible work environment, SICS expects employees to fol low rules of 
conduct that protect the interests and safety of all employees and SICS. Rather than list all unacceptable forms of 
behavior, the following list provides examples of infractions that result in disciplinary action, up to and 
including immediate termination. They do not limit “at will” status: 

•  Theft, damage or unauthorized removal or possession of SICS property 

•  Falsification of timekeeping records 

•  Acts of discrimination 

•  Sexual or other unlawful or unwelcome harassment 

•  Possession, distribution, sale, transfer or use of alcohol or illegal drugs while on duty, including 

operating vehicles or equipment 

•  Insubordination or other disrespectful conduct 

•  Gambling on the premises 

•  Safety violations including lack of supervision of students 

•  Possession of dangerous or unauthorized materials, such as explosives or firearms  

•  Excessive absenteeism, tardiness or any absence without approval 

•  Misappropriation of school property 

•  Disruptive behavior, including fighting or threatening violence in the workplace 

4.0 Employee Expectations and Evaluations 

This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase.  

Professional Expectations: All staff members are expected to be on time for all duties. If an employee is 

running late the employee must contact the Office Manager, ExD or DOTL before the start of his or her shift. 

The DoO is required to document all late arrivals and early departures. If an employee is excessively tardy or 

consistently leaves early without authorization, he or she will receive a written warning, be placed on thirty-day 

probation and may have his or her pay docked. Failure to correct can result in termination.  

Hours of Operation: The SICS building is open each school day from 7am until 6pm. Prior approval must be 

sought from the DOTL or ExD for special access during other hours, and needs to be scheduled two (2) weeks in 

advance so administrative staff can apply for any required permits.  

• Employee work-hours are from 7:55 AM – 4:50 PM, unless otherwise specified in an employee’s hire 
memo. Each full-time employee, at a time specified by the school, may take one 50-minute nonworking 
lunch break each day.  

• The general work-week is Monday through Friday, unless otherwise specified in an employee’s hire memo, 
or unless school leadership determines a change. 

• The work-year is determined by school leadership and may change at its discretion without notice. Parent 
engagement nights and special events are mandatory attendance.  

• During the fiscal year, employees may take up to ten (10) personal or sick days, which will not roll over 
from one year to the next. 

Additional Hours and Work Days: SICS may require employees to report to work on days not originally 

scheduled as a work day if appropriate to advance the school’s educational programs. For example, teachers may 

be asked to attend presentations or seminars, provide small-group instruction and/or design and execute 

academic projects outside normal school hours. Any compensation is determined by SICS. 

Intersession: SICS requires all instructional staff to report to work for one week of Intersession. Employees may 

express their preference about which week to report, but the final decision lies with the Executive Director. 

There is a $1,000 stipend for each staff member for working a full week of Intersession. All regular full-time 

staff members will be encouraged to attend school events occurring outside normal school hours. All regular 

full-time staff members will be required to attend and assist with trips, parent workshops and parent-teacher 

conferences. Additionally, all regular full-time staff members will be required to attend up to ten (10) evening or 

weekend activities beyond activities listed above. 

Professional Evaluation Process: The SICS mission and educational objectives depend on the school 

successfully fostering an inclusive, international, and mindful culture. This is achieved in large part by hiring the 
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most qualified people available for all instructional, program and other staff positions and giving each o ne the 

maximum opportunity to succeed and attain professional growth.  

Each member of staff is expected to demonstrate progressive expertise in job performance and knowledge. The 

DOTL is responsible for the performance evaluation of all instructional and program staff. The ExD evaluates 

the performance of all non-instructional staff. In either case, the DOTL and ExD provide ongoing support and 

guidance to their respective staff members. Annual performance evaluations are conducted to provide the 

opportunity to discuss job responsibilities, identify and correct weaknesses, recognize strengths and discuss 

positive, purposeful approaches for meeting goals. These reviews and evaluations serve as the objective basis 

from which recommendations for salary adjustments and other personnel decisions are made. 

Teaching Staff: Evaluations are conducted by the DOTL through regular classroom visits throughout the year. 

The visits are conducted for a range of reasons, including observation of student achievement, demonstrat ion or 

modeling of IB or best practices, assistance with guided instruction, or observation of practice. The visits may 

not be announced. One to three times a year, each teacher has a formal evaluation planned at least five (5) days 

in advance. After this the teacher receives a performance evaluation based on the visits and observations of the 

DOTL.  

Non-teaching staff: Each individual establishes performance goals based on the responsibilities and 

requirements defined for their position with their respective Manager or Director (including the ExD). The 

criteria used to evaluate each position are circulated and based on the school’s operating values and the 

employee’s job description. Any criterion can be subject to change at any time without notice to the employee. It 

is expected that members of SICS’ staff will carry out their responsibilities fully and to the best of their abilities, 

and conduct themselves in a manner that best serves the interests of SICS.  

Periodically staff members are invited to discuss their performance with their direct reports, and the results of 

the formal evaluation are kept in each employee’s personnel file. If a staff person’s performance does not meet 

satisfactory standards, the DOTL or ExD may take any of the following steps, which are not progressive in 

nature. The DOTL or ExD will take the step that is most appropriate under the circumstances.  
•  Identify areas of weakness, counsel and create an improvement plan to address them within a specified 

time frame; 
•  Present a verbal warning, and if the problem(s) continue, present staff with a written warning/letter to 

file; and/or 
•  Discharge the staff person. 

Criminal Conviction: All employees of SICS are required to notify the DOTL within 24 hours of occurrence of 

any criminal arrest and/or conviction whether it occurred in or out of the workplace. 

II. School  

5.0 Harassment Policies 

SICS maintains an environment free from discrimination and harassment, where employees treat each other with 

respect, dignity and courtesy. Any conduct or comments regarding a person’s age, race, color, creed, sex, 

national origin, sexual orientation, disability, or other protected characteristic that fail to respect the dignity or 

feelings of an individual is unacceptable.  

Accordingly, discriminatory conduct or conduct characterized as harassment as defined below is prohibited. In 

general, ethnic or racial slurs and other verbal or physical conduct relating to a person’s sex, race, color, religion, 

age, national origin, sexual orientation, disability or other protected characteristic constitute harassment when 

they unreasonably interfere with a person’s work performance or create an intimidating work environment.  

Sexual Harassment: SICS fully incorporates the federal and state law definitions which include: Unwelcome 

sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, or other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature when: (1) 

submission to such conduct is made either explicitly or implicitly a term or condition of an individual’s 

employment; (2) submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for employment 

decisions affecting such individual; or (3) such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering 
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with an individual’s work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment . 

The types of conduct prohibited by this policy include, without being limited to:  
•  Any demand for sexual favors accompanied by a promise of favorable job treatment or a threat 

concerning the employee’s employment or terms and conditions thereof. 
•  Subtle pressure for sexual favors, including implying or threatening that an applicant’s or employee’s 

cooperation of a sexual nature (or refusal thereof) will have any effect on the person’s employment or 
future job opportunities. 

•  Repeated offensive or unwelcome sexual flirtations and advances; verbal comments, jokes or innuendo of 
a sexual nature; words or gesture of a sexual nature used to describe a person or depict a situation; or the 
display of sexually suggestive objects or pictures. 

All Other Discrimination and Harassment: No discriminatory conduct by or against SICS employees is 

tolerated. Any form of harassment is prohibited, including, without being limited to verbal, physical or  visual 

harassment of any kind; all forms of sexual harassment (see above); ethnic slurs; and creating or maintaining an 

intimidating, hostile or offensive environment. Harassment is prohibited in all relationships at the school 

including, without being limited to, between staff and between staff and students. 

Investigation and Remediation: If an employee believes that he or she has experienced harassment, or believes 

that he or she has witnessed harassment, that employee should immediately notify the DOTL, Ex D or any 

member of management with whom that employee feels comfortable. The DOTL, ExD or designee, not involved 

in the alleged harassment, promptly investigates all reports. The report will be kept confidential to the extent 

possible. If the ExD is the subject of the complaint, an employee should immediately notify the Chairperson of 

the Board. If harassment is confirmed through an investigation, the DOTL, ExD or Board will take appropriate 

corrective action, which may, upon their determination include but not be limited to, an official memorandum in 

the offending employee’s personnel file or termination. Documentation of the event, the investigation, and the 

remediation will be kept for at least three (3) years. 

6.0 Whistleblower Policy  

This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase. SICS requires its directors, officers and 

employees to observe high standards of business and personal ethics, as these relate to the organization and in 

the conduct of their duties and responsibilities. The matters that should be reported under this policy include 

suspected fraud, theft, embezzlement, accounting or auditing irregularities, bribery, kickbacks, misuse of school 

assets or suspected regulatory, compliance, or ethics-related issues, concerns or violations. All employees and 

representatives of SICS are expected to practice honesty and integrity in fulfilling responsibilities and comply 

with all applicable laws and regulations. This policy is not a vehicle for reporting violations of the applicable 

human resources policies, problems with co-workers or managers, or for reporting issues related to alleged 

employment discrimination or sexual or any other form of unlawful harassment, all of which are dealt with in 

accordance with the Employment Manual.  

7.0 Alcohol, Smoking, and Drug Policies 

This policy will be fully fleshed out during the pre-opening phase. SICS is committed to ensuring a safe and 

healthy work environment. Smoking, having or using alcohol or drugs is prohibited throughout the workplace. 

State Law prohibits smoking in all school buildings including school buses. State Law also prohibits school 

employees from selling, distributing, attempting to sell or distribute, or being under the influence of alcohol or 

any controlled substance while on school property. This policy applies equally to all vendors, contractors, 

employees, students, and visitors. SICS retains the right to search or test to maintain the safety, security, 

productivity, or quality of SICS and its community members; or if such search aids in an investigation of 

workplace accidents, but only if there is a valid reason to search or test.   

8.0 Confidentiality Policies 

Employees of SICS may not release any privileged information about SICS, its students, its activities, or the 

activities of its personnel except as normally required by their duties or as expressly permitted by the Executive 

Director. Examples of confidential information include, but are not limited to:  
§  Report cards 
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§  Medical records 
§  Residence and contact information 
§  Special Education record 

Only parents and guardians who have custody of their children and personnel mandated by law are allowed  to 

see confidential information pertinent to them. Any applicable law or regulation supersedes a parent or guardian 

from seeing confidential information (i.e. a restraining order, a court order). No employee shall use, publish or 

disclose, or authorize anyone else to use, publish, or disclose or in any way cause to be used, published or 

disclosed any private or proprietary information which such employee may in any way acquire, learn, develop, 

or create through employment with SICS, unless otherwise provided by the DOTL. Any document or other 

material containing such information must be returned to the DOTL upon an employee’s termination or 

resignation. 

If an employee finds it necessary to release privileged information about SICS, its students, its activities, or the 

activities of its personnel except as normally required by their duties or as expressly permitted by the DOTL, 

that employee first must submit a written request to the DOTL. To be considered, the request must include the 

information to be released, to whom it is being released, and why. Failure to secure permission before releasing 

privileged information can result in disciplinary action, including termination. The obligation for employee 

confidentiality continues after employment has been terminated.  

9.0 Telecommunication Policy  

SICS provides computer and communication systems to support its business activities.  This policy will be 

further developed in the pre-startup phase. 

10.0 Employee Files and Employee Record Policy  

SICS maintains a confidential file on each employee that may include, but is not limited to: application materials 

and resume, letters of hire and acceptance, copies of certificates and licenses, performance evaluations, letters of 

commendation and/or warning letters regarding job performance, records of all disciplinary actions, a signed 

code of ethics, and documentation required by state or regulatory agencies. 

SICS is committed to the laws and general principles of employee confidentiality as set forth in the Health 

Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) with regard to the dissemination of private health 

information (PHI) of Agency employees. To comply with all rules and regulations, including ADA, SICS will 

keep all medical records and all other necessary documents in a separate, secure file. Employee files are the sole 

property of SICS, but can be viewed by the employee upon request and in the presence of the DOTL or ExD. 

SICS will only release information on school personnel consistent with applicable rules and regulations. When 

legally mandated to release information on school personnel, SICS does so without employee notification. If an 

employee requests SICS to release information to third party, they must make the request in writing to the ExD. 

The release is at the sole discretion of the ExD, unless legally mandated. 

11.0 Conflict of Interest Policies 

A conflict of interest occurs when any employee, Trustee of the Board, or other person in a position of authority 

has competing personal or professional interests. All employees are required to sign a conflict of interest 

agreement stating they will not derive any personal profit or gain (excluding salary from SICS), directly or 

indirectly, by reason of participation with SICS. Each individual shall disclose to the DOTL or designee any 

personal interest which he or she may have in any matter related to SICS and be recused from any decision on 

that matter. It is the policy of SICS to excuse any staff, Trustee of the Board, or other interested party from any 

part of the hiring process when the potential employee in question is a relative of the employee, Trustee of the 

Board, or interested party. 

III. Student-Related  

12.0 Mandatory Reporting 

All staff members of SICS are considered mandated reporters under Section 413 of the New York State Social 

Services Law. Mandated reporters are legally required to initiate a report under this statute’s pr ovisions when 

they have reasonable cause to suspect that a child is abused or maltreated. SICS requires all staff members who 
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suspect that a child is a victim of child abuse, maltreatment or neglect to immediately bring the matter to the 

attention of the DOTL before completing all other mandatory reporting requirements. It is the responsibility of 

every staff member to report any suspected child abuse, maltreatment or neglect directly to ACS.  The form to be 

filled can be found in the Main Office or via the website: http://www.ocfs.state.ny.us 

SICS will also submit a report to the appropriate authorities in accordance with the law. Any staff member’s 

failure to report suspected child abuse, maltreatment or neglect may render SICS and the individual employ ee 

civilly and/or criminally liable. Reporting suspected child abuse, maltreatment or neglect in good faith will 

protect the reporting employee and SICS from being legally liable.  

New York law defines an "abused child" as a child under eighteen (18) years of age whose parent or person 

legally responsible for his or her care inflicts or allows to be inflicted serious physical or mental injury by other 

than accidental means, or commits or allows to be committed an act of sexual abuse. A "maltreated child" is  any 

child under eighteen (18) years of age whose parent or person legally responsible for him or her fails to provide 

him or her with food, clothing, shelter, education, medical or surgical care, who abandons the child, who uses 

excessive corporal punishment, or who uses drugs or alcohol to the point where he or she loses control of his or 

her actions. Although New York law defines child abuse and maltreatment narrowly, SICS require s employees 

to report suspicion of any serious physical or mental injury (other than by accidental means) or sexual abuse to 

the DOTL and ACS directly, regardless the suspected perpetrator. In all situations involving suspected or alleged 

child abuse or maltreatment, SICS will endeavor to act in the best interests of the student and to cooperate with 

the appropriate authorities. 

13.0 Corporal Punishment Policy  

Staff members of SICS should not touch students, unless safety intervention is necessary to protect a child’s 

physical wellbeing, or the wellbeing of another person. In the event of a classroom emergency in which a child 

needs to be physically restrained staff members should notify the DOTL or designee as possible. Corporal 

punishment is prohibited by NYS law and by SICS, and results in immediate termination. Prohibited actions 

include: taking away a child’s chair and requiring him or her to stand; requiring a child to sit with his or her face 

to the wall; requiring a child to perform a repetitive physical task such as writing the same phrase over and over; 

and requiring a child to affix something to his or her body as a symbol of bad behavior, such as tape over his or 

her mouth. Any employee who becomes aware of an incident of corporal punishment must report that incident 

immediately to the DOTL. 

14.0 Student Medicine Policy 

A parent or guardian requesting that medication be administered to their child during the school day is required 

to submit the written documents and meet the requirements listed in Table 14.1 during school hours to the 

School Nurse. This policy will be further delineated during the start-up phase. 

Table 14.1 School Requirements to Administer Medication 
1 Letter of request and authorization that contains all information required by SBESE policy 

2 Written orders for all medications to be given at school, including annual renewals at start of school year 

3 Written description by physician/dentist of desired effects and child-specific potential for adverse side effects 

4 Prescription for all medications to be administered at school, including medications ordinarily over the counter 

5 List of all medications that the student is currently receiving at home and school, if that listing is not a violation of 
confidentiality or contrary to the request of the parent/guardian or student 

6 List of names and telephone numbers of persons to be notified in case of medication emergency in addition to the 
parent or guardian and licensed person prescribing the medication 

7 Arrangements for the safe delivery of the medication to and from school in the original labeled container as dispensed 
by the pharmacist; the medication shall be delivered by a responsible adult 

8 Unit dose packaging shall be used whenever possible 

Additional policies to be added in pre-opening phase, not limited to: Substitute and temporary staff; 

Sick/Personal days; FMLA/Disability/Bereavement leave; and Stipends and Bonuses.  
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JOB DESCRIPTIONS (may be further fleshed out during the pre-opening phase) 
Executive Director (ExD) 

The ExD reports directly to the Board and is responsible for the effective implementation of policies established by the 
Board and the Charter and for achieving Accountability Goals. The ExD manages the DOTL, DoO, COL and after Year 3, 
the BM. The ExD makes the final decisions on hiring, budgeting, and resource allocation; collaborates with the Board on 
planning, development and implementation of long and short-term strategic plans; is on the Finance, Compliance and 
Education Committees and is represented on others.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Co-develops & implements the vision for the school with 

the Board (creates the strategic plan, sets measurable 
goals, and identifies a roadmap to execute it, including 
school programming and partnerships), while supporting 
and encouraging the mission of SICS in day-to-day 
operation.  

• Maintains communication with SICS’ authorizer and 
liaises between NYSED and the Board.  

• Is responsible for success of school programs and ensures 
school compliance with SICS’ charter, Board policies, 
governmental statutes, its authorizer’s and NYSED 
regulations and other applicable governmental laws and 
regulations. 

• Oversees production and submission of all required 
reports to NYSED and the Board. 

 • Fosters collaborative culture among leadership team. 
• Builds and maintains a clear succession plan for leadership 

positions. 
• Leads all fundraising and development initiatives, 

including grant writing and management, assigning 
responsibility as needed.  

• Administers ManageBac. 

• Recruits, hires, and terminates all instructional staff, with 
DOTL input. 

• Works directly with ASNY (contracted accounting) and 
BM after Yr. 3 and Board to ensure financial stability, 
sound fiscal planning, effective asset management/full 
compliance with audit requirements. 

• Responsible for communications & marketing. 
• Celebrates school vision for public and press; represents 

SICS to parents, community leaders & public.  
• Builds strong, mutually respectful connection among 

stakeholders. 
• Oversees and supports parent outreach & student 

recruitment, focused on diversity and inclusion. 
• Works with the Family-School Association to engage 

parents in all aspects of school life and gives them 
opportunities to provide input. 

• Monitors all progress through analysis of formal and 
informal data, sits on committees, designs and participates 
in school wide PD's. 

• Seeks out opportunities to balance national and 
international exposure for students. 

Qualifications: 1) Minimum 5 years’ experience in elementary school urban education, at least 3 in a leadership role, with 
work experience and/or formal education in leadership principles and practices; 2) Advanced Degree such as Master 
(preferably in Educational Leadership), Law, or Business; 3) An understanding of instructional practice, including those 
related to delivery of instruction in the IB continuum of programs, dual language, NYS CCLS (or equivalent) and 
development of curriculum and assessment of student performance; 4) Understanding of finance, budgeting, and operations; 
5) Exceptional written and verbal communication skills in English, bi-lingual in conversational French; 6) A sound 
understanding of Francophone culture and language; 7) Exceptional interpersonal skills, effective communication and 
motivational skills, proven ability to manage a team and delegate; 8) A partnership builder - multiple stakeholders from all 
backgrounds; and 9) Capable, with computer technology, of gathering information and coordinating technical resources for 
students, teachers and classrooms. 

 

Director of Teaching & Learning (DOTL)  

The DOTL is the instructional manager, who supervises, supports and evaluates all instructional and program staff, 
including Subject Area Teachers, Social Workers, Counselors, and the Instructional Coaches & Coordinators. The DOTL is 
responsible to the ExD to ensure the educational program meets the goals of the charter by coordinating educational 
programs, curriculum design, professional development & staff accountability.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Ensures high academic outcomes identified in school 
charter. 

• Sets academic vision aligned with school vision and 
ensures that staff are mission-aligned. 

• Is responsible for the curriculum, instructional delivery, 
and associated material. 

• Leads staff and teachers in developing/improving an 
academic program tailored to students' needs. 

• Aids teachers in implementing effective instruction; 
monitors student achievement. 

• Manages all data analysis & leads data analysis team 
• Leads hiring process for instructional and programming staff, 

provides recommendations to ExD on recruitment, retention, 
hiring and termination.  

• Trains, supervises and evaluates instructional staff.  
• Works with staff to create personal PD plans and manages 

school wide PD plan. 
• Oversees development and maintenance of school culture, 

including discipline system. 
• Works with Language Instructor(s) and SSC to make sure 

identified students receive designated services. 
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• Fosters collegiality and collaborative decision making 
among staff. 

• Oversees select programs as identified by ExD. 
• Supervises and leads school-based support teams and 
student academic intervention. 

• Responsible for entering data, conducting analytics and 
generating reports through ManageBac. 

• Is the testing Administrator 
• Manages classroom and educational volunteers. 
• Other duties, as assigned by the ExD. 

Qualifications: 1) At least 5 years’ experience in elementary school urban education, at least 2 of which were in a leadership 
role (i.e. Instructional Coach, Staff Developer, Assistant Principal), knowledge of leadership principles and practices gained 
through work experience and formal education, and 2 years or more with curriculum design and development, and 
assessment of student performance; 2) Master’s in Education; 3) Thorough understanding of instructional practice including 
those related to progressive education and/or IB continuum of programs, delivery of instruction, 4) Expertise in or 
experience working with a dual language program: 5) Demonstrated ability to analyze data to focus and improve 
performance; 6) Deep knowledge of NYS CCLS; 7) Exceptional interpersonal, speaking, writing and communication skills 
in English, bi-lingual in conversational French; 8) Demonstrated ability to create a school culture predicated on high 
academic excellence and strong collaboration; and, 9) Exceptional motivational skills to inspire & engage instructional staff 
to live the school's mission. 

 

Director of Operations (DoO) 

The DoO reports directly to the ExD and ensures effective management of non-instructional functions of the school. The 
DoO manages admissions, facilities, student records, food services, transportation, the generation of required reports, and 
other operational and compliance responsibilities. The DoO supervises and evaluates non-instructional, non-program staff, 
including the Office Manager.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Addresses facility needs and ensure all services, building 

use and safety requirements are met. 
• Manages all classroom spaces, including annual set-up 

and break-down. 
• Oversees school environment to ensure that it is ready 

and safe for students on a daily basis. 
• Requisition, receipt and distribution of supplies, 

inventory and processes invoices. 
• Enters data, conducts analytics and generates reports 

through ManageBac – including: student records, test 
scores, assessment results, medical records and 
discipline citations. 

• Manages contracted services.  
• Liaises with ASNY financial representatives. 
• Manages specific financial reports and collaborates with 

leadership on budgets. 
• Oversees Human Resources administration, including 

paperwork for new hires and exit interviews and 
paperwork for terminations. 

• Manages compliance with By-Laws and in support of 
charter renewal and maintains compliance calendar and 
submissions. 

• Recommends and manages relationships with 
vendors/brokers for school-wide insurance, health insurance 
and retirement plans for staff. 

• Manages all compliance including Titles I-V, teacher 
certification and fingerprinting, safety, fire drill, health, 
software licenses, COBRA letters, student lottery, annual 
Sexual Harassment seminar, health & safety reporting, 
workplace signage, attendance reporting, legal issues and 
other requirements. 

• Develops/maintains/supervises teacher prep. schedule. 
• Supervises student medication, dispensation and injury 

reports. 
• Manages facility and program volunteers. 
• Prepares and processes professional retreat and student field 

trip requests. 
• Maintains all auditable and submit-able records and 

documentary evidence. 
 • Ensures compliance with applicable health standards and 

building codes. 
• Transportation services and assignments. 
• Maintains I-9 employment eligibility records.  
• Manages school meals. 
 

Qualifications: 1) Demonstrated record of leadership, management and interpersonal skills; 2) Bachelor’s or higher in 
Operations and/or Organizational Management, Business or related field; 3) At least 3 years prior experience in management 
capacity at a charter school or comparable environment; 4) Understanding of/experience with relevant laws, regulations, 
governmental agencies, budgeting and charter authorizer requirements (or equivalent); 5) and, experienced budget and data 
manager. 

 

 

Community Outreach Liaison (COL) 

The COL reports to and supports the ExD in creating the face of SICS and ensuring that the common vision is being 
realized. The COL is the motive force behind community outreach, building community and stakeholder networks, 
recruiting and retaining students, and developing venues to recruit talented staff. S/he liaises with all stakeholders of the 
school community from families through donors, and facilitates the FSA. S/he aides the ExD in overseeing the financial and 
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personnel growth of the school, and manages fundraising initiatives, including grant proposals, relationships with donors, 
and events. S/he will also manage initial stages of the recruitment process.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Markets services and manages all material and 

engagements for student recruitment. 
• Develops relationships with community organizations, 

families, and potential donors. 
• Oversees external communications, including press 

releases, community newsletter, annual report and other 
publicity materials. 

• Identifies grant opportunities for the school. 
• Assists ExD with all fundraising events, follow up. 

• Organizes open school night and other events. 
• Represents school at hiring fairs, pre-screens resumes, 

conducts initial phone interviews.  
• Develops opportunities for SICS students for service learning 

& summer programs (with school counselor). 
• Increases parent involvement at SICS, convenes regular 

parent meetings of the FSA, and provides a clearinghouse of 
opportunities for job openings. 

• Member of School Advisory Team (SAT). 
• Other duties as assigned by the ExD. 

Qualifications: 1) Demonstrated record of success in community outreach, building community and stakeholder networks, 
recruiting and retaining students, and finding ways to recruit talented staff; 2) Bachelor’s degree or higher in 
communications or related field, with four years of practical experience; 3) Exceptional written and verbal communication 
skills in English, bi-lingual in conversational French; 4) Computer literacy; and, 5) Ability to quickly develop and maintain 
relationships with potential employees, donors, press and other constituencies.  

 

International Baccalaureate (IB/PYP) Coordinator  

The IB/PYP Coordinator strengthens the knowledge base and repertory of teaching skills for instructional staff, including for 
inquiry, and ensures that IB PYP practices are implemented with fidelity. The coordinator implements PYP design for the 
school so it is reflected in every part of the culture, classroom and facility. This includes promoting PYP fundamental 
concepts and ensuring they improve student performance. The coordinator is a member of the school leadership team and 
collaborates closely with the DOTL to develop a cohesive school culture that reflects the qualities of the IB Learner Profile . 

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Guides staff as they implement PYP and develop the 

Program of Inquiry, use PYP planner and a diverse set of 
Common Core aligned assessment strategies. 

• Rolls out IBO PYP PD on materials, best practices and 
communications to staff. 

• Plans and organizes school level and external IB-
approved training for teachers and staff. 

• Provides in-school PD in instructional delivery and IB 
practices to teachers (modeling, workshops, non-
evaluative observations and feedback, etc.). 

• Assists the DOTL and DoO with scheduling and 
monitoring collaborative meetings of grade level teams 
and other team configurations.  

• Ensures that all IBO requirements for programs and 
procedures are carried out within deadlines 

• Infuses an atmosphere of international mindedness into 
school culture as member of the SAT. 

• Ensures that sufficient resources are organized and managed 
within the school and identified within the local community 
to implement PYP, including students undertaking both 
collaborative and independent inquiry. 

• Establishes communication and participation with sub-
regional IB Mid–Atlantic groups. 

• Ensures all staff is issued a username and password to 
access the Online Curriculum Centre. 

• Provides teachers and students with guidance concerning the 
PYP exhibition. 

• Organizes IB-related tours and classroom visits. 

Qualifications: 1) Knowledge of change management theory and practice; 2) Knowledge of adult learner characteristics and 
training principles and practices; 3) Ability to apply current technology to staff development and instructional delivery; 4)  
Outstanding communication skills; 5) Master’s Degree and minimum of 5 years of successful teaching experience; 6) 
Minimum of three years' experience planning, implementing, monitoring, and evaluating staff development programs 
preferred; 7) Bi-lingual French/English; 8) Prior training and experience in an IB program preferred/not required; and, 9) 
Must be able to travel nationally and internationally for training. 

Special Services Coordinator (SSC) 

The SSC oversees special education services, testing accommodations, fulfilling IEP mandates and coordination with the 
NYC DOE CS). The SSC is a Special Education Instructor with part-time administrative responsibilities. 

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Oversees special education and related services, programs 

and grants, and ensures compliance with state and federal 
laws and regulations related to the implementation of 
IDEIA. 

• Remains current regarding laws, policies, trends & best 
practices related to education, specifically the SpEd 

• Leads SBST/on other related school-wide committees. 
• Expands learning opportunities for students in an on-going 

effort to improve services and programs, offer instructional 
pathways based on best practices and maximize progress. 

• Coordinates identification, monitoring and evaluation of 
special service delivery. 

• Attends all IEP meetings with the CSE/ coordinates 
participation of school staff, parents and students. 
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programs, and regularly shares this information with 
administrators and staff. 

• Provides PD workshops (training on UDL instruction and 
planning, best practices for special education, etc.) with 
the IB Coordinator. 

• Coordinates services for specific student response to 
intervention, using school protocol. 

• Coordinates all diagnostic testing required for students 
with disabilities & ensures they receive testing 
accommodation during all assessments.  

• Provides support with complex IEPs including facilitating 
meetings and advising stakeholders. 

• Ensures IEPs are updated and submitted in a timely way and 
maintained securely. 

• Generates bi-monthly and trimestral reports.  
• Other duties as determined by the DOTL. 

Qualifications: 1) Minimum Master’s Degree; 2) Valid NYS Special Education Certification; 3) Minimum two year's 
Special Education administrative and teaching experience in an urban public or charter school; 4) Demonstrated ability to 
work effectively and collaboratively with multiple stakeholders; 5) Extensive knowledge of provisions of IDEIA, Section 
504, assessment and curriculum for Special Education student; 6) Demonstrated ability to implement Special Education 
strategies and accommodations, particularly UDL; 7) Extraordinary organization skills, allowing for detailed tracking of 
data, coordinating and following through on IEP meetings and procedures, and tracking of progress of students with 
disabilities; and, 8) Bilingual French/English preferred. 

 

Subject Area Teachers* 

Subject Area teachers execute SICS mission in the classroom, working directly with students to attain high academic 
achievement, apply critical thinking skills and ethical standards to learning, and engage in live problem solving through 
individual teaching and learning practices. Instructional staff show a combination of skills and attributes that align with the 
general IB philosophy, Common Core requirements and the SICS mission. Priority is given to bilingual teachers and 
instructors with IB experience or programmatic exposure commensurate with specific positions.  Each Teacher’s primary 
responsibility is to ensure that their students achieve at high levels academically and socially, and acquire a strong academic 
foundation for achievement in life, career and college. 

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Actively engages each child to achieve high academic 

standards and provides consistent support no matter how 
challenging an individual situation is.  

• Maintains individualized student portfolios. 
• Plans student learning/individual achievements based on 

long and short-term goals and program objectives. 
• Selects and uses effective and inclusive instructional 

methods and learning materials. 
• Finds innovative and emerging techniques and new forms 

of delivery and academic opportunities to enrich student 
experience. 

• Communicates and collaborates with peers, sharing student 
work, methodologies, and strategies; coordinates lesson 
topics with other teachers to create a coherent curricular 
design to meet school goals. 

• Meets regular/ predictable attendance requirements. 

• Manages the classroom and keeps students on task. 
•  Uses school support services for students as needed. 
• Reflects consistently on self and classroom interactions and 

practices, to improve teaching. 
• Creates personal PD plans and participates in external growth 

opportunities. 
• Attends, participates and facilitates team meetings and PD 

opportunities, and common planning times. 
• Engages with parents on positive and negative student 

interactions [a minimum of two positive contacts (phone, 
email, or text message) with parents per week] and conducts 
home visits as needed. 

• Prepares, administers, and analyzes all required student 
assessments and data. 

• Selects and uses effective and inclusive instructional methods 
and learning materials. 

• Celebrates international understanding/diversity  

Qualifications: 1) Minimum Bachelor’s in subject area to be taught, Master’s in Education preferred; 2) Minimum of 2 years 
teaching experience in an urban public or charter school setting; 3) Proven track-record of high achievement in the 
classroom and commitment to accountability; 4) Belief in and alignment with SICS’s core beliefs and educational 
philosophy; 5) Second language teachers must be French/English bilingual and biliterate; 6) Must be able to travel nationally 
and internationally for training; and, 7) All content area teachers must hold a valid NYS professional teaching license or 
certification, or be eligible for reciprocity. The ExD can make an exception under the terms of this Policy, in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations. In this case, teachers must have a minimum of 5 years of teaching experience. 
* To be individually tailored for Special Education Instructor, bilingual/monolingual teachers, Academic Intervention Special ists and ESL/FLE Specialists, 
as required. 

 

English as a Second Language Instructor’s Responsibilities (addition to those listed under “Teacher” above) 
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• Lead development and implementation of program to meet language development needs of ELLs  
• Create individualized service plans and schedules for each ELL/Second language learners of French  
• Provide ESL/ FLE services and academic enrichment to students based on service plans  
• Observe and provide guidance to teachers on differentiating for ELL students  
• Ensure compliance with all pertinent ELL laws and policies  
• Manage student identification and testing processes (HLS, LAB-R, NYSESLAT)  
• Maintain relationships and communicate with families about student progress  
• Provide professional development on ELL for teachers based on identified needs  

French as a Second Language (FLE) Responsibilities (addition to those listed under “Teacher” above) 

• Lead development and implementation of program to meet language development needs of FLE learners  
• Create individualized service plans and schedules for each FLE  
• Provide FLE services and academic enrichment to students based on service plans  
• Observe and provide guidance to teachers on differentiating for students  
• Ensure compliance with all pertinent ACTL standards  
• Manage student identification and testing processes (SOPA/ELLOPA)  
• Maintain relationships and communicate with families about student progress  
• Provide professional development on FLE acquisition techniques and strategies for teachers based on needs  

Additional Qualifications: 1) Fluent in French 2) Fluent in English 

 

Social Worker and Guidance Counselor 

The Social Worker and Guidance Counselor support the school in addressing social, emotional and development needs of 
students and families, and helping them access appropriate services and resources. Both on SBST. 

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Provides mandated counseling services per IEPs. 
• Provides “at-risk” counseling for staff or self-referred 

students, where behavior, school progress or mental or 
physical impairment indicate need.  

• Conducts student observations and/or Functional 
Behavior Analyses for students with persistent issues 

• Develops student behavior plans,  
• Coordinates external services as required. 
• Develops and reviews service plans with students, 

families, and school staff, and performs follow-ups to 
assess the quantity and quality of service provided. 

• Member of School Advisory Team (SAT). 
• Arranges for medical, psychiatric, and other tests that  

  may disclose causes and indicate remedial measures. 
• Trains staff on compliance with DASA 
• Supports school staff in their role as mandated reporters to 

address issues such as suspected child abuse and neglect, 
acting as school liaison with Administration for Children’s 
Services. 

• Maintains case history records and reports out. 
• Addresses emergency situations impacting students - leads 

group counseling sessions that provide support with grief, 
stress, chemical dependency, etc. 

• Interviews students individually, in families, or in groups to 
assess circumstances, capabilities and issues and determine 
services appropriate to needs. 

A Guidance Counselor will be hired in Year 3 and to the DOTL. In addition to above duties, the Guidance Counselor supports 
students and parents through mandated counseling services and crisis intervention as well as the College Bound and Career 
Ready workshops and trainings, and ensures that students have a realistic, workable understanding of the steps and milestones 
to being successful in higher education. 

S.W. Qualifications: 1) Master’s degree or higher in School Counseling or Social Work; 2) Appropriate NYS Certification; 
3) Minimum 3 years’ experience working as a school counselor in an urban public or charter school; 4) Demonstrated ability 
to work productively with staff and with diverse populations of students, parents, and families, including SWD or LEP; 5) 
Demonstrated understanding of issues facing children and youth, especially in urban environments; and 6) French-speaking a 
plus. 

G.C. Qualifications: 1) Bachelor’s degree required, Master’s Degree preferred; 2) Minimum three years’ experience working 
as counselor in an urban public or charter school; 3) Demonstrated ability to work productively with staff and with diverse 
populations of students, parents, and families, including SWD or LEP; 4) Understanding of post-secondary options for 
students, including colleges, trade schools, and training programs; 5) Excellent oral and written communication skills; 6) 
Exceptional organizational skills; 7) Ability to represent SICS to organizations, donors, colleges, trade schools, and traini ng 
programs; and 8) French-speaking a plus. 

 

Start-up Coordinator (pre-cursor of the Office Manager) 

The Start-up Coordinator is the first point of contact for staff and visitors. S/he is the central contact during pre-opening and 
Year 1 for all departments and stakeholders, reports to DoO and supervises School Aides. 

Specific Responsibilities: • Set-up and stock supplies in teachers lounge. 
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• Create and/or coordinate schedules of delivery, 
calendars/timelines, and storage and stocking areas. 
• Tracking compliance and accompanying documents 
• Prepare manuals and handbooks 
• Maintain school documents  
• Set-up and Maintain system to address facility needs. 
• Schedules & logs fire alarms as mandated. 
• Facilitate opening of utility and other accounts  
• Assist and support personnel during building-wide 
procedures. 
• Coordinate contractor and consultant needs 
• Answers/redirects general phone and email inquiries. 
• Set-up and coordinate time sheets, internal meetings and 

appointments. 
• Set-up and Ensure complete pupil accounting logs. 
• Participate in workshops and trainings 
• Ensure common areas are welcoming. 

• Maintains office appliances and equipment, tracks and 
replenishes office supplies, manages postal operations. 

 • Assists Leadership with student recruitment process,  
including outreach, and the IB coordinator with tours for 
parents. 

 • Conduct research for fundraising and prepare grant application 
materials 

 • Carries out administrative tasks with respect to recruitment, 
lottery administration, and enrollment as directed by DoO, 
DOTL or ExD. 

 • Supports student transportation, including procurement and 
distribution of MetroCards, and transportation for field trips. 

 • Coordinates school-parent communications, including 
mailings or reminder phone calls, 

 • Other duties, as directed by the DoO, DOTL, or ExD. 

Qualifications: 1) Minimum High School Diploma; Business training or Associate’s Degree preferred; 2) a successful record 
of at least 3 Years prior employment in administrative, secretarial, or office manager duties in educational environments; 3) 
Knowledge of and experience with relevant technologies; 4) highly organized; 5) French speaker a plus; and 6) computer 
literate and able to type at speed. 

Office Manager (transition from start-up coordinator) 

The Office Manager is the first point of contact for many parents and other visitors, and is responsible for creating and 
sustaining a welcoming, open environment. They report to the DoO and supervises School Aides. 

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Answers/redirects general phone and email inquiries. 
• Maintains office appliances and equipment, tracks and 

replenishes office supplies, manages postal operations. 
• Coordinates time sheets, internal meetings and 

appointments. 
• Ensures common areas are welcoming. 
• Stocks supplies in teachers lounge. 
• Ensures pupil accounting logs are complete. 
• Schedules & logs fire alarms as mandated. 
• Maintains system to address facility needs. 

• Assists Leadership with student recruitment process, including 
outreach, and the IB coordinator with tours for parents. 

• Carries out administrative tasks with respect to recruitment, 
lottery administration, and enrollment as directed by DoO, 
DOTL or ExD. 

• Supports student transportation, including procurement and 
distribution of MetroCards, and transportation for field trips. 

• Coordinates school-parent communications, including mailings 
or reminder phone calls, 

• Other duties, as directed by the DoO, DOTL, or ExD. 

Qualifications: 1) Minimum High School Diploma, Business training or Associate’s Degree; 2) a successful record of at least 
3 Years prior employment in administrative, secretarial, or office manager duties educational environments; 3) Knowledge of 
and experience with relevant technologies; 4) enjoys children; 5) French speaker a plus; and 6) computer literate and able to 
type at speed. 

 

School Aide 

School Aides report to the Office Manager and provide support to the Office Manager in carrying out  office and other 
administrative tasks at the school in support of the DOTL, ExD, DoO, and all staff.  

Responsibilities Include (Completes any and all other duties as may be assigned): 
• The school aide helps the Office Manager, and may be asked to make deliveries and run errands, make photocopies, answer 

phones, collect supplies, re-stock supply cabinets, accompany school outings. 
• School aides are on lunch duty, assist with dismissal, may monitor students in the bathroom or in the halls between classes, 

assist with special school events. 
• Embodies the culture of the school, engages parents and stakeholders, and assist in outreach and maintaining interested 

stakeholder information. 

Qualifications: 1) Minimum High School Diploma or secretarial training; 2) Knowledge of/experience with relevant 
technologies; 3) Minimum one year clerical work or internship; 4) Driver's license; and 5) French a plus. 

 

 

Anticipated Positions 
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Business Manager (Added after Year 3) 

The Business Manager will be hired in Year 3, and is responsible for maintaining all financial systems and operations of the 
school. He or she reports to the DoO.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Posts all revenues, bank deposits, expenses, check 

disbursements in accounting system and maintains all 
accounting files. 

• Handles all payroll responsibilities including payroll 
service, electronic payroll processing, W-2 and 1099 
distribution, time sheet management, posting payroll 
expenses in accounting system, filing of related 
documents using Binder System. 

• Tracks days absent (vacation, sick, personal, jury duty, 
bereavement, excused absences for PD) and establishes 
automated tracking for staff.  

• Manages contracted services.  
• Manages school meals. 
• Handles Human Resources administration, including 

paperwork for new hires and exit interviews and paperwork 
for terminations. 

• Enrolls staff in health and retirement plans. 
• Handles all compliance responsibilities including Titles I-V, 

COBRA letters, teacher certification and fingerprinting, 
safety, fire drill coordinator, health, software compliance, 
student lottery, annual Sexual Harassment seminar, and legal 
issues. 

• Handles compliance (By-Laws and charter renewal). 

Qualifications: 1) Demonstrated record of organization and interpersonal skills; 2) Bachelor’s Degree or higher in Business 
Management, Finance, Accounting or other similar field; 3) At least two years’ previous experience in business or finance 
capacity at a charter school or similar environment; and, 4) Knowledge of/experience with relevant laws, regulations, and 
charter authorizer requirements. 

 
Instructional Coach (Added after Year 4.) 

The Instructional Coach attends, participates and facilitates team meetings and PD opportunities as well as common planning 
times for classroom teachers. As SICS grows the Coach will focus exclusively on assisting teachers with growth and 
development in a non-evaluative capacity. S/he reviews student data for patterns across aggregate and disaggregate groups 
and focuses on core content – reading, writing and mathematics.  

Specific Responsibilities: 
• Observes each Subject Area Teacher at least weekly, 

conducting pre- and post-observation conferences. 
• Provides additional, non-evaluative coaching on lesson and 

unit planning, delivery of instruction, standards alignment, 
classroom management, and student assessment. 

• Conducts content area PD. 
• Models lessons and co-teach as coaching tools. 
• Coaches teachers through the Marzano professional 

evaluative rubric. 
• Other duties, as directed by the DOTL or ExD in support of 

teacher performance. 

Qualifications: 1) Master's with minimum 5 years teaching experience in an urban or charter school; 2) Minimum one year 
experience as Coach, Department Head, or other intermediary instructional leadership position; 3) Demonstrated knowledge 
of CCLS and expertise in either ELA or Math; 4) Bilingual French/English preferred.  

 

School Nurse 

The School Nurse is responsible for the health and welfare of the students. S/he provides first aid, tracking of medical 
conditions and records, and training to school staff on health issues. S/he meets all mandated reporting and compliance goals. 

Essential Functions and Duties 
• Ensures every student has a documented “new admission” examination, a current medical record, and that other mandated 

services are provided during the school day. 
• Develops individualized health care plans with specific goals, objectives and interventions for students with special health 

needs and/or chronic health problems.  
• Collaborates with school personnel in developing and implementing case management plans.  
• Conducts referral and case management activities in conjunction with community providers. 
• Implements OSH standardized tracking system for follow-up of student referrals. Monitors compliance with health care 

plans at appropriate intervals. 
• Follows the OSH communicable disease control procedures, informs and advises administration and/or parents regarding 

school exclusion and readmission. Implements protocol to prevent further outbreak.  
• Liaises between medical provider, community groups, the school, and staff on student health concerns.  
• Assesses environmental conditions that could be hazardous to student health and recommendations changes. 
• Reports suspected physical and sexual abuse and neglect of children as mandated by law. 
• Conducts teacher-nurse conferences to identify student health problems and provides an opportunity to clarify or reinforce 

specific recommendations requested by health providers. 
• Conducts outreach activities for Medicaid-eligible children and families to access Early and Periodic, Screening, Diagnostic 

and Treatment (EPSDT) program. 
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• Provides on-going health education programs to students and parents; in-service training to school staff. 
• Prepares monthly reports for program evaluation and on-going needs assessment. 

Qualifications: (1) two years’ experience in an acute care setting, (2) associate degree or bachelor of science in nursing from 
approved training program (3) passed National Council Licensure Examination for RNs, (4) broad knowledge base, including 
pediatric, public and mental health nursing, as well as school law and policy, (5) strong interpersonal skills, notably in a 
highly diverse setting (6) leadership qualities, able to work independently and collaboratively, (7) Spanish or French a plus. 

 

Development Associate Job Description 

The Development Associate assists the ExD with managing all fundraising initiatives, including grant proposals, relationships 
with donors, and fundraising events; and outreach within the community and student body. S/he reports to the ExD.  

Specific responsibilities: (Completes any and all other duties as may be assigned) 
• Assists the ExD with applying to and administering all competitive grants  
• Assists the ExD with all fundraising events, including follow up, develops relationships with potential donors  
• Develops opportunities for Sofara International students, such as jobs, internships or summer programs  
• Oversees external communications, including press releases, blogs, website, community newsletter, annual report and 

other publicity materials. 

Qualifications: (1) Bachelor’s degree or higher in communications or related field; (2) Ability to quickly develop and 
maintain relationships with potential employees, donors, press and other constituencies for SICS; (3) Exceptional written and 
verbal communication skills; (4) Event planning experience; (5) Successful Grant winning/management experience. 

 

Special Education Paraprofessional Job Description 

Paraprofessionals assist students with special needs under the direction of a certified teacher. They assist the teachers in 
general daily classroom activities; care for their academic, physical, emotional health and safety; affirm their abilities; and 
strive to promote dignity.  

Specific responsibilities (Completes any and all other duties as may be assigned)  
• Assists students in achieving academic success by providing instructional support in small groups or 1:1  
• Modifies materials 
• Implements behavior management plans, works with students who may be aggressive or disruptive in class  
• Behavior support. including physical management (training provided upon hire)  
• Supports personal care and social integration  
• Collects data on students, consults and collaborates with teachers as well as related service staff  

Qualifications: (1) High School Diploma required, Bachelor’s degree or higher in a related field preferred; (2) 1 – 2 years’ 
experience working with children; (3) Exceptional written and verbal communication skills; (4) Patience 

 

Building Custodian Job Description 

Requirements/Qualifications: Able to work unsupervised and cooperatively; communicate and follow oral and written 
communication in English; and recognize and repair malfunctioning equipment. Love of children, positive attitude towards 
co-workers and willingness to accept instructions and training. Good attendance. Reports to DoO. 

Physical Requirements: This is a strenuous job and the successful candidate should be able to lift 75 pounds, climb high 
ladders, work in hard to access spaces, and spend most of the day walking or standing.  Constant hand-eye and mind-eye 
coordination. There is frequent bending, carrying, lifting and stooping, and repetitive motion. 

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS AND DUTIES (Completes any and all other duties as may be assigned): 
• Sweeps, dusts, arranges furniture, empties trash and pencil sharpeners, cleans chalk and white boards and sets up activities.  

Washes walls, woodwork and windows, and cleans and polishes metal surfaces. Wet mops, spot cleans and maintains hard 
and soft surface floors. Cleans, sanitizes and deodorizes restrooms and other common areas. 

• Maintains lawns, landscaping, concrete, blacktop surfaces/playgrounds, pedestrian walkway snow/ice removal. 
• Performs preventive and corrective maintenance on building systems, fixtures and furnishings. Monitors and operates 

heating, air conditioning, ventilation, water, sewer, electrical and mechanical building systems.  
• Checks operation of fire alarm system, operates security systems, secures building at shift end. 
• Performs minor repair maintenance. Observes and reports needed repair of equipment, furnishings, fixtures, building and 

site. Operates heating, A/C, ventilation, electrical and mechanical systems (turning equipment on/off and/or setting 
day/night cycles). Orders and replenishes custodial and maintenance supplies. 

• Assists with set up and tears down for school activities; works a revised schedule and substitutes for other custodial staff 
when necessary; shares responsibility for holiday, extended day and weekend activities with other custodial staff.  

Qualifications: (1) Experience as a building custodian, preferably school; (2) understands the New York State Green Cleaning 
program, for schools; (3) French/English language skills preferred, English a must.  
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VOYKA  SOTO  
Curriculum Vitae 

PROFILE  
 

International Educator with experience in American and  
Overseas International K-8 schools  

§  
Experienced instructor, leader, and program developer 

§  
Successful in planning & developing new schools; planning and implementing school-wide systemic 

reforms for both turnaround needs and accreditation purposes 
§  

Specialist in Curriculum and Assessment Development 
§  

Proven ability to solve problems while effectively leading staff 
§  

Graduate - State Department Sponsored Foreign Affairs Teacher Training Program 
§  

International Baccalaureate Organization-certified in Teaching and Learning 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

 

Magnet Leadership (School turnaround support) 2010-13 

NYCDOE Community School District 3 

Planned, developed and implemented school-wide policies, programs & procedures for full 
systemic reform through the Federal Magnet School Assistance program over a 3-year span as 
part of a team of K-5 Educators.  

• Analyzed school-wide policies and programs using data and results to develop policies 
and procedures for International Baccalaureate Primary Years Program implementation 

• Developed short and long term strategic plans and goals for school-wide turnaround in 
assessment, professional development, curriculum materials and tools, student 
recruitment and family & community engagement 

• Mapped and wrote extensive curricula, developed “Program of Inquiry” for vertical & 
horizontal alignment including alignment with New York State Common Core Learning 
Standards and New York City scope & sequence 

• Provided turnkey professional development for teachers on pedagogical shifts in 
instructional delivery and the practices and practices of the Primary Years Program 

• Achieved full International Baccalaureate Organization World School status 
authorization  
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Executive Steering Committee 2004-2005 

School improvement steering committee member assigned to science and academics, and student 
services for accreditation with the European Council of International Schools and the Middle 
States Association of Schools and Colleges. 

 
• Designed & conducted school-wide SWOT analysis on teaching and learning  
• Created strategic plans and timeline for their implementation  
• Assisted in implementation of and provided quality review oversight for new systems and 

policies specific to science, academics & student services 
• Observed, reviewed and coached teachers for accreditation review 

 

New School Development Consultant 2002-2004 

Consulted on foundational and structural planning for Creative Children International School, 
Kuwait, to serve a special needs population of elementary school aged students.   

• Co-wrote start-up plan for school opening through SWOT analysis 
• Co-planned and oversaw facilities design, selection, and construction; provided oversight 

for setup of facility and selection of educational materials and tools  
• Managed aspects of the opening plan including teacher selection, student assessment and 

placement assistance, and curriculum planning and mapping development 
• Designed inquiry & support programs for special needs students and provided evaluation 

and testing of all incoming students 
• Facilitated teacher trainings and professional development on issues in special education 

and specific cognitive and genetic disorders 
 

Instructional experience  

Extensive work with at-risk students from K-8 at varying ability levels 
including Learning Disabled, autistic, mentally challenged, mobility 
impaired, English Language Learners with & without an iep, and gifted and 
talented.   

International Baccalaureate facilitator  

(primary years program) 2009-2014 

• Developed IB Primary Years Program curriculum units of inquiry aligned with CCLS 
and NYC scope and sequence 

• Created trans-disciplinary lesson plans that met differentiated student inquiries and the 
learning needs of all students and levels of ability 

• Co-developed inquiry based performance projects, activities and tasks enabling students 
to apply learning in an authentic manner 

• Developed and managed grade-wide student culminating academic exhibition 
• Mentored fellow teachers on teaching and learning using IB principles and practices 
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ACADEMIC & BEHAVIOR INTERVENTION SPECIALIST 1998-2002/2006-2009 

• Worked with students and families as Assistant Dean of middle school  to promote a 
healthy academic career by collaborating on the development and implementation of 
systems to promote positive student behaviors. 

• Worked with at-risk students as intervention support specialist for classroom teachers by 
organizing and conducting faculty-staff professional development workshops as well as by 
working directly with students through small group and whole class instruction 

• Developed Academic and Behavior Intervention Plans for level 1 and 2 Middle School 
students with evaluation of individual student needs as part of the School Based Support 
Team 

• Developed and implemented school-wide values & ethics curriculum for general 
education Pilot Program. Character Education (K-6) 

• Established, coordinated, and ran school incentive program for 1,200 students 
• Designed and wrote monthly school newsletter with student ‘reporters’, editors, and print 

staff 
• Implemented curriculum through developed units of study for school based diversity & non 

violence program 
 

SCHOOL BASED SUPPORT PROJECTS 

Faculty 

§ Mentored Special Education teachers 
§ Developed & implemented Middle School discipline policy 
§ Chaired Middle School Science committee 
§ Chaired Student Services committee  
§ Developed and trained parent volunteer group 
§ Developed and implemented school based student incentive system 
§ Organized and ran faculty-staff professional development workshops 
§ Organized faculty professional development conference travel 
§ Implemented school based diversity & non-violence program 
§ School-wide Steering Committee Science Chair 
§ School Leadership Team core member 
§ Magnet Leadership Team memberDiscipline Committee member  
§ School based Chapter Leader, United Federation of Teachers 
 

Student 

§ Organized and facilitated uniquely designed authentic learning experiences 
§ Organized school events and performances  
§ Produced and directed original student performances 
§ Implemented a Model U.N. program  
§ Facilitated several student centered clubs 
§ Supervised student led fundraisers 
§ Facilitated process for student articulation 
§ Organized student exhibition 
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§ Faculty advisor for student newspaper 
 

PROFESSIONAL other 
 

New York French American Charter School: 2011-13 Education Committee & Board member  

Psychotherapist - Specializing in child development and adult group therapy 

Assistant Researcher in Epistemology: Implicit learning and tacit knowledge 
pre-professional experience available upon request 

 
PROFESSIONAL Affiliations 
 

• NAFSA:  Association Of International Educators 
• International Baccalaureate Organization 

EDUCATION 
 

George Mason University 
Master in Education, International Curriculum and Instruction 

 
*United World College 

Certification, International Baccalaureate Continuum: Teaching 
and Learning 

 
The College of St. Rose 

Certification, Students with Disabilities 
 

City University of New York at Brooklyn College 
 Bachelor of Art, Psychology 
 
Including two year at the Sorbonne (1 & 3) University of Paris   

 Arabic Language and Middle Eastern Culture 
 

OTHER 
 

Languages 
English – Mother tongue         French – Conversational           Arabic – Basic 

Demonstrated strong cross-cultural communication skills 
 

Licensing 
NYS licensed pedagogue – Common Branches 

Formerly: Students with Disabilities endorsement 
 

Experience working with mainstream and GT Learners with specialization in promoting high 
achievement with special needs, and ESL students in and outside of the classroom environment as 

instructor and support specialist 



               
 

NYSED 2017 Round 2  Attachment 8b - 5 of 8 

Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries 

 
KATIE TAYLOR  

 

 

ADMINISTRATION	
Experienced and results-oriented Education Administrator with proven abilities in managing 
teams, projects, and schools. Skilled in hands-on leadership and molding exceptional teams. 
Thorough State and District knowledge in education policy and regulation. Self-starter with 
proven academic and professional achievement who possesses unique education management 
skills required to organize a start-up school. 

 
 

CORE COMPETENCIES 
 

• Leadership: team and project management   
• Policy research and analysis 
• Content knowledge: city and state policy and regulations 
• Startup projects  
• Compliance: investigation, analysis and trend spotting   
• Training, coaching and mentoring 
• Team performance, feedback and evaluation  
• Communication and problem solving 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE  

 

 

NYC DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION                                                                                  
2006 – PRESENT 

Administrator 

Supervise special education impartial hearing team of 6+ focusing on arbitration, investigation, 
recruitment, individual and team training, coaching and mentoring, continued caseload of 35+ 
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cases. Maintained compliance with data collection and trend tracking. Disseminate information 
about research and analysis to high level education stakeholders. 

 
• Assumed an increased leadership responsibility, which was raised in December 2015 

from administrative staff analyst to managing administrative staff and again in March 
2016 from managing administrative staff to senior managing administrative staff  

• Achieved and maintained 100% on-time reporting and quality rating, complying with all 
district and state-specific policy regulations. 

 

School Leader 

Founding school team member focused on directing school compliance and analysis reporting. 
Responsible for budget management and projected spending. Directed afterschool programming 
and college and career initiatives. Taught academic lessons and professional development to 
students and school staff.  

• Regularly assisted the school leadership team with data collection, analysis and reporting 
of required compliance data. 

• Trainer/mentor for the literacy and special education teams. 
• Interim acting assistant principal, overseeing a second year grades 9 and 10 school. 

Experience with managing 15+ staff, core team budgeting and dual credit online 
academic program development.  

 

Learning Specialist 

Authored curriculum and assessment initiatives, taught and mentored students, chaired 
departments, lead professional development sessions. 

• Taught in small, integrated and resource classrooms in middle and high school. 
• Tailored lessons and individual education plans all students making learning accessible.   
• Taught professional development sessions and mentored new teachers. 

 

BUSAN FOREIGN SCHOOL                                                                                                               
2008 – 2009 

Lead Learning Specialist 

Counseled staff on restructuring curriculum, modifying assessments and best practice in special 
and international education. Analyzed student performance data, implemented cross curricular 
literacy and math program while teaching in an elementary classroom.  
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COUNCIL OF OVERSEAS SCHOOLS (KORCOS)                                                                         
2008 – 2009 

Conference Coordinator 

Organized and facilitated annual international education conference. Coordinated academic 
keynotes, speakers and vendors. Showcased data presentations, trends and best practice in 
international education.  

NY PARAMOUNT INTERNATIONAL EDUCATION                                                                      
2006 – 2010 

Consultant  

Consulted academic program launch in USA and Korea. Secured USA partnerships for 
organization, authored curriculum and assessments, trained and mentored teaching staff.  

 

TODAY INC. ALTERNATIVE SCHOOL                                                                                            
2004– 2006 

Program Director 

Directed school staff, streamlined policies and procedures for staff and students, authored 
individual education plans, facilitated district, school and family meetings. Taught middle and 
high school lessons to students.  

 

 

EDUCATION  

 

Baruch College, New York, NY | 01/2012 

M.S. in Education | Major: Public Administration | Minor: Education Administration  

 

Temple University, Philadelphia, PA | 12/2004 

B.S. in Education | Double Major: Elementary and Special Education  
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CERTIFICATIONS  

 

 

New York State Teaching License | Grades 6-9 Special Education Generalist | Professional 

Pennsylvania State Teaching License | Grades K-12 Special Education and grades K-6 General 
Education| Professional 

New Jersey State Teaching License| Grades K-12 Special Education and Social Studies and 
English specialist| Professional 

 



New York State Education Department
 Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools Authorized by the Board of Regents

Budget and Cash Flow Templates for the 2017 New Charter Applications 

General Instructions and Notes for New Application Budgets and Cash Flows Templates

1. - Complete ALL SIX tabs in BLUE
2. - Enter information into the GRAY cells
3. - Cells labeled in ORANGE contained guidance pertaining to that tab
4. - Cells containing RED triangles in the upper right corner in columns B thru G contain guidance on

   that particular line item

5.  - Funding by School District information for all NYS School districts is located on the State Aid website at
State Aid--https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/  Refer to this website for per-pupil tuition funding for all school districts. 
   Rows may be inserted in the worksheet to accommodate additional districts if necessary. 

6.  - Assumptions column should be completed for all revenue and expense items unless the item is 
   self-explanatory. Where applicable, please reference the page number or section in the application 
   narrative that indicate the assumption being made. For instance, student enrollment would reference
   the applicable page number in Section I, C of the application narrative. 

https://stateaid.nysed.gov/charter/


New York State Education Department
Request for Proposals to Establish Charter Schools 
Authorized by the Board of Regents

New Application Budget(s) & Cash Flow(s) Templates

Sofara International Charter School
Contact Name: Voyka Soro
Contact Email:
Contact Phone:
District of Location CSD 4 or 5 or the Hamilton Heights section of CSD 6

Examples
Pre-Opening Period Jan 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018
Operational Year ONE 7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019



Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR PRE-OPENING PERIOD

Jan 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018
 Assumptions

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below
in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 148. This will
populate the data in row 10.

DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page number in application if
applicable. For example, student enrollment would reference the page in the application that

states enrollment targets.
Total Revenue 165,000
Total Expenses 165,000
Net Income -
Actual Student Enrollment -
Total Paid Student Enrollment -

START-UP
PERIOD

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate
District of Location - NYC CSD 4 or 5
School District 2 (Enter Name) - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - -

-
Special Education Revenue
Grants

Stimulus -
Other -

Other -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES -

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs
Title I
Title Funding - Other -
School Food Service (Free Lunch) -
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 165,000 First installment of CSP Funding based on projeced minimum allocation of $750,000
Other -

Other -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 165,000

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising -  
Erate Reimbursement -
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, -
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) -
Food Service (Income from meals) -
Text Book -
OTHER -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES -

TOTAL REVENUE 165,000

EXPENSES

ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS
No. of Positions

List exact titles included in the position category, if different from description, and staff FTE"s
( Full time equivalent)

Executive Management 1.00 45,000 7.5K per month for Executive Director stipend begins January 1, 2018
Instructional Management 0.66 24,000 6K per month for Director of Teaching and Learning stipend begins March 1, 2018



Deans, Directors & Coordinators
CFO / Director of Finance - -
Operation / Business Manager - -
Administrative Staff 0.66 10,000 2.5K per month for Community Outreach Liaison stipend starts March 1, 2018

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 2.32 79,000

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular - -
Teachers - SPED - -
Substitute Teachers - -
Teaching Assistants - -
Specialty Teachers - -
Aides - -
Therapists & Counselors - -
Other - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL - -

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse - -
Librarian - -
Custodian - -
Security - -
Other - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL - -

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2.32 79,000

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 7,110 9% for payroll taxes
Fringe / Employee Benefits -
Retirement / Pension -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 7,110

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2.32 86,110

CONTRACTED SERVICES

Accounting / Audit 
18,000 $15,000 for accounting system set up through Accounting Services of NY (ASNY) and $3,000 for auditing (per

quotes) (See III.J)
Legal - pro bono, provided by Neighbourhood Entrepreneur Law Project
Management Company Fee -
Nurse Services -
Food Service / School Lunch -
Payroll Services -
Special Ed Services -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) -

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 2,000 2K for Graphic designer and Marketing packages
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 20,000

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses

13,400 (See III.E) General Training for board 8@ 700 each, IB training for board 8 @ 900 each, and 6 months of
meetings @ 100$ each)

Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials -
Special Ed Supplies & Materials -
Textbooks / Workbooks -
Supplies & Materials other 2,000 Curriculum development materials For initial Program of Inquiry work

Equipment / Furniture - Included in co-working office space fee
Telephone 600 Six months of mobile service for three lines

Technology
6,000 3 Macbook laptops at $4,200; apple projector @2 x $425; 1 office printer @$700; 1 pitney bowes prorated @$150

+ $100 supplies
Student Testing & Assessment -
Field Trips -



Transportation (student) -
Student Services - other -
Office Expense 1,390 miscellaneous - (i.e. writing pads, copies, pens, postage)
Staff Development 7,000 $4,000 Core Knowledge Language Arts (CKLA) all staff Summer Institute;$3,000 IB training School Leaders

(reference Section III.E)Staff Recruitment 3,500 (See III.C.) Advertisements, recruitment fairs (i.e. Bank Street College, NAFTA)
Student Recruitment / Marketing

7,500
(See III.C )  public presentations, public outreach and marketing, fliers 1000 @$460, graphic design fees @$500,
ads (AM NewYork @2 x @$800pw print, Amsterdam News @2 x $680pm print, El Diario La Prensa digital @2 x
$110/30days, African Voices @2 x $300pm, Radio Africa @2 x $1,000)

School Meals / Lunch
Travel (Staff) 4,500 IB training air, hotel, meals travel (ExD, DOTL and IB coordinator) @$1,500 per person
Fundraising -
Other 4,500 Initial submission fee to IBO for Candacy status to enable training and consuting. See schedule in Attachment 4c

and III.E.TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 50,390

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 2,500 D & O insurance 1/2 year prorated
Janitorial -

Building and Land Rent / Lease 6,000 Utilization of coworking space includes presentation & enrollment space.
Repairs & Maintenance -
Equipment / Furniture -
Security -
Utilities -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 8,500

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY -

TOTAL EXPENSES 165,000

NET INCOME -

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
District of Location - NYC CSD 4 or 5 -
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT -

REVENUE PER PUPIL -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL -



Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR PRE-OPENING PERIOD PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR DISCRETIONARY PLANNING YEAR *

Jan 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018 Jan 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018
* This section should be left blank unless and/or until the charter agreement is duly modified to include a planning year 

Total Revenue 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 165,000 - - -
Total Expenses 25,683 25,683 28,408 28,408 28,408 28,408 165,000 - - -
Net Income 1,817 1,817 (908) (908) (908) (908) - - - -
Cash Flow Adjustments - - - - - - - - - -
Beginning Cash Balance - - - - - - - - - -
Net Income 1,817 1,817 (908) (908) (908) (908) - - - -

January February March April May June TOTAL July August September

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue
District of Location - - - - - - - - - -
School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
Grants

Stimulus - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES - - - - - - - - - -

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs - - - - - - - - - -
Title I - - - - - - - - - -
Title Funding - Other - - - - - - - - - -
School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - - - - - - -
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 27,500.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 165,000 - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 165,000 - - -

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - - - - - - - -
Fundraising - - - - - - - - - -
Erate Reimbursement - - - - - - - - - -
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - - - - - - -
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - - - - - -
Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - - - - - -
Text Book - - - - - - - - - -
OTHER - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 27,500 165,000 - - -

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of

Positions
Executive Management 1.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 7,500.00 45,000 - - -
Instructional Management 0.66 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 24,000 - - -
Deans, Directors & Coordinators - - - - - - - - - -
CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager - - - - - - - - - - -
Administrative Staff 0.66 - - 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 10,000 - - -

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 2.32 11,500 11,500 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 79,000 - - -



INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular - - - - - - - - - - -
Teachers - SPED - - - - - - - - - - -
Substitute Teachers - - - - - - - - - - -
Teaching Assistants - - - - - - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers - - - - - - - - - - -
Aides - - - - - - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors - - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL - - - - - - - - - - -

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse - - - - - - - - - - -
Librarian - - - - - - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - - - - - - -
Security - - - - - - - - - - -
Other 0.66 - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 0.66 - - - - - - - - - -

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2.98 11,500 11,500 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 79,000 - - -

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 1,035 1,035 1,260 1,260 1,260 1,260 7,110 - - -
Fringe / Employee Benefits - - - - - - - - - -
Retirement / Pension - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 1,035 1,035 1,260 1,260 1,260 1,260 7,110 - - -

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 2.98 12,535 12,535 15,260 15,260 15,260 15,260 86,110 - - -

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 18,000 - - -
Legal - - - - - - - - - -
Management Company Fee - - - - - - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - - - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - - - - - - -
Payroll Services - - - - - - - - - -
Special Ed Services - - - - - - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 2,000 - - -

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 3,333 20,000 - - -

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses 2,233.33 2,233.33 2,233.33 2,233.33 2,233.33 2,233.33 13,400 - - -
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials - - - - - - - - - -
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - - - - - - - - - -
Textbooks / Workbooks - - - - - - - - - -
Supplies & Materials other 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 333.33 2,000 - - -
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - - - - - -
Telephone 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00 600 - - -
Technology 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 6,000 - - -
Student Testing & Assessment - - - - - - - - - -
Field Trips - - - - - - - - - -
Transportation (student) - - - - - - - - - -
Student Services - other - - - - - - - - - -
Office Expense 231.67 231.67 231.67 231.67 231.67 231.67 1,390 - - -
Staff Development 1,166.67 1,166.67 1,166.67 1,166.67 1,166.67 1,166.67 7,000 - - -
Staff Recruitment 583.33 583.33 583.33 583.33 583.33 583.33 3,500 - - -
Student Recruitment / Marketing 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 1,250.00 7,500 - - -
School Meals / Lunch - - - - - - - - - -
Travel (Staff) 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 4,500 - - -
Fundraising - - - - - - - - - -
Other 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 750.00 4,500 - - -

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 8,398 8,398 8,398 8,398 8,398 8,398 50,390 - - -

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE



Insurance 416.67 416.67 416.67 416.67 416.67 416.67 2,500 - - -
Janitorial - - - - - - - - - -
Building and Land Rent / Lease 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 1,000.00 6,000 - - -
Repairs & Maintenance - - - - - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture - - - - - - - - - -
Security - - - - - - - - - -
Utilities - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 1,417 8,500 - - -

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - - - - - - -
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 25,683 25,683 28,408 28,408 28,408 28,408 165,000 - - -

NET INCOME 1,817 1,817 (908) (908) (908) (908) - - - -

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Operating Activities - - - - - - - - - -
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Investment Activities - - - - - - - - - -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

 Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Financing Activities - - - - - - - - - -

Total Cash Flow Adjustments - - - - - - - - - -

NET INCOME 1,817 1,817 (908) (908) (908) (908) - - - -

Beginning Cash Balance - - - - - - - - - -

ENDING CASH BALANCE 1,817 1,817 (908) (908) (908) (908) - - - -



- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

October November December January February March April May June TOTAL

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - - - -

PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR DISCRETIONARY PLANNING YEAR *
Jan 1, 2018 through June 30, 2018

* This section should be left blank unless and/or until the charter agreement is duly modified to include a planning year 
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Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR YEAR ONE

7/1/2018 to 6/30/2019
Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered below
in the Enrollment Section beginning in row 147. This will
populate the data in row 9.

Total Revenue 2,842,438 794,451 - 12,000 121,500 3,770,389
Total Expenses 2,296,010 580,100 - - 769,617 3,645,728
Net Income 546,427 214,351 - 12,000 (648,117) 124,661
Actual Student Enrollment 123 27 150
Total Paid Student Enrollment 123 27 150

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORT SERVICES

REGULAR
EDUCATION

SPECIAL
EDUCATION OTHER

FUNDRAISING MANAGEMENT
& GENERAL TOTAL

REVENUE
REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate
District of Location 15,307 1,882,761 413,289 - - - 2,296,050
School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

1,882,761 413,289 - - - 2,296,050

Special Education Revenue - 266,682 - - - 266,682

Grants
Stimulus - - - - - -
Other - - - - - -

Other 398,520 87,480 - - 121,500 607,500
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 2,281,281 767,451 - - 121,500 3,170,232

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs 27,000 - - 27,000

Title I 126,784 - - 126,784

Title Funding - Other 16,923 - - 16,923

School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - -

Grants
Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 300,000 - - - - 300,000
Other - - - - - -

Other - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 443,707 27,000 - - - 470,707

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising - - - 12,000 - 12,000

Erate Reimbursement - - - - - -

Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - - -
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 117,450 - - - - 117,450
Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - -



Text Book - - - - - -

OTHER - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 117,450 - - 12,000 - 129,450

TOTAL REVENUE 2,842,438 794,451 - 12,000 121,500 3,770,389

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions

Executive Management 1.00 - - $135,000 135,000
Instructional Management 1.00 $77,900 $17,100 - - - 95,000
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 $127,374 27,960 - - $85,373 240,707

CFO / Director of Finance - - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 - - - $49,065 49,065
Administrative Staff 2.00 31,200 - - - 31,200 62,400

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 8.00 236,474 45,060 - - 300,638 582,172

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Teachers - Regular 12.00 $670,311 $147,141 - - - 817,452

Teachers - SPED 1.00 $73,972 - - - 73,972
Substitute Teachers 25,707 5,643 - - - 31,350
Teaching Assistants - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers

4.00 $223,437 $49,047 - - - 272,484

Aides - - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 1.00 $55,917 $12,275 - - - 68,192
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 18.00 975,372 288,078 - - - 1,263,450

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse 1.00 49,200 10,800 - - - 60,000
Librarian - - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - - -
Security - - - - - - -
Other 1.00 34,440 7,560 - - - 42,000

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 2.00 83,640 18,360 - - - 102,000

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 28.00 1,295,486 351,498 - - 300,638 1,947,622

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 116,594 31,635 - - 27,057 175,286
Fringe / Employee Benefits 148,981 40,422 - - 34,573 223,977
Retirement / Pension - - - - - -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 265,575 72,057 - - 61,631 399,263

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 28.00 1,561,060 423,555 - - 362,269 2,346,885

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit - - - - 88,000 88,000
Legal - - - - 10,000 10,000
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - -
Payroll Services - - 5,220 5,220
Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 8,200 1,800 - - 20,000 30,000

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 8,200 1,800 - - 123,220 133,220

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses

- - - 10,000 10,000



Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 36,900 8,100 - - - 45,000
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 5,400 - - - 5,400
Textbooks / Workbooks

38,950 8,550 - - - 47,500

Supplies & Materials other 36,900 8,100 - - - 45,000
Equipment / Furniture - - 5,000 5,000
Telephone 

- - - 12,000 12,000

Technology 7,216 1,584 - - 2,200 11,000
Student Testing & Assessment

10,681 2,345 - - 13,025
Field Trips 9,225 2,025 - - 11,250
Transportation (student)

5,000 - - 5,000
Student Services - other

13,000 - 13,000

Office Expense - - 25,650 25,650

Staff Development 33,292 7,308 - 6,000 46,600
Staff Recruitment

2,755 605 - - 840 4,200
Student Recruitment / Marketing

10,000 - 10,000
School Meals / Lunch 8,266 1,814 - 2,520 12,600
Travel (Staff) 3,400 - 3,400 6,800
Fundraising - - -

Other 8,610 1,890 - 1,700 12,200
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 224,194 47,721 - - 69,310 341,225

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 22,960 5,040 - - 7,000 35,000
Janitorial 9,840 2,160 - - 3,000 15,000

Building and Land Rent / Lease 398,520 87,480 - - 121,500 607,500

Repairs & Maintenance 9,840 2,160 - - 3,000 15,000

Equipment / Furniture 15,000 - - - 15,000
Security

22,042 4,838 - - 6,720 33,600
Utilities 24,354 5,346 - - 7,425 37,125

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 502,556 107,024 - - 148,645 758,225

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - 41,173 41,173

DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - 25,000 25,000

TOTAL EXPENSES 2,296,010 580,100 - - 769,617 3,645,728

NET INCOME 546,427 214,351 - 12,000 (648,117) 124,661



ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries* REGULAR
EDUCATION

SPECIAL
EDUCATION

District of Location 123 27 150
School District 2 (Enter Name) -
School District 3 (Enter Name) -
School District 4 (Enter Name) -
School District 5 (Enter Name) -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT 123 27 - 150

REVENUE PER PUPIL 23,109 29,424 - 25,136

EXPENSES PER PUPIL 18,667 21,485 - 24,305



 Assumptions
DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page

number in application if applicable. For example, student enrollment
would reference the page in the application that states enrollment

targets.

Assumes a minimum of 150 students are expected to be enrolled in Year 1 (See I.C)

Assumes 18% or 27 SWD pupils in Yr1: 8 students receive 0-20% @ $0, 11 students
receive 20%-60% services @ $10,390 per pupil and 8 students receive >60%
services @ $19049 per pupil.
Http://data.nysed.gov/specialed/index.php?instid=800000048663&year=20122013
(Se Table I.C.6)

Based on facility assistance grant and facility expense (See III.F.8)

IDEA Funding available at $1,000 per Special Education Student
(http://www.p12.nysed.gov/sedcar/federal/2014-15/parplace_1415.html)
Assumes 86.69% of the population is Title I eligible.  $585 per Title I student based off
of 2010-2011 Title I funding data for other charter schools in CSD 05.

Assumes 86.6% of the population is Title II eligible @ $60 per student and 11% of
students are Title III LEP @ $143    (See I.D.4)

School will utilize DoE school food (See III.H)

Second CSP installment

12,000 per year from board members and related donations



List exact titles included in the position category, if different
from description, and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)
                               Staffing and Organizational structure are in Section III.C
Executive Director. Assumes salary increases
Director of Teaching & Learning
Special Services Coordinator (Intervention) (FTE-1) @$77,667 See III.C. & IB
Program Coordinator @$77,667 (FTE-1) , Director of Operations @$85,373

Start up coordinator @$49,065 (FTE-1)
School Aides @ 31,200 (FTE-2)

Classroom Bilingual Teachers @$68,121 (FTE- 6) Classroom Monolingual Teachers
@$$68,121 (FTE- 6)
Special Ed Teacher (FTE- 1)

French Foreign Language Teacher (FLE) @$68,121 (FTE- 0.8), Art Teacher
@$68,121 (FTE- .4) , ESL Teacher @$68,121 (FTE- 1), PE Teacher @$68,121 (FTE-
.8), Applied Learning Teacher          @$68,121 (FTE- 1)

Social Worker @$68,192 (FTE-1)

Nurse Allocation in event NYCDOH is unable to provide service (See III.H.1)

Community Outreach Liaison @$42,000 (FTE-1)

Based on approx 9% of gross salaries
Based on approx 11.5% of gross salaries

$20,000 Auditing fees; $68,000 ASNY accounting management services (See III.J.1)
Legal retainer

$186 per employee annually

$20,000 IT; $10,000; Bank Street College and GMU stipends for Interns (See II.B.10
and III.K.2)

Board training, workshops, and end year assessment retreat (DL; IB; Academic:
Charter School, etc.)(See III.B.6)



$300 per student ($200 ps general; $100 ps French/English classroom library)
Assistive technology @$200 per student (See III.C.6)$250 per student (CKLA, Singapore Math, & EIE Textbooks per received quotes) and
$10,000 to Stock Year 1 French/English Library Lab research books and materials
(See II.A Educ Plan)
$300 per student ($200 ps for inquiry/science & applied learning  [See  I.B.1; II.A.7;
II.B.1; for inquiry through science/social studies $100 ps for Foreign Language
supplies & materials)
Maintenance of Equipment. For material purchases - we have capital budget

Telephone services

Maintenance of technology and suppport; $6,000 for ManageBac (See I C.5 Retention
Plan) . Note that for capital purchases - we have capital budget
 $45 per student [F&P (4 kits@ $500each); NWEA MAP @$13.50 ps; French
proficiency @$10 ps Y1; Social Emtional Learning @$5.00 ps; materials]  (See II.D.2
Reliable Assessments)Based on estimate of 75 per student
$5000 Metrocards for students attending enrichment Intersession days outside of
DOE school calendar, (See III.H)
Uniform reserve @$1,000; Parent engagement (see II F. & III I.); $1,000 stipend per
classroom. Anticipates 6 instructional staff will teach Intersession FY1 @$1,000each
(see II B.).$25,650 py ($7 per student for postage; $850 per month for copying supplies; $700
per month photocopier lease; $500 per month for miscellaneous office supplies)$1600 per instructional staff x 21 staff (COL and Coordinators included);
encompasses Gomez dual language, Social Emotional/Bank Street, IBO, continued
CKLA and Singapore Math Training/PD; Professional Development of $3000 to ExD &
DOTL. Additionally, two teachers receive one travel fellowship for $3,500 each on a
competitive basis  (see III.C.10)
$4200 for advertisements, job postings, tables at NYC job fairs (NYU, Bank St.,
Independent School Services); use of NYC Charter School Center for Teacher
Certification Services @$1600 (see III.C.7)$500 per month set aside for 9 months of marketing materials and mailings; $2,000
STEMKids and Manhattan Mandarin promotional events; print and media ads @3500
(See I.C.5)
15% reserve for loss from overages and absenses
2 PD conferences per year @$1700 each for ExD and DOTL (i.e. IB and National
Charter School)

$10,000 IB Candidate Status fee to IBO; $700 Bank Fees; Leadership Mentoring (2
Mentor visits @$500  Each); $50 Per Month x 10 teacher's choice allocations to
support parent engagement. (See I.C.5 Retention Plan)

Austin & Co Insurance Quote
Assumes $1,250 in supplies each month for 12 months.

Assumes $45per sq. ft. = lease at $40 per sq. f tand subsidized owner build out at $5
per sq.

First year cosmetic repairs related of $15,000
Assumes startup supplies $10,000 and replacement items as average $450 per
month.

Assumes $30,000 contracted services and $300 per month alarm system monitoring
 Elecricity, Water.. assumes $2.75 per square foot.

Depreciation expense for Year one on capital expenses of $162,200 .
First of three set asides See III.M.





Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR YEAR ONE OF OPERATIONS

July 1, 20XX to June 30, 20XX

Total Revenue 579,372 101,000 544,372 71,741 544,372 16,000 544,372 16,000 659,337 16,000
Total Expenses 210,689 326,452 320,952 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162
Net Income 368,683 (225,452) 223,420 (228,421) 244,210 (284,162) 244,210 (284,162) 359,175 (284,162)
Cash Flow Adjustments (44,820) (44,820) - - - (44,820) - - - -
Beginning Cash Balance - 323,863 53,591 277,011 48,590 292,799 (36,183) 208,027 (76,136) 283,039
Net Income 323,863 53,591 277,011 48,590 292,799 (36,183) 208,027 (76,136) 283,039 (1,123)

July August September October November December January February March April

REVENUE * Total Column (Column U) for all lines other than Cash Flow Adjustments should equal the Total Column (Column N) on tab '4.) Year Budget &
Assumptions'.  REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES

Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate
District of Location 15,307 382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 -
School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - - - - - -

382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 - 382,675 -
Special Education Revenue 44,447 - 44,447 - 44,447 - 44,447 - 44,447 -
Grants

Stimulus - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Other 101,250 - 101,250 - 101,250 - 101,250 - 101,250 -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 528,372 - 528,372 - 528,372 - 528,372 - 528,372 -

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING
IDEA Special Needs - - - 27,000 - - - - - -
Title I - - - 25,357 - - - - 101,427 -
Title Funding - Other - - - 3,385 - - - - 13,538 -
School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - - - - - - -
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 50,000 100,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Other - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 50,000 100,000 15,000 70,741 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 129,965 15,000

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Erate Reimbursement - - - - - - - - - -
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - - - - - - -
NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) - - - - - - - - - -
Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - - - - - - -
Text Book - - - - - - - - - -
OTHER - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000

TOTAL REVENUE 579,372 101,000 544,372 71,741 544,372 16,000 544,372 16,000 659,337 16,000

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions

Executive Management 1.00 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250 11,250
Instructional Management 1.00 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917 7,917
Deans, Directors & Coordinators - 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059 20,059
CFO / Director of Finance 3.00 - - - - - - - - - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089 4,089
Administrative Staff 2.00 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200 5,200

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 8.00 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514 48,514

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS



Teachers - Regular 12.00 - 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314 74,314
Teachers - SPED 1.00 - 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725 6,725
Substitute Teachers - - 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850 2,850
Teaching Assistants - - - - - - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 5.00 - 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771 24,771
Aides - - - - - - - - - - -
Therapists & Counselors 1.00 - 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199 6,199
Other - - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 19.00 - 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859 114,859

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS
Nurse 1.00 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455 5,455
Librarian - - - - - - - - - -
Custodian - - - - - - - - - -
Security - - - - - - - - - -
Other 1.00 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818 3,818

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 2.00 - 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273 9,273

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 29.00 48,514 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646 172,646

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 4,366 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538 15,538
Fringe / Employee Benefits 5,579 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854 19,854
Retirement / Pension - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 9,945 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392 35,392

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 29.00 58,460 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039 208,039

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667 5,667
Legal 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833
Management Company Fee - - - - - - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - - - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - - - - - - -
Payroll Services 435 435 435 435 435 435 435 435 435 435
Special Ed Services - - - - - - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - - - - - - -
Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500

TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435 9,435

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials - 9,000 9,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Special Ed Supplies & Materials - 1,080 1,080 360 360 360 360 360 360 360
Textbooks / Workbooks - 9,500 9,500 3,167 3,167 3,167 3,167 3,167 3,167 3,167
Supplies & Materials other - 9,000 9,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000
Equipment / Furniture 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417
Telephone 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Technology 5,500 5,500 - - - - - - - -
Student Testing & Assessment - 2,605 2,605 868 868 868 868 868 868 868
Field Trips 938 938 938 938 938 938 938 938 938 938
Transportation (student) 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417 417
Student Services - other 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083 1,083
Office Expense 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138
Staff Development 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883 3,883
Staff Recruitment 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350 350
Student Recruitment / Marketing 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833 833
School Meals / Lunch 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050 1,050
Travel (Staff) 567 567 567 567 567 567 567 567 567 567
Fundraising - - - - - - - - - -
Other 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017 1,017

TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 20,025 51,210 45,710 24,920 24,920 24,920 24,920 24,920 24,920 24,920

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 35,000 - - - - - - - - -



Janitorial 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250 1,250
Building and Land Rent / Lease 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625 50,625
Repairs & Maintenance 15,000 - - - - - - - - -
Equipment / Furniture 15,000 - - - - - - - - -
Security 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800 2,800
Utilities 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094 3,094

TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 122,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769 57,769

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION - - - - - - - - - -
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY - - - - - - - - - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 210,689 326,452 320,952 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162 300,162

NET INCOME 368,683 (225,452) 223,420 (228,421) 244,210 (284,162) 244,210 (284,162) 359,175 (284,162)

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Operating Activities - - - - - - - - - -
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures (44,820) (44,820) (44,820) - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Investment Activities (44,820) (44,820) - - - (44,820) - - - -
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit - - - - - - - - - -
Other - - - - - - - - - -

Total Financing Activities - - - - - - - - - -

Total Cash Flow Adjustments (44,820) (44,820) - - - (44,820) - - - -

NET INCOME 323,863 (270,272) 223,420 (228,421) 244,210 (328,982) 244,210 (284,162) 359,175 (284,162)

Beginning Cash Balance - 323,863 53,591 277,011 48,590 292,799 (36,183) 208,027 (76,136) 283,039

ENDING CASH BALANCE 323,863 53,591 277,011 48,590 292,799 (36,183) 208,027 (76,136) 283,039 (1,123)



661,822 16,000 3,770,389
300,162 386,336 3,645,728
361,660 (370,336) 124,661

- 26,233 (108,227)
(1,123) 360,536 -

360,536 16,434 16,434

May June TOTAL

382,675 - 2,296,050
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

382,675 - 2,296,050
44,447 - 266,682

- - -
- - -

101,250 - 607,500
528,372 - 3,170,232

- - 27,000
- - 126,784
- - 16,923
- - -

15,000 15,000 300,000
- - -
- - -

15,000 15,000 470,707

1,000 1,000 12,000
- - -
- - -

117,450 - 117,450
- - -
- - -
- - -

118,450 1,000 129,450

661,822 16,000 3,770,389

11,250 11,250 135,000
7,917 7,917 95,000

20,059 20,059 240,707
- - -

4,089 4,089 49,065
5,200 5,200 62,400

48,514 48,514 582,172

Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED CASH FLOW FOR YEAR ONE OF OPERATIONS

July 1, 20XX to June 30, 20XX

* Total Column (Column U) for all lines other than Cash Flow Adjustments should equal the Total Column (Column N) on tab '4.) Year Budget &
Assumptions'.  



74,314 74,314 817,452
6,725 6,725 73,972
2,850 2,850 31,350

- - -
24,771 24,771 272,484

- - -
6,199 6,199 68,192

- - -
114,859 114,859 1,263,450

5,455 5,455 60,000
- - -
- - -
- - -

3,818 3,818 42,000
9,273 9,273 102,000

172,646 172,646 1,947,622

15,538 15,538 175,286
19,854 19,854 223,977

- - -
35,392 35,392 399,263

208,039 208,039 2,346,885

5,667 25,667 88,000
833 833 10,000

- - -
- - -
- - -

435 435 5,220
- - -
- - -

2,500 2,500 30,000
9,435 29,435 133,220

833 833 10,000
3,000 3,000 45,000

360 360 5,400
3,167 3,167 47,500
3,000 3,000 45,000

417 417 5,000
1,000 1,000 12,000

- - 11,000
868 868 13,025
938 938 11,250
417 417 5,000

1,083 1,083 13,000
2,138 2,138 25,650
3,883 3,883 46,600

350 350 4,200
833 833 10,000

1,050 1,050 12,600
567 567 6,800

- - -
1,017 1,017 12,200

24,920 24,920 341,225

- - 35,000



1,250 1,250 15,000
50,625 50,625 607,500

- - 15,000
- - 15,000

2,800 2,800 33,600
3,094 3,094 37,125

57,769 57,769 758,225

- 41,173 41,173
- 25,000 25,000

300,162 386,336 3,645,728

361,660 (370,336) 124,661

- 41,173 41,173
- - -
- 41,173 41,173

- (14,940) (149,400)
- - -
- (14,940) (149,400)

- - -
- - -
- - -

- 26,233 (108,227)

361,660 (344,102) 16,434

(1,123) 360,536 -

360,536 16,434 16,434



Amount

Desc Opening Y1 Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5 Total
Per Pupil Revenue (includes ppr, spl ed , facility) 3,170,232 4,423,387 5,589,575 6,780,986 7,998,181
CSP and other grants 165,000 600,157 263,153 208,441 240,052 273,315
Total Revenue 165000 3,770,389 4,686,540 5,798,016 7,021,037 8,271,496
Personnel Costs Gross Salaries 79,000 1,947,622 2,323,505 2,844,439 3,654,465 4,104,912
Taxes and Benefits 7,110 399,263 510,416 640,308 843,502 972,063
Consultants 20,000 133,220 146,325 96,840 102,201 108,205
Operations 50,390 341,225 434,033 542,979 653,114 764,488
Facility 8,500 758,225 1,056,970 1,318,697 1,587,886 1,866,615
Non Cash expenses 66,173 89,620 110,950 78,247 81,110
Total Expenses 165,000 3,645,728 4,560,869 5,554,213 6,919,414 7,897,393
Total Surplus - 124,661 125,671 243,804 101,623 374,102

% of
Revenue

Desc Opening Y1 Y2 Y3 Y4 Y5

Average
% to

report
Personnel Costs Gross Salaries 47.88% 51.66% 49.58% 49.06% 52.05% 49.63% 50.39%
Taxes and Benefits 4.31% 10.59% 10.89% 11.04% 12.01% 11.75% 11.26%
Consultants 12.12% 3.53% 3.12% 1.67% 1.46% 1.31% 2.22%
Operations 30.54% 9.05% 9.26% 9.36% 9.30% 9.24% 9.24%
Facility 5.15% 20.11% 22.55% 22.74% 22.62% 22.57% 22.12%
Non Cash expenses 1.76% 1.91% 1.91% 1.11% 0.98% 1.54%
Total Expenses



Sofara International Charter School
PROJECTED BUDGET / OPERATING PLAN FOR INITIAL CHARTER PERIOD

*NOTE: If a Planning Year is Taken in the Beginning of the Charter, the Charter Will Be Extended to Encompass Five Years of Operation.  Projected Five
Year Budget on this Tab Should Be For the First Five Years of Actual Operations.

Please Note: The student enrollment data is entered
below in the Enrollment Section beginning in row
148. This will populate the data in row 10.

Total Revenue 3,770,389 4,686,540 5,798,016 7,021,037 8,271,496
Total Expenses 3,645,728 4,560,869 5,554,213 6,919,414 7,897,393
Net Income (Before Cash Flow Adjustments) 124,661 125,671 243,804 101,623 374,102
Actual Student Enrollment 157.50 210.00 262.50 315.00 367.50
Total Paid Student Enrollment 150 200 250 300 350

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

*Year 1 should tie to Totals for Year 1 on Tabs 4 and 5
REVENUE Per Pupil Revenue Percentage Increase

REVENUES FROM STATE SOURCES 0.0% 5.1% 1.5% 1.5% 1.5%
Per Pupil Revenue CY Per Pupil Rate

District of Location 15,307 2,296,050 3,218,200 4,083,091 4,973,205 5,889,104

School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - - -

2,296,050 3,218,200 4,083,091 4,973,205 5,889,104

Special Education Revenue 266,682 354,687 443,359 532,031 620,702

Grants
Stimulus
Other 607,500 850,500 1,063,125 1,275,750 1,488,375

Other - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES 3,170,232 4,423,387 5,589,575 6,780,986 7,998,181

REVENUE FROM FEDERAL FUNDING

IDEA Special Needs 27,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000

Title I 126,784 100,000 125,000 150,000 175,000

Title Funding - Other 16,923 21,153 26,441 33,052 41,315

School Food Service (Free Lunch) - - - - -
Grants

Charter School Program (CSP) Planning & Implementation 300,000 85,000 - - -
Other - - - - -

Other - - - - -
TOTAL REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES 470,707 251,153 196,441 228,052 261,315

LOCAL and OTHER REVENUE
Contributions and Donations, Fundraising 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000
Erate Reimbursement - - - - -
Interest Income, Earnings on Investments, - - - - -

NYC-DYCD (Department of Youth and Community Developmt.) 117,450 - - - -

Food Service (Income from meals) - - - - -
Text Book - - - - -
OTHER - - - - -



TOTAL REVENUE FROM LOCAL and OTHER SOURCES 129,450 12,000 12,000 12,000 12,000

TOTAL REVENUE 3,770,389 4,686,540 5,798,016 7,021,037 8,271,496

EXPENSES
ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions

Executive Management 1.00 135,000 141,750 148,838 156,279 164,093
Instructional Management 1.00 95,000 99,750 104,738 109,974 115,473
Deans, Directors & Coordinators 3.00 240,707 247,928 255,366 342,124 352,388
CFO / Director of Finance - -
Operation / Business Manager 1.00 49,065 50,537 105,725 108,897 112,164
Administrative Staff 2.00 62,400 64,272 82,750 102,279 105,348

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE STAFF 8.00 582,172 604,237 697,416 819,554 849,466

INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions
Teachers - Regular 12.00 817,452 1,122,634 1,445,391 1,786,504 2,146,782
Teachers - SPED 1.00 73,972 76,191 156,954 161,662 166,512
Substitute Teachers - 31,350 39,188 48,984 61,230 76,538
Teaching Assistants - - - - - -
Specialty Teachers 5.00 272,484 322,757 332,440 580,614 613,366
Aides - -
Therapists & Counselors 1.00 68,192 70,238 72,345 151,265 155,803
Other - - - - - -

TOTAL INSTRUCTIONAL 19.00 1,263,450 1,631,008 2,056,114 2,741,276 3,159,002

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL PERSONNEL COSTS No. of Positions
Nurse 1.00 60,000 - - - -
Librarian - - - - - -
Custodian - 45,000 46,350 47,741 49,173
Security - - - - - -
Other 1.00 42,000 43,260 44,558 45,895 47,271

TOTAL NON-INSTRUCTIONAL 2.00 102,000 88,260 90,908 93,635 96,444

SUBTOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 29.00 1,947,622 2,323,505 2,844,439 3,654,465 4,104,912

PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS
Payroll Taxes 175,286 $209,115 $255,999 $328,902 $369,442

Fringe / Employee Benefits 223,977 $252,507 $324,575 $437,857 $516,418

Retirement / Pension $0 $48,794 $59,733 $76,744 $86,203
TOTAL PAYROLL TAXES AND BENEFITS 399,263 510,416 640,308 843,502 972,063

TOTAL PERSONNEL SERVICE COSTS 29.00 2,346,885 2,833,921 3,484,747 4,497,967 5,076,975

CONTRACTED SERVICES
Accounting / Audit 88,000 98,000 45,000 46,350 47,741
Legal 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,255
Management Company Fee - - - - -
Nurse Services - - - - -
Food Service / School Lunch - - - - -

Payroll Services 5,220 6,525 8,156 10,195 12,744

Special Ed Services - - - - -
Titlement Services (i.e. Title I) - - - - -

Other Purchased / Professional / Consulting 30,000 31,500 33,075 34,729 36,465
TOTAL CONTRACTED SERVICES 133,220 146,325 96,840 102,201 108,205

SCHOOL OPERATIONS
Board Expenses 10,000 10,300 10,609 10,927 11,255
Classroom / Teaching Supplies & Materials 45,000 72,100 92,829 114,736 137,875
Special Ed Supplies & Materials 5,400 7,200 9,000 10,800 12,600
Textbooks / Workbooks 47,500 63,333 79,167 95,000 110,833



Supplies & Materials other
45,000 30,000 37,500 45,000 52,500

Equipment / Furniture 5,000 6,667 8,333 10,000 11,667
Telephone 12,000 16,000 20,000 24,000 28,000
Technology 11,000 14,667 18,333 22,000 25,667
Student Testing & Assessment 13,025 17,367 21,708 26,050 30,392

Field Trips 11,250 15,000 18,750 22,500 26,250

Transportation (student) 5,000 6,667 8,333 10,000 11,667
Student Services - other 13,000 17,333 21,667 26,000 30,333
Office Expense 25,650 34,200 42,750 51,300 59,850
Staff Development 46,600 62,133 77,667 93,200 108,733
Staff Recruitment 4,200 5,600 7,000 8,400 9,800
Student Recruitment / Marketing 10,000 13,333 16,667 20,000 23,333
School Meals / Lunch 12,600 16,800 21,000 25,200 29,400
Travel (Staff) 6,800 9,067 11,333 13,600 15,867
Fundraising - - - - -

Other 12,200 16,267 20,333 24,400 28,467
TOTAL SCHOOL OPERATIONS 341,225 434,033 542,979 653,114 764,488

FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE
Insurance 35,000 45,500 59,150 76,895 99,964

Janitorial 15,000 19,500 25,350 32,955 42,842

Building and Land Rent / Lease
607,500 850,500 1,063,125 1,275,750 1,488,375

Repairs & Maintenance 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000 15,000
Equipment / Furniture 15,000 20,000 25,000 30,000 35,000

Security 33,600 40,320 48,384 58,061 69,673

Utilities 37,125 66,150 82,688 99,225 115,763
TOTAL FACILITY OPERATION & MAINTENANCE 758,225 1,056,970 1,318,697 1,587,886 1,866,615

DEPRECIATION & AMORTIZATION 41,173 64,620 85,950 78,247 81,110
DISSOLUTION ESCROW & RESERVES / CONTIGENCY 25,000 25,000 25,000 - -

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,645,728 4,560,869 5,554,213 6,919,414 7,897,393

NET INCOME 124,661 125,671 243,804 101,623 374,102

ENROLLMENT - *School Districts Are Linked To Above Entries*
District of Location - - - - -
School District 2 (Enter Name) - - - - -
School District 3 (Enter Name) - - - - -
School District 4 (Enter Name) - - - - -
School District 5 (Enter Name) - - - - -

TOTAL ENROLLMENT - - - - -

REVENUE PER PUPIL - - - - -

EXPENSES PER PUPIL - - - - -

CASH FLOW ADJUSTMENTS
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Back Depreciation 41,173 64,620 85,950 78,247 81,110
Other - - - - -

Total Operating Activities 41,173 64,620 85,950 78,247 81,110
INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

Example - Subtract Property and Equipment Expenditures (149,400) (135,700) (75,550) (73,150) (73,150)
Other - - - - -

Total Investment Activities (149,400) (135,700) (75,550) (73,150) (73,150)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Example - Add Expected Proceeds from a Loan or Line of Credit - - - - -



Other - - - - -
Total Financing Activities - - - - -

Total Cash Flow Adjustments (108,227) (71,080) 10,400 5,097 7,960

NET INCOME 16,434 54,591 254,204 106,720 382,062

Beginning Cash Balance - 16,434 71,025 325,229 431,948

ENDING CASH BALANCE 16,434 71,025 325,229 431,948 814,011



 Assumptions
DESCRIPTION OF ASSUMPTIONS - Please reference section/page

number in application if applicable. For example, student enrollment
would reference the page in the application that states enrollment

targets.

Assumes $15,307 for year 1; $16,091 for year 2 (based on current ppr from charter
center ) and 1.5% increase for yrs 3-5.

Assumes 18% or 27 SWD pupils in Yr1: 8 students receive 0-20% @ $0, 11 students
receive 20%-60% services @ $10,390 per pupil and 8 students receive >60% services
@ $19049 per pupil.
Http://data.nysed.gov/specialed/index.php?instid=800000048663&year=20122013

Based on facility assistance . Lower of 30% of ppr or lease expense

IDEA Funding available at $1,000 per Special Education Student
(http://www.p12.nysed.gov/sedcar/federal/2014-15/parplace_1415.html)
Assumes 86.69% of the population is Title I eligible.  $585 per Title I student based off of
2010-2011 Title I funding data for other charter schools in CSD 05.
Assumes 86.6% of the population is Title II eligible @ $60 per student and 11% of
students are Title III LEP @ $143    (See I.D.4)

Total CSP grant of 550K to cover identified  technlogy and implementation costs

12,000 per year from board members and related donations

Based on DYCD 51,000 first year grant for charter school & 443 per student @ 150
students



List exact titles included in the position category, if different from description,
and staff FTE"s ( Full time eqiuilivalent)
 State number of postions for years 2 thru 5 in assumptions if differ from year
1.Executive Diretor 5% increase per year that offsets below average starting salary
Director of Teaching and Learning  5% increase per year that offsets below average
starting salaryDirector of Operations, IB Coordinator and Special Services Coordinator 3% increase
per year
Start up Coordinator in yr 1& 2 ; office manager and business manager in yrs 3-5
2.5 in year 3, 3 in years 4-5

16 in year 2, 20 in year 3, 24 in year 4, 28 in year 5
Assumes the need for 2 FTE in years 3-5 based on Student enrollment

FTE 4.0 in year 1, 4.6 in years 2-3, 7.8 in year 4, 8 in year 5

Assumes 2 FTE  in years 4-5 when Guidance Counselor is hired

School can utilize the DOE Nurse as students served > 200 (yrs 2-5)

FT Custodian starts year 2

Community Outreach Liason

Based on approx 9% of gross salariesBased on estimate of enrollment by 90% of employees for school's health care. Cost per
employee is  estimated at 11.5% of the gross salary. Additionally, an estimated increase
of 5% cost for years 2-5. << IMP item
Starting year 2 budget projects 70% participation of employees with 3% employer match

Based on proposal from Accounting Solutions of NY and then hire of Business manager
in year 310,000 based on estimate and then 3% every year

Estimate based on proposal for year 1 at 5,220 based and then 25% increase every
year

$20,000 IT; $10,000 Language Intern stipends (See III.C.)

Estimated for year 1 at 10,000 and then 3% increase every year
Estimated for year 1 at 300 per student and then 3% increase every year
Estimated for year 1 at 5,400 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 47,500 and then increase in proportion to student population



Estimated for year 1 at 45,000 and then replenishment of 30,000 for year 2 and then
proportional increase for years 3-5.
Estimated for year 1 at 5,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 12,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 11,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 13,025 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at $75 per child and then increase in proportion to student
population
Estimated for year 1 at 5,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 13,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 25,650 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 46,600 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 4,200 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 10,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 12,600 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 6,800 and then increase in proportion to student population

Estimated for year 1 at 12,200 and then increase in proportion to student population

Based on proposals from austin (insurance brokers for yrs 1 ) and estimates for yr 2-5
Estimated for year 1 at 15,000 and then increasing 30% every year

Based on 90Sq ft per student and $45 pper sq ft for rent and any possible buildout
Based on estimates for (non landlord funded) repairs yr 1-5 at 15K
Estimated for year 1 at 15,000 and then increase in proportion to student population
Estimated for year 1 at 33,600 based on current market rate and then increase by 20%
year year.
Based on 90Sq ft per student and $3 per sq ft for all utilities

Based on the useful life per GAAP for capital assets
As mandated by charter law





Table 3: Proposed Management and Staffing Chart – SOFARA INTERNATONAL CHARTER SCHOOL

Position Avg. Starting
Salary

FTE

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
ADMINISTRATIVE $8 $8 $10 $11 $11

Executive Director $135,000 1 1 1 1 1 5%

Director of Teaching & Learning $95,000 1 1 1 1 1 5%
Special Services Coordinator $77,667 1 1 1 1 1 3%

IB Coordinator $77,667 1 1 1 1 1 3%
Instructional Coach $79,097 1 1 3%

Director of Operations $85,373 1 1 1 1 1 3%
Business Manager $58,878 1 1 1 3%

Office Manager $44,158 1 1 1 3%
Start up Coordinator $49,065 1 1

School Aide $31,200 2 2 2.5 3 3 3%
INSTRUCTIONAL $17 $22 $27 $34 $38

French Bilingual Teachers* $68,121 6 8 10 12 14 3%

English Monolingual Teachers* $68,121 6 8 10 12 14 3%
Special Education teacher $73,972 1 1 2 2 2 3%

Substitute teacher $31,350
French Foreign Lang. Teacher/Specialist

(FLE) $68,121 0.8 1 1 2 2 3%
ESL teacher $68,121 1 1 1 2 2 3%

Applied Learning teacher (science) $68,121 1 1 1 2 2 3%
P.E. teachers $68,121 0.8 1 1 1 1 3%

Art teacher $68,121 0.4 0.6 0.6 0.8 1 3%
Social Worker $68,192 1 1 1 1 1 3%

Guidance Counselor $76,750 1 1 3%

SUPPORT SERVICES $2 $2 $2 $2 $2

Nurse $60,000 1
Custodian $45,000 0 1 1 1 1

Comm. Outreach Liaison $42,000 1 1 1 1 1 3%

Total Number of FTE $27 $32 $38 $47 $51



Table 3: Proposed Management and Staffing Chart – SOFARA INTERNATONAL CHARTER SCHOOL

Position FTE

Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
ADMINISTRATIVE $582,172 $604,237 $697,416 $819,554 $849,466

Exec. Direc Executive Director 135,000 141,750 148,838 156,279 164,093

Instructional mgmt
Director of Teaching &

Learning 95,000 99,750 104,738 109,974 115,473

Dean, direcors, coord
Special Services

Coordinator 77,667 79,997 82,397 84,869 87,415
Dean, direcors, coord IB Coordinator 77,667 79,997 82,397 84,869 87,415
Dean, direcors, coord Instructional Coach 79,097 81,470
Dean, direcors, coord Director of Operations 85,373 87,934 90,572 93,289 96,088
OP/Bus manager Business Manager 58,878 60,644 62,464
OP/Bus manager Office Manager 46,847 48,253 49,700
OP/Bus manager Start up Coordinator 49,065 50,537
Admin School Aide 62,400 64,272 82,750 102,279 105,348

INSTRUCTIONAL $1,263,450 $1,631,008 $2,056,114 $2,741,276 $3,159,002
Reg teacher

French Bilingual
Teachers* 408,726 561,317 722,696 893,252 1,073,391

Reg teacher
English Monolingual

Teachers* 408,726 561,317 722,696 893,252 1,073,391

SPED Teacher
Special Education

teacher 73,972 76,191 156,954 161,662 166,512
sub Substitute teacher 31,350 39,188 48,984 61,230 76,538

Special Teacher
French Foreign Lang.

Teacher/Specialist
(FLE)

54,497 70,165 72,270 148,875 153,342

Special Teacher ESL teacher 68,121 70,165 72,270 148,875 153,342

Special Teacher
Applied Learning
teacher (science) 68,121 70,165 72,270 148,875 153,342

Special Teacher P.E. teachers 54,497 70,165 72,270 74,438 76,671
Special Teacher Art teacher 27,248 42,099 43,362 59,550 76,671
therapist/counselor Social Worker 68,192 70,238 72,345 74,515 76,751
therapist/counselor Guidance Counselor 76,750 79,053

SUPPORT SERVICES $ 102,000 $ 88,260 $ 90,908 $ 93,635 $ 96,444

Nurse 60,000 0 0 0 0
Custodian 0 45,000 46,350 47,741 49,173

Comm. Outreach
Liaison 42,000 43,260 44,558 45,895 47,271



Sofara International Charter School

PROJECTED CAPITAL BUDGET FOR SCHOOL YEAR 2018-19 through YEAR 2022- 2023

Capital Costs
Useful

Life Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5
Student Laptops 3 35,000 35,000 26,250 26,250 26,250

Teacher Laptops 3 20,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Admin Laptops 3 7,200 - 2,400 - -
Ipad Carts 3 15,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000
Phone Equipment 3 7,500

Student Furniture 5 30,000 14,000 14,000 14,000 14,000

Teacher & Classroom Furniture 5 7,200 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

Main Office Furniture 5 7,500 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000
Tech Setup Services 5 15,000 7,500 7,500 7,500 7,500
Exterior Signage 5 5,000 - - - -

Total Capital Purchases 149,400 135,700 75,550 73,150 73,150
Total Depreciation for budget 41,173 64,620 85,950 78,247 81,110
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Individual Minds Breaking Boundaries	

	
Attachment	10:	Evidence	of	Financial	Support	
	
	

This	Attachment	is	not	applicable	to	Sofara	International	Charter	School.	
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Table	1:	Applicant	Group	Information
Created:	07/05/2017	•	Last	updated:	07/07/2017

Include	minimum	5	members	proposed	as	Trustees

Applicant	Group	Information

Name/Phone/Em
ail	Address

Current
Employment

Relevant
Experience/Skills
and	Role	on
Applicant	Group

Proposed	Role	in
School	(e.g.,
trustee,
employee,	none)

Proposed
Position	on
Board	(Officer,
Trustee,
Constituent	Rep)

1
Voyka	Soto	 Executive

Director	for	the
proposed	Sofara
International
Charter	School

Bilingual
education
International
Baccalaureate
Certified,
Educational
Leadership	roles,
K-8	Educator,
New	School
design,
Curriculum
Development

Employee Executive
Director

2
Katie	Taylor

NYCDOE	Central
Special
Education	Office,
Impartial
Hearing
Representation

Administrative
and	school
leadership	in
bilingual	setting,
Data	Analysis,	K-
12	Special
Education
expertise

Employee
Director	of
Teaching	and
Learning

3

Bob	McCullough,
Jr. Principal	Harlem

Professionals,
Inc.

Youth	outreach,
community
development,
parent
engagement

Employee Community
Outreach	Liaison

4
Bailey	Rollins Self-employed

early	childhood
birth-2	Educator

Charter	School
and	Private
School
experience,
early	childhood
development

Employee Founding
teacher

Kevin	V.G.	Wells,
Esq.

Director-
Diversity	&

Legal,
Compliance,
Contracts,
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5 Inclusion	/
MWBE	Services
NYCDHPD

Diversity,
Education,	Fund
Development

Trustee Chairperson

6

Nermin	K.
Ahmad Founder

CSRspace;
Principal	The
Kufikia	Project

Multilingual,
International
Affairs,
Infrastructure
Development
and	Start-up,
Fund
Development,
Business
Leadership

Trustee Vice-Chair

7
Principal	The
Drakeford	Realty
Group

Commercial
realty,	facilities
management

Trustee Secretary

8

Rashard	Dyess-
Lane Manager	Henry

Schein	Medical,
Inc.

Large-scale
budget
oversight,
technology,
supply	chain
management

Trustee Treasurer

9
Henry	Comas Regional

Disaster	Liaison,
US	Dept.
Housing	&	Urban
Development

CSD	4	Acacia
Network	Board
of	Directors;
Large	scale
policy
development	&
implementation,
project	oversight

Trustee Member

10
Tom	Amico Principal	/

Partner	Tom	&
Eric	911

Marketing	&
branding,	and
fund
development

Trustee Member

11
Torian	Richards

Principal
Torianite,	Inc.

International
Education	from
Business
perspective,
operations,
financial
management,
sourcing	and
forecasting,
recruitment	and
retention
strategies

Trustee Member
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12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Application	History

Identify	whether	any	member	of	the	current	applicant	group	has	ever	applied	to	this	or	another	charter
entity	to	open	this	proposed	school	or	another	charter	school,	either	in	New	York	State	or	outside	of	New
York	State.	Indicate	the	date	on	which	the	application(s)	was/were	submitted	and	to	which	charter	entity;
briefly	describe	the	outcome	of	the	charter	entity’s	decision;	and	provide	a	concise	description	of
significant	modifications	made	in	this	application	(if	applicable).

Sofara	International	Charter	School	(SICS)	founding	members	submitted	to	NYSED	in	rounds	one	and	two
of	2015	and	to	the	SUNY	Charter	School	Institute	in	round	one,	2016,	for	authorization.	SICS	submitted
an	LOI	in	round	one	of	2017	but	withdrew	before	the	proposal	was	submitted.	SICS	withdrew	its	proposal
each	time.	After	reviewing	and	considering	all	of	the	feedback	and	recommendations	from	the
authorizers	and	the	community,	SICS	has	modified	its	key	design	elements,	assessment	protocols,
budget	allocations,	and	has	strengthened	its	proposed	Board	of	Trustees	and	circle	of	supporting
organizations.	SICS	has	widened	its	area	of	outreach	for	enrollment.
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